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2014 
highlights

Delivering on our 
commitment to shareholders

I n ou r f i rst f u l l-yea r resu lt s  

a f ter pa r t ia l ly l i st i n g on t he 

New Zea la nd a nd Au st ra l ia n  

sto ck excha n ges i n O ctob er 2 01 3 ,  

we have ach ieved sol id resu lt s  

for sha reholders . E BI T DA F 1,  

a key indicator of profitabilit y, ha s 

exceeded t he prosp ect u s foreca st  

by $ 3 6 .9 m i l l ion (6 .7%). We have 

a l so del ivered a h i g her-t ha n-

foreca st f u l l-yea r cash dividend  

for our shareholders, resu lt i n g i n  

a 2 1 . 8% tota l sha reholder ret u r n 2  

to 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 .

13.01 
Total dividend in FY2014
24 . 3% h i g her t ha n foreca st i n t he prosp ect u s , 

i nclud i n g a 2 .0 0 cps sp ecia l d iv idend .

6.7%
EBITDAF 1 ahead of prospectus

FRONT COVER Jeremy Takao, Russell School, Porirua, helping to celebrate f irst power at Meridian’s new Mill Creek wind farm near Wellington in May 2014.

$3.5M
Invested in communities  
and environmental projects

2
New wind farms 
generating electricity

CENTS  
PER SHARE
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1 EBITDAF is earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, change in fair value  

of financial instruments, impairments, gain/(loss) on sale of assets and joint venture equity 

accounted earnings. 

2 Based on Meridian’s final initial public offering (IPO) share price and cash dividends  

declared for FY2014. 

3 Colmar Brunton Better Business Better World report 2013. 

1.7%
Growth in  
NZ customers

35.3%
Average NZ generation 
market share
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Sustainable outcomes  
for the environment 

T h i s yea r we have com m it ted  

$2 . 1 m i l l ion to supp or t i mp or ta nt 

env i ron menta l project s , i nclud i n g 

protect i n g t he eel p opu lat ion i n 

ou r r iver catch ment s w it h Ngā i 

Ta hu a nd r iver restorat ion w it h 

t he D epa r t ment of Con ser vat ion .  

O u r overa l l approach ha s seen 

u s recog n i sed by K iw i s a s t he 

cou nt r y ’s lead i n g compa ny i n 

su sta i nabi l it y for t he t h i rd yea r  

i n a row3. 

Caring for our 
communities

F rom helpi n g to f u nd a new 

med ica l cent re i n T w i zel to 

sp on sor i n g South Island Rowing , 

we have granted $1.4 million 

this year to community projects 

and sponsorship partners. O u r 

pa r t nersh ip w it h K id sC a n , for 

exa mple, ha s help ed t he cha r it y 

to d i st r ibute 3 0,0 0 0 ra i ncoat s , 

2 0,0 0 0 pa i rs of sho es a nd 4 0,0 0 0 

pairs of socks to Kiwi kids this year. 

Building a better  
energy future 

Fol low i n g mont h s of 

con st r uct ion , we have now 

completed t wo new w i nd fa r m s 

– M i l l C reek nea r Wel l i n g ton a nd  

Mt Mercer i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia . 

T h i s yea r we have ach ieved f i rst 

p ower at b ot h w i nd fa r m s , a nd  

to date b ot h project s have b een 

del ivered s a fely a nd on bud get . 

Mer id ia n ha s a l so i ncrea sed 

elect r icit y generat ion by 8 .9% 

yea r- on-yea r despite va r iable 

ma rket a nd weat her cond it ion s . 

Customer growth  
here and abroad

I n what a re con sidered t wo of  

t he most comp et it ive elect r icit y 

reta i l markets in the world4,  

we have achieved g row t h b ot h 

here a nd i n Au st ra l ia . We have 

g row n ou r New Zea la nd cu stomer 

nu mb ers 5 by 1 .7% across b ot h  

ou r Powershop a nd Mer id ia n 

bra nd s . We have a l so lau nched 

Powershop i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia 

a nd welcomed 1 3 ,4 0 0 cu stomers 

by Ju ne 2 014 .

4 The VaasaETT World Energy Retail Market Rankings 2013 found that the 

 New Zealand retail electricity market is the most competitive in the world in terms  

of switching , with the state of Victoria, Australia as the second most competitive. 

5 Customers are defined by Installation Control Points (ICPs). ICPs are points of connection 

on a local network or an embedded network that the distributor nominates as the point at 

which a retailer is deemed to supply electricity to a consumer.

1
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T h rou g h t he Mer id ia n a nd Powershop bra nd s , 

Mer id ia n reta i l s elect r icit y to more t ha n 

2 76 ,0 0 0 cu stomer con nect ion s , i nclud i n g 

homes , fa r m s a nd bu si nesses nat iona l ly. 

Powershop ha s 1 3 ,4 0 0 resident ia l a nd 

com mercia l cu stomer con nect ion s i n Victor ia , 

Au st ra l ia . O u r fo cu s i s on cont i nu i n g to 

ach ieve h i g h level s of ser v ice a nd del iver i n g 

va lue to ou r cu stomers .

Mer id ia n ow n s a nd op erates Mt M i l la r w i nd 

fa r m i n S out h Au st ra l ia a nd ha s recent ly 

completed t he con st r uct ion of Mt Mercer  

w i nd fa r m i n Victor ia . 

Mer id ia n wa s l i sted on t he New Zea la nd  

( N Z X ) a nd Au st ra l ia n ( A SX ) sto ck excha n ges 

on 2 9 O ctob er 2 01 3 a nd i s now a m i xed 

ow nersh ip mo del compa ny, 51% ow ned  

by t he New Zea la nd G over n ment .

Mer id ia n generates approx i mately 3 0% of 

New Zea la nd’s elect r icit y f rom it s i nteg rated 

cha i n of da m s a nd p ower stat ion s on t he 

Wa ita k i R iver a nd Ma nap ōu r i p ower stat ion  

i n S out h la nd , t he la rgest hyd ro p ower stat ion 

i n New Zea la nd , a nd f rom f ive w i nd fa r m s 

a rou nd t he cou nt r y.

Meridian supports a number of environmental 

prog rammes, operates Community Funds 

associated with each of its assets and runs a 

national sponsorship prog ramme that supports 

organisations that make a big difference to 

K iwis, such as K idsCan, Living Legends and 

South Island Rowing.

T he Mer id ia n Group employs approx i mately 

80 0 f u l l-t i me - equ iva lent employees a nd ha s 

of f ices across New Zea la nd , i nclud i n g t he 

compa ny ’s head of f ice i n Wel l i n g ton a nd a n 

of f ice i n Melb ou r ne.

Company  
overview
Meridian Energy is New Zealand’s largest 
electricity generator and is committed to 
generating electricity from 100% renewable 
sources – wind and water. 

Wind

Total installed capacity

617MW 7,9

1,529GWh8,9

Total installed capacity

Total generation

2,338MW 7

11,903GWh8

6 Electricity Authority, 30 June 2014. 

7 Megawatts. One MW is enough  

to light 10,000 x 100-watt light bulbs.

8 Gigawatt hours. One GWh is equivalent to enough 

electricity for 125 average New Zealand homes  

for one year.

9 Including Mt Mercer and Mill Creek wind farms.

Total generation New Zealand market share6

Total New Zealand

276,708ICPs

13.9%

HydroRetail
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10 After the application of the marginal loss factor prescribed 

by the Australian Energy Market Operator.

WEST WIND
Capacity:  143MW

FY2014 production:  534GWh 
Commissioned:  2009

TE UKU
Capacity:  64MW

FY2014 production:  211GWh
Commissioned:  2010

MANAPŌURI
Capacity:  800MW

FY2014 production:  4,981GWh
Commissioned:  1972 WHITE HILL

Capacity:  58MW
FY2014 production:  173GWh
Commissioned:  2007

AUCKLAND

MASTERTON

WELLINGTON

TE ĀPITI
Capacity:  91MW
FY2014 production:  325GWh 
Commissioned:  2004

ŌHAU B
Capacity:  212MW
FY2014 production:  981GWh
Commissioned:  1984BENMORE

Capacity:  540MW
FY2014 production:  2,314GWh 
Commissioned:  1965

HAMILTON

WAITAKI
Capacity:  90MW
FY2014 production:  526GWh
Commissioned:  1935

AVIEMORE
Capacity:  220MW
FY2014 production:  960GWh 
Commissioned:  1968

CHRISTCHURCH

MILL CREEK
Capacity:  60MW

FY2014 production:  1GWh
Planned commissioning date:  2014

ŌHAU C
Capacity:  212MW

FY2014 production:  973GWh 
Commissioned:  1985

ŌHAU A
Capacity:  264MW

FY2014 production:  1,168GWh 
Commissioned:  1979

MT MERCER
Capacity:  131MW
FY2014 production:  100GWh10

Planned commissioning date:  2014

MT MILLAR
Capacity:  70MW
FY2014 production:  185GWh10 
Commissioned:  2006

MELBOURNE

GENERATION ASSETS

HYDRO STATION

WIND FARM

MERIDIAN

POWERSHOP

WAITAKI HYDRO SCHEME

OFFICES

TWIZEL

3
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Report
From our Chair  
and Chief Executive
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T he pa r t ia l l i st i n g of Mer id ia n con su med  

a si g n i f ica nt a mou nt of B oa rd , ma na gement  

a nd sta f f t i me a nd wa s completed a ga i n st  

a backd rop of si g n i f ica nt publ ic i nterest .  

T he level of com m it ment , pla n n i n g a nd energ y 

appl ied by a l l i nvolved , pa r t icu la rly ou r ow n 

p eople, en su red t hat t he whole project went 

except iona l ly smoot h ly. It i s a l so ver y 

g rat i f y i n g t hat tota l sha reholder ret u r n i n  

t he ei g ht mont h s si nce l i st i n g to t he yea r end 

wa s 2 1 . 8% 1 1 a nd t hat we exceeded t he foreca st 

prov ided i n t he prosp ect u s for t he yea r ended 

3 0 Ju ne 2 014 at t he E BI T DA F level by 6 .7% .  

It wa s a l so plea si n g to a n nou nce a f i na l 

ord i na r y d iv idend of 6 . 82 cent s p er sha re  

(cps). Toget her w it h t he i nter i m d iv idend  

we decla red i n Febr ua r y 2 014 , t h i s brou g ht  

t he tota l ord i na r y d iv idend for t he yea r to  

1 1 .01cps . I n add it ion , Mer id ia n w i l l pay a 

sp ecia l d iv idend of 2 .0 0 cps f u nded f rom  

t he s a le of excess la nd a nd ot her a sset s . 

T he ot her major i ssue for t he yea r, a nd a 

precu rsor to t he publ ic of fer i n g , wa s t he 

re -negot iat ion of t he T iwa i Poi nt a lu m i n iu m 

smelter cont ract . T iwa i Poi nt accou nt s for 

approx i mately 4 0% of t he p ower generated by 

Mer id ia n a nd 14% of New Zea la nd’s tota l p ower 

u s a ge. T h i s relat ion sh ip i s t herefore of 

releva nce to t he compa ny a nd t he ent i re 

New Zea la nd elect r icit y i ndu st r y. T he cont ract 

wa s va r ied i n Au g u st 2 01 3 , a nd wh i le t he pr ice 

wa s reduced , t he b enef it s negot iated i n ter m s 

of t he smelter ’s cont i nued op erat ion t h rou g h 

to at lea st 31 D ecemb er 2 016 , a nd a ra n ge of 

cha n ges to op erat i n g pa ra meters , of fset t he 

cha n ge i n pr ici n g .

I n add it ion to t hese si g n i f ica nt event s , 

Mer id ia n reached a nu mb er of key m i lestones 

du r i n g t he yea r, i nclud i n g f i rst p ower at  

Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia ,  

a nd M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m nea r Wel l i n g ton .  

I n Au st ra l ia we a l so lau nched Powershop  

i n t he state of Victor ia , where we welcomed 

more t ha n 1 3 ,4 0 0 cu stomers , su r pa ssi n g  

t he prosp ect u s foreca st .

Financial results 

O p erat i n g ea r n i n g s for t he yea r a s mea su red 

by E BI T DA F were $ 5 8 5 . 3 m i l l ion , compa red 

w it h t he prosp ect u s foreca st of $ 5 4 8 .4 m i l l ion 

a nd $ 5 8 4 . 8 m i l l ion i n t he pr ior yea r. T he 

out-p er for ma nce a ga i n st t he prosp ect u s 

foreca st wa s ma i n ly due to lower op erat i n g 

a nd t ra n sm i ssion cost s but a l so a h i g her 

energ y ma rg i n . T he i ncrea sed energ y ma rg i n 

wa s pr i ncipa l ly due to t he st ron ger-t ha n-

bud geted ea r n i n g s i n t he D ecemb er to 

Febr ua r y p er io d , when i ncrea sed i n f lows  

i nto ou r sout her n catch ment s a l lowed u s to 

generate elect r icit y at level s wel l i n excess of 

ou r cont racted s a les p osit ion . At t i mes du r i n g 

t h i s p er io d we suppl ied b et ween 4 0% a nd 4 5% 

of t he generat ion ma rket . W h i le op erat i n g 

ea r n i n g s were dow n a ga i n st la st yea r, t hat 

p er io d b enef ited f rom si x mont h s of ea r n i n g s 

f rom t he T iwa i Poi nt cont ract at t he h i g her 

pre -Au g u st 2 01 3 cont ract va r iat ion pr ice a nd 

f rom revenue f rom t he Maca r t hu r w i nd fa r m , 

wh ich wa s sold late i n t he 2 01 3 f i na ncia l yea r.

Underly i n g Net P rof it a f ter Ta x ( N PAT ) 1 2  

at $19 4 .6 m i l l ion wa s a l so si g n i f ica nt ly  

a head ( 2 0. 5%) of t he prosp ect u s foreca st  

of $161 . 5 m i l l ion a nd la st yea r ’s $162 .7 m i l l ion . 

We b el ieve Underly i n g N PAT more fa i rly 

represent s t he p er for ma nce of t he bu si ness  

a s it removes non- ca sh fa i r va lue movement s 

a nd ot her one - of f item s .

It wa s pa r t icu la rly plea si n g to see ou r 

cont i nued fo cu s on r u n n i n g t he bu si ness a s 

ef f icient ly a s p ossible, a nd d ivest i n g non- core 

a nd excess a sset s , wh ich toget her w it h 

st ron ger ea r n i n g s resu lted i n ver y st ron g ca sh 

generat ion . Net ca sh f low f rom op erat i n g 

act iv it ies at $ 4 32 . 8 m i l l ion wa s $9 4 . 3 m i l l ion 

a head of t he prosp ect u s foreca st .

Dividend and capital management 

Tota l d i st r ibut ion s to sha reholders for t he 

f i na ncia l yea r a mou nted to 1 3 .01cps wh ich  

wa s 24 . 3% a head of t he d i st r ibut ion level  

of 10. 5 0 cps a nt icipated i n t he prosp ect u s .  

T he B oa rd i s awa re t hat t he gea r i n g of t he 

compa ny i s now at a con ser vat ive level a nd  

it i s appropr iate t hat it rev iew p ossible 

mecha n i sm s to en su re a n opt i ma l capita l 

st r uct u re. However, g iven t hat t he i ndu st r y 

faces t he p ossibi l it y of st r uct u ra l cha n ge 

fol low i n g t he genera l elect ion a nd a deci sion 

by New Zea la nd A lu m i n iu m Smelters ( N Z A S) 

rega rd i n g t he T iwa i Poi nt smelter ’s f ut u re, it 

wou ld not b e appropr iate to ma ke a ny deci sion 

on t h i s mat ter at t h i s t i me. However, t he B oa rd 

w i l l ref lect on a lter nat ives , toget her w it h 

on goi n g ma rket cond it ion s , w it h a v iew to 

out l i n i n g what , i f a ny t h i n g , it prop oses to do 

rega rd i n g t h i s mat ter at t he t i me of t he i nter i m 

resu lt s’ a n nou ncement i n Febr ua r y 2 01 5 . 

Health and safety 

O u r nu mb er one com m it ment to employees 

i s to en su re t hat t hey, a nd ot hers who work at  

or v i sit ou r sites , go home s a fely ever y n i g ht . 

Wit h t hat i n m i nd , it wa s d i s app oi nt i n g to have 

a L ost-T i me I nju r y ( LT I ) t h i s yea r, a f ter  

31 mont h s w it hout a n i ncident . For t u nately  

t he i ncident wa s a low sever it y LT I at West 

Wi nd fa r m , cau si n g a lower back mu scle st ra i n . 

This has been an exceptionally challenging, but very satisfying year with  
the transition from a State-Owned Enterprise to a publicly listed company. 

11 Based on Meridian’s final IPO share price and cash dividends declared for FY2014.

12 NPAT after adjusting for the effects of one off and/or infrequently occurring events,  

impairments and changes in fair value of financial instruments.

“Total distributions 
to shareholders for 
the financial year 
amounted to 13.01 
cents per share, which 
was 24.3% ahead of 
the distribution level 
of 10.5 cents per share 
anticipated in the 
prospectus.”
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T he def i n i n g hea lt h a nd s a fet y event t h i s  

yea r wa s t he complet ion of a n i ndep endent 

ex ter na l aud it of ou r s a fet y system s a nd 

pro cesses . T h i s aud it prov ided a ver y 

s at i sf y i n g v iew of ou r employee at t it udes a nd 

ou r system s but a l so h i g h l i g hted some a rea s 

for i mprovement , wh ich we w i l l fo cu s on . We 

b el ieve t hat hav i n g a n op en cu lt u re to d i scu ss 

s a fet y i ssues i s i mp erat ive to en su r i n g t hat we 

cont i nue to i mprove ou r s a fet y cu lt u re.

Sustainability 

Mer id ia n i s com m it ted to 10 0% renewable 

generat ion a nd creat i n g a b et ter energ y f ut u re. 

G enerat i n g elect r icit y f rom renewable 

resou rces i s ou r bi g gest com m it ment to b ei n g 

a su sta i nable bu si ness . We a re t he most 

si g n i f ica nt cont r ibutor to t he G over n ment ’s 

ta rget of 9 0% renewable generat ion by 2 02 5 , 

wh ich stoo d at 79% i n Ma rch of t h i s yea r1 3.

O u r st ron g su sta i nabi l it y credent ia l s a re 

f u nda menta l to ou r success a nd a re 

pa r t icu la rly i mp or ta nt i n resou rce con sent i n g , 

cu stomer acqu i sit ion a nd retent ion , bra nd 

act iv it ies a nd new bu si ness development . We 

a l so u se i nter nat iona l ly a g reed sta nda rd s a nd 

rep or t i n g mecha n i sm s 14 to prov ide a ssu ra nce 

to ou rselves a nd ot hers t hat we seek a nd 

achieve good sustainability practice standards. 

O u r bu si ness st rateg y i s i n f luenced by a ra n ge 

of ex ter na l su sta i nabi l it y factors , i nclud i n g 

sha reholder ex p ectat ion s , iw i a nd com mu n it y 

i nterest s i n water r i g ht s a nd a l lo cat ion , a nd 

ou r cu stomers’ energ y need s . To en su re t hat 

ou r su sta i nabi l it y fo cu s rema i n s st ron g , we 

work to a f ra mework 1 5 t hat helps u s mon itor 

t he p er for ma nce of ou r bu si ness across a 

ra n ge of econom ic , env i ron menta l a nd so cia l 

goa l s . T hese resu lt s a re i l lu st rated t h rou g hout  

t h i s rep or t . For t he t h i rd yea r i n a row,  

Mer id ia n wa s recog n i sed by K iw i s a s 

New Zea la nd’s leader i n su sta i nabi l it y,  

a s publ i shed i n t he B et ter Bu si ness B et ter 

World rep or t , by Col ma r Br u nton 16.

W h i le we recog n i se t hat pr ice a nd ser v ice 

remain key issues for our customers , we believe 

t hat ou r com m it ment to 10 0% renewable 

generat ion i s a key d i f ferent iator for u s . 

New Zealand 

W h i le t he a g g regate dema nd for elect r icit y 

rema i n s relat ively f lat , t here a re m i xed v iews 

on wh ich seg ment s of t he economy cou ld 

d r ive f ut u re dema nd g row t h a nd when . W h i le 

ma nu fact u r i n g dema nd rema i n s u nder 

pressu re, t he p osit ive level of m i g rat ion (w it h 

a n ex p ected a n nua l net ga i n of a rou nd 4 0,0 0 0 

t h i s yea r) b o des wel l for g row i n g hou sehold 

dema nd a nd GDP g row t h rates w i l l a l so, 

we hop e, have a p osit ive i mpact on elect r icit y 

u s a ge. D espite t h i s , Mer id ia n rema i n s caut iou s 

rega rd i n g f ut u re elect r icit y dema nd g iven t he 

d r ive for g reater energ y ef f iciency on a nu mber 

of f ront s . Accord i n g ly, we a re pla n n i n g on t he 

ba si s of a relat ively f lat dema nd scena r io for 

t he med iu m ter m , wh i le hold i n g va luable 

development oppor t u n it ies shou ld a n i ncrease 

i n dema nd mater ia l ise sooner t ha n a nt icipated . 

T he ot her mat ter t hat cou ld a f fect t he level of 

dema nd i n t he med iu m ter m is a ny decision by 

NZ A S as to t he f ut u re of t he T iwa i Poi nt smelter. 

F rom a reg u lator y p ersp ect ive, t he elect r icit y 

sector faces t he p ossibi l it y of qu ite si g n i f ica nt 

change, with all main political parties signalling 

a desi re to i mprove outcomes for con su mers .

O u r v iew i s t hat t he New Zea la nd elect r icit y 

ma rket compa res wel l w it h oversea s ma rket s 

a nd it i s genera l ly v iewed p osit ively by 

i ndep endent ex p er t s . F u r t her more, t he 

M i n i st r y of Bu si ness , I n novat ion a nd 

E mploy ment ( M BI E ) recent ly publ i shed data 

t hat demon st rates t hat t he comp et it ive pa r t  

of t he elect r icit y ma rket ha s b een p er for m i n g 

wel l a nd ha s capp ed energ y pr ice r i ses wel l 

b elow t he rate of i n f lat ion i n t he pa st t h ree 

yea rs . Wit h cha n ges to t he wholes a le ma rket 

i mprov i n g comp et it ion a nd l iqu id it y for new 

ent ra nt reta i lers , t he fo cu s shou ld b e on 

ma k i n g it more t ra n spa rent a nd ea sier for 

cu stomers to f i nd t he b est of fers t hat su it t hei r 

need s . Mer id ia n i s com m it ted to supp or t i n g 

reg u lator y cha n ges t hat i mprove it s of fer i n g s 

to cu stomers to ach ieve t h i s end t h rou g h b ot h 

t he Mer id ia n a nd Powershop bra nd s .

We cont i nue to work w it h t he E lect r icit y 

Aut hor it y ( E A ) on it s t ra n sm i ssion pr ici n g 

rev iew. We b el ieve t hat t he cu r rent system of 

cha rg i n g for t ra n sm i ssion a sset s , where H i g h 

Volta ge D i rect C u r rent ( H V D C) cha rges a re 

pa id on ly by S out h I sla nd generators , i s a 

d i si ncent ive for generat ion a nd i nvest ment  

i n t he S out h I sla nd . T he E A i s cont i nu i n g to 

i nvest i gate how a b enef icia r ies-pay pr i nciple 

cou ld b e appl ied to t ra n sm i ssion pr ici n g .  

We b el ieve such a n approach wou ld resu lt i n a 

more ef f icient a nd equ itable a l lo cat ion of cost s 

a mon g a l l u sers of t he t ra n sm i ssion net work .  

A second i ssues pap er on t h i s subject i s 

ex p ected to b e relea sed by t he E A i n m id-2 01 5 .

Iwi

Wit h ou r hyd ro generat ion a sset s w it h i n t he 

Ngā i Ta hu ta k iwā , ma i nta i n i n g a p osit ive a nd 

proact ive relat ion sh ip w it h iw i i s v ita l . D u r i n g 

t he yea r b ot h Ngā i Ta hu a nd Mer id ia n i nvested 

con siderable t i me a nd ef for t i n u ndersta nd i n g 

each ot her ’s v iews a nd lon g-ter m a spi rat ion s , 

to en su re t hat we work toget her to f i nd 

mut ua l ly acceptable solut ion s to t he 

cha l len ges a head . At t h i s p oi nt , prop osed 

cha n ges to t he Wa ita k i A l lo cat ion Pla n a re 

pa r t icu la rly p er t i nent , a nd si g n i f ica nt ef for t  

i s b ei n g made to f i nd ways i n wh ich mut ua l 

i nterest s ca n b e s at i sf ied .

Other stakeholders in water

O t her i nterest g roups ex i st w it h i n t he 

com mu n it ies where we op erate a nd at t i mes 

we have d i f fer i n g i nterest s i n relat ion to water. 

Mer id ia n appreciates t here w i l l a lways b e 

d ispa rate i nterests; however, we a re com m it ted 

to l i sten i n g to ot hers a nd t r y i n g to f i nd 

mut ua l ly acceptable solut ion s where p ossible. 

It wa s plea si n g to see t hat t he Hu nter D ow n s 

i r r i gat ion project ha s , a f ter con siderable ef for t , 

reached t he p oi nt where f u nd s have b een 

ra i sed a mon g t he fa r m i n g com mu n it y, t he 

G over n ment a nd Mer id ia n to a l low t he project 

to pro ceed to f u l l desi g n a nd fea sibi l it y. I f t he 

project pro ceed s (wh ich u lt i mately dep end s 

on t he fa r m i n g com mu n it y ’s supp or t ), it w i l l b e 

a clea r exa mple of a p osit ive outcome for b ot h 

a g r icu lt u re a nd hyd ro generat ion , a s t he i nta ke 

for t he scheme w i l l b e b elow Mer id ia n’s lowest 

da m on t he Wa ita k i R iver.

Mill Creek wind farm 

D u r i n g t he yea r we added to t he cou nt r y ’s 

renewable generat ion w it h t he con st r uct ion of 

M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m (60M W ), wh ich ach ieved 

f i rst p ower i n May. O nce completed at t he end 

of t h i s yea r, it w i l l pro duce enou g h elect r icit y 

to p ower t he equ iva lent of a rou nd 3 0,0 0 0 

avera ge New Zea la nd homes each yea r. F rom  

a st rateg ic p oi nt of v iew, it s prox i m it y to t he 

H V D C t ra n sm i ssion l i ne w i l l a ssi st t he t ra n sfer 

of more elect r icit y f rom t he Nor t h I sla nd to t he 

S out h I sla nd when i n f lows i n ou r hyd ro 

catch ment s a re low.

Communities 

D u r i n g t he yea r we cont i nued to supp or t  

t he com mu n it ies i n wh ich we op erate, w it h 

$1 .4 m i l l ion a l lo cated to sp on sorsh ip pa r t ners 

a nd com mu n it y project s . T he la rgest of t he 

Com mu n it y F u nd g ra nt s wa s $10 0,0 0 0 

pled ged to supp or t t he con st r uct ion of t he 

new T w i zel Med ica l Cent re a s pa r t of t he 

Wa ita k i Com mu n it y F u nd . 

O u r pa r t nersh ip w it h K id sC a n , wh ich i s ou r 

bi g gest nat iona l sp on sorsh ip, help ed t h i s 

important charity to continue with distributing 

ra i ncoat s , sho es , so ck s a nd foo d to ch i ld ren i n 

need a rou nd t he cou nt r y. It wa s pa r t icu la rly 

plea si n g to see how en ga ged Mer id ia n sta f f 

were in supporting the charity with fundraising 

ef for t s , volu nteer work a nd v i sit s to K id sC a n 

pa r t ner school s . 

Customers

E lect r icit y i s a n essent ia l ser v ice a nd t hat 

mea n s t hat t he pr ice con su mers pay for p ower 

a nd t ra n spa rency a rou nd pr ici n g w i l l a lways 

b e i mp or ta nt topics . Wit h a lack of cla r it y  

on how p ower pr ici n g i s ca lcu lated a nd 

con f l ict i n g i n for mat ion a nd opi n ion s on  

t he i ssue, it ca n b e d i f f icu lt to for m a v iew  

13 Quarterly Electricity Generation and Consumption Data Updates. MBIE , March 2014.

14 Global Reporting Initiative and the International Organization for Standardisation ISO 14064-1.

15 The sustainability framework and our performance for this year can be found on page 130.

16 Colmar Brunton Better Business Better World report 2013.
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on recent pr ice i ncrea ses . T hat i s why we 

cont i nue to ‘u nbu nd le’ bi l l s so t hat cu stomers 

have more i n for mat ion ab out what t hey a re 

b ei n g cha rged for. 

A s of 1 Apr i l 2 014 we i ncrea sed ou r net work 

cha rges for resident ia l cu stomers ba sed on  

t he i ncrea ses we i ncu r red i n d i st r ibut ion  

a nd t ra n sm i ssion cost s . At t he s a me t i me  

we moved some of ou r cu stomers , who were 

on i ncor rect a nd h i stor ica l pr ici n g pla n s  

a nd ta r i f fs , to cu r rent pla n s . 

Con siderable ef for t i s goi n g i nto i mprov i n g t he 

cu stomer ex p er ience a s w i n n i n g a nd reta i n i n g 

ou r cu stomers rel ies not on ly on comp et it ive 

pr ici n g but on h i g h level s of ser v ice. We a re 

pa r t-way t h rou g h rev iew i n g a l l ou r cu stomer 

pro cesses to ident i f y how we ca n ma ke it 

ea sier for cu stomers to i nteract w it h u s . W h i le 

t here w i l l a lways b e cu stomer chu r n , we k now 

t hat cu stomer retent ion rates ca n b e i mproved .

D u r i n g t he yea r t he nu mb er of cu stomers t hat 

Mer id ia n a nd ou r subsid ia r y, Powershop, have 

i n New Zea la nd i ncrea sed ma rg i na l ly by 1 .7% 

to 2 76 ,708 .

Mer id ia n’s most recent M BI E su r vey data 

showed a 0. 3% a n nua l decrea se i n resident ia l 

cu stomers’ s a les- ba sed elect r icit y cha rges . 

T h i s wa s despite a 1 .7% i ncrea se i n l i nes cost s , 

wh ich wa s more t ha n of fset by decrea ses i n 

Mer id ia n’s energ y cha rges . 

New Zealand Aluminium Smelters 

D u r i n g t he nex t yea r t he ow ner of t he T iwa i 

Poi nt smelter w i l l b e con sider i n g it s p osit ion 

w it h resp ect to it s opt ion to ter m i nate it s 

cont ract w it h Mer id ia n . T he f i rst date for t he 

del iver y of a ter m i nat ion not ice i s 1 Ju ly 2 01 5 

a nd t h i s wou ld see Mer id ia n’s cont ract w it h 

t he smelter end on 31 D ecemb er 2 016 . 

We a re not pr iv y to N Z A S ’s deta i led t h i n k i n g 

on t h i s i ssue, but it i s clea r t hat key factors i n 

it s deci sion w i l l relate to t he world a lu m i n iu m 

pr ice, t he N Z dol la r/ US dol la r exchange rate, 

the competitiveness of long-term elect r icit y 

pr ices i n New Zea la nd a nd t he relative 

strateg ic, or operational, importance of T iwa i 

Poi nt i n t he overa l l a lu m i n iu m p or t fol io of  

R io Tinto, the principal shareholder of NZ A S . 

O u r relat ion sh ip w it h N Z A S rema i n s p osit ive 

a nd we a re hop ef u l t hat it w i l l rema i n 

com m it ted to T iwa i Poi nt . However, we ca n not 

a ssu me a p osit ive outcome a nd we cont i nue  

to ex plore a lter nat ive st rateg ies shou ld t he 

smelter close at t he end of 2 016 . Ma nap ōu r i 

p ower stat ion , wh ich i s t he closest si g n i f ica nt 

pla nt to T iwa i Poi nt , i s t he most ef f icient p ower 

stat ion i n New Zea la nd . Wit h t he upg rade of 

t he Cook St ra it cable i n Novemb er 2 01 3 , t here 

w i l l b e fewer con st ra i nt s to t h i s capacit y 

f low i n g to t he Nor t h I sla nd . T h i s outcome 

cou ld see ma rket dy na m ics i n t he generat ion 

ma rket cha n ge si g n i f ica nt ly. 

It shou ld b e noted t hat a lt hou g h N Z A S ’s 

deci sion a rou nd it s opt ion s a s at 1 Ju ly 2 01 5 

w i l l b e keen ly awa ited , N Z A S w i l l have 

on goi n g r i g ht s to ter m i nate t he cont ract ,  

even i f it ma kes t he deci sion not to exerci se  

it s ter m i nat ion opt ion i n Ju ly. T h i s level of 

u ncer ta i nt y i s somet h i n g t hat t he ma rket ha s 

to accept a nd factor i nto a ny f ut u re deci sion s 

a rou nd capacit y. 

Australia

Au st ra l ia i s cu r rent ly a n u ncer ta i n ma rket for 

renewable energ y op erators . T he recent ly 

i ssued Wa rbu r ton Rep or t on Au st ra l ia’s 

Renewable E nerg y Ta rget ( R ET ) recom mended 

t wo opt ion s to t he G over n ment for 

con siderat ion . Mater ia l ly dow n g rad i n g t he 

R ET wou ld resu lt i n l it t le, i f a ny, i nvest ment  

i n renewable project s i n Au st ra l ia for some 

con siderable t i me. Au st ra l ia i s a l so 

ex p er ienci n g a decrea se i n elect r icit y dema nd 

a s a resu lt of a decl i ne i n it s ma nu fact u r i n g 

ba se a nd t he cont i nued g row t h of sola r pa nel s 

i n t he resident ia l sector. S ome 2 , 3 0 0 GW h of 

sola r- generated energ y ha s b een added i n t he 

pa st t wo yea rs a nd a lt hou g h t he level of 

subsidy ha s b een reduced , subsid ies st i l l apply 

a nd most ma rket com mentators a re su g gest i n g 

t hat sola r w i l l cont i nue to i ncrea se i n t he 

resident ia l a nd com mercia l seg ment s . 

A lon g w it h a l l t he ot her pa r t icipa nt s i n t he 

renewable energ y i ndu st r y, we a re concer ned 

w it h t he p ossible ef fect s of a rep ea l of or 

mater ia l a lterat ion to t he ter m s of t he cu r rent 

R ET, wh ich m i g ht ma ke renewable project s 

u neconom ica l . T h i s leg i slat ion u nder pi n s t he 

renewable i ndu st r y i n Au st ra l ia , wh ich i n t he 

pa st 1 2 yea rs ha s prov ided over 7,0 0 0M W of 

new capacit y to t he Au st ra l ia n economy and 

allowed Australia to reduce sig nificantly its 

reliance on coal power generation, with 

material benefits in terms of carbon emissions. 

The Australian Government ’s final decision 

may materially affect our view on further 

generation opportunities in Australia. I n the 

interim, we will look for potential long-term 

projects that can be positioned at l ittle cost  

but provide options for the future. 

Mt Mercer wind farm 

T he 6 4 -t u rbi ne Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m 

completed com m i ssion i n g of a l l t u rbi nes  

i n Ju ne t h i s yea r. D ue for f i na l ha ndover by  

t he end of t h i s ca lenda r yea r, Mt Mercer i s ou r 

fou r t h w i nd fa r m development i n Au st ra l ia .  

Mt Mercer w i l l have a capacit y of 1 31 M W  

a nd it w i l l br i n g Mer id ia n’s Au st ra l ia n  

p or t fol io to 2 01 M W once completed . 

Powershop Australia 

A f ter lau nch i n g i n t he state of Victor ia , t he 

Powershop reta i l bu si ness ended t he f i na ncia l 

yea r w it h 1 3 ,4 0 0 cu stomers , wh ich wa s a head  

of t he or i g i na l bu si ness ca se project ion s . 

W h i le prov id i n g a ver y comp et it ive pr ice,  

t he va lue prop osit ion i n Au st ra l ia i s fo cu sed 

on prov id i n g con su mers w it h a fa r h i g her  

level of ser v ice t ha n t hey ca n obta i n f rom 

i ncu mb ent suppl iers a nd more cont rol when  

it comes to ma na g i n g t hei r p ower bi l l s . 

International 

D u r i n g t he rep or t i n g p er io d we completed  

t he s a le of ou r Un ited States- ba sed sola r pla nt 

C a l R E N E W-1 for $US14 . 2 5 m i l l ion . T he sola r 

pla nt wa s sold to Su n Ed i son , a C a l i for n ia-

ba sed develop er, ma nu fact u rer a nd reta i ler  

of photovolta ic energ y pro duct s . T he s a le  

of t he pla nt wa s t he la st step i n ou r ex it  

f rom t he US energ y ma rket . T h i s ex it w i l l  

a l low Mer id ia n to fo cu s on op erat ion s i n 

New Zea la nd a nd Au st ra l ia .

Outlook 

T he la nd scap es i n New Zea la nd a nd Au st ra l ia 

p ose some p ol it ica l a nd ma rket r i sk s i n t he 

shor t to med iu m ter m t hat have a l ready b een 

noted . A ny cha n ges to ma rket st r uct u res a s a 

resu lt of p ol it ica l cha n ge i n b ot h New Zea la nd 

a nd Au st ra l ia , shou ld t hey o ccu r, w i l l b e f u l ly 

rev iewed at t he p oi nt t hat f i r m deci sion s a re 

made a nd more deta i l i s k now n . Mea nwh i le, 

we rema i n fo cu sed on del iver i n g ret u r n s to 

sha reholders t hat were out l i ned i n t he 

prosp ect u s at t he t i me of t he i n it ia l publ ic 

of fer i n g ( I PO). 

D el iver i n g on ou r prosp ect u s foreca st a nd 

en su r i n g t hat we a re i n t he b est p osit ion to 

cont i nue del iver i n g acceptable ret u r n s i n t he 

med iu m ter m a re rel ia nt on ma na gement 

cont i nu i n g to i mprove t he op erat i n g ef f iciency  

of t he bu si ness . I n t h i s rega rd , we a n nou nced 

ou r i ntent ion i n Au g u st to sel l ou r meter i n g 

bu si ness , A rc I n novat ion s , to Vector ’s 

subsid ia r y A M S L i m ited a nd to deploy  

sma r t meters to t he rema i n i n g Mer id ia n  

reta i l sites t hat have legacy meters . I n add it ion 

to relea si n g capita l f rom a sub - sca le bu si ness , 

t h i s w i l l a l low Mer id ia n to rol l out b et ter 

pro duct s to cu stomers i n a more  

cost- ef fect ive ma n ner. 

W h i le N Z A S ’s deci sion on t he f ut u re of T iwa i 

Poi nt w i l l i n f luence t he ma rket ’s t h i n k i n g  

on capacit y i ssues , we w i l l cont i nue to hold  

a l i m ited nu mb er of qua l it y development 

opp or t u n it ies for f ut u re g row t h . 

Ma na gement a nd t he B oa rd rema i n op en to 

g row t h opp or t u n it ies but u nt i l t he p ol it ica l 

backd rop i n b ot h New Zea la nd a nd Au st ra l ia 

b ecomes more cer ta i n a nd dema nd i mproves , 

it i s cha l len g i n g to see a ny i m med iate 

generat ion development opp or t u n it ies t hat 

cou ld pro duce acceptable r i sk-wei g hted 

ret u r n s . A lot ha s b een w r it ten ab out t he 

p enet rat ion of sola r i n Au st ra l ia a nd t he 

t h reat s a nd opp or t u n it ies it present s . Hav i n g 

bu i lt t wo g r id- sca le sola r pla nt s now ( Ton ga 

a nd C a l i for n ia ) we a re convers a nt w it h t he 

opp or t u n it ies a nd t he econom ics of sola r, 

wh ich a re st i l l l i m ited i n a n u n subsid i sed 

env i ron ment such a s New Zea la nd’s . However,  

it i s a n a rea t hat we cont i nue to mon itor 

closely i n ter m s of b ot h t he cha l len ges a nd 

opp or t u n it ies t hat may a r i se.

W h i le t he elect r icit y i ndu st r y worldw ide i s 

faci n g si g n i f ica nt cha n ge a s t he p enet rat ion  

of renewable creates cha l len ges to t rad it iona l 

bu si ness mo del s , we feel con f ident t hat 

Mer id ia n i s wel l p osit ioned to cop e w it h t he 

cha l len ges a head i n t h i s pa r t of t he world .

We would like to take this opportunity to thank 

all of our shareholders for their support during 

Mer id ia n’s f i rst yea r a s a l i sted compa ny. 
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1. Chris Moller 
CHAIR
BCA, DIPLOMA OF ACCOUNTING,  
FACA (NZICA)

C h r i s Mol ler i s a n i ndep endent 

d i re ctor a nd joi ned t he Mer id ia n 

B oa rd i n May 2 0 09 a nd wa s 

app oi nted C ha i r i n Ja nua r y 2 01 1 . 

C h r i s a l so ser ves on t he Aud it  

a nd R i sk Com m it te e . C h r i s ha s 

ex ten sive ex p er ience i n 

New Zea la nd a nd i nter nat iona l 

bu si ness at b ot h d i re ctor a nd 

exe cut ive level s . He i s t he for mer 

C h ief E xe cut ive O f f icer of t he 

New Zea la nd Ru gby Un ion a nd 

co -led New Zea la nd’s successf u l bid 

to host t he Ru gby World C up 2 01 1 . 

H i s 1 5 -yea r ca re er i n t he da i r y 

i ndu st r y i ncluded roles a s D eput y 

C h ief E xe cut ive of Fonter ra a nd 

C h ief F ina ncia l Officer of the 

New Zea la nd Da i r y B oa rd . C h r i s i s 

cu r rent ly C ha i r of t he N Z T ra n sp or t 

A gency a nd SKYCIT Y Enterta in ment 

Group L i m ited . He i s a l so a d i re ctor 

of West pac New Zea la nd L i m ited . 

P rev iou sly, he wa s a d i re ctor of  

N Z X L i m ited , Sy n la it L i m ited ,  

t he I nter nat iona l C r icket Cou nci l , 

C r icket World C up 2 01 5 L i m ited ,  

T he I nter nat iona l Ru gby B oa rd , 

Ru gby New Zea la nd 2 01 1 L i m ited 

(wh ich entered i nto volu nta r y 

liqu idation follow ing the conclusion 

of Ru gby World C up 2 01 1 ) a nd 

Nat iona l Fo o d s ( P t y) L i m ited . 

2. Peter Wilson 
DEPUTY CHAIR
CA (NZICA)

Peter Wi l son i s a n i ndep endent 

d i re ctor a nd joi ned t he Mer id ia n 

B oa rd i n May 2 01 1 . Peter i s a 

C ha r tered Accou nta nt a nd bu si ness 

con su lta nt , a nd wa s for merly a 

pa r t ner of E r n st & You n g . He ha s 

ex ten sive ex p er ience i n ba n k i n g , 

bu si ness establ i sh ment , problem 

resolut ion , a sset s a les a nd 

ma na gement of cha n ge f u nct ion s . 

Peter ha s b e en i nvolved i n 

compa n ies u nder ta k i n g capita l-

ra i si n g act iv it ies a nd ha s 

w ide -ra n g i n g gover na nce 

ex p er ience i n t he publ ic ma rket ,  

i n t he pr ivate se ctor a nd w it h 

C row n- ow ned ent it ies . Peter ser ves 

on t he Aud it a nd R i sk Com m it te e 

a nd i s cu r rent ly C ha i r ma n of 

West pac New Zea la nd L i m ited a nd 

Au g u sta C apita l L i m ited . Peter i s 

a l so a d i re ctor of PF Ol sen L i m ited 

a nd Fa r m la nd s Co - op erat ive 

S o ciet y L i m ited . Pa st d i re ctorsh ip s 

i nclude T he Colon ia l Motor 

Compa ny L i m ited , West pac Banking 

Corporation and NZ Farming 

System s Ur u g uay L i m ited .

3. John Bongard 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BCOM, ONZM

Joh n B on ga rd ha s b e en a d i re ctor  

of Mer id ia n si nce May 2 01 1 a nd 

cu r rent ly ser ves on t he 

Remu nerat ion a nd Hu ma n 

Resou rces Com m it te e . Joh n ha s 

more t ha n 3 0 yea rs’ ex p er ience i n 

ma rket i n g appl ia nces a rou nd t he 

world a nd ha s establ i shed new s a les 

compa n ies i n Au st ra l ia a nd i n t he 

US . He ha s held a nu mb er of 

exe cut ive -level p osit ion s du r i n g h i s 

3 6 -yea r ca re er w it h i n t he F i sher & 

Paykel Group, i nclud i n g , u nt i l 2 0 09, 

ser v i n g a s C h ief E xe cut ive O f f icer 

a nd a s Ma na g i n g D i re ctor  

of F i sher & Paykel Appl ia nces 

Hold i n g s L i m ited . He i s cu r rent ly 

t he C ha i r of Netba l l New Zea la nd , 

P S CT H T ha i la nd a nd T he R i si n g 

Fou ndat ion a nd L o ca l C ha i r of  

BN Z Pa r t ners H i g hbro ok . Joh n i s a 

d i re ctor of H J A smu ss & Co L i m ited , 

Na r ta Au st ra l ia P t y L i m ited a nd 

Wi l l ia m sWa r n L i m ited , a nd wa s 

prev iou sly a d i re ctor of Tou r i sm 

Hold i n g s L i m ited . He i s a l so D eput y 

C ha i r of Cou nt ies Ma nu kau Paci f ic  

T r u st B oa rd .

4. Mark Cairns 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BE (HONS), BBS, POST GRAD DIP BUS 
ADMIN, MMGT, FIPENZ

Ma rk C a i r n s joi ned t he Mer id ia n 

B oa rd i n Ju ly 2 01 2 . He cu r rent ly 

ser ves on t he Aud it a nd R i sk 

Com m it te e . Ma rk ha s ex ten sive 

ex p er ience i n p or t op erat ion s a nd 

t ra n sp or tat ion . He ha s b e en C h ief 

E xe cut ive of N Z X-l i sted Por t of 

Tau ra n ga L i m ited si nce 2 0 0 5 . P r ior 

to joi n i n g Por t of Tau ra n ga L i m ited , 

he wa s C h ief E xe cut ive of C 3 

L i m ited ( for merly Tol l O wen s 

L i m ited ) for f ive yea rs , fol low i n g h i s 

role a s G enera l Ma na ger (Cent ra l ) at 

F u lton Hoga n L i m ited . Ma rk i s C ha i r 

of Q ua l it y Ma rsha l l i n g ( Mou nt 

Mau n ga nu i ) L i m ited a nd i s a 

d i re ctor of P r i me Por t T i ma r u , 

Nor t hp or t L i m ited , Nor t h T u g z 

L i m ited a nd Por t of Tau ra n ga 

T r u ste e Compa ny L i m ited . Ma rk ha s 

a l so prev iou sly held d i re ctor roles 

i n C 3 L i m ited , Met ropack L i m ited 

a nd Tapp er T ra n sp or t L i m ited .

5. Jan Dawson 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BCOM, FCA (NZICA), FINSTD

Ja n Dawson joi ned t he Mer id ia n 

B oa rd i n Novemb er 2 01 2 .  

Ja n i s C ha i r of t he Aud it a nd  

R i sk Com m it te e . Ja n i s cu r rent ly 

D eput y C ha i r of A i r New Zea la nd 

L i m ited a nd a d i re ctor of West pac 

New Zea la nd L i m ited , A IG 

I n su ra nce New Zea la nd L i m ited , 

G o o d ma n F ielder L i m ited a nd t he 

B e ca Group. Ja n i s a professiona l 

i ndep endent d i re ctor w it h 

app oi nt ment s to a nu mb er of 

New Zea la nd a nd Au st ra l ia n 

compa n ies . She wa s prev iou sly t he 

C ha i r a nd C h ief E xe cut ive of K PMG 

New Zea la nd , fol low i n g a ca re er 

spa n n i n g 3 0 yea rs sp e cia l i si n g i n 

aud it a nd accou nt i n g ser v ices i n 

t he Un ited K i n gdom , C a nada a nd 

New Zea la nd . She wa s prev iou sly 

P resident of Yacht i n g New Zea la nd 

a nd a d i re ctor of Cou nt ies Ma nu kau 

D i st r ict Hea lt h B oa rd .

6. Mary Devine 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BCOM, MBA, ONZM

Ma r y D ev i ne b e ca me a d i re ctor of 

Mer id ia n i n May 2 010. Ma r y i s C ha i r 

of t he Remu nerat ion a nd Hu ma n 

Resou rces Com m it te e . She ha s had 

a 2 0 -yea r ca re er i n exe cut ive roles 

i n pr ivate New Zea la nd compa n ies . 

A for mer C h ief E xe cut ive of 

Au st ra la sia’s mu lt i- cha n nel reta i ler, 

E z i Buy a nd for mer Ma na g i n g 

D i re ctor of depa r t ment store,  

J. B a l la nt y ne & Co, Ma r y ha s 

ex ten sive ex p er ience i n cor p orate 

st rateg y, bra nd ma rket i n g a nd 

mu lt i- cha n nel reta i l i n g a nd wa s t h i s 

yea r awa rded a n ON Z M for ser v ices 

to bu si ness . She i s cu r rent ly a 

d i re ctor of I AG New Zea la nd 

L i m ited , Top Reta i l L i m ited a nd 

Br i sco e Group L i m ited .

7. Sally Farrier 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BE (HONS), MBA, GDIPAPPFIN

S a l ly Fa r r ier wa s app oi nted a 

d i re ctor of Mer id ia n i n Ju ly 2 01 2 

a nd ser ves on t he S a fet y a nd 

Su sta i nabi l it y Com m it te e . She i s  

a professiona l non- exe cut ive 

d i re ctor a nd cor p orate adv i ser,  

w it h ex ten sive ex p er ience i n 

i ndu st r y rest r uct u r i n g a nd 

e conom ic refor m , pr ivat i s at ion , 

bu si ness st rateg y a nd r i sk 

ma na gement . S a l ly ’s professiona l 

ca re er ha s fo cu sed on t he ut i l it y 

se ctor (water, ele ct r icit y a nd ga s) 

spa n n i n g a nu mb er of con su lt i n g 

a nd d i re ctor roles i n New Zea la nd 

a nd Au st ra l ia . S a l ly wa s prev iou sly 

a n Au st ra l ia n Nat iona l Water 

Com m i ssioner, a memb er of t he 

D epa r t ment of P r i ma r y I ndu st r ies 

Por t fol io St rateg y B oa rd , a memb er 

of t he Victor ia n Water T r u st 

Adv i sor y Cou nci l a nd a memb er  

of t he I ndep endent Pa nel for 

Victor ia n Reg iona l Su sta i nable 

Water St rateg ies . S a l ly wa s for merly 

a d i re ctor of Hyd ro Ta sma n ia , 

Ma n id i s Rob er t s P t y L i m ited a nd 

Wester n Power. She i s cu r rent ly a 

d i re ctor of Fa r r ier Sw ier Con su lt i n g 

P t y L i m ited a nd SP Au sNet .

8. Anake Goodall 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
BA, MBA, MPA

A na ke Gooda ll joined the Merid ia n 

Boa rd in May 201 1 a nd serves on 

the Remu neration a nd Hu ma n 

Resou rces Com m ittee. A na ke 

has d iverse ma na gement a nd 

governa nce experience, includ ing 

being a u n ion delegate in the meat 

industry a nd a fou nd ing boa rd 

member of the Ma ka rewa Cred it 

Un ion, hold ing va rious executive 

roles in com mu n ity-based 

orga n isations , a nd being a n adv iser 

to the Govern ment a nd iw i. I n past 

executive roles he served as Ch ief 

Executive Officer of Te Rū na nga 

o Ngā i Ta hu, a nd was before that 

responsible for ma na g ing a ll aspects 

of Ngā i Ta hu’s T reaty settlement 

process . A na ke is cu rrently a 

d irector of N X T Fuels L im ited a nd 

Pled geMe L im ited, a nd is a trustee 

of the Ā k ina (formerly H ik u ra ng i) 

Fou ndation. He is a member of the 

Te Wa ihora Co - Governa nce Group 

a nd the Ca nterbu ry Ea rthqua ke 

Recovery Rev iew Pa nel, a nd 

is a n Adju nct P rofessor at the 

Un iversity of Ca nterbu ry. He has 

prev iously been a member of 

the Env iron menta l P rotection 

Authority a nd a d irector of Enspira l 

Fou ndation L im ited a nd va rious 

Te Rū na nga o Ngā i Ta hu entities . 

A na ke is Cha ir of the Ma nawapōpore 

T rust, trustee of the H illa ry I nstitute 

of I nternationa l Leadersh ip, a nd a 

New Zea la nd Ha rk ness Fellow.

9. Stephen Reindler
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
BE (HONS), AMP, FIPENZ 

Steve Reind ler joined the Merid ia n 

Boa rd in September 2008 

a nd is Cha ir of the Sa fety a nd 

Susta inability Com m ittee. Steve is 

a n eng ineer who has a back g rou nd 

in la rge -sca le in frastructu re a nd 

heav y industry ma nu factu ring .  

He has ga ined extensive experience 

th rou gh h is prev ious executive 

roles at New Zea la nd Steel L im ited 

a nd Auck la nd I nternationa l A irport 

L im ited, a nd th rou gh h is industry 

position as inau g u ra l Cha irma n 

of the Cha rtered P rofessiona l 

Eng ineers Cou ncil . He is cu rrently 

a d irector of Broome I nternationa l 

A irport Group, Naylor Love 

Enterprises , Yachting New Zea la nd 

a nd Resolve Group L im ited, a nd a n 

independent adv iser to A g Resea rch 

a nd T ra nsfield Serv ices L im ited. 

Steve was prev iously a d irector 

of Port of Napier L im ited a nd 

Stevenson Group L im ited a nd a n 

adv isory d irector of Glidepath 

L im ited. He served as a Sen ior  

Office Holder on the boa rd of 

the New Zea la nd I nstitution of 

P rofessiona l Eng ineers a nd was 

P resident of the I nstitution in 201 1 .
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Our 
executive 
team

1. Mark Binns 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
LLB

Ma rk Bin ns joined Merid ia n as Ch ief 

Executive in Ja nua ry 201 2 . P rior to 

th is appointment Ma rk was Ch ief 

Executive of the I n frastructu re 

Div ision of F letcher Bu ild ing 

L im ited, the compa ny’s la rgest 

d iv ision. Ma rk worked at F letcher 

Bu ild ing a nd its predecessor, 

F letcher Cha llenge L im ited, for 22 

yea rs . Du ring that period he was 

responsible for operations in 

Austra lia, South East A sia, I nd ia, 

South A merica, the US a nd the South 

Pacific, as well as in New Zea la nd. 

Ma rk a lso held d irector roles in 

nu merous subsid ia ry compa n ies of 

the F letcher Bu ild ing g roup. H is 

ca reer has seen h im closely involved 

in some of New Zea la nd’s la rgest 

in frastructu re projects , includ ing 

the Wiri P rison public-private 

pa rtnersh ip, Waterv iew Con nection, 

Eden Pa rk, SKYCIT Y, Museu m of 

New Zea la nd Te Papa Tonga rewa 

a nd the Ma napōu ri tu n nel. By 

tra in ing , Ma rk is a qua lified law yer 

a nd, prior to join ing F letcher 

Cha llenge, was a pa rtner at Simpson 

Grierson in Auck la nd.

2. Paul Chambers 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
BSC (HONS), FCA (ICAEW), CA (NZICA)

B efore ta k i n g up h i s role at Mer id ia n 

i n 2 0 09, Pau l C ha mb ers wa s C h ief 

F i na ncia l O f f icer of T ra n sf ield 

S er v ices New Zea la nd . Pau l ha s 

ex ten sive sen ior f i na nce 

ex p er ience i n a va r iet y of 

i ndu st r ies , i nclud i n g p or t s , 

ma nu fact u r i n g a nd reta i l ,  b ot h i n 

t he U K a nd i n F ra nce . Pau l i s a 

C ha r tered Accou nta nt a nd i s 

cu r rent ly a d i re ctor of t he Mer id ia n 

sub sid ia r ies Powershop a nd 

Mer id ia n E nerg y Au st ra l ia . H i s tea m 

ha s resp on sibi l it y for st rateg y 

co ord i nat ion , p er for ma nce 

mea su rement , ex ter na l rep or t i n g , 

f u nd i n g , r i sk ma na gement 

co ord i nat ion , pro cu rement a nd 

f i na ncia l t ra n s act ion ser v ices . 

3. Neal Barclay
GENERAL MANAGER,  
MARKETS AND PRODUCTION
BCA, CA (NZICA)

Nea l B a rclay ha s b e en G enera l 

Ma na ger, Ma rket s a nd P ro duct ion 

si nce O ctob er 2 0 09. He joi ned 

Mer id ia n i n Ju ly 2 0 0 8 a s C h ief 

F i na ncia l O f f icer. P r ior to joi n i n g 

Mer id ia n , Nea l , a C ha r tered 

Accou nta nt , held a nu mb er of 

genera l ma na ger roles i n a 1 3 -yea r 

ca re er w it h Tele com New Zea la nd 

L i m ited . Nea l i s resp on sible for t he 

compa ny ’s New Zea la nd generat ion 

a sset p or t fol io, i nclud i n g seven 

hyd ro p ower stat ion s a nd fou r  

w i nd fa r m s t hat del iver ab out  

3 0% of New Zea la nd ’s ele ct r icit y 

generat ion , a nd for t he compa ny ’s 

wholes a le t rad i n g a nd r i sk 

p osit ion s . Nea l’s role a l so i nvolves 

ma na g i n g renewable proje ct s a nd 

renewable generat ion opt ion s .

4. Ben Burge 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER,  
MERIDIAN ENERGY AUSTRALIA  
PTY LIMITED
BCOM, LLB (FIRST CLASS HONS)

B en Bu rge joi ned t he Mer id ia n 

Group i n 2 01 1 a s t he C h ief E xe cut ive 

of Mer id ia n E nerg y Au st ra l ia a nd i s 

resp on sible for Mer id ia n’s 

Au st ra l ia n bu si ness , i nclud i n g 

Powershop Au st ra l ia . B en ha s had 

ex ten sive ex p er ience i n t he 

Au st ra l ia n ma rket dea l i n g i n 

se cu r it ies a nd der ivat ives i n 

equ it ies , debt a nd energ y. B en wa s 

t he fou nder a nd C h ief E xe cut ive of 

A SX-l i sted med ia bu si ness E m itch 

L i m ited a nd ha s held t he roles of 

C h ief E xe cut ive a nd pa r t ner of 

i nvest ment ba n k J T C a mpb el l & Co, 

a nd pa r t ner of I BM i n t he Bu si ness 

A na ly t ics a nd O pt i m i s at ion 

bu si ness u n it .

5. Jacqui Cleland
GENERAL MANAGER,  
HUMAN RESOURCES
BBS, M.PHIL (PSYCH)

Jacqu i C lela nd joi ned Mer id ia n a s 

G enera l Ma na ger, Hu ma n Resou rces 

i n S eptemb er 2 01 2 . She ha s a n 

ex ten sive back g rou nd i n hu ma n 

resou rces a nd ha s held sen ior 

hu ma n resou rces ma na gement 

roles i n New Zea la nd Post , 

New Zea la nd I n la nd Revenue a nd 

Fonter ra . Jacqu i wa s prev iou sly a 

t r u ste e of t he New Zea la nd Post 

Sup era n nuat ion Pla n . Jacqu i a l so 

sp ent a nu mb er of yea rs a s a 

u n iversit y le ct u rer, teach i n g a nd 

resea rch i n g i n a w ide ra n ge of 

bu si ness a nd hu ma n resou rces 

topics . Jacqu i’s tea m fo cu ses on 

developi n g leaders a nd exe cut i n g 

st rateg ies to help Mer id ia n’s  

p e ople to ut i l i se a nd g row t hei r 

capabi l it ies , comp etencies a nd 

sk i l l s . T h i s en su res t hat t he 

compa ny i s wel l supp or ted to 

del iver on it s bu si ness obje ct ives 

a nd a spi rat ion s .

1
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6. Alan McCauley
GENERAL MANAGER, RETAIL
BCA, MBA, PGDFA, CA (NZICA)

A la n McC au ley joi ned Mer id ia n  

i n Ju ly 2 01 3 a s G enera l Ma na ger, 

Reta i l .  H i s ca re er i n t he energ y 

i ndu st r y ha s spa n ned 18 yea rs  

i n roles i n b ot h Au st ra l ia a nd 

New Zea la nd . A la n wa s a memb er  

of t he proje ct tea m t hat establ i shed 

Red E nerg y i n Au st ra l ia i n 2 0 03 .  

A s G enera l Ma na ger of C u stomer 

Ma na gement at Red E nerg y u nt i l 

Ju ne 2 01 3 , A la n wa s a key memb er 

of t he exe cut ive tea m t hat g rew  

t hat compa ny i nto a prof itable a nd 

awa rd-w i n n i n g energ y reta i ler.  

He ha s prev iou sly worked i n 

ma na ger ia l a nd con su lt i n g roles for 

Contact E nerg y, EC N Z a nd E le ct ro 

Power L i m ited . A la n wa s a d i re ctor 

of At h let ics New Zea la nd for seven 

yea rs u nt i l Au g u st 2 01 3 a nd ha s 

re cent ly ret i red a s a d i re ctor of 

At h let ics Victor ia i n Melb ou r ne .

7. Glen McLatchie 
GENERAL MANAGER, INFORMATION 
AND COMMUNICATIONS  
TECHNOLOGY (ICT)
BBS, MIS

Glen McL atch ie joi ned Mer id ia n  

i n May 2 010 a nd i s resp on sible  

for en su r i n g t hat t he compa ny ha s  

t he appropr iate ICT i n f ra st r uct u re, 

data , pro cesses , se cu r it y a nd 

appl icat ion s i n place to me et t he 

compa ny ’s requ i rement s . Glen  

ha s more t ha n 2 0 yea rs’ ex p er ience  

i n del iver i n g bu si ness a nd 

i n for mat ion te ch nolog y cha n ge  

a nd ha s held a nu mb er of genera l 

ma na gement p osit ion s i n b ot h 

com mercia l a nd i n for mat ion 

te ch nolog y bu si ness f u nct ion s .  

He ha s held severa l sen ior 

ma na gement roles w it h a g loba l 

fo cu s ba sed i n Au st ra l ia , t he U K a nd 

F ra nce i n a 1 3 -yea r p er io d w it h BP 

O i l I nter nat iona l L i m ited . P r ior to 

joi n i n g Mer id ia n , Glen wa s t he 

d i re ctor of ICT T ra n sfor mat ion  

a nd St rateg ic Pla n n i n g for Contact 

E nerg y a nd pr ior to t h i s he wa s t he 

G enera l Ma na ger of Reta i l 

Automat ion L i m ited (a d iv i sion of 

the former P rovenco Group L im ited).

8. Jason Stein 
GENERAL COUNSEL  
AND COMPANY SECRETARY
LLB, BCA

Ja son Stei n joi ned Mer id ia n i n 2 0 0 8 

a s A ssi sta nt G enera l Cou n sel a nd 

wa s app oi nted G enera l Cou n sel  

a nd Compa ny S e creta r y i n 2 010. 

Ja son wa s a l so app oi nted G enera l 

Ma na ger of t he O f f ice of t he C h ief 

E xe cut ive i n 2 01 1 . Ja son i s a law yer 

a nd ha s held i n-hou se roles at 

f i na ncia l i n st it ut ion s a nd i n t he 

energ y se ctor, i nclud i n g at v ice 

president a nd sen ior cou n sel level s . 

Ja son ha s b e en work i n g i n t he 

New Zea la nd energ y se ctor si nce 

2 0 0 4 . He wa s for merly t he Group 

L ega l Ma na ger of Ve ctor L i m ited . 

Ja son’s tea m i s resp on sible for 

prov id i n g a nd ma na g i n g t he 

compa ny ’s lega l ser v ices a nd 

prov id i n g t he cor p orate gover na nce 

a nd compa ny se creta r ia l f u nct ion s 

to Mer id ia n , t he B oa rd a nd t he 

ma na gement tea m .

9. Guy Waipara 
GENERAL MANAGER,  
EXTERNAL RELATIONS
BE (HONS), MBA

Guy Wa ipa ra ( Ron gowha kaata )  

wa s app oi nted a s G enera l Ma na ger, 

E x ter na l Relat ion s at Mer id ia n  

i n Au g u st 2 010. Guy i s resp on sible 

for t he compa ny ’s cor p orate 

reputat ion , wh ich i ncludes 

Mer id ia n’s bra nd , con sent i n g , 

env i ron menta l ma na gement , 

relat ion sh ip ma na gement , 

reg u lator y a nd ex ter na l 

com mu n icat ion s . Guy ha s 

prev iou sly held roles at Mer id ia n  

i n of fshore bu si ness development 

a nd set t i n g compa ny st rateg y.  

He ha s more t ha n 2 0 -yea rs’ 

ex p er ience i n t he ele ct r icit y  

se ctor a nd prev iou sly worked  

at T ra n sp ower i n roles resp on sible 

for t ra n sm i ssion pla n n ing a nd 

network development.
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After spending the past 10 years working in the highly competitive Victorian 
electricity market, it’s exciting to be back in New Zealand working at Meridian.

“We have been working 
hard to make sure that 
we get the customer 
experience right and  
that has involved 
rethinking some of the 
basics of our business.”
ALAN McCAULEY

17 The VaasaETT World Energy Retail Market Rankings 2013.

18  MBIE Quarterly Survey of Domestic Energy Prices February 2014.

19 EGCC six-monthly report on electricity and gas complaints to 30 September 2013.

Wit h 14 elect r icit y reta i lers a nd h i g h i ndu st r y 

chu r n rates , t he New Zea la nd reta i l elect r icit y 

ma rket ha s b ecome t he most comp et it ive i n 

t he world i n ter m s of sw itch i n g 17.  It ’s ref resh i n g 

to see t hat cu stomers now have more choice 

a nd a ra n ge of i n novat ive ser v ices ava i lable to 

t hem to ma ke s av i n g s a nd ta ke cont rol of t hei r 

elect r icit y u s a ge. 

Customer focus 

W h i le we have sha r p ened ou r ta r i f fs , pla n s 

a nd pro duct s for cu stomers , cu stomer 

ex p ectat ion s a re h i g her t ha n t hey have ever 

b een . We have b een work i n g ha rd to ma ke 

su re t hat we get t he cu stomer ex p er ience r i g ht 

a nd t hat ha s i nvolved ret h i n k i n g some of t he 

ba sics of ou r bu si ness .

T h i s project sta r ted at sta f f level w it h 

i mp or ta nt cha n ges made to how ou r reta i l 

tea m op erates , f rom ma na gement to t hose 

work i n g at ou r cu stomer contact cent re. 

We have a l so made ta rgeted tech nolog y 

i nvest ment s to help cu stomers en ga ge w it h u s 

on l i ne. We w i l l cont i nue to i nvest i n t h i s a rea 

a nd ma ke f u r t her i mprovement s .

O u r fo cu s on cu stomer en ga gement i s a 

key pa r t of ou r cu stomer retent ion st rateg y. 

L au nched i n 2 01 3 , ea rly resu lt s f rom ou r O r ion 

p ersona l i sed sma r t pla n s i n C h r i stchu rch , 

wh ich i nclude a n on l i ne en ga gement 

comp onent , show t hat cu stomer chu r n ha s 

decrea sed substa nt ia l ly compa red w it h ou r 

sta nda rd pla n s . 

O u r cu stomer con nect ion nu mb ers across 

b ot h ou r Mer id ia n a nd Powershop bra nd s 

a re hold i n g steady a nd ou r pr ici n g i s h i g h ly 

comp et it ive, w it h ou r resident ia l pr ici n g at  

t he lower end across t he major net work s 18. 

Wit h m i l l ion s of t ra n s act ion s a yea r, we st r ive 

to get t h i n g s r i g ht to en su re t hat cu stomers 

rema i n s at i sf ied . At Mer id ia n we v iew 

compla i nt s a s a n opp or t u n it y to i mprove, 

so when t here i s a n i ssue t hat need s to b e 

add ressed , we work w it h ou r cu stomer to 

reach a resolut ion . W hen a resolut ion ca n not 

b e reached b et ween a cu stomer a nd a reta i ler, 

t he i ssue ca n b e refer red to t he E lect r icit y 

a nd Ga s Compla i nt s Com m i ssioner ( EG CC). 

Mer id ia n hold s t he lowest p ercenta ge of 

‘dead lo ck ’, or u n resolved , compla i nt s refer red 

to t he EG CC accord i n g to ma rket sha re, w it h 

on ly 2 .7% of compla i nt s reach i n g dead lo ck 19. 
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We a l so u ndersta nd t hat some cu stomers  

have t rouble ma na g i n g t hei r p ower bi l l s .  

We encou ra ge cu stomers to contact u s i n t h i s 

event so we ca n create a pla n to supp or t t hem 

to keep on top of t hei r bi l l pay ment s . Mer id ia n , 

a lon g w it h t he i ndu st r y, i s work i n g to en su re 

t hat t hose st r u g g l i n g to pay for t hei r elect r icit y 

get t he r i g ht supp or t a nd i n for mat ion at t he 

r i g ht t i me. To supp or t t h i s com m it ment , 

we a re proact ively ca l l i n g cu stomers who 

have ident i f ied t hem selves a s ‘v u l nerable 

cu stomers’ 2 0 to d i scu ss t hei r sit uat ion s a nd 

pay ment opt ion s . For exa mple, we prov ide 

‘ level pay ’, wh ich a l lows cu stomers to pay t he 

s a me a mou nt each mont h on t hei r elect r icit y 

bi l l s , ma k i n g bud get i n g more ma na geable.

A s a renewable generator of elect r icit y we 

a l so supp or t cu stomers who generate for t hei r 

ow n p ower need s . Wit h a g row i n g nu mb er of 

cu stomers u si n g t hei r ow n sola r photo -volta ic 

( PV ) system s , we of fer to buy back elect r icit y 

t hat cu stomers generate but don’t u se. We 

have ju st over 2 ,0 0 0 ‘sma l l sca le renewable 

generat ion’ cu stomers , hav i n g g row n ou r 

resident ia l sola r cu stomer ba se by ab out 1 ,0 0 0 

t h i s yea r. T h i s con st it utes approx i mately  

1% of ou r resident ia l reta i l cu stomer ba se. 

We a l so cont i nue to supp or t fa r m s a nd 

bu si nesses w it h t hei r PV sola r system s .  

I n Ju ne t h i s yea r, for exa mple, t he Auck la nd 

Wa r Memor ia l Mu seu m b ega n generat i n g 

p ower f rom 189 sola r pa nel s t ha n k s to a 

col lab orat ion w it h Mer id ia n .

Agribusiness

O u r pu sh to g row cu stomer nu mb ers i n t he 

a g r ibu si ness sector i n t he Nor t h I sla nd ha s 

cont i nued t h i s yea r w it h t he supp or t of ou r 

ded icated tea m i n t he Ha m i lton of f ice, wh ich 

we op ened i n Febr ua r y 2 01 3 . T h i s yea r we 

have ta rgeted g row t h opp or t u n it ies , such a s 

da i r y i n Nor t h la nd , Wa i kato a nd Ta ra na k i 

a nd hor t icu lt u ra l a nd g rowers i n P u kekohe, 

Hawke’s B ay a nd t he B ay of Plent y.

We have a l so b een a l i g n i n g pro duct s to b et ter 

supp or t t he d i f fer i n g seg ment s w it h i n t he 

sector. B ei n g i ndu st r y t ra i ned , ou r a g r i tea m 

memb ers a re able to supp or t ou r cu stomers 

b ecau se we u ndersta nd a nd ca n add va lue to 

t hei r bu si nesses . We have goo d relat ion sh ips 

w it h a nu mb er of buy i n g g roups i nclud i n g 

Fa r m la nd s a nd t he A shbu r ton T rad i n g S o ciet y 

a nd work closely to establ i sh pr ici n g , ser v ices 

a nd ter m s t hat sp eci f ica l ly su it t hei r memb ers . 

T h i s yea r we have cont i nued to supp or t major 

nat iona l a g r icu lt u ra l awa rd s a nd i n it iat ives 

t hat recog n i se a nd promote su sta i nable la nd 

ma na gement , such a s t he B a l la nce Fa r m 

E nv i ron ment Awa rd s , t he New Zea la nd  

Da i r y I ndu st r y Awa rd s a nd t he Da i r y  

Women’s Net work .

The price of power 

Mer id ia n generates a nd sel l s elect r icit y, but  

we a re on ly one of a nu mb er of pa r t icipa nt s 

i n t he supply cha i n t hat del ivers elect r icit y to 

ou r cu stomers’ homes , fa r m s a nd bu si nesses .

T he pr ice we cha rge for elect r icit y dep end s  

on t he pla n a cu stomer select s , where t hey  

l ive a nd how much elect r icit y t hey u se. 

Si nce 2 01 2 we have u nbu nd led ou r bi l l s so  

t hat cu stomers ca n clea rly see t he cha rges 

t hat relate to t he t ra n sm i ssion a nd d i st r ibut ion 

cost s a sso ciated w it h del iver i n g elect r icit y 

to t hem (we ca l l t hese net work cha rges), a nd 

cha rges t hat relate to t he cost of pu rcha si n g 

elect r icit y a nd ot her cost s we i ncu r i n 

supply i n g elect r icit y to t hem (we ca l l t hese 

Mer id ia n cha rges).

T he d ia g ra m opp osite shows t he comp onent s 

of t he resident ia l elect r icit y supply cha i n a nd 

how these costs are included in customers’ bills. 

20 For more information regarding the criteria for identifying as a vulnerable customer, visit  

www.ea.govt.nz/operations/retail/retailers/retailer-obligations/medically-dependant-and-vulnerable-customers.
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How it all works

Energy

E lect r icit y i s pu rcha sed by reta i lers , on b eha l f  

of cu stomers , f rom p ower stat ion s t h rou g hout 

New Zea la nd . T he pr ice at wh ich we buy elect r icit y  

i s set by t he wholes a le ma rket , wh ich matches supply 

f rom generators w it h dema nd f rom reta i lers a nd la rge 

con su mers ever y ha l f hou r. T hese cost s a re i ncluded 

i n t he Mer id ia n cha rges .

Transmission and distribution 

T ra n sp ower, wh ich ow n s a nd op erates t he nat iona l 

g r id , i s resp on sible for del iver i n g elect r icit y f rom 

t he p ower stat ion s to t he reg iona l net work s . L o ca l 

d i st r ibut ion compa n ies t hen d i st r ibute elect r icit y 

w it h i n t he reg iona l net work s to consu mers’ proper t ies . 

T hese cost s a re i ncluded i n t he net work cha rges .

Metering

E lect r icit y meters mea su re how much elect r icit y 

con su mers u se. Sma r t meters , such a s t hose rol led out 

to Mer id ia n’s C h r i stchu rch cu stomers , of fer rea l-t i me 

con su mpt ion i n for mat ion a nd prov ide a plat for m for 

i n novat ive pr ici n g a nd appl ia nce tech nolog ies . 

Meters a re u sua l ly ow ned a nd ma na ged by meter i n g 

equ ipment prov ider compa n ies t hat cha rge lea ses to 

reta i lers for a l l t hei r cu stomers’ meters . T hese cost s 

a re i ncluded i n t he Mer id ia n cha rges .

Government levies and GST

T he E A i s resp on sible for t he reg u lat ion of t he  

elect r icit y i ndu st r y. 

T he cost s of t he E A a re cha rged to reta i lers v ia a n 

a n nua l lev y. O u r cha rges i nclude a sepa rate E A lev y, 

wh ich i s a n a mou nt ba sed on what we pay t he E A . T h i s 

cha rge i s not a lways pa ssed t h rou g h at cost due to t he 

met ho dolog y u sed to ca lcu late t he lev y, but we en su re 

t hat i n t he lon g ter m we do not cha rge ou r cu stomers 

more t ha n what we pay to t he E A . 

New Zea la nd G over n ment G oo d s a nd S er v ices Ta x 

(GST ) i s a l so cha rged on elect r icit y a nd i ncluded  

i n t he bi l l s received by con su mers .

Retail

Reta i lers , such a s Mer id ia n a nd Powershop, prov ide 

cu stomer ser v ice, bi l l i n g a nd ot her u sef u l tool s a nd 

ser v ices (such a s Mer id ia n’s on l i ne cu stomer tool 

MyMer id ia n ). I n order to cover ou r Group cost s , such 

a s supply i n g cu stomer ser v ice a mon g ot her t h i n g s ,  

we a l so i nclude a ma rg i n . T hese a mou nt s a re i ncluded 

i n ou r net work cha rges a nd t he Mer id ia n cha rges .

Typical Meridian  
residential bill breakdown

T he supply cha i n to t he lef t i l lu st rates t he brea kdow n  

of a l l cha rges requ i red to del iver elect r icit y f rom p ower 

stat ion s to ou r resident ia l cu stomers’ homes . 

T hese p ercenta ges ref lect tota l cha rges a f ter t he prompt 

pay ment d i scou nt to a l l Mer id ia n resident ia l cu stomers 

du r i n g t he 2 01 3 ca lenda r yea r.

5%

METERING

14%

GOVERNMENT  
LEVIES AND GST

10%

RETAIL

35%

ENERGY

36%

TRANSMISSION  
AND DISTRIBUTION
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Powershop New Zealand
ARI SARGENT, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF POWERSHOP

Sp ot t i n g a n opp or t u n it y to br i n g cu stomer-

side i n novat ion to t he elect r icit y ma rket a nd  

hav i n g a desi re to br i n g rea l cha n ge to t he 

i ndu st r y, we decided to ta ke up t he cha l len ge. 

F ive yea rs a go Mer id ia n lau nched Powershop,  

a p ower compa ny w it h a v i sion to del iver t he 

s a me p ower, w it h a d i f ferent at t it ude. We set 

out to u s e te c h nolog y to rad ic a l ly s i mpl i f y  

t he way c u s tome rs buy e le c t r ic it y a nd put 

t he m b ac k i n cont rol of t he i r p owe r u s a ge  

a nd co s t s .  T h rou g h ou r we b s ite a nd new  

smartphone app, customers can easily count 

t he i r k i lowat t s to re duce t he i r e ne rg y d iet  

t he s a me way you’d cou nt ca lor ies to reduce 

you r wa i st l i ne, helpi n g t hem to s ave money  

a nd p ower.

O u r approach ha s led t he i ndu st r y w it h 

out sta nd i n g level s of cu stomer s at i sfact ion , 

ach iev i n g scores of b et ween 9 0% a nd 9 6% 

i n t he a n nua l Con su mer N Z su r vey for si x 

con secut ive yea rs a nd a l so w i n n i n g C a n sta r 

awa rd s for t he t h ree yea rs t hey have b een 

r u n n i n g . We’re proud of what we have bu i lt 

a nd a re g ratef u l to a l l of ou r cu stomers who 

have b ecome ou r rav i n g fa n s .

I n t he pa st 1 2 mont h s we have b een qu iet ly  

but stead i ly bu i ld i n g one of New Zea la nd’s  

b est ICT desi g n a nd development tea m s 

lo cated at ou r HQ i n New tow n , Wel l i n g ton . 

T h i s yea r we have lau nched New Zea la nd’s 

f i rst elect r icit y sel f- ser v ice sma r t phone app, 

wh ich ma kes it even ea sier for cu stomers to 

ma na ge t hei r p ower on t he go. A f ter ju st a few 

mont h s , a l most 2 0,0 0 0 Powershop cu stomers 

a re u si n g t he app, wh ich keeps t hem i n for med 

t h rou g h a ra n ge of automat ic not i f icat ion s , 

i nclud i n g d i scou nted elect r icit y packa ges , 

automat ic pay ment a ler t s a nd when meter 

readers w i l l ma ke t hei r nex t v i sit s . T he app 

a l so ma kes it ea sy to mon itor elect r icit y u s a ge 

a nd compa re cost s for t he prev iou s 1 2 mont h s . 

I n ot her development s , ou r ca l l cent re  

i n Ma ster ton ha s ex pa nded a nd t he tea m ha s 

put on t hei r b est Au ssie ‘ t wa n g ’ to ha nd le t he 

i ncrea sed volu me of ca l l s f rom Au st ra l ia n 

Powershop cu stomers .

 

“After just a few months, 
almost 20,000 Powershop 
customers are using  
the app.”
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Taking the power revolution 
across the ditch 
BEN BURGE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF MERIDIAN 
ENERGY AUSTRALIA AND POWERSHOP AUSTRALIA

Fol low i n g ou r success i n New Zea la nd , we 

a re set t i n g out to l ib erate Au st ra l ia n s f rom a 

more t rad it iona l energ y reta i l i n g mo del , one 

cu stomer at a t i me. I n a ma rket i n g ca mpa i g n 

u si n g bi l lb oa rd s , d i g ita l adver t i si n g a nd so cia l 

med ia , we a re let t i n g Au ssies k now t hat we’re 

here a nd t hat we’re d i f ferent .

Au st ra l ia n s a re sta r t i n g to joi n ou r on l i ne 

p ower revolut ion fol low i n g ou r lau nch i n late 

2 01 3 i n t he state of Victor ia – k now n a s one of 

t he most comp et it ive elect r icit y ma rket s i n 

t he world . 

W h i le it i s st i l l ea rly days , we have establ i shed 

a sol id b each head for Powershop i n Victor ia . 

Since launching , 1 3 ,400 customers have chosen  

to joi n t he Powershop revolut ion , w it h nea rly 

4,000 people following us on Facebook. By using  

our own award-winning software and solutions 

develop ed i n New Zea la nd , we of fer cu stomers 

si mple i n for mat ion show i n g exact ly how much  

energ y they are using , and how much it is going 

to cost t hem , b efore t hey a re a sked to pay for it . 

O u r world- cla ss pro duct s a re matched by 

qua l it y cu stomer ser v ice f rom t he hea r t of 

Wa i ra rapa . T he f r iend ly cu stomer ser v ices 

tea m i n Ma ster ton a re now ser v ici n g b ot h 

ou r Au st ra l ia n a nd New Zea la nd Powershop 

cu stomers . We ex p ect t hat cont i nued 

cu stomer g row t h i n Au st ra l ia w i l l d r ive more 

dema nd for jobs at ou r ca l l cent re. I n fact ,  

i f t he g row t h rate cont i nues at cu r rent level s ,  

a f u r t her 2 5 to 3 0 new jobs shou ld b e created 

i n t he nex t 1 2 mont h s . 

P ut t i n g even more p ower i n ou r cu stomers’ 

ha nd s , Au st ra l ia n s now have t he abi l it y to 

choose the kind of power they want to support 

w it h t he Powershop on l i ne ma rket place. 

Au st ra l ia n cu stomers ca n choose to buy  

p ower f rom sp eci f ic renewable sou rces  

u si n g t he on l i ne store, i nclud i n g Mer id ia n  

a nd t h i rd-pa r t y w i nd fa r m op erators a nd  

even com mu n it y renewable generat ion 

project s 2 1.  T he ma rket place even i ncludes a 

su ga rca ne -p owered opt ion , wh ich ha r nesses 

elect r icit y generated f rom bu r n i n g wa ste 

bioma ss f rom su ga r m i l l s .

 

“We expect that continued 
customer growth in 
Australia will drive more 
demand for jobs at our 
call centre. In fact, if the 
growth rate continues at 
current levels, a further 
25 to 30 new jobs should 
be created in the next  
 12 months.”

21 This works by the renewable generator surrendering the Renewable Energy Certificates (a form of renewable energy 

currency under the Australian RET scheme) to match the units used by the customer. 
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Neal Barclay, General Manager, 
Markets and Production

Generation 
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Generating electricity safely and 
efficiently is the driving motivation for 
my team. We have again demonstrated 
the capability to manage our hydro 
generation within the context of another 
year of challenging inflows, with an 
exceptionally wet spring followed by  
the second lowest inflows on record  
in March.

“Both wind farms have delivered first power  
and are expected to be fully completed by  
the end of 2014.”
NEAL BARCLAY 

T h i s yea r we’ve b een work i n g on t wo major 

renewable generat ion project s – M i l l C reek 

w i nd fa r m nea r Wel l i n g ton a nd Mt Mercer 

w i nd fa r m i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia . B ot h w i nd 

fa r m s have del ivered f i rst p ower a nd a re 

ex p ected to b e f u l ly completed by t he end  

of 2 014 . 

Market trading

Ma na g i n g r i sk i s at t he core of my tea m’s work 

a nd we have seen a cont i nued evolut ion i n 

t he elect r icit y ma rket a nd t he ava i labi l it y 

a nd l iqu id it y of key r i sk ma na gement tool s . 

A n i ncrea si n g ly v ibra nt a nd l iqu id A SX hed ge 

ma rket , now complemented by F i na ncia l 

T ra n sm i ssion R i g ht s ( F T R s), i s b ecom i n g a n 

i mp or ta nt cor nerstone i n how we ma na ge r i sk .  

To prov ide contex t , du r i n g t he f i na ncia l yea r 

we t raded approx i mately 82 9 GW h on t he A SX 

b ot h i n ou r capacit y a s a ma rket ma ker a nd to 

hed ge ma rket ex p osu res . 

L i kew i se, t he i nt ro duct ion of F T R s du r i n g 

Ju ly 2 01 3 , wh ich a re hed ges t hat help u s to 

ma na ge cha n ges i n elect r icit y pr ices across 

t he t ra n sm i ssion net work , supp or ted ou r reta i l 

pu sh i nto t he Nor t h I sla nd , where we have 

seen t he major it y of ou r cu stomer g row t h .

We a l so replaced t he 2 0 0M W Swapt ion we 

held w it h G enesi s E nerg y w it h a su ite of 

f lex ible opt ion s (a l so w it h G enesi s) to en su re 

t hat we ca n supp or t obl i gat ion s to cu stomers 

a nd hed ge d r y-yea r r i sk s .

Asset performance

We a re work i n g ha rd to ach ieve p er for ma nce 

ef f iciencies f rom ou r renewable generat ion 

p or t fol io. D u r i n g t he p er io d we successf u l ly 

del ivered :

• new cont rol system s for t he f i rst of fou r  

u n it s at Av iemore hyd ro p ower stat ion  

to i mprove rel iabi l it y

• upg rades to t he Wa ita k i hyd ro p ower stat ion 

a s pa r t of a t h ree -yea r generat ion overhau l 

prog ra m me

• replacement s of a l l t he h i g h-volta ge bu sh i n g s 

on t he t ra n sfor mers at Ma nap ōu r i a f ter a 

rout i ne i n sp ect ion ident i f ied fau lt s w it h fou r 

of t he 2 1 bu sh i n g s .

Wit h i n ou r w i nd p or t fol io, we have ta ken t he 

tech nolog ica l adva nces made on ou r t u rbi nes 

at M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m a nd appl ied t hem to 

it s nei g hb ou r i n g w i nd fa r m , West Wi nd . T hese 

adva nces w i l l enable t he w i nd t u rbi nes to 

op erate i n h i g her w i nd sp eed s , resu lt i n g i n a n 

approx i mately 2 % i mprovement i n pro duct ion .

At t he s a me t i me we completed t he major 

project to replace ou r G enerat ion Cont rol 

System , wh ich enables u s to op erate  

a l l ou r p ower stat ion s f rom Wel l i n g ton .  

T h i s new sof t wa re enables u s to cont i nue  

to r u n a l l of ou r generat ion a sset s ef f icient ly 

f rom a cent ra l hub wh i le a l so prov id i n g  

t he redu nda ncy of d i s a ster recover y  

faci l it ies lo cated at t he Ōhau B p ower stat ion .  

T h i s project wa s completed i n Au g u st 2 014 .
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O u r com m it ment to h i g h- qua l it y a sset 

ma na gement a nd ma i ntena nce wa s recent ly 

recog n i sed w it h a gold awa rd f rom t he 

Au st ra l ia n A sset Ma na gement Cou nci l 

( A MC), wh ich promotes excel lence i n t he 

pract ice of a sset ma na gement , ma i ntena nce 

a nd en g i neer i n g . We a l so received t he 

A MC Fou nders Plate for b est-pract ice a sset 

ma na gement a nd ma i ntena nce capabi l it y. 

T he hyd ro forced outa ge factor for t he yea r 

wa s 2 . 5% , wh ich wa s h i g her t ha n pla n ned 

a nd prev iou s yea rs’ p er for ma nce. T h i s wa s 

due pr i ma r i ly to t he precaut iona r y work s 

u nder ta ken on t he Ma nap ōu r i hyd ro p ower 

stat ion generator t ra n sfor mers . Fol low i n g 

pla n ned ma i ntena nce check s i n Ma rch 

2 014 we d i scovered a n i ssue w it h t wo of 

Ma nap ōu r i’s seven t ra n sfor mers . We ex p ect  

to i n sta l l t wo new t ra n sfor mers , wh ich w i l l  

b e op erat iona l by Ma rch 2 01 5 , a nd pro cu re  

a t h i rd new t ra n sfor mer a s a spa re. 

T h i s yea r ’s avera ge ava i labi l it y for w i nd a sset s 

wa s 97.4% , wh ich wa s a sl i g ht i mprovement on 

la st yea r (97. 3%).

Transmission upgrades 

T he new H V D C l i n k wa s f u l ly com m i ssioned 

at t he end of Novemb er 2 01 3 . D u r i n g t h i s 

upg rade Mer id ia n worked col lab orat ively w it h 

T ra n sp ower to ma na ge con st ra i ned H V D C 

t ra n sfer capabi l it y w it h no det r i menta l ef fect s 

on ou r ea r n i n g s .

T h i s upg rade of H V D C capacit y i s a p osit ive 

development for t he ma rket a s it la rgely 

el i m i nates t ra n sm i ssion con st ra i nt s b et ween 

t he Nor t h a nd S out h I sla nd s . It enabled t he 

t ra n sm i ssion of la rge volu mes of S out h I sla nd 

hyd ro p ower du r i n g p er io d s of t he yea r when 

we ex p er ienced si g n i f ica nt i n f lows . D u r i n g 

D ecemb er 2 01 3 , for exa mple, we s aw t he 

h i g hest week ly nor t hwa rd f low si nce 2 0 07. 

T he upg rade w i l l a l so enable g reater volu mes 

of Nor t h I sla nd energ y to b e t ra n sfer red to t he 

S out h I sla nd i n t he event of a n ex tended d r y 

p er io d i n t he S out h I sla nd hyd ro catch ment s . 

Australia update 

T he tea m i n Au st ra l ia met a major m i lestone  

i n Novemb er 2 01 3 w it h f i rst p ower generated 

at Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m a nd it s f i rst con nect ion 

to t he t ra n sm i ssion g r id . O u r tea m worked 

ha rd w it h ou r cont ractors a nd suppl iers to 

en su re t hat t h i s project wa s completed a head 

of t i me a nd b elow bud get a nd wa s del ivered 

s a fely. Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m con si st s of 6 4 

t u rbi nes a nd w i l l have a capacit y of 1 31 M W, 

pro duci n g enou g h elect r icit y each yea r for 

ab out 74 ,0 0 0 avera ge Au st ra l ia n homes .  

T h i s w i l l br i n g ou r Au st ra l ia n p or t fol io to 

2 01 M W a nd prov ide Mer id ia n w it h d iversit y 

of ea r n i n g s a nd a sol id b each head i n t he 

Au st ra l ia n renewable energ y ma rket . 

Renewable development projects  
in New Zealand 

I n l i g ht of cu r rent ma rket cond it ion s ou r  

fo cu s ha s b een on ma i nta i n i n g t he most 

at t ract ive w i nd fa r m opt ion s a nd developi n g 

t hese to t he p oi nt where t hey ca n b e held  

u nt i l ma rket cond it ion s i mprove. D u r i n g t he 

yea r we worked d i rect ly w it h lo ca l aut hor it ies 

to reta i n t he resou rce con sent s a sso ciated 

w it h sites a nd w it h pr ivate la ndow ners to 

secu re lon g-ter m la nd access a r ra n gement s . 

O u r cu r rent i nterest s i n w i nd fa r m prop os a l s 

a re lo cated i n Nor t h la nd , cent ra l New Zea la nd , 

Nor t h C a nterbu r y a nd i n la nd Hawke’s B ay.

During the last year we continued to rationalise 

a number of development projects. Resource 

consent applications for the Mt Munro 

wind farm project south of Eketahuna were 

withdrawn in November 201 3 . Two hydro 

generation options, the A muri and Balmoral 

projects that we were working on in partnership 

with Ngā i Tahu Property, were also halted.  

Ngā i Tahu Property is continuing to pursue  

the Balmoral project independently as an 

irrigation option.

A ser ies of la nd hold i n g s for prev iou s hyd ro 

development s wa s tendered a nd sold . T he 

la nd d i sp os a l s were predom i na nt ly pa r t of t he 

or i g i na l prop os a l to develop a hyd ro scheme 

on t he lower Wa ita k i R iver.
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The turbines

TURBINE FOUNDATIONS ARE UP TO 

METRES
WIDE20 METRES

DEEP2

9 METRES LONGER 
THAN THE WING  
OF A BOEING 777

110
.89

METRES

THE TOTAL 
HEIGHT  
OF EACH 
TURBINE 40

METRES

BLADE LENGTH

EQUIVALENT WEIGHT OF A SCHOOL BUS!

BLADE WEIGHT 

9.2
TONNES

MAN HOURS TO BUILD (END OF JUNE 2014)
370,000

TONNES OF CEMENT USED
 EQUIVALENT TO 
63 TRUCKLOADS

1,000

The build

40 OF REINFORCING 
STEEL WAS USEDTONNES

KM6
TRANSMISSION 
LINES CREATED

Constructing Mill Creek

APPROXIMATELY

KM19
OF NEW ROADING 
CONSTRUCTED

Mill Creek – the wider benefits 
of building a wind farm 

W hen we celebrated f i rst p ower at M i l l C reek 

w i nd fa r m nea r Wel l i n g ton i n May 2 014 , it 

ma rked a si g n i f ica nt m i lestone for Mer id ia n 

for a nu mb er of rea son s . M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m 

not on ly i s t he f i f t h w i nd fa r m t hat we have 

bu i lt i n New Zea la nd i n ju st 10 yea rs , but 

b ecau se of ma rket cond it ion s it w i l l probably 

b e t he la st t hat we bu i ld for at lea st t he nex t 

t h ree to f ive yea rs . 

A development project of t h i s si ze i s a 

cu l m i nat ion of ma ny yea rs’ work t hat ha s 

i nvolved a lot of p eople, pla n n i n g a nd 

pro cesses . I n 2 0 0 4 , a g roup of fa r mers who 

ow n t he la nd at M i l l C reek for med a la ndow ner 

coop erat ive ca l led Wi ndcor p. T hey s aw it a s 

a n i n novat ive way to supp or t t he v iabi l it y of 

t hei r fa r m s , wh i le preser v i n g t he l i fest yle a nd 

r u ra l cha racter of t he Oha r iu Va l ley a rea . A f ter 

w i n n i n g a tender pro cess , Mer id ia n t hen 

reached a n a g reement w it h t he fa r m ow ners to 

develop a w i nd fa r m on t he site. Con st r uct ion 

b ega n i n S eptemb er 2 01 2 a nd w i l l cont i nue 

u nt i l a l l of t he 2 6 t u rbi nes a re up a nd r u n n i n g 

at t he end of 2 014 . 

M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m may generate elect r icit y 

for Mer id ia n , but i s a l so generates 

opp or t u n it ies for t he fa r mers who ow n t he 

fou r prop er t ies where t he t u rbi nes a re lo cated . 

A lt hou g h t he con st r uct ion of t he w i nd fa r m 

brou g ht some d i sr upt ion s for t he lo ca l 

fa r mers , t he med iu m-to lon g-ter m b enef it s a re 

wor t h it .  T he overa l l i mpact of t he t u rbi nes i s 

low, with a footprint of around 3% of each farm. 

Sheep a nd b eef fa r mer Gav i n Br uce, who ha s 

ei g ht t u rbi nes on h i s 4 4 0 -hecta re ( ha ) Oha r iu 

Va l ley prop er t y, s ays t he w i nd fa r m replaced 

ex i st i n g fences a nd ya rd s , wh ich i s s av i n g on 

repa i rs a nd ma i ntena nce for h i s fa r m . He s ays 

t hat t he road upg rade ha s a l so b een u sef u l 

b ecau se he ca n now s a fely access t he back of 

t he prop er t y at a l l t i mes . 

I n ter m s of r u n n i n g a su sta i nable bu si ness , 

Br uce s ays t hat t h i s ha s a lways b een t he a i m , 

“ T he w i nd fa r m ta kes t he bad yea rs out of 

fa r m i n g ,” he s ays . 

M i l l C reek a l so had w ider b enef it s for t he 

com mu n it y du r i n g con st r uct ion . A s w it h  

a l l of ou r development project s we u sed  

lo ca l ser v ices a nd pro duct s when p ossible. 

At lea st 5 0% of t he 1 , 3 0 0 p eople who worked 

on t he project l ive i n eit her Wel l i n g ton or t he 

lower Nor t h I sla nd . 

D u r i n g t he con st r uct ion pha se ou r pr i ma r y 

concer n wa s en su r i n g t hat t he work wa s 

completed s a fely a nd we a re plea sed to  

rep or t t hat w it h approx i mately 370,0 0 0  

hou rs worked on site, to date we have had  

no ser iou s i nju r ies .

A s w it h a l l of ou r generat ion com mu n it ies ,  

we have set up a Com mu n it y F u nd . We 

recent ly a l lo cated $7 5 ,0 0 0 for t he M i l l C reek 

Com mu n it y F u nd , wh ich i s ava i lable to lo ca l 

com mu n it y project s seek i n g f u nd i n g i n t he 

nex t t h ree yea rs . We a l so have a tea m of 

p eople, i nclud i n g a ded icated com mu n it y 

l ia i son role, who work to en su re t hat we stay 

con nected w it h t he M i l l C reek com mu n it y  

for t he lon g ter m , a s we move b eyond t he 

con st r uct ion of t he project .
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T he va st major it y of t he elect r icit y we 

generate i s f rom ou r seven hyd ro stat ion s , 

compr i si n g si x i n t he Wa ita k i Va l ley a nd ou r 

la rgest p ower stat ion Ma nap ōu r i i n t he Wa iau 

catch ment , a l l of wh ich a re i n t he S out h I sla nd . 

By New Zea la nd sta nda rd s , t he sca le of ou r 

hyd ro op erat ion s i s la rge. T he Ma nap ōu r i 

hyd ro p ower stat ion generates elect r icit y 

f rom water f low i n g f rom New Zea la nd’s la rgest 

la ke, Te Ā nau , a nd Ma nap ōu r i , t he fou r t h 

la rgest la ke, wh ich d i scha rges i nto D oubt f u l 

S ou nd . T he Wa ita k i catch ment ha s a cha i n of 

ei g ht hyd ro stat ion s (si x ow ned by Mer id ia n ), 

ca na l s a nd seven la kes on a la rge bra ided r iver. 

T hese catch ment s a re t he fo ca l p oi nt of ou r 

com m it ment to t he env i ron ment i n wh ich  

we op erate.

W hile our 100% commitment to renewables 

continues to make a positive contribution 

to New Zealand’s energ y strateg y target of 

90% of electricity generation from renewable 

sources by 202 5, our dams and wind farms 

still have impacts on local environments and 

communities. Hydro dams and canals have 

diverted water, inundated land and modified 

water bodies. This has resulted in changes to 

ecolog y and biodiversity and has also opened 

up recreational and tourism opportunities, 

including employment for local communities. 

We view effective water management as 

a balance between achieving efficient 

renewable electricity generation, maintaining 

environmental conditions and engag ing  

with stakeholders on the issues that matter  

the most to them.

Responsible water management 

A s a hyd ro op erator we op erate u nder a su ite 

of leg i slat ive a nd reg u lator y requ i rement s 

i nclud i n g t he Resou rce Ma na gement Act 

1991 ( R M A ), ou r op erat i n g con sent s a nd 

a nu mb er of lo ca l gover n ment pla n n i n g 

requ i rement s . O u r approach to op erat ion s 

a nd env i ron menta l ma na gement i ncludes t he 

precaut iona r y approach of t he R M A . T hese 

requ i rement s cover a l l of ou r op erat ion s a nd 

i nclude r iver f lows , la ke level s a nd ou r i mpact s 

on f lora a nd fau na . We work closely w it h 

ot hers to meet t hese requ i rement s .

T h i s yea r we had 18 non- compl ia nce event s 

u nder related env i ron menta l leg i slat ion 

a nd reg u lat ion s across a l l of ou r generat ion 

a sset s a nd development sites . T he major it y 

of t he event s were related to t he R M A a nd a l l 

t he non- compl ia nt event s were add ressed 

thoroughly and reported to the Meridian Board. 

Biodiversity 

O u r approach to bio d iversit y i s to u ndersta nd 

t he ef fect s we have a s a n elect r icit y 

generator, to mon itor cha n ge a nd to work 

w it h sta keholders on i n it iat ives to m it i gate 

t hese i mpact s . T hese ma i n ly relate to ef fect s 

on water- ba sed sp ecies resu lt i n g f rom 

i nu ndat ion , d r y r iver b ed s a nd habitat loss . 

For exa mple, b et ween t he 193 0 s when t he 

Wa ita k i da m wa s bu i lt t h rou g h to 198 5 when 

t he la st Ōhau p ower stat ion wa s completed , 

t he Wa ita k i hyd ro system i nu ndated ab out 

“We view effective water management as a balance 
between achieving efficient renewable electricity 
generation, maintaining environmental conditions 
and engaging with stakeholders on the issues that 
matter to them the most.”
GUY WAIPARA 

Working at Meridian, you soon get to 
understand the special connection 
that we have with the environment, 
which begins with our commitment to 
being a 100% renewable electricity 
generator. This means we are reliant on 
natural resources like wind and water 
to power our assets. We are also reliant 
on maintaining relationships with and 
working alongside stakeholders and 
communities who also value these 
natural resources. 
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7,4 0 0ha of op en bra ided r iver habitat a nd 

3 ,9 0 0ha of swa mpla nd s , a nd added 2 2 , 2 5 0ha 

of la kes a nd 2 9 0 k i lomet res of la ke shorel i ne. 

We a re comp en s at i n g for t h i s habitat loss 

t h rou g h ou r on goi n g supp or t of P roject  

R iver Recover y2 2, r u n by t he D epa r t ment  

of Con ser vat ion , wh ich preser ves f lora a nd 

fau na i n bra ided r iver habitat s i n t he Upp er 

Wa ita k i B a si n . 

A recent L a ndca re Resea rch L i m ited rev iew  

of P roject R iver Recover y fou nd t hat t he  

2 0 -yea r prog ra m me ha s b een a h i g h ly 

ef fect ive bra ided r iver restorat ion project . 

Recent resu lt s show t hat t he project ha s 

su sta i nably a nd ef f icient ly ma i nta i ned low 

weed den sit y i n 6 3% of t he Upp er Wa ita k i 

B a si n . T hey a l so show t hat t he project 

cont r ibutes to t he on goi n g ex p er i menta l 

ma na gement of t he nest i n g success of 

cr it ica l ly enda n gered bra ided r iver bi rd s  

such a s t he black- bi l led g u l l a nd t he ka k ī  

(or black st i lt ). 

P rotect i n g bio d iversit y i s pa r t icu la rly 

i mp or ta nt at Ma nap ōu r i , wh ich i s lo cated i n a 

Nat iona l Pa rk a nd U N E SCO World Her ita ge Site. 

O u r mon itor i n g i n t h i s a rea i s ex ten sive a nd 

covers la ke, r iver a nd ma r i ne env i ron ment s 

i nclud i n g la ke shore a nd r iver biolog y a nd 

geomor pholog y a nd biolog ica l a nd physica l 

(temp erat u re, s a l i n it y a nd fau na ) cond it ion s  

i n D eep Cove, F iord la nd . T h i s i n for mat ion i s 

prov ided to E nv i ron ment S out h la nd a n nua l ly 

a s pa r t of ou r resou rce con sent obl i gat ion s .

Va r iou s i mpact s a re ident i f ied a nd a ssessed 

at t he pla n n i n g sta ges of a w i nd fa r m a nd 

a re mon itored t h rou g hout t he con st r uct ion 

pha se a nd , i n some ca ses , i m med iately 

p ost con st r uct ion . O ver t he yea rs we have 

mon itored nat ive bi rd s a nd bat s at Te U k u 

w i nd fa r m a nd t he kā rea rea ( nat ive fa lcon )  

a nd red t u sso ck s at W h ite H i l l w i nd fa r m . 

Working with Ngāi Tahu 

Mer id ia n’s hyd ro generat ion a sset s a re a l l 

sit uated w it h i n t he Ngā i Ta hu ta k iwā , w it h t he 

major it y on t he Wa ita k i R iver. Wa ita k i i s of ten 

refer red to a s represent i n g t he tea rs of Aora k i 

t hat spi l l i nto L a ke P ū ka k i a nd event ua l ly 

ma ke t hei r way sout h a lon g t he r iver to t he 

coa st . A s such , t he r iver i s a n essent ia l element 

of t he ident it y of Ngā i Ta hu a s a n iw i . Ngā i 

Ta hu a nd Mer id ia n have sha red i nterest s i n 

t he hea lt h of t h i s water way, i n pa r t icu la r water 

qua l it y a nd access to ma h i n ga ka i ( foo d a nd 

resou rce gat her i n g ).

We a re a l so look i n g to bu i ld on ou r 

relat ion sh ip a nd develop deep er con nect ion s 

b et ween t he t wo ent it ies , i nclud i n g ou r 

i nvolvement w it h Ngā i Ta hu project s such a s 

Te A na , t he Māor i Ro ck A r t Cent re a nd P roject 

O ra , a home i n su lat ion prog ra m me for S out h-

I sla nd- ba sed Ngā i Ta hu , a nd opp or t u n it ies to 

bu i ld ou r resp ect ive p eople capabi l it ies .

22 For more information about Project River Recovery go to www.doc.govt.nz/conservation/restoration-projects/project-river-recovery.
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Protecting our aquatic life

T he New Zea la nd nat ive lon g f i n eel ,  

a l so k now n to Māor i a s ‘ t u na’, i s one of t he 

la rgest a nd lon gest-l iv i n g f reshwater eel s  

i n t he world . 

I n order to spaw n , lon g f i n eel s m i g rate to 

deep - sea t renches i n t he Paci f ic O cea n , up 

to 6 ,0 0 0 k i lomet res of f ou r coa st l i ne. T hey 

relea se m i l l ion s of eg g s , a nd t hei r of fspr i n g 

f loat back to t he New Zea la nd coa st on o cea n 

cu r rent s . T he elver (you n g eel s) t hen sw i m 

upst rea m to l ive i n f reshwater r ivers a nd 

la kes . O ne of t he major obstacles t hat eel s 

a nd elvers face on t h i s jou r ney i s ma n-made 

st r uct u res such a s da m s . 

T he Wa iau a nd t he Wa ita k i catch ment s a re 

t he nat u ra l habitat of t hou s a nd s of nat ive 

eel s , a nd bu i ld i n g a nd op erat i n g da m s 

i n t hese a rea s ha s had i mpact s on t hei r 

m i g rator y habit s . Mer id ia n a nd Ngā i Ta hu 

con sider t he eel p opu lat ion a key i nd icator  

of t he qua l it y of t hese water ways .

A s t he ta n gata whenua of t he a rea , Ngā i Ta hu  

ha s h i stor ica l ly rel ied on a hea lt hy eel 

p opu lat ion for ma h i n ga ka i . We recog n i se 

t he cu lt u ra l i mp or ta nce of eel to Ngā i Ta hu 

a nd work w it h t hem closely to en su re t he 

protect ion of t he sp ecies a nd en su re t hat  

t h i s taon ga (t rea su re) i s preser ved for ma ny 

generat ion s to come.

To prov ide a su sta i nable p opu lat ion of eel i n 

t he Wa iau a nd Wa ita k i catch ment s , we move 

t hou s a nd s of eel s each yea r by t rappi n g a nd 

t ra n sfer r i n g t he elver i nto da m headwaters 

a nd m i g rat i n g adu lt s back dow n st rea m . 

T hese pro cesses i nvolve Ngā i Ta hu a nd 

ot her lo ca l sta keholders i n overseei n g a nd 

del iver i n g t he t rap a nd t ra n sfer prog ra m me.

I n t he Wa iau catch ment , t he prog ra m me 

i nvolves physica l ly t rappi n g fema le 

m i g rat i n g lon g f i n eel s i n L a ke Ma nap ōu r i a nd 

t ra n sfer r i n g t hem to b elow t he Ma nap ōu r i 

L a ke Cont rol st r uct u re – f rom here t hey have 

op en access dow n st rea m , enabl i n g t hem to 

m i g rate successf u l ly to sea for spaw n i n g .  

T he prog ra m me a l so t ra n sfers elver upst rea m 

i nto L a ke Ma nap ōu r i . T h i s prog ra m me 

i nvolves lo ca l sta keholders a nd ha s del ivered 

goo d resu lt s , w it h h i g h level s of fema le eel 

m i g ra nt s , wh ich i s a n i mp or ta nt factor when 

it comes to successf u l breed i n g . 

Wit h i n t he Wa ita k i catch ment we work w it h 

A rowhenua , Mo era k i a nd Wa i hao r ū na n ga 

to supp or t a nd faci l itate t he movement of 

lon g f i n elver a nd m i g ra nt eel s . T he nu mb er 

of elver t hat we catch ha s b een va r iable si nce 

we b ega n ou r t rap a nd t ra n sfer prog ra m me. 

T h i s i s due to a nu mb er of factors t hat we a re 

work i n g w it h ot hers to b et ter u ndersta nd .

We have a l so worked i n pa r t nersh ip w it h t he 

Nat iona l I n st it ute of Water a nd At mospher ic 

Resea rch ( N I WA ) to t rack t he m i g rator y 

b ehav iou r of 2 2 0 you n g a nd adu lt eel s i n 

L a ke Ma nap ōu r i a nd Wa ita k i i n t he pa st 

few yea rs . T h i s resea rch ha s i n for med u s i n 

choosi n g t he prefer red t rap a nd t ra n sfer eel 

opt ion to u se i n t he Wa iau catch ment to help 

en ha nce ef for t s to protect t he nat ive sp ecies . 

We w i l l cont i nue w it h t he t rap a nd t ra n sfer 

prog ra m me a s a way to help protect lon g f i n 

eel s a nd w i l l cont i nue to mon itor reg u la rly 

t he ef fect s a nd rev iew t he b est way to 

ma na ge eel p opu lat ion s . 
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“We’re proud to invest  
our time and resources 
into KidsCan, which 
offers practical,  
hands-on assistance  
to thousands of children 
in schools throughout 
New Zealand.”
GUY WAIPARA

KidsCan

We’re proud to i nvest ou r t i me a nd resou rces 

i nto K id sC a n , wh ich of fers pract ica l , ha nd s- on 

a ssi sta nce to t hou s a nd s of ch i ld ren i n school s 

t h rou g hout New Zea la nd . T he pa r t nersh ip, 

wh ich i s ou r bi g gest nat iona l sp on sorsh ip,  

i s ou r way of supp or t i n g K id sC a n i n reach i n g 

it s goa l of g iv i n g ever y ch i ld t he cha nce  

to succeed . 

A f ter lau nch i n g t he pa r t nersh ip i n Ju ne 2 01 3 , 

more t ha n 60 school s i m med iately ca me of f 

t he wa it i n g l i st to receive supp or t . T h i s yea r 

ou r supp or t ha s help ed t he cha r it y w it h 

d i st r ibut i n g ra i ncoat s , sho es , so ck s a nd foo d  

to K iw i k id s . Sta f f have a l so embraced t he 

cha r it y w it h f u nd ra i si n g a nd volu nteer work . 

A la rge g roup f rom t he C h r i stchu rch of f ice  

a nd A rc I n novat ion s orga n i sed a 24 -hou r r u n  

a nd ra i sed over $10,0 0 0 for K id sC a n at t he  

end of 2 01 3 . Mer id ia n ‘ S a nta Wra n g lers’ help ed 

at t he 16 K id sC a n S a nta Ru n s a rou nd t he 

cou nt r y i n D ecemb er, w it h t he Wel l i n g ton  

a nd C h r i stchu rch crews a l most ent i rely made 

up of Mer id ia n sta f f memb ers .

Sustainable Coastlines

A key pa r t of ou r com m it ment to creat i n g  

a b et ter energ y f ut u re i s protect i n g a nd 

supporting the communities and environments 

where we op erate. We supp or t Su sta i nable 

Coa st l i nes i n it s work to educate K iw i s ab out 

ma r i ne debr i s , a nd to mot ivate school s a nd 

com mu n it ies to look a f ter t he coa st l i nes we 

a l l love.

Mer id ia n sta f f orga n i sed a volu nta r y 

water f ront d ive clea n-up i n Novemb er 2 01 3 

a rou nd t he water i n f ront of ou r Wel l i n g ton 

Q ueen s W ha r f of f ice. A lon g w it h t he publ ic , 

we pu l led out more t ha n one ton ne of r ubbi sh 

i n D ecemb er, i nclud i n g a mess a ge i n a b ot t le 

f rom t he coa st l i ne nea r West Wi nd fa r m ,  

a s pa r t of t he ‘ L ove You r Coa st ’ i n it iat ive.

South Island Rowing 

Our 1 5 -year sponsorship of South Island Rowing 

cont i nued t h i s yea r w it h t he Mer id ia n Row i n g 

Cent re at L a ke Ruata n iwha host i n g t he Maad i 

C up ea rly i n 2 014 . New Zea la nd’s top you n g 

row i n g ta lent at tended t he week-lon g event 

a nd ma ny took adva nta ge of f ree ma ss a ge 

t herapi st s i n t he Mer id ia n tent . We have a l so 

help ed to nu r t u re some of New Zea la nd’s top 

rowers t h rou g h ou r supp or t for t he S out her n 

Reg iona l Per for ma nce Cent re. T h i s ha s help ed 

to develop Oly mpic gold meda l l i st s l i ke 

Ha m i sh B ond a nd Nat ha n Cohen . 

Living Legends

O u r supp or t cont i nues for L iv i n g L egend s 

(ded icated to lo ca l r u gby legend s), wh ich i s  

a com mu n it y t ree pla nt i n g prog ra m me w it h 

t he goa l of pla nt i n g 170,0 0 0 t rees b efore t he 

end of 2 01 5 . T he f i na l pla nt i n g s took place i n 

Au g u st 2 01 3 a nd a prog ra m me of ma i ntena nce 

w i l l b e on goi n g to en su re t he v iabi l it y of t he 

you n g pla nt s . 

At Meridian we sponsor a range of national and local sporting, environmental 
and community projects through financial support and staff voluntary work.  
This provides us with an opportunity to engage with our customers and 
local communities and helps us to make a real difference in the lives of 
New Zealanders. Sponsorship is an important part of growing our brand 
awareness, but all of the activities and initiatives that we support are  
closely linked to our values and principles. 
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Twizel Medical Centre

“ Mer id ia n’s ver y welcome 

cont r ibut ion ta kes t he tota l f u nd i n g 

raised towards the new Twizel Medical 

Cent re to a rou nd $1 . 3 3 m i l l ion . 

We est i mate t hat we need to ra i se 

a not her $60 0,0 0 0,” says Joy Paterson 

of t he H i g h Cou nt r y Med ica l T r u st . 

D espite t he f u nd ra i si n g ta sk a head , 

t he t r u st ex p ect s to sta r t bu i ld i n g at 

t he end of 2014 .

“ T he cent re’s 1 ,70 0 reg i stered 

pat ient s a re spread a rou nd a la rge 

geog raph ica l a rea , i nclud i n g T w i zel , 

Oma ra ma , Mou nt Cook Vi l la ge a nd 

t he su r rou nd i n g fa r m i n g d i st r ict s ,” 

says Joy. “ We a l so look a f ter t he la rge 

nu mb er of tou r i st s who come t h rou g h 

t he a rea du r i n g su m mer a nd w i nter. 

One of ou r key roles i s to stabi l i se 

ser iou sly i l l pat ient s b efore t hey 

a re t ra n sp or ted to T i ma r u Hospita l , 

wh ich i s t wo hou rs’ d r ive away.”

Generation communities 

Wit h generat ion a sset s lo cated i n com mu n it ies 

a rou nd t he cou nt r y, it i s i mp or ta nt t hat we 

ma i nta i n goo d com mu n it y relat ion sh ips 

w it h t hose l iv i n g nea r ou r w i nd fa r m s a nd 

hyd ro p ower stat ion s . At t he pla n n i n g sta ges 

of bu i ld i n g a new development project a nd 

t h rou g hout t he l i fe of t he a sset , ou r lon g-ter m 

com m it ment i s to b e a goo d nei g hb ou r to t hese 

com mu n it ies . T h i s i nvolves supp or t i n g a nd 

f u nd i n g com mu n it y project s a nd i n it iat ives , 

on goi n g l ia i son a nd b ei n g op en to feedback . 

Bu i ld i n g a new generat ion a sset i s a la rge 

development project t hat ha s i mpact s on t he 

env i ron ment a nd lo ca l com mu n it ies . W h i le 

each development project i s u n ique, ou r 

approach to com mu n it y en ga gement i s ba sed 

on work i n g w it h com mu n it ies on pla n n i n g a nd 

con st r uct ion i ssues ever y step of t he way. We 

ta ke ou r resp on sibi l it ies ser iou sly a nd work 

w it h t he releva nt aut hor it ies on mon itor i n g 

a nd meet i n g sta nda rd s a nd ex ten sive 

resou rce con sent cond it ion s du r i n g a nd p ost 

con st r uct ion . T he most com mon i ssues we 

mon itor a nd ma na ge i nvolve la nd scap e a nd 

v i sua l a men it y, noi se, hea lt h , ecolog y, t ra f f ic 

a nd road i n g . 

D eta i led ex p er t a ssessment s a nd ev idence 

on t hese i ssues a re publ icly ava i lable a s 

pa r t of t he deci sion-ma k i n g pro cesses by 

lo ca l cou nci l s a nd t he E nv i ron ment Cou r t . 

We ta ke publ ic feedback on b oa rd a nd ma ke 

appropr iate cha n ges a nd mo d i f icat ion s 

du r i n g a nd p ost con st r uct ion . D u r i n g t he 

con st r uct ion of t he new M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m 

t h i s yea r, for exa mple, we created a website  

to enable com mu n it y i nput on l i ne 2 3.

D u r i n g t he recent M i l l C reek project we a l so 

establ i shed a Com mu n it y L ia i son Group 

(C LG), wh ich prov ides a for u m for excha n g i n g 

i n for mat ion a nd add ressi n g com mu n it y 

concer n s du r i n g t he con st r uct ion pha se. 

L ed by a n i ndep endent cha i r p erson , t he 

C LG i s made up of representat ives f rom t he 

com mu n it y, lo ca l gover n ment a nd Mer id ia n . 

O u r ded icated com mu n it y relat ion s tea m  

a l so keeps ou r generat ion com mu n it ies up  

to date w it h development s t h rou g h bi-a n nua l 

newslet ters a nd meet i n g s when necess a r y.

Community Funds 

O u r Com mu n it y F u nd s help to supp or t a ra n ge 

of i n it iat ives a nd act iv it ies for com mu n it ies 

l iv i n g nea r t he Wa ita k i hyd ro p ower stat ion s , 

t he Ma nap ōu r i hyd ro p ower stat ion , a nd t he 

West Wi nd , W h ite H i l l ,  Te U k u , Te Āpit i a nd 

recent ly com m i ssioned M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m s . 

A pa nel of com mu n it y representat ives a nd 

Mer id ia n sta f f ma na ge t he f u nd i n g a l lo cat ion s 

to en su re t hat Mer id ia n supp or t s project s t hat 

meet genu i ne com mu n it y need s . 

I n add it ion to t he Com mu n it y F u nd s a nd ou r 

major cor p orate sp on sorsh ips we sp on sor a 

nu mb er of sma l ler event s i n lo ca l com mu n it ies . 

I n t he pa st yea r event s supp or ted i ncluded 

t he M i l ford Mou nta i n C la ssic , W h ite H i l l Wi nd 

Fa r m C la ssic Bi ke R ide a nd Ru n , T w i zel Ha rd 

L ab ou r Weekend , New Zea la nd C ycle C la ssic 

a nd Su sta i nable Coa st l i nes’,  Te U k u r ipa r ia n 

pla nt i n g a nd West Wi nd clea n-up.

P roject s supp or ted by t he Com mu n it y F u nd s 

i ncluded Ku row Mu seu m , Ma ka ra Mo del S chool 

a nd T uatap ere Com mu n it y B at h s S o ciet y I nc .

23 www.meridianenergy.co.nz/about-us/generating-energy/our-generation-projects/mill-creek-wind-project.

COMMUNITY FUND

AMOUNT ALLOCATED 
IN THE YEAR TO  

JUNE 2014

Waitaki fund $386,323

Manapōuri Te Ānau fund $120,005

West Wind fund $75,888

White Hill fund $18,525

Te Uku fund $38,920

Te Āpiti fund $36,541
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A big KidsCan thanks  
to all at Meridian
JULIE CHAPMAN – CEO AND FOUNDER KIDSCAN

O u r pa r t nersh ip w it h Mer id ia n ha s gone 

f rom st ren g t h to st ren g t h i n t he pa st yea r. I n 

pa r t icu la r t he lau nch of t he telev i sion bra nd 

adver t i si n g ha s made a hu ge i mpact i n ra i si n g 

b ot h t he prof i le of ou r a sso ciat ion a nd much-

needed f u nd s t hat have enabled u s to i ncrea se 

t he nu mb er of school s we supp or t t h rou g hout 

New Zea la nd to 4 0 5 ! 

Mer id ia n tea m memb ers have b een t r u ly 

wonder f u l a mba ss adors for K id sC a n , w it h 

ma ny pa r t icipat i n g i n f u nd ra i si n g i n it iat ives 

i nclud i n g t he S a nta Ru n , C h r i st ma s C racker, 

More Day a nd Mu f t i Day. T he 24 -hou r relay 

orga n i sed by t he tea m i n C h r i stchu rch wa s a 

rea l sta ndout ef for t ra i si n g more t ha n $10,0 0 0. 

T h i s yea r, w it h t he help of Mer id ia n a nd ou r 

supp or ters , we a re d i st r ibut i n g more t ha n 

3 0,0 0 0 ra i ncoat s , 2 0,0 0 0 pa i rs of sho es a nd 

4 0,0 0 0 pa i rs of so ck s a nd r i g ht now ou r Foo d 

for K id s prog ra m me prov ides 32 ,0 0 0 mea l s 

a week for ch i ld ren who ex p er ience on goi n g 

foo d i n secu r it y. 

I t hou g ht I wou ld sha re t h i s lovely mess a ge we 

received f rom a school pr i ncipa l , wh ich rea l ly 

shows how somet h i n g a s si mple a s a s a ndw ich 

ca n ma ke a ta n g ible cha n ge i n a ch i ld’s l i fe.

T hese wonder f u l word s f rom S a lv i rea l ly  

st r i ke at t he hea r t of what K id sC a n i s a l l ab out . 

We sta r ted w it h t he b el ief t hat educat ion 

equa l s opp or t u n it y a nd n i ne yea rs later t h i s  

i s st i l l at t he core of ever y t h i n g we do for  

K iw i k id s i n need . 

For t he rema i nder of t h i s yea r a nd i n 2 01 5  

we w i l l cont i nue to deep en ou r pa r t nersh ip 

w it h Mer id ia n – pr i ncipa l pa r t ner of K id sC a n – 

a nd ex tend ou r reach to b enef it new school s . 

Toget her we have a l ready ach ieved so much 

for ch i ld ren less for t u nate t ha n ot hers a nd we 

look for wa rd to ach iev i n g even more. 

Dear KidsCan

Please pass on our thanks to everyone for the contribution they have made to our school this year. The change in the school by having the bread to provide for our lunches has been incredible. We know from our data that all the important statistics have improved since we started providing 300 toasted sandwiches a day. There is much less fighting; it has been  nearly eliminated – attendance has improved by over 5%, and the engagement in the class  is so much better after lunch. After lunch used to be a time of increased truancy and increased removal from class. Staff commented how much more enjoyable an afternoon  class is now that so many are not hungry. 
In our Education Review Office report, they commented on how calm and engaged our school is and they have given us the top ranking of a five-year review, one of the only state low decile schools to get one. Our performance in NCEA has increased and we are now at the national average, which is a considerable improvement. We do have students who live in severe poverty, often they talk about there not being enough food for them because it is essential that their younger brothers and sisters get enough. I think the issue of lack of food is even more prevalent in senior students. Thanks again and we are delighted that your support will continue next year.

SALVI GARGIULO 
PRINCIPAL, MANUREWA HIGH SCHOOL
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Jacqui Cleland, General Manager, 
Human Resources

People 
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More t ha n ever, we’re look i n g to at t ract a 

broader m i x of p eople who ca n br i n g d i f ferent 

ex p er iences , sk i l l s a nd idea s i nto Mer id ia n . 

We wa nt to b e cha mpion s for ou r cu stomers 

a nd t hat ’s why b ei n g representat ive of ou r 

cu stomers i s ju st a s i mp or ta nt to u s a s look i n g 

a f ter ou r icon ic generat ion a sset s .

A s i n prev iou s yea rs , we cont i nue to i nvest 

heav i ly i n developi n g leadersh ip a nd tech n ica l 

capabi l it ies to f ut u re -proof t he bu si ness a nd 

we have a nu mb er of prog ra m mes i n place to 

supp or t t h i s . 

We a l so k now how much cu lt u re i n f luences 

t he p er for ma nce of ou r orga n i s at ion . 

T hat ’s why we’re fo cu sed on en su r i n g t hat 

ou r cu lt u re i s con st r uct ive, col lab orat ive, 

cu stomer fo cu sed a nd com mercia l . 

Under pi n n i n g t h i s i s a set of va lues t hat we 

b el ieve descr ib e t he essence of who we a re 

a nd what we’re ab out . For Mer id ia n to b e 

successf u l , we need to celebrate ou r va lues 

a nd rea l ly l ive t hem . T hey ref lect what ’s 

i mp or ta nt to u s a nd ou r b el ief t hat toget her 

we’re b et ter. I n t he end , it ’s ab out l i sten i n g , 

va lu i n g a nd en ga g i n g w it h each ot her to get 

t he job done. T hat ’s t he Mer id ia n Way.

Engagement 

E ach yea r we su r vey ou r employees to capt u re 

a nd a ssess t hei r level of en ga gement . O ver 

92 % of ou r employees resp onded to t he latest 

su r vey i n May 2 014 . T h i s out sta nd i n g resp on se 

rate mea n s we ca n b e con f ident t hat t he 

resu lt s rel iably ref lect how p eople a re t h i n k i n g 

a nd feel i n g . 

T he employee en ga gement score of 76 . 1% 

wa s dow n sl i g ht ly on 2 01 3 ( 78 . 2 %). Com ment s 

received ref lected t he fact t hat recent 

ex ten sive sta f f i n g a nd op erat iona l cha n ges 

have b een d i f f icu lt for p eople. W h i le it i s 

d i s app oi nt i n g t hat ou r resu lt s have gone 

back wa rd s , t he en ga gement i ndex st i l l 

compa res favou rably w it h t he I BM B est Places 

to Work a nd E nerg y S ector B ench ma rk s , 

a nd ou r st ron g i nvest ment i n lea r n i n g 

a nd development rema i n s a key d r iver for 

en ga gement w it h ou r employees .

Learning and development 

I nvesting in leadership development and 

building employee capability make good 

business sense and we are committed to 

developing our people through development 

prog rammes, coaching and on-the -job learning. 

O u r leadersh ip a nd capabi l it y development 

prog ra m mes a re desi g ned to bu i ld b ot h cr it ica l 

sk i l l s a nd con st r uct ive b ehav iou rs . We k now 

t hat t h i n k i n g a nd b ehav i n g con st r uct ively 

resu lt s i n h i g h- qua l it y relat ion sh ips , i mproved 

deci sion-ma k i n g a nd g reater i nclu sion a nd 

coop erat ion , a l l of wh ich cont r ibute to b et ter 

bu si ness p er for ma nce.

L ea r n i n g a nd development con si stent ly 

rates h i g h ly on ou r en ga gement i ndex a nd 

we a re proud to b e able to of fer a ra n ge of 

development opp or t u n it ies to a l l employees . 

O u r bu si ness ha s d i f ferent need s , a s do ou r 

p eople. We ta ke t he approach t hat no ‘one si ze 

f it s a l l ’  w it h t he opt ion s we of fer a nd it work s .

Diversity and inclusion 

Mer id ia n i s a g reat compa ny a nd to ach ieve 

t he b est resu lt s we k now t hat we need to 

at t ract , develop a nd reta i n a ta lented m i x of 

p eople. We b el ieve t hat d iversit y a nd 

i nclu siv it y i n t he work force i s a st rateg ic a sset 

to t he compa ny. A ba la nce of gender, a ge a nd 

et h n icit y w i l l en ha nce bu si ness p er for ma nce 

a nd create opp or t u n it ies to access a la rger 

ta lent p ool .

O u r D iversit y a nd I nclu sion Pol icy wa s 

develop ed a nd i mplemented i n 2 01 2 , a nd a i m s 

to en su re t hat Mer id ia n ha s:

• a d iverse work force t hat i s more 

representat ive of t he cou nt r ies , com mu n it ies 

a nd cu stomer sta keholder g roups i n wh ich 

we op erate

• a n i nclu sive cu lt u re a nd work env i ron ment 

t hat ident i f ies a nd add resses t he sp eci f ic 

need s of d iversit y g roups .

I n 2 01 3 t he B oa rd approved t wo mea su rable 

d iversit y object ives , a ga i n st wh ich prog ress 

w i l l b e rep or ted on a n a n nua l ba si s:

• to i ncrea se t he nu mb er of women i n sen ior 

leadersh ip roles to 3 0% by 2 016

• to i ncrea se t he overa l l et h n ic d iversit y2 4 

i n cu stomer-faci n g tea m s by 1 5% by 2 016 to 

b et ter ref lect t he New Zea la nd p opu lat ion . 

I n t he pa st 1 2 mont h s prog ress ha s b een made 

a ga i n st each of t hese object ives i n t he Pa rent 

Compa ny. T he nu mb er of women i n sen ior 

leadersh ip roles ha s i ncrea sed by 2 % to 2 7% ,  

up f rom 2 5% i n Ju ne 2 01 3 . E t h n ic d iversit y i n 

ou r cu stomer-faci n g roles ha s i ncrea sed f rom 

10% to 1 5% f rom ou r ba sel i ne data 2 5 (col lected 

i n Novemb er 2 01 3) to t he end of Ju ne 2 014 . 

Our organisation is all about 
people, whether they be customers, 
stakeholders or Meridian employees. 
Internally we’re focused on building  
the capability of our people and 
creating a culture in which they  
can produce the best results. 

“We’re focused on 
ensuring that our 
culture is constructive, 
collaborative,  
customer focused  
and commercial.”
JACQUI CLELAND 

24 Targeting an increase in Asian, Māori and Pasifika ethnicities in order  

to be more reflective of our key current and future customer bases.

25 Baseline data is indicative, having been established from voluntary 

employee census (72% response rate).
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Factors t hat have cont r ibuted to t hese 

i ncrea ses i nclude t he broad prog ra m me of 

d iversit y a nd i nclu sion awa reness- bu i ld i n g 

t hat ha s b een i mplemented , u ncon sciou s bia s 

t ra i n i n g t hat ha s b een del ivered , a nd cha n ges 

t hat have b een made to recr u it ment pract ices . 

W h i le t h i s prog ress i s plea si n g , d iversit y i s so 

much more t ha n ju st gender, et h n icit y a nd  

a ge. I n order to ma ke rea l prog ress , we a re 

ta k i n g a hol i st ic approach , fo cu si n g on 

bu i ld i n g a n i nclu sive cu lt u re a s wel l a s 

cha n g i n g ou r d iversit y prof i le. T hat ’s why 

we’ve put i n place a nu mb er of i n it iat ives to 

supp or t a nd encou ra ge broader a sp ect s of 

d iversit y, i nclud i n g :

• establ i sh i n g a n employee -led d iversit y 

a nd i nclu sion com m it tee, w it h t he C h ief 

E xecut ive a s sp on sor, to cha mpion act iv it ies 

a nd ma ke recom mendat ion s to t he bu si ness

• su r vey i n g ou r employees ab out how 

i nclu sive we a re a nd ident i f y i n g ta rgeted 

act ion s a s a resu lt

• developi n g u ncon sciou s bia s t ra i n i n g a nd 

i nter na l t ra i ners to ma ke t h i s ava i lable to  

a l l employees 

• hav i n g a woma n on recr u it ment app oi nt ment 

pa nel s to prov ide a broader p ersp ect ive a nd 

supp or t a gender- ba la nced deci sion pro cess

• rev iew i n g recr u it ment pract ices to en su re 

t hat la n g ua ge i s i nclu sive a nd broader 

ca nd idate p ool s a nd net work s a re accessed .

We wa nt to b e k now n for promot i n g a nd 

supp or t i n g d iversit y a nd i nclu sion . It ’s t he 

r i g ht t h i n g to do a nd it ’s goo d for ou r bu si ness .

Health, safety and wellness

Constructing two wind farms during the period 

increased our exposure to potential health and 

safety incidents, but with the health and safety 

of our employees and contractors being the 

main priority for the company, we are pleased 

to report that our LTI results continue to be 

below the industry average.

We have a number of initiatives in place to 

ensure that our focus on the health and safety 

of our employees and contractors remains a top 

priority. The Board’s Safety and Sustainability 

Committee commenced in 2012 and has driven 

a number of these initiatives, including the 

Fatal R isk Prog ramme and the development 

of our Safety Framework document, while 

continually reviewing our reported data to 

ensure that we are operating in the safest 

manner possible.

T h i s yea r we were app oi nted to t he cha i r 

p osit ion of a n i ndu st r y- sector s a fet y for u m , 

StayL ive, wh ich to date ha s fo cu sed on d r iv i n g 

con si stency with contractor management and 

working-alone procedures.

A n increased contractor presence at our 

generation and construction sites in the past 

six months has meant that additional safety 

prog rammes have been introduced, such 

as midday coordination meetings, targeted 

contractor inductions for the sites, reviews of 

work practices and ‘ lessons learnt ’ workshops.

E ach site ha s a hea lt h a nd s a fet y com m it tee  

of sta f f volu nteers represent i n g a l l employees .  

The committees meet regularly and are involved 

i n a l l a sp ect s of hea lt h a nd s a fet y prog ra m mes .

53 47
Total Employees 

(excl Board)
53 47

73 27

0% 10080604020

Female 2014Male 2014

9070503010

Senior 
Leadership

75 25

89 11
Executive

89 11

67 33

OVERALL GENDER BREAKDOWN

Board
67 33

Female 2013Male 2013

 Meridian Energy Limited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014

32



Poppy Ferguson 
APPRENTICE AT MANAPŌURI  
HYDRO POWER STATION

With a maturing workforce in New Zealand, 
we actively recruit for the new generation 
of technical experts. Poppy Ferguson was 
recently recruited as an apprentice and is 
currently working at Manapōuri. 

I have always really enjoyed being hands- on 

in a lot of different areas , constantly mak ing , 

building and fixing things since I was quite 

young. I ’ve never been one to sit still and do 

nothing for very long.

W hen I left high school I studied art for two 

years; I then realised that eng ineering was 

an area that I was good at and would enjoy. 

So I went to Weltec to do a certificate in 

mechanical eng ineering. Towards the end 

of my study, my machining tutor told me 

about Meridian’s Apprentice Prog ramme 

and so I went for it .

A lmost every day is something new, 

especially for me being so new to this 

industry. I ’m constantly learning new things 

and better ways and processes to develop 

the skills I already have. The hardest part for 

me is not fully understanding how things 

work or what something is but that ’s why  

I am here, to learn!

Everyone here has been very supportive 

and really helpful. A ny questions I have 

are always answered and no one ever 

hesitates to g ive me their advice and pass 

on their knowledge. I have definitely been 

welcomed here, at work and outside of work, 

which has made the move here a lot easier, 

as it was quite daunting to beg in with! 

At this point I ’m not entirely sure what  

the future holds for me and what area  

I would like to be in. I ’m still f ig uring out 

my streng ths and weaknesses, l ikes and 

dislikes. I ’m not too worried about deciding 

what direction I ’ l l head in, I ’m just going to 

approach everything with an open mind 

and see where it takes me. 

A s far as being a woman in a male -

dominated industry, I have no problem 

with it . I don’t view myself any differently 

and certainly don’t want to be treated any 

differently. Some things may be harder 

for me, especially where streng th or size 

is concerned, but that ’s nothing a bit of 

determination and creativity can’t solve.

Hannah Jordan
TEAM MANAGER IN THE CUSTOMER 
MANAGEMENT TEAM 

The Energy Centre is a fantastic 
incubator for talent at Meridian. 
Hannah Jordan is an excellent example 
of how we support and develop our 
rising stars in Customer Management.

I joi ned Mer id ia n i n May 201 1 a nd 
sta r ted a s a n E nerg y Adv i sor i n t he 
E nerg y Cent re. I n my f i rst si x mont h s 
I wa s prov ided w it h g reat t ra i n i n g 
a nd supp or t f rom my t ra i ner a nd my 
Tea m L eader. A f ter demon st rat i n g 
my leadersh ip sk i l l s for a project , 
I wa s g iven t he opp or t u n it y to b e 
seconded a s Tea m L eader. I n t he pa st 
t wo yea rs I have g row n a s a leader a s 
a resu lt of some of ou r g reat lea r n i n g 
a nd development prog ra m mes a nd 
ot her qua l i f icat ion s I have ga i ned . 

I l i ke t hat Mer id ia n fosters a n 
env i ron ment where new idea s a re 
welcomed . I a m a lways look i n g for 
a b et ter way to do t h i n gs , i n my ow n 
tea m a nd out side of it .  One of t he 
i n it iat ives t hat I a m most proud of i s a 
work f rom home t r ia l w it h fou r of my 
tea m memb ers – ta k i n g a completely 
d i f ferent approach to how we ser v ice 
ou r cu stomers wh i le prov id i n g 
f lex ible work i n g a r ra n gement s for 
tea m memb ers . T he feedback f rom 
i nter na l sta keholders , cu stomers a nd 
my p eople i s rea l ly p osit ive. I hop e 
t hat w it h t he cont i nued supp or t f rom 
Mer id ia n we ca n cont i nue to prov ide 
more f lex ible a nd d iverse work i n g 
a r ra n gement s . 

A f ter t h ree yea rs I have b een made 
a p er ma nent Tea m L eader i n t he 
E nerg y Cent re. It i s a n excit i n g t i me 
for t he Cu stomer Ma na gement tea m 
a nd t here i s a fa i r a mou nt of cha n ge 
com i n g for t he b et ter. I look for wa rd 
to work i n g w it h some g reat p eople, 
i mprov i n g ou r cu stomer ex p er ience 
a nd helpi n g Mer id ia n to b e t he b est 
place to work .
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Summary  
of Group 
performance
Paul Chambers, Chief Financial Officer

“The most pleasing element of the result has probably  
been net cash flow from operating activities, 27.8% ahead 
of the prospective financial information for the year.”
PAUL CHAMBERS
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We feel a resp on sibi l it y to del iver t he resu lt s 

t hat ou r i nvestors ex p ect . Most of ou r 

sha reholders a re New Zea la nders , i nvest i n g 

eit her d i rect ly or t h rou g h K iw i S aver a nd 

sup era n nuat ion f u nd s , or t h rou g h Mer id ia n’s 

51% C row n ow nersh ip. T h i s ma kes it ea sy for 

u s to see t he l i n k b et ween Mer id ia n’s 

p er for ma nce a nd t he f ut u re of ord i na r y K iw i s .

S o it i s fa nta st ic to f i n i sh t he 2 014 yea r w it h 

f i na ncia l resu lt s t hat exceed t he prosp ect ive 

f i na ncia l i n for mat ion ( PF I ) i n Mer id ia n’s 

prosp ect u s on a l l key met r ics . T he Mer id ia n 

tea m have show n g reat f i na ncia l d i scipl i ne  

i n del iver i n g t hese resu lt s wh i le execut i n g  

on g row t h project s , i mprov i n g op erat iona l 

ef f iciency a nd copi n g w it h si g n i f ica nt  

ex ter na l event s . 

T he most plea si n g element of t he resu lt ha s 

probably been the net cash f low from operating 

act iv it ies , 2 7. 8% a head of PF I for t he yea r. T h i s 

ca sh f low, a lon g w it h t he s a le of su r plu s a sset s , 

leaves Mer id ia n w it h a st ron g net debt p osit ion 

a nd helps to suppor t t he second PF I yea r.  

I n t he elect r icit y i ndust r y you ca n ex pect t he 

u nex pected , so sta r t i n g f rom t h is poi nt helps to 

suppor t Mer id ia n’s desi re to prov ide lon g-ter m 

susta i nable ret u r ns to ou r sha reholders .

Cash flows

O p erat i n g ca sh f lows for F Y2 014 were  

$16 . 1 m i l l ion (3 .9%) h i g her t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 , 

ref lect i n g lower op erat i n g cost s a nd f i na nci n g 

cost s compa red w it h F Y2 01 3 . I ncome ta x pa id 

i ncrea sed by $ 4 1 . 5 m i l l ion ( 72 .7%) ref lect i n g 

t he level of pre -ta x ea r n i n g s i n F Y2 01 3 

compa red w it h t he yea r b efore.

I nvest ment ex p end it u re wa s $ 39. 1 m i l l ion 

( 14 . 1%) h i g her t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 , ref lect i n g 

i nvest ment i n t he M i l l C reek a nd Mt Mercer 

w i nd fa r m s . F Y2 014 i nvest ment ex p end it u re 

wa s $ 86 . 2 m i l l ion ( 2 1 .4%) lower t ha n PF I , 

la rgely due to t he t i m i n g of ca sh pay ment s  

on t he t wo w i nd fa r m project s a nd t he p osit ive 

excha n ge rate i mpact s on Mt Mercer.
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MERIDIAN GROUP SUMMARY CASH FLOW

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

($ MILLIONS) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 432.8 416.7 322.2 368.7 451.8

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (253.4) (124.1) (524.8) 557.7 (458.4)

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (282.2) (101.3) 48.8 (612.0) 13.1

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (102.8) 191.3 (153.8) 314.4 6.5

Results for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 include the Tekapo A and B power stations, which were sold to Genesis Energy in June 2011.

Achieving the forecasts set out in the 
partial listing offer document is very 
important to the team at Meridian. 
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Dividend

Mer id ia n’s sol id ca sh f low p er for ma nce 

u nder pi n ned t he h i g her-t ha n-PF I foreca st 

d iv idend for F Y2 014 . Mer id ia n decla red a f i na l 

ord i na r y d iv idend for F Y2 014 of 6 . 82cps , 

br i n g i n g t he F Y2 014 f u l l yea r ord i na r y 

d iv idend to 1 1 .01cps . T h is represented  

7 5% of f ree ca sh f low. T he pro ceed s of a sset 

s a les a nd a n a lu m i n iu m hed ge close - out 

supp or ted a n add it iona l sp ecia l d iv idend  

of 2 .0 0 cps .

Wit h t h i s sp ecia l d iv idend , t he f u l l-yea r tota l 

d iv idend decla red wa s 1 3 .01cps , 24 . 3% ab ove 

PF I foreca st . I n add it ion , t h i s f u l l-yea r tota l 

d iv idend wa s i mputed to 9 0% of t he cor p orate 

ta x rate, ab ove t he 72 % est i mated i n t he PF I .

T h i s represent s a n 1 1 .7% g ross y ield on 

Mer id ia n’s $1 . 5 0 I PO sha re pr ice, compa red  

w it h 8 .9% i n t he PF I .
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SUMMARY GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

($ MILLIONS) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

 New Zealand Energy Margin 891.5 865.1 740.4 929.0 940.0

International Energy Margin 31.9 50.7 22.8 21.3 1.7

Other Revenue 27.3 29.7 27.3 31.9 29.5

Energy Transmission Costs (129.3) (115.3) (86.7) (84.2) (78.9)

Employee and Other Operating Costs (236.1) (245.4) (227.2) (238.1) (250.6)

EBITDAF 585.3 584.8 476.6 659.9 641.7

Impairment of Assets - (24.8) (60.1) (10.9) (18.4)

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 6.6 106.6 (1.5) 174.1 0.3

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.4) 0.1 (2.7) (3.4) (2.0)

Depreciation and Amortisation of Intangible Assets (220.0) (219.7) (225.1) (224.3) (188.0)

Foreign Exchange Contracts Reclassified to Profit and Loss - - - - (33.1)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Operational) (8.4) 51.1 121.3 (89.3) (14.9)

Net Finance Costs (73.7) (113.5) (82.5) (107.6) (85.1)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Financing) 27.0 42.7 (68.0) (14.2) (23.3)

Net Profit before Tax 316.4 427.3 158.0 384.3 277.2

Income Tax Expense (86.6) (132.2) (83.4) (81.2) (93.2)

Net Profit after Tax 229.8 295.1 74.6 303.1 184.0

UNDERLYING NPAT RECONCILIATION

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

($ MILLIONS) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net Profit after Tax 229.8 295.1 74.6 303.1 184.0

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Operational) 8.4 (51.1) (121.3) 89.3 14.7

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Financing) (27.0) (42.7) 68.0 14.2 23.6

Premiums Paid on Electricity Options (less Interest) (20.1) (18.5) (15.2) (13.8) -

Foreign Exchange Contracts Reclassified to Profit and Loss - - - - 33.1

Impairment of Assets - 24.8 60.1 11.0 18.3

Gain on Sale of Assets (6.6) (106.6) 1.1 (174.2) (0.3)

Adjustments before Tax (45.3) (194.1) (7.3) (73.5) 89.4

Income Tax Expense 10.1 61.7 38.8 (10.6) (21.5)

Underlying Net Profit after Tax 194.6 162.7 106.1 219.0 251.9

Results for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 include the Tekapo A and B power stations, which were sold to Genesis Energy in June 2011.
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NPAT

Mer id ia n del ivered N PAT of $2 2 9. 8 m i l l ion  

i n F Y2 014 . T h i s wa s $6 5 . 3 m i l l ion ( 2 2 . 1%)  

lower t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 a nd la rgely ref lected  

t he $101 .4 m i l l ion pre -ta x ga i n on t he s a le  

of t he Maca r t hu r w i nd fa r m a nd h i g her fa i r 

value movements in FY2013. These fair value 

move me nt s re l ate to non - c a sh c h a n ge s  

i n t he c a r r y i n g va lue of de r ivat ive 

i n s t r u me nt s .  T he s e c a r r y i n g va lue s a re 

i n f lue nce d by c h a n ge s i n for wa rd pr ice s  

a nd rates on t hese der ivat ive i n st r u ment s .

N PAT i n F Y2 014 wa s $ 4 1 .9 m i l l ion ( 2 2 . 3%) 

higher than PF I . This ref lected the combination 

of h i g her E BI T DA F, ga i n s on t he s a le of a sset s , 

lower net f i na nci n g cost s a nd h i g her ta xat ion 

t ha n PF I .

A f ter remov i n g t he i mpact s of fa i r va lue 

movement s a nd ot her one - of f or i n f requent ly 

o ccu r r i n g event s , Mer id ia n’s Underly i n g N PAT 

( reconci l iat ion on pa ge 3 6) wa s $19 4 .6 m i l l ion . 

T h i s wa s $ 31 .9 m i l l ion ( 19.6%) h i g her t ha n  

i n F Y2 01 3 ; la rgely ref lect i n g lower net 

f i na nci n g cost s .

F Y2 014 Underly i n g N PAT wa s $ 3 3 . 1 m i l l ion 

( 2 0. 5%) h i g her t ha n PF I , due ma i n ly to t he 

combi nat ion of h i g her E BI T DA F, lower net 

f i na nci n g cost s a nd h i g her ta xat ion .

EBITDAF

E BI T DA F i n F Y2 014 wa s $ 5 8 5 . 3 m i l l ion ,  

$0. 5 m i l l ion (0. 1%) h i g her t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 . 

I ncluded i n F Y2 01 3 E BI T DA F were  

non-rep eat i n g ea r n i n g s f rom :

• h i g her N Z A S revenue f rom a new a g reement 

com menci n g 1 Ja nua r y 2 01 3 , subsequent ly 

a mended ef fect ive 1 Ju ly 2 01 3

• ea r n i n g s f rom t he Maca r t hu r w i nd fa r m i n 

Victor ia , sold on 2 8 Ju ne 2 01 3 .

T he compa ny a l so i ncu r red cost s a sso ciated 

w it h it s pa r t ia l l i st i n g , $ 8 . 3 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 

compa red w it h $2 .9 m i l l ion i n F Y2 01 3 .

Adju st i n g for t hese item s , ‘ l i ke for l i ke’ 

E BI T DA F i ncrea sed 14 .4% i n F Y2 014 , despite a 

1 2 . 1% i ncrea se i n t ra n sm i ssion cost s . T h i s wa s 

due to lower operating costs, generation revenue 

f rom t he new Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m i n Victor ia , 

h i g her generat ion volu mes i n New Zea la nd  

a nd less acqu i red generat ion volu mes .

E BI T DA F i n F Y2 014 wa s $ 3 6 .9 m i l l ion  

(6 .7%) h i g her t ha n PF I , ref lect i n g a h i g her 

New Zea la nd energ y ma rg i n , lower 

t ra n sm i ssion cost s a nd lower employee a nd 

ot her op erat i n g cost s . T he non-rep eat i n g 

F Y2 01 3 ea r n i n g s out l i ned ab ove were not 

i ncluded i n PF I , ma k i n g PF I more con si stent 

w it h F Y2 014 act ua l resu lt s .

E mployee a nd ot her op erat i n g cost s were 

$2 3 6 . 1 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 , $9. 3 m i l l ion (3 . 8%) 

lower t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 a nd $18 .0 m i l l ion ( 7. 1%) 

lower t ha n PF I . Adju st i n g for one - of f I PO cost s , 

cost s were 6 . 1% lower i n F Y2 014 t ha n i n 

F Y2 01 3 . T he s av i n g s were d r iven f rom t he 

compa ny ’s focus on core business and 

operating efficiency.

Mer id ia n do es ex p ect some upwa rd pressu re 

on cost s f rom new g row t h project s i n t he 

f ut u re, ma i ntena nce cost s for new w i nd fa r m s 

nea r i n g complet ion a nd resou rci n g for a n 

ex pa nd i n g Powershop Au st ra l ia bu si ness .

Transmission costs in F Y2014 were $129. 3 

million, $14 .0 million (12 .1%) higher than in 

F Y201 3 . Transpower’s investment in upg rading 

the H V DC link between the North and South 

Islands has seen these costs increase 

sig nificantly in recent years. These increases 

were forecast in the PF I, with transmission 

costs in F Y2014 $6. 3 million (4 .6%) lower  

than PF I . This difference is the result of the 

accounting treatment of some Australian 

connection assets.
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occurring events, impairments and changes in fair value 

of financial instruments.

Results for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 include the Tekapo A and B power stations, which were sold to Genesis Energy in June 2011.
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New Zealand energy margin

T he New Zea la nd energ y ma rg i n con si st s of:

• revenue received f rom s a les to cu stomers 

net of d i st r ibut ion cost s ( fees to d i st r ibut ion 

net work compa n ies t hat cover t he cost s of 

d i st r ibut ion of elect r icit y to cu stomers), s a les 

to la rge i ndu st r ia l cu stomers a nd f i xed pr ice 

revenue f rom der ivat ives sold (cont racted 

s a les revenue: $9 01 .0 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 )

• revenue f rom t he volu me of elect r icit y 

t hat Mer id ia n generates t hat i s i n excess of 

t he volu me requ i red to cover cont racted 

cu stomer s a les (sp ot ex p osed revenues:  

$1 3 .6 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 )

• t he cost of der ivat ives acqu i red to 

supplement generat ion a nd sp ot pr ice r i sk s , 

net of sp ot revenue received for generat ion 

acqu i red f rom t hose der ivat ives ( net cost of 

acqu i red generat ion : cost s of $ 3 5 .4 m i l l ion  

i n F Y2 014 )

• t he net revenue p osit ion of v i r t ua l a sset 

swaps ( VA S) w it h G enesi s E nerg y a nd M i g ht y 

R iver Power ($16 .6 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 )

• ot her a sso ciated ma rket revenue a nd cost s 

i nclud i n g E A lev ies a nd a nci l la r y generat ion 

revenue (such a s f requency keepi n g : cost s of 

$ 4 . 3 m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 ).

T he New Zea la nd energ y ma rg i n i n F Y2 014 

wa s $ 891 . 5 m i l l ion , $2 6 .4 m i l l ion (3 . 1%) h i g her  

t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 :

• Cont racted s a les revenue wa s $6 8 . 8 m i l l ion 

( 7. 1%) lower t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 . A b et ter m i x 

a nd h i g her volu mes were of fset by pr ice 

reduct ion s i n reta i l cont racted s a les .  

L ower wholes a le s a les ref lected t he a mended 

N Z A S cont ract a nd lower der ivat ive s a les .

• Sp ot ex p osed revenue wa s $ 82 . 2 m i l l ion 

h i g her t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 . L ower wholes a le 

pr ices reduced sp ot revenue a nd  

cost s to supply cu stomers; however,  

h i g her generat ion volu mes i mproved  

overa l l revenue.

• Net cost of acqu i red generat ion wa s  

$1 2 .9 m i l l ion ( 2 6 .7%) lower t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 

f rom lower acqu i red generat ion volu mes  

a nd lower wholes a le sp ot pr ices .

New Zea la nd generat ion i n F Y2 014 wa s 8 .9% 

h i g her t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 , ref lect i n g h i g her w i nd 

generat ion t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 a nd t he h i g hest 

Ju ne yea r hyd ro i n f lows si nce 1998 . T h i s 

i ncluded a ver y d r y su m mer a nd aut u m n 

p er io d , wh ich made ma rket cond it ion s 

cha l len g i n g a s it coi ncided w it h t he Tekap o 

ca na l outa ge, lower S out h I sla nd t ra n sm i ssion 

work a nd p er io d s of H V D C outa ges .

H i g her generat ion i n F Y2 014 reduced t he level 

of acqu i red generat ion Mer id ia n needed , a nd 

reduced t he pr ice t he compa ny received for  

it s generat ion by $ 4 . 81 p er megawat t hou r 

( M W h ) ( 7.4%) compa red w it h F Y2 01 3 . It a l so 

reduced t he pr ice t hat Mer id ia n pa id to supply 

it s cont racted s a les , dow n $6 . 10/ M W h (8 .6%) 

compa red w it h F Y2 01 3 .

I n Au st ra l ia , w i nd generat ion i n F Y2 014 wa s 

2 8 5GW h , 32 . 1% lower t ha n la st yea r. F Y2 01 3 

i ncluded f ive mont h s of generat ion f rom t he 

Maca r t hu r w i nd fa r m t hat Mer id ia n sold i n 

Ju ne 2 01 3 . F Y2 014 s aw h i g her generat ion  

f rom Mt M i l la r ( 1 1 . 5%) a nd 10 0 GW h f rom t he  

Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m si nce f i rst p ower i n late 

Novemb er 2 01 3 .

F Y2 014 a l so s aw Mer id ia n lau nch it s 

Powershop bra nd i n Au st ra l ia . By Ju ne 2 014 

t he compa ny had establ i shed a sol id 

b each head i n one of t he most comp et it ive 

elect r icit y ma rket s i n t he world . More t ha n 

1 3 ,4 0 0 Victor ia n s now enjoy Powershop’s 

u n ique energ y reta i l i n g ex p er ience.

D espite h i g h ma rket sw itch i n g rates a nd 

a g g regate elect r icit y dema nd rema i n i n g 

relat ively f lat i n New Zea la nd , Mer id ia n g rew 

cu stomer con nect ion s a nd tota l reta i l s a les 

volu mes i n F Y2 014 .
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Results for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 include the Tekapo A and B power stations, which were sold to Genesis Energy in June 2011.
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T he New Zea la nd energ y ma rg i n i n F Y2 014 

wa s $10.9 m i l l ion (+1 . 2 %) h i g her t ha n PF I :

• Cont racted s a les revenue wa s $ 4 4 . 8 

m i l l ion (5 . 2 %) h i g her t ha n PF I . Cor p orate 

a nd i ndu st r ia l pr ici n g held up b et ter t ha n 

ex p ected a nd overa l l volu mes were h i g her.

• Sp ot ex p osed revenue wa s $ 3 3 . 1 m i l l ion 

( 70.9%) lower t ha n PF I . H i g her cont racted 

s a les mea nt less generat ion to sel l on t he 

wholes a le sp ot ma rket .

• Net cost of acqu i red generat ion wa s $1 3 . 2 

m i l l ion (59.9%) h i g her t ha n PF I due to h i g her 

volu mes needed t h rou g h t he Ja nua r y 2 014  

to Apr i l 2 014 d r y sp el l .

B elow E BI T DA F, t he net cha n ge i n fa i r va lue  

of f i na ncia l i n st r u ment s s aw a ga i n of $18 .6 

m i l l ion i n F Y2 014 , compa red w it h a ga i n of 

$93 . 8 m i l l ion i n F Y2 01 3 .

D epreciat ion a nd a mor t i s at ion cost s were 

u ncha n ged f rom F Y2 01 3 ; however, F Y2 01 3 

i ncluded $24 . 8 m i l l ion of i mpa i r ment s relat i n g 

to the suspended North Bank Tunnel project and 

the Meridian Energ y USA business prior to sale.

Net f i na nci n g cost s were $ 39. 8 m i l l ion (3 5 . 1%) 

lower t ha n i n F Y2 01 3 , ref lect i n g a f u r t her $ 87.7 

m i l l ion ( 7.4%) reduct ion i n tota l b or row i n g s 

du r i n g F Y2 014 . Mer id ia n ha s ma i nta i ned it s 

BBB+ (stable out look ) cred it rat i n g f rom 

Sta nda rd & Poor ’s .
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NEW ZEALAND RETAIL CONTRACTED ELECTRICITY SALES

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

(GWH) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Powershop Residential and Small to Medium Enterprises 546 506 444 267 83

Meridian Retail Residential and Small to Medium Enterprises 2,864 2,923 2,897 2,925 2,899

Meridian Retail Corporate and Industrial Customers 2,344 2,232 2,360 2,448 2,577

Total Retail Contracted Electricity Sales 5,754 5,661 5,701 5,640 5,559

Results for the financial years ended 30 June 2010 and 2011 include the Tekapo A and B power stations, which were sold to Genesis Energy in June 2011.
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Directors’ 
statement

The directors are pleased to present 
shareholders the Annual Report 
including the financial statements  
of the Meridian Group for the year  
ended 30 June 2014.

T h i s rep or t i ncludes a l l i n for mat ion requ i red 

to b e d i sclosed u nder t he Compa n ies Act 1993 , 

N Z X a nd A SX .

T he d i rectors a re resp on sible for en su r i n g t hat 

t he f i na ncia l statement s g ive a t r ue a nd fa i r 

v iew of t he f i na ncia l p osit ion of t he compa ny 

a nd t he Group a s at 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 a nd t hei r 

f i na ncia l p er for ma nce a nd ca sh f lows for t he 

yea r ended on t hat date.

T he d i rectors con sider t hat t he f i na ncia l 

statement s of t he compa ny a nd t he Group 

have b een prepa red u si n g appropr iate 

accou nt i n g p ol icies , con si stent ly appl ied  

a nd supp or ted by rea sonable jud gement s  

a nd est i mates a nd t hat a l l releva nt f i na ncia l 

rep or t i n g a nd accou nt i n g sta nda rd s have  

b een fol lowed . T he d i rectors b el ieve t hat 

prop er accou nt i n g record s have b een kept  

t hat enable, w it h rea sonable accu racy, t he 

deter m i nat ion of t he f i na ncia l p osit ion s  

of t he compa ny a nd t he Group a nd faci l itate 

compl ia nce of t he f i na ncia l statement s w it h 

t he F i na ncia l Rep or t i n g Act 1993 .

T he d i rectors con sider t hey have ta ken 

adequate steps to s a feg ua rd t he a sset s of t he 

compa ny a nd t he Group to prevent a nd detect 

f raud a nd ot her i r reg u la r it ies .

Chris Moller 
C ha i r 

Peter Wilson 
D eput y C ha i r
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Governance 

Meridian’s approach to governance

Mer id ia n’s B oa rd a nd ma na gement a re 

com m it ted to lead i n g t he compa ny t h rou g h 

cor p orate gover na nce b est pract ice. T he B oa rd 

a nd ma na gement reg u la rly rev iew Mer id ia n’s 

gover na nce pract ices a ga i n st b est pract ice to 

create a nd del iver sha reholder va lue wh i le 

ad her i n g to t he h i g hest sta nda rd s of et h ica l 

pract ice, accou ntabi l it y a nd t ra n spa rency.

Mer id ia n ha s adopted cor p orate p ol icies  

a nd pro cedu res t hat ref lect b est pract ice, 

i ncor p orat i n g pr i nciples a nd g u idel i nes  

i ssued by t he F i na ncia l Ma rket s Aut hor it y  

a nd recom mendat ion s by t he N Z X a nd  

A SX . Mer id ia n con siders t hat , si nce it s  

l i st i n g , Mer id ia n ha s compl ied w it h a l l t he 

recom mendat ion s w it h i n t he N Z X Cor p orate 

G over na nce B est P ract ice Co de a nd A SX 

Cor p orate G over na nce P r i nciples a nd 

Recom mendat ion s w it h 2 010 A mend ment s 

( 2 nd Ed it ion ). T he B oa rd a nd Com m it tee 

cha r ters a nd ot her key gover na nce  

do cu ment s a re ava i lable on Mer id ia n’s website  

w w w. mer id ia nenerg y.co. n z /i nvestors/

gover na nce.

1 . Promoting ethical and  
responsible behaviour

For Mer id ia n , et h ica l a nd resp on sible 

b ehav iou r i s cr ucia l g iven it s a i m of lead i n g 

t he i ndu st r y i n creat i n g a b et ter energ y f ut u re. 

A ny p osit ion of leadersh ip ca n not b e at ta i ned , 

a nd more i mp or ta nt ly reta i ned , w it hout 

i nteg r it y. T he fol low i n g mea su res have  

b een put i n place to a ssi st w it h ach iev i n g  

t h i s ex p ectat ion :

The Meridian Way (values)

O ne Mer id ia n

S a fet y i s for keeps

Work i n g l i ke we ow n t he compa ny

C u stomer cha mpion s

B e su sta i nable

Code of Conduct

I nteg r it y i s at t he core of Mer id ia n’s Co de of 

Conduct . T he Co de of Conduct i s desi g ned to 

faci l itate b ehav iou r a nd deci sion-ma k i n g t hat 

meet t he compa ny ’s bu si ness goa l s a nd a re 

con si stent w it h t he compa ny ’s va lues ,  

p ol icies a nd lega l obl i gat ion s . T ra i n i n g a nd 

i n for mat ion on t he Co de of Conduct a re 

prov ided to a l l employees on i nduct ion . 

Diversity and Inclusion Policy

Mer id ia n recog n i ses t hat bu i ld i n g a d iverse 

a nd i nclu sive work place cu lt u re w i l l resu lt i n 

en ha nced relat ion sh ips w it h sta keholders , 

b et ter cu stomer ser v ice, i mproved f i na ncia l 

p er for ma nce a nd a st ron ger cor p orate 

reputat ion . Mer id ia n’s prog ress rega rd i n g 

d iversit y a nd i nclu sion du r i n g t he accou nt i n g 

p er io d i s set out on pa ges 31 a nd 1 2 8 .

Mer id ia n i s ded icated to creat i n g a n  

i nclu sive env i ron ment where a l l of it s 

employees a re encou ra ged to reach t hei r  

f u l l p otent ia l a nd i nd iv idua l d i f ferences  

a re va lued a nd resp ected .

The Securities Trading Policy

T he S ecu r it ies T rad i n g Pol icy ha s b een 

desi g ned to a ssi st sta f f a nd related pa r t ies  

to rema i n w it h i n t he law when t rad i n g i n 

secu r it ies . T he S ecu r it ies T rad i n g Pol icy 

prov ides for ‘ blackout p er io d s’ du r i n g wh ich 

sp eci f ied p erson s ( i nclud i n g d i rectors a nd 

sen ior ma na gement ) a re proh ibited f rom 

t rad i n g i n Mer id ia n secu r it ies .

Market Disclosure Policy 

Mer id ia n i s com m it ted to promot i n g i nvestor 

con f idence by prov id i n g t i mely a nd ba la nced 

d i sclosu re of a l l mater ia l mat ters relat i n g to 

t he compa ny. Mer id ia n b el ieves t hat h i g h 

sta nda rd s of rep or t i n g a nd d i sclosu re a re 

essent ia l for prop er accou ntabi l it y b et ween 

Mer id ia n a nd it s i nvestors , employees a nd 

sta keholders .

T he Ma rket D i sclosu re Pol icy establ i shes 

pro cedu res desi g ned to en su re t hat d i rectors , 

ma na gement a nd employees a re awa re of a nd 

f u l f i l Mer id ia n’s d i sclosu re obl i gat ion s u nder 

t he N Z X Ma i n B oa rd a nd A SX L i st i n g Ru les .
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Whistle-blowing ‘Speaking Up’ policy

Mer id ia n encou ra ges it s sta f f to feel con f ident 

ab out ra i si n g concer n s rega rd i n g act ua l , 

su sp ected or a nt icipated w ron gdoi n g s w it h i n 

t he orga n i s at ion , by of fer i n g a rep or t i n g a nd 

i nvest i gat ion mecha n i sm t hat protect s a nyone 

who ma kes a d i sclosu re f rom repr i s a l or 

d i s adva nta ge.

Mer id ia n ex p ect s it s B oa rd , ma na gement  

a nd employees to act i n accorda nce w it h t he 

company’s values, policies and legal obligations.

2 . Governance framework

Mer id ia n’s gover na nce f ra mework i s desi g ned 

to en su re t he h i g hest sta nda rd s of bu si ness 

b ehav iou r a nd accou ntabi l it y. T he B oa rd 

mon itors i nter nat iona l b est pract ice 

development s i n t he gover na nce a rea a nd 

reg u la rly rev iews Mer id ia n’s gover na nce 

pract ices a ga i n st t hese development s . 

T he B oa rd i s elected by t he sha reholders a nd 

con siders it s pr i ma r y role i s to represent a nd 

promote t he i nterest s of sha reholders 

ef fect ively w it h a v iew to add i n g lon g-ter m 

va lue to t he compa ny ’s sha res . T he B oa rd  

ha s adopted a w r it ten cha r ter, wh ich i s t he 

pr i ncipa l sp eci f icat ion of t he gover na nce 

f ra mework a nd set s out t he gover na nce 

requ i rement s for t he B oa rd .

T he B oa rd may, f rom t i me to t i me, establ i sh 

appropr iate Com m it tees of d i rectors to a ssi st 

t he B oa rd by fo cu si n g on sp eci f ic 

resp on sibi l it ies i n g reater deta i l t ha n i s 

p ossible when t he B oa rd meet s . T hese 

Com m it tees rep or t to t he B oa rd , ma k i n g a ny 

necess a r y recom mendat ion s . T he sta nd i n g 

Com m it tees (out l i ned b elow) op erate u nder 

t hei r ow n w r it ten cha r ters .

T he C h ief E xecut ive i s cha rged w it h t he 

day-to - day r u n n i n g of t he bu si ness . T he B oa rd 

ma i nta i n s a for ma l set of delegated aut hor it ies 

t hat clea rly def i ne t he resp on sibi l it ies t hat a re 

delegated to ma na gement a nd t hose reta i ned 

by t he B oa rd . T he B oa rd a l so ma i nta i n s a 

for ma l set of p ol icies i nclud i n g t rea su r y, 

i nter na l cont rol s , r i sk , hu ma n resou rces , 

su sta i nabi l it y a nd hea lt h a nd s a fet y to en su re 

t hat Mer id ia n’s d i rectors , sen ior ma na gement 

a nd employees a re f u l f i l l i n g t hei r f u nct ion s 

ef fect ively a nd resp on sibly. T hese p ol icies a re 

subject to a B oa rd rev iew a nd approva l cycle.

Meridian Energy Limited governance structure

Chief Executive

Management

Shareholders
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APPOINTMENT
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ASSURANCE

EXTERNAL  
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& Risk  
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Sustainability  
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The Meridian Board

1 . Role and responsibility

T he B oa rd’s role i s to prov ide st rateg ic 

g u ida nce a nd have ef fect ive oversi g ht of 

ma na gement i n order to protect a nd en ha nce 

t he va lue of Mer id ia n’s a sset s i n ca r r y i n g out 

it s role. T he B oa rd ha s a resp on sibi l it y to work 

i n t he i nterest s of sha reholders a nd i s t he 

overa l l a nd f i na l b o dy for deci sion-ma k i n g 

w it h i n Mer id ia n .

2 . Board size and composition

T he B oa rd en su res t hat it i s of a n ef fect ive 

comp osit ion a nd si ze, a nd ha s a com m it ment  

to d i scha rge it s resp on sibi l it ies a nd dut ies 

adequately, a s out l i ned i n t he B oa rd C ha r ter.

T he B oa rd ha s con f i r med t hat a n appropr iate 

pro cess ha s b een fol lowed i n deter m i n i n g t he 

ma keup of t he B oa rd . T h i s ha s i ncluded a n 

assessment of t he per for ma nce of t he 

compa ny a nd d i rectors , t he sk i l l s a nd 

ex p er ience needed a rou nd t he B oa rd table, 

a nd d iversit y con siderat ion s . D i rectors’ 

biog raph ies ca n b e fou nd on pa ge 9 of  

t h i s rep or t .

3. Nomination and appointment of Directors

T he nom i nat ion a nd app oi nt ment of d i rectors 

a re gover ned by Mer id ia n’s Con st it ut ion , 

B oa rd C ha r ter a nd N Z X a nd A SX L i st i n g Ru les . 

D i rectors a re subject to re -app oi nt ment  

ever y t h ree yea rs or on a more f requent ba si s 

i n order for t he compa ny to comply w it h t he 

N Z X a nd A SX L i st i n g Ru les . P r ior to each 

a n nua l genera l meet i n g , t he B oa rd deter m i nes 

i f it w i l l recom mend to sha reholders t hat t hey 

vote i n favou r of t he re - elect ion of t hose 

d i rectors due to sta nd for re - elect ion , hav i n g 

rega rd to t hose d i rectors’ a n nua l p er for ma nce 

rev iews a nd a ny ot her mat ters t he B oa rd 

con siders releva nt .

I f t he B oa rd app oi nt s a new d i rector du r i n g  

t he yea r, t hat p erson w i l l sta nd for elect ion  

by sha reholders at t he nex t a n nua l 

sha reholder meet i n g . 

Sha reholders a re prov ided w it h releva nt 

i n for mat ion on t he ca nd idates sta nd i n g for 

elect ion i n t he Not ice of A n nua l Meet i n g .

4 . Director independence

T he B oa rd en su res t hat t he major it y of it s 

d i rectors a re i ndep endent . T he B oa rd a ssesses 

d i rector i ndep endence a n nua l ly a ga i n st t he 

requ i rement s of t he New Zea la nd a nd 

Au st ra l ia n sto ck excha n ges . E ach d i rector i s 

requ i red to prov ide t he B oa rd w it h a l l releva nt 

i n for mat ion to enable it to ma ke t h i s 

a ssessment . T he B oa rd ca n con f i r m t hat 

w it h i n t he rep or t i n g p er io d a l l d i rectors were 

deemed to b e i ndep endent .

5. Director induction and access to 
information and advice

A l l B oa rd memb ers u nder ta ke a 

comprehen sive i nduct ion pro cess to en ha nce 

t hei r u ndersta nd i n g of t he i ndu st r y a nd 

Mer id ia n’s bu si ness a nd p eople, i nclud i n g 

fa m i l ia r i s at ion tou rs of t he compa ny ’s a sset s 

a nd op erat ion s , u sua l ly w it h t he C h ief 

E xecut ive a nd C ha i r or t hei r delegates . 

T here i s a n on goi n g prog ra m me of 

presentat ion s to t he B oa rd by representat ives 

f rom a l l bu si ness a rea s a nd subsid ia r ies to 

en su re t hat t he B oa rd i s kept appra i sed of t he 

compa ny ’s act iv it ies . I n add it ion , at each 

meet i n g t he B oa rd receives i n for mat ion on 

compa ny act iv it ies t h rou g h va r iou s 

op erat iona l rep or t s . 

T he B oa rd ex p ect s a l l d i rectors to u nder ta ke 

cont i nua l educat ion so t hey ca n p er for m t hei r 

dut ies ef fect ively. 

A l l d i rectors have access to memb ers of t he 

ma na gement tea m to d i scu ss i ssues or obta i n 

i n for mat ion on sp eci f ic a rea s or item s to b e 

con sidered at B oa rd or Com m it tee meet i n g s .

T he B oa rd a nd Com m it tees a nd each d i rector 

have t he r i g ht to seek i ndep endent 

professiona l adv ice at Mer id ia n’s ex p en se to 

a ssi st t hem to ca r r y out t hei r resp on sibi l it ies .

3. Performance evaluation 

T he B oa rd a nd Com m it tee cha r ters requ i re  

a n eva luat ion of t he B oa rd a nd Com m it tee 

p er for ma nce on a n a n nua l ba si s . B oa rd 

eva luat ion su r veys faci l itated by a n ex ter na l 

pa r t y a re u nder ta ken each yea r. T he pro cess 

a l so i ncludes one - on- one meet i n g s b et ween 

t he C ha i r a nd each d i rector.

T he B oa rd eva luat ion i n 2 01 3 covered t he 

fol low i n g a rea s:

• role

• meet i n g s

• pu r p ose

• sta keholders

• hea lt h a nd s a fet y a nd wel l ness

• con for ma nce

• p er for ma nce

• ma na gement a nd t he B oa rd

• cu lt u re

• capabi l it y.

T he p er for ma nce of t he C h ief E xecut ive a nd 

t he sen ior ma na gement tea m i s rev iewed 

reg u la rly a ga i n st object ives set by t he B oa rd . 

T he B oa rd ha s u nder ta ken a p er for ma nce 

rev iew for t he F Y2 014 p er io d of t he C h ief 

E xecut ive a nd t hose rep or t i n g d i rect ly to t hat 

p osit ion i n accorda nce w it h t he compa ny ’s 

p er for ma nce rev iew pro cess . F u r t her deta i l s 

a re conta i ned i n t he remu nerat ion rep or t on 

pa ge 4 6 .
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T he B oa rd a nd Com m it tees have t he aut hor it y 

to secu re t he at tenda nce of adv i sers w it h 

releva nt ex p er ience a nd ex p er t i se when 

meet i n g s a re convened .

6. Indemnities and insurance

A s p er m it ted by Mer id ia n’s Con st it ut ion , 

D eed s of I ndem n it y have b een g iven to 

d i rectors for p otent ia l l iabi l it ies a nd cost s  

t hey m i g ht i ncu r i n resp ect of t hei r act ion s  

or om i ssion s i n t hei r capacit y a s d i rectors .  

T he i ndem n it y do es not cover d i shonest , 

f raudu lent , ma l iciou s or w i l f u l act s or 

om i ssion s by d i rectors , i n t hei r capacit y  

a s d i rectors . 

F rom 1 May 2 014 , Mer id ia n’s d i rectors’ a nd 

of f icers’ l iabi l it y i n su ra nce wa s renewed to 

cover r i sk s nor ma l ly covered by such p ol icies . 

I n su ra nce i s not prov ided for d i shonest , 

f raudu lent , ma l iciou s or w i l f u l act s or 

om i ssion s by d i rectors , i n t hei r capacit y  

a s d i rectors . 

7. Conflicts of interest

T he B oa rd i s con sciou s of it s obl i gat ion to 

en su re t hat d i rectors avoid con f l ict s of i nterest 

( b ot h rea l a nd appa rent ) b et ween t hei r dut ies 

to Mer id ia n a nd t hei r ow n i nterest s . D i rectors 

a re requ i red to en su re t hat t hey i m med iately 

adv i se t he B oa rd of a ny new or cha n ged 

relat ion sh ips . T hese a re t hen recorded i n t he 

B oa rd’s i nterest s reg i ster, wh ich i s a sta nd i n g 

item at each schedu led meet i n g of t he B oa rd . 

Board Committees

T he B oa rd ha s establ i shed fou r  

sta nd i n g Com m it tees .

1 . Audit and Risk Committee

T h i s Com m it tee compr i ses a m i n i mu m of 

t h ree d i rectors . It s pr i ma r y object ive i s to 

a ssi st t he B oa rd i n f u l f i l l i n g it s aud it a nd r i sk 

a ssu ra nce resp on sibi l it ies by:

• en su r i n g t he i nteg r it y of t he compa ny ’s 

i nter na l a nd ex ter na l f i na ncia l rep or t i n g

• en su r i n g t he adequacy of t he compa ny ’s 

i nter na l cont rol f ra mework a nd env i ron ment 

• overseei n g t he app oi nt ment , remu nerat ion , 

qua l i f icat ion s , i ndep endence a nd 

p er for ma nce of t he ex ter na l aud itor a nd t he 

i nteg r it y of t he aud it pro cess a s a whole

• mon itor i n g t he p er for ma nce a nd  

leadersh ip of t he i ndep endent a nd i nter na l 

aud it f u nct ion s

• prov id i n g a for ma l for u m for f ree a nd  

op en com mu n icat ion b et ween t he B oa rd ,  

t he i nter na l a nd ex ter na l aud itors  

a nd ma na gement

• mon itor i n g a nd rev iew i n g t he ef fect iveness 

of t he compa ny ’s pro cess for ident i f y i n g a nd 

ma na g i n g r i sk

• en su r i n g t hat t he compa ny i s i n a state of 

read i ness to ma i nta i n bu si ness cont i nu it y  

i n t he event of adverse ci rcu m sta nces

• en su r i n g t hat t he compa ny i s appropr iately 

i n su red to cover losses t hat may o ccu r a s a 

resu lt of adverse ci rcu m sta nces .

Memb ers: Ja n Dawson (C ha i r), C h r i s Mol ler, 

Peter Wi l son a nd Ma rk C a i r n s .

2 . Remuneration and Human  
Resources Committee

T h i s Com m it tee compr i ses a m i n i mu m  

of t h ree d i rectors . It s pr i ma r y object ive  

i s to a ssi st t he B oa rd i n f u l f i l l i n g it s hu ma n 

resou rces resp on sibi l it ies by:

• en su r i n g t hat t he compa ny ’s p ol icies a nd 

st rateg ies t hat relate to employ ment a nd 

p eople a l i g n w it h t he compa ny ’s st rateg ic 

object ives a nd p er for ma nce

• en su r i n g t hat t he compa ny ’s remu nerat ion 

p ol icies a nd pract ices rewa rd fa i rly a nd 

resp on sibly w it h a clea r l i n k to t he compa ny ’s 

st rateg ic object ives a nd cor p orate a nd 

i nd iv idua l p er for ma nce

• rev iew i n g a nd recom mend i n g t he 

remu nerat ion of t he d i rectors .

Memb ers: Ma r y D ev i ne (C ha i r), Joh n B on ga rd 

a nd A na ke G oo da l l .

3. Safety and Sustainability Committee

T h i s Com m it tee compr i ses a m i n i mu m of t wo 

d i rectors . It s pr i ma r y object ive i s to a ssi st t he 

B oa rd i n f u l f i l l i n g it s s a fet y a nd su sta i nabi l it y 

resp on sibi l it ies by overseei n g :

• Mer id ia n’s act ion s to meet it s obl i gat ion s to 

ma i nta i n t he overa l l wel l ness , o ccupat iona l 

hea lt h a nd s a fet y of it s p eople

• t he i nteg rat ion of s a fet y a nd su sta i nabi l it y 

i n t he for mu lat ion of Mer id ia n’s cor p orate 

st rateg y, r i sk ma na gement f ra mework , a nd 

p eople a nd cu lt u re pr ior it ies

• t he so cia l , env i ron menta l a nd et h ica l i mpact s 

of Mer id ia n’s p ol icies a nd pract ices

• i n it iat ives to en ha nce Mer id ia n’s s a fet y a nd 

su sta i nable bu si ness pract ices a nd reputat ion 

a s a resp on sible cor p orate cit i zen

• Mer id ia n’s compl ia nce w it h cor p orate 

gover na nce requ i rement s i n relat ion to s a fet y 

a nd su sta i nabi l it y i ssues a nd rep or t i n g .

Memb ers: Stephen Rei nd ler (C ha i r)  

a nd S a l ly Fa r r ier.

4 . Governance and Nominations Committee

T h is Com m it tee compr ises a m i n i mu m of t h ree 

d i rectors . Its pr i ma r y object ive is to assist t he 

Boa rd i n f u l f i l l i n g its responsibi l it ies i n t he 

gover na nce of t he compa ny by mon itor i n g t he 

overa l l gover na nce of t he busi ness , Boa rd (a nd 

Com m it tee) composit ion a nd per for ma nce 

(i nclud i n g Boa rd d iversit y), d i rector 

i ndependence a nd con f l icts of i nterest .

C u r rent ly t he G over na nce a nd Nom i nat ion s 

Com m it tee con si st s of t he f u l l B oa rd .

5. Board and Committee meeting attendance

T he table b elow set s out t he at tenda nce deta i l s 

for each B oa rd a nd Com m it tee meet i n g held 

du r i n g t he p er io d .

BOARD MEETING  
ATTENDANCE BOARD

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION 
AND HUMAN 
RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE

SAFETY AND 
SUSTAINABILITY 

COMMITTEE

GOVERNANCE AND 
NOMINATIONS 

COMMITTEE

Number of Meetings 21 6 6 5 3

Chris Moller 20 6 - - 3

Peter Wilson 20 6 - - 3

John Bongard 20 - 6 - 3

Mark Cairns 16 6 - - 3

Jan Dawson 17 6 - - 3

Mary Devine 21 - 5 - 3

Sally Farrier 21 - - 5 3

Anake Goodall 20 - 5 - 3

Stephen Reindler 20 - - 5 3
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Risk management

Mer id ia n op erates a n act ive prog ra m me to 

en su re on goi n g r i sk ma na gement across t he 

Mer id ia n Group. T he R i sk Ma na gement Pol icy 

ha s b een develop ed to meet t he New Zea la nd 

Sta nda rd : ‘A S/ N Z S I SO 310 0 0 R i sk Ma na gement 

– pr i nciples a nd g u idel i nes’.  T he pu r p ose of 

t he R i sk Ma na gement Pol icy i s to emb ed a 

Group -w ide capabi l it y i n r i sk ma na gement 

t hat prov ides a con si stent met ho d of 

ident i f y i n g , a ssessi n g , cont rol l i n g , mon itor i n g 

a nd rep or t i n g ex i st i n g a nd p otent ia l r i sk s , 

i nclud i n g f i na ncia l r i sk , faced by Mer id ia n . 

T he p ol icy set s out t he r i sk ma na gement 

pr i nciples of Mer id ia n w it h i n wh ich 

ma na gement i s ex p ected to conduct 

st r uct u red r i sk ma na gement . R i sk s ident i f ied 

t h rou g h t h i s p ol icy f ra mework a re reg u la rly 

rev iewed by t he Aud it a nd R i sk Com m it tee.

Internal audit

T he i nter na l aud it of Mer id ia n prov ides 

i ndep endent a ssu ra nce to t he B oa rd a nd 

ma na gement t hat key r i sk s a re b ei n g 

adequately ma na ged a nd t he compa ny ’s 

i nter na l cont rol f ra mework i s op erat i n g 

ef fect ively.

Mer id ia n’s i nter na l aud it f u nct ion ha s b een 

prov ided by E r n st & You n g , ma na ged by 

Mer id ia n’s Group F i na ncia l Cont rol ler si nce 

2 0 08 . Wit h ef fect f rom 1 Ju ly 2 014 K PMG ha s 

replaced E r n st & You n g a s Mer id ia n’s i nter na l 

aud it prov ider v ia a co - sou rced a r ra n gement .

External reporting assurance

T he C h ief E xecut ive a nd t he C h ief F i na ncia l 

O f f icer a re requ i red to prov ide a let ter of 

representat ion to t he B oa rd , con f i r m i n g  

a nu mb er of mat ters , i nclud i n g t hat :

• ma na gement have f u l f i l led t hei r 

resp on sibi l it ies for prepa r i n g a nd present i n g 

t he f i na ncia l statement s a s requ i red by law, 

a nd i n pa r t icu la r t hat t he:

– f i na ncia l statement s comply w it h  

genera l ly accepted accou nt i n g pr i nciples 

i n New Zea la nd

– f i na ncia l statement s g ive a t r ue a nd 

fa i r v iew of t he f i na ncia l p osit ion of t he 

compa ny a nd Group a s at 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 a nd 

of t he resu lt s of t hei r op erat ion s a nd t hei r 

ca sh f lows for t he yea r t hen ended

• a l l t ra n s act ion s have b een recorded i n t he 

accou nt i n g record s a nd a re ref lected i n t he 

f i na ncia l statement s

• f i na ncia l statement s a re f ree of mater ia l 

m i sstatement s , i nclud i n g om i ssion s .

I n add it ion , t he C h ief E xecut ive a nd C h ief 

F i na ncia l O f f icer have prov ided a ssu ra nce 

t hat t he let ter of representat ion prov ided  

a s pa r t of t he f i na ncia l statement s si g n- of f  

wa s fou nded on a sou nd system of r i sk 

ma na gement a nd i nter na l cont rol a nd t hat  

t he system wa s a nd cont i nues to b e op erat i n g 

ef fect ively i n a l l mater ia l resp ect s i n relat ion 

to f i na ncia l rep or t i n g r i sk s . 

External audit independence

T he B oa rd ha s adopted a st r ict p ol icy to 

ma i nta i n t he i ndep endence of t he compa ny ’s 

ex ter na l aud itor, i nclud i n g recom mend i n g to 

t he O f f ice of t he Aud itor- G enera l t hat t here b e 

lead aud it pa r t ner rotat ion a f ter a ma x i mu m  

of ever y f ive yea rs .

T he Aud it a nd R i sk Com m it tee i s resp on sible 

for ma k i n g recom mendat ion s to t he B oa rd 

concer n i n g t he app oi nt ment of Mer id ia n’s 

ex ter na l aud itor a nd t hei r ter m s of 

en ga gement . Under sect ion 2 9B of t he P ubl ic 

F i na nce Act 1989, t he Aud itor- G enera l ha s 

app oi nted M ichael Wi l kes of D eloit te to aud it 

Mer id ia n .

Statutory information

Add it iona l i n for mat ion i s set out on pa ges  

1 2 0 –1 3 5 .

4 5
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Remuneration 
report

Director and employee remuneration

Mer id ia n i s com m it ted to fa i r, resp on sible a nd 

equ itable remu nerat ion a nd en su r i n g a clea r 

relat ion sh ip b et ween p er for ma nce a nd 

remu nerat ion . More i n for mat ion rega rd i n g  

t he Remu nerat ion a nd Hu ma n Resou rces 

Com m it tee i s set out on pa ge 4 4 i n t he 

G over na nce sect ion .

Director remuneration – 
Meridian Energy Limited

Directors’ fees

P r ior to l i st i n g , Mer id ia n’s sha reholders 

approved t he ord i na r y d i rectors’ fees a nd 

Com m it tee fees a s set out i n t he table b elow. 

T hese fees took ef fect f rom t he date t he 

compa ny l i sted . I n f ut u re, a s a l i sted compa ny, 

a ny i ncrea se to t he a g g regate fees payable to 

non- execut ive d i rectors of Mer id ia n mu st b e 

approved by sha reholders . 

D i rectors a re a l so ent it led to b e rei mbu rsed  

for cost s d i rect ly a sso ciated w it h ca r r y i n g  

out t hei r dut ies , i nclud i n g t ravel cost s .  

Mer id ia n employees app oi nted a s d i rectors  

of Mer id ia n subsid ia r ies do not receive a ny 

d i rectorsh ip fees .

APPROVED FEES  
(PER ANNUM) $NZ

Ordinary Fees

Chair1 $165,000

Deputy Chair $114,000

Directors (x7 @ $91,000) $637,000

$916,000

Committee Fees

Audit and Risk Committee Chair $15,000

Audit and Risk Committee Member (x2 @ $7,500) $15,000

Remuneration and Human Resources Committee Chair $12,500

Remuneration and Human Resources Committee Member (x2 @ $5,000) $10,000

Safety and Sustainability Committee Chair $12,500

Safety and Sustainability Committee Members (x1 @ $5,000) $5,000

$70,000

Total Aggregate Pool $986,000

1  Committee Chair and members’ fees are not payable to the Chairman of the Board.
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Additional fees

P r ior to l i st i n g , sha reholders a l so approved t he 

pay ment by Mer id ia n of add it iona l fees of up 

to $19 5 ,0 0 0 i n a g g regate to comp en s ate 

d i rectors for add it iona l work requ i red t h rou g h 

t he compa ny ’s I PO. 

Total remuneration paid during FY2014

Remu nerat ion pa id to non- execut ive  

d i rectors i n t hei r capacit y a s d i rectors  

of Mer id ia n du r i n g t he yea r ended  

3 0 Ju ne 2 014 i s l i sted b elow:

BOARD FEES1 COMMITTEE FEES2 IPO FEES TOTAL FEES

Chris Moller (Chair) $142,970 - $17,093 $160,063

Peter Wilson (Deputy Chair) $96,656 $5,014 $23,093 $124,763

John Bongard $77,190 $3,342 $20,693 $101,225

Mark Cairns $77,190 $5,014 $20,200 $102,404

Jan Dawson $77,190 $10,027 $22,600 $109,817

Mary Devine $77,190 $8,356 $15,893 $101,439

Sally Farrier $77,190 $3,342 $15,893 $96,425

Anake Goodall $77,190 $3,342 $15,400 $95,932

Stephen Reindler $77,190 $8,356 $15,400 $100,946

Total $779,956 $46,793 $166,265 $993,014

1 Board fees were paid on a pro-rata basis to reflect both the pre-listing and post-listing approved fees.

2 Committee fees were paid on a pro-rata basis to reflect both the pre-listing and post-listing approved fees. The Chairman of the Board does not receive Committee fees. 
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Remu nerat ion pa id to non- execut ive d i rectors i n t hei r capacit y a s d i rectors of subsid ia r ies  

of Mer id ia n du r i n g t he yea r ended 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 i s l i sted b elow:

FY2014 $NZ

Stanley Brogan (Damwatch Pty Limited) 3,231

Darryl Flukes1 (Meridian Energy Australia Pty Limited) 109,254

John Journee (Powershop New Zealand Limited) 50,000

Peter Lowe2 (Meridian Energy Australia Pty Limited) 79,537

Rowan Simpson (Powershop New Zealand Limited) 40,000

Total 282,022

1 The fees payable to Darryl Flukes included fee amounts in relation to the previous financial year that had not been  

paid out. In addition, Darryl Flukes received the Australian dollar equivalent of $51,666 in FY2014 in his capacity  

as a consultant to the Meridian Energy Australia Energy Risk Management Committee.

2 There was an additional one-off payment made in FY2014 of $3,854 that related to FY2013.  

This amount related to eight months of superannuation of $481.61.

Chief Executive remuneration

Employment agreement

Mer id ia n ha s entered i nto a n employ ment 

a g reement w it h Ma rk Bi n n s i n relat ion to h i s 

employ ment w it h Mer id ia n a s C h ief E xecut ive. 

T he C h ief E xecut ive receives a n a n nua l ba se 

s a la r y of $1 , 10 0,0 0 0. He i s a l so ent it led to b e 

con sidered for a shor t-ter m i ncent ive ( ST I ), 

ba sed on 6 5% of h i s ba se s a la r y, t hat i s payable 

at t he d i scret ion of t he B oa rd of Mer id ia n .  

T he a mou nt of a ny ST I awa rded w i l l b e ba sed 

on t he ach ievement by t he C h ief E xecut ive of 

cer ta i n i nd iv idua l a nd compa ny p er for ma nce 

hu rd les for t he prev iou s f i na ncia l yea r.  

T he C h ief E xecut ive i s a memb er of K iw i S aver, 

so he a l so receives matched employer 

cont r ibut ion s of 4% . M r Bi n n s i s a l so ent it led  

to pa r t icipate i n t he E xecut ive lon g-ter m 

i ncent ive pla n ( E xecut ive LT I Pla n ) refer red  

to u nder ‘ E xecut ive remu nerat ion’.

T he tota l remu nerat ion of t he C h ief E xecut ive 

may b e rev iewed each f i na ncia l yea r at t he 

d i scret ion of t he B oa rd of Mer id ia n . M r Bi n n s 

w i l l b e employed a s C h ief E xecut ive u nt i l h i s 

employ ment i s ter m i nated i n accorda nce w it h 

h i s employ ment a g reement . P u rsua nt to t he 

employ ment a g reement , t he C h ief E xecut ive 

a nd Mer id ia n have mut ua l r i g ht s of 

ter m i nat ion on t he prov i sion of si x mont h s’ 

w r it ten not ice. Mer id ia n may a l so ter m i nate 

t he C h ief E xecut ive’s employ ment on t he 

g rou nd s of redu nda ncy, ser iou s m i sconduct  

or where a n act of ba n k r uptcy i s com m it ted . 

T he C h ief E xecut ive w i l l b e ent it led to receive 

cer ta i n ter m i nat ion pay ment s fol low i n g t he 

ter m i nat ion of h i s employ ment . 

I n t he yea r ended 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 ,  

M r Bi n n s received :

• a ba se s a la r y of $1 , 10 0,016 , b efore  

ta x a nd ot her deduct ion s i nclud i n g  

K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s

• a p er for ma nce -related ST I pay ment 

of $6 87, 5 0 0, b efore ta x a nd K iw i S aver 

cont r ibut ion s , relat i n g to F Y2 01 3 . T he 

a mou nt of t h i s ST I pay ment wa s deter m i ned 

by a ssessi n g t he compa ny ’s f i na ncia l 

p er for ma nce i n F Y2 01 3 a nd M r Bi n n s’ 

ach ievement a ga i n st a nu mb er of sp eci f ic 

non-f i na ncia l p er for ma nce ta rget s , set by  

t he B oa rd at t he sta r t of F Y2 01 3

• K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s of $7 1 , 5 0 0, made  

by Mer id ia n on b eha l f of M r Bi n n s i n resp ect 

of ba se s a la r y a nd i ncent ive pa id .

I n t he prev iou s yea r ended 3 0 Ju ne 2 01 3 ,  

M r Bi n n s received :

• a ba se s a la r y of $1 ,0 5 0,0 0 0, b efore  

ta x a nd ot her deduct ion s , i nclud i n g 

K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s

• no p er for ma nce -related ST I pay ment  

relat i n g to F Y2 01 2 . T he compa ny ’s f i na ncia l 

p er for ma nce i n F Y2 01 2 d id not meet ta rget s 

set by t he B oa rd at t he sta r t of F Y2 01 2

• K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s of $ 4 2 ,0 0 0, made  

by Mer id ia n on b eha l f of M r Bi n n s .

Fol low i n g t he end of F Y2 014 , t he B oa rd 

approved a p er for ma nce -related ST I 

of $7 39, 167, b efore ta x a nd K iw i S aver 

cont r ibut ion s , relat i n g to F Y2 014 , wh ich wa s 

pa id i n late Au g u st 2 014 . T he a mou nt of t h i s 

ST I pay ment wa s deter m i ned by a ssessi n g t he 

compa ny ’s f i na ncia l p er for ma nce for F Y2 014 

a nd M r Bi n n s’ ach ievement a ga i n st a nu mb er 

of sp eci f ic non-f i na ncia l p er for ma nce ta rget s , 

set by t he B oa rd at t he sta r t of F Y2 014 .

Employee remuneration

Mer id ia n i s com m it ted to fa i r, resp on sible a nd 

equ itable remu nerat ion a nd rewa rd pract ices 

i n t he work place, ta k i n g i nto accou nt i nter na l 

a nd ex ter na l relat iv it y a nd t he compa ny ’s 

abi l it y to meet it s com mercia l object ives . 

I nd iv idua l p er for ma nce a nd ma rket relat iv it y 

a re t he key d r ivers of a l l remu nerat ion- ba sed 

deci sion s . Remu nerat ion i ncludes a m i x of 

f i xed a nd va r iable comp onent s t hat i s a 

mixture of cash and non- cash, including:

• f i xed remu nerat ion , wh ich i ncludes ba se 

s a la r y a nd employer K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s 

a nd relates to t he ba se requ i rement s of  

t he role

• at-r i sk d i scret iona r y remu nerat ion for 

individuals invited to participate in ST I 

schemes , at t he d i scret ion of t he C h ief 

E xecut ive, w it h t he a g g regate approved 

by the Board on the recommendation of 

t he Remu nerat ion a nd Hu ma n Resou rces 

Com m it tee, ba sed on t he ach ievement of 

predeter m i ned compa ny prof it level s  

a nd i nd iv idua l p er for ma nce ta rget s

• at-r i sk d i scret iona r y remu nerat ion for t he 

execut ive ma na gement tea m ent it led to 

pa r t icipate i n t he E xecut ive LT I Pla n

• a ra n ge of ma rket- ba sed ca sh b enef it s 

i nclud i n g l i fe i n su ra nce, redu nda ncy 

pay ment s a nd pa id pa renta l leave.
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Executive remuneration

Mer id ia n a i m s to mot ivate a nd rewa rd 

executives with a level and mix of remuneration 

t hat ref lect s t hei r roles a nd accou ntabi l it ies 

w it h i n t he compa ny a nd appropr iately a l i g ns 

t he i nterest s of execut ives w it h t hose of 

shareholders. Executives may be offered an STI  

at t he d i scret ion of Mer id ia n . Per for ma nce i s 

rev iewed a ga i n st compa ny f i na ncia l 

p er for ma nce hu rd les a nd i nd iv idua l st rateg ic 

object ives t hat a re set a nd t hen rev iewed by 

t he B oa rd on a n a n nua l ba si s .

Under t he E xecut ive LT I Pla n , execut ives 

pu rcha se Mer id ia n sha res (or, wh i le i n sta l ment 

receipt s a re on i ssue, i n sta l ment receipt s) 

f u nded by a n i nterest-f ree loa n f rom t he 

compa ny, w it h t he sha res or i n sta l ment 

receipt s (a s appl icable) held on t r u st by t he 

t r u stee of t he E xecut ive LT I Pla n . A s Mer id ia n 

secu r it ies cu r rent ly on of fer a re i n sta l ment 

receipt s , t he i nterest-f ree loa n w i l l a l so b e 

u sed by execut ives to pay t he f i na l i n sta l ment s 

for a ny i n sta l ment receipt s held by t he t r u stee 

at t he t i me t he f i na l i n sta l ment s a re due. 

T he sha res or i n sta l ment receipt s w i l l b e held 

on t r u st u nt i l t he end of a t h ree -yea r vest i n g 

p er io d . I n t he ca se of t he f i rst of fer u nder t he 

E xecut ive LT I Pla n , i n sta l ment receipt s a nd , 

fol low i n g pay ment of t he f i na l i n sta l ment s , 

sha res w i l l b e held by t he t r u stee u nt i l t he 

conclu sion of F Y2 016 . I n sta l ment receipt s 

pu rcha sed for t he f i rst of fer made u nder t he 

E xecut ive LT I Pla n were pu rcha sed a s pa r t  

of t he I PO at t he f i na l pr ice payable u nder  

t he I PO reta i l of fer. A ny f ut u re pu rcha ses of 

sha res (or i n sta l ment receipt s) u nder t he pla n 

w i l l b e made at t hei r ma rket pr ice at t he t i me.

Vest i n g of sha res ( i nclud i n g sha res i n it ia l ly 

represented by i n sta l ment receipt s) w it h a n 

execut ive at t he conclu sion of a t h ree -yea r 

vest i n g p er io d i s dep endent on cont i nued 

employ ment t h rou g h t he t h ree -yea r p er io d , 

t he compa ny ’s absolute tota l sha reholder 

ret u r n b ei n g p osit ive a nd t he compa ny ’s tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n relat ive to a b ench ma rk 

p eer g roup meet i n g cer ta i n cr iter ia . I f sha res 

vest , execut ives a re ent it led to a ca sh a mou nt 

wh ich , a f ter t he deduct ion of ta x ( but b efore 

ot her appl icable s a la r y deduct ion s), i s equa l  

to t he a mou nt of t hei r loa n ba la nce for sha res 

t hat have vested . T hat ca sh a mou nt i s appl ied 

towa rd s t he repay ment of t hei r loa n ba la nces .

Under t he E xecut ive LT I Pla n , where tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n mea su res a re u sed , 

per for ma nce is measu red a ga i nst a bench ma rk 

p eer g roup compr i si n g cer ta i n energ y 

generator/reta i ler comp et itor compa n ies a s  

at t he sta r t of t he vest i n g p er io d . Vest i n g of 

sha res i s dep endent on t wo factors . F i rst ly, t he 

compa ny must ach ieve a posit ive absolute tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n over t he measu rement 

per iod . Second ly, t he compa ny’s per for ma nce 

relat ive to t he per for ma nce of t he bench ma rk 

peer g roup is measu red , w it h a sl id i n g sca le to 

apply for t he nu mber of sha res to vest:

• I f t he compa ny ’s tota l sha reholder ret u r n 

p er for ma nce over t he mea su rement p er io d 

exceed s t he 5 0 t h p ercent i le tota l sha reholder 

ret u r n of t he b ench ma rk p eer g roup, 5 0% of 

a n execut ive’s sha res w i l l vest .

• 10 0% of a n execut ive’s sha res w i l l vest 

up on meet i n g t he p er for ma nce of t he 7 5t h 

p ercent i le of t he b ench ma rk p eer g roup, w it h 

vest i n g on a st ra i g ht l i ne ba si s b et ween t hese 

t wo p oi nt s .

• No sha res w i l l vest i f t he compa ny ’s tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n over t he mea su rement 

p er io d i s less t ha n t he 5 0 t h p ercent i le tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n of t he b ench ma rk  

p eer g roup.

I n t he event t hat t he tota l sha reholder ret u r n 

p er for ma nce i n absolute ter m s i s less t ha n 

zero, or i n relat ive ter m s do es not meet t he 

p eer g roup relat ive tota l sha reholder ret u r n 

hu rd le ( b ei n g t he 5 0 t h p ercent i le tota l 

sha reholder ret u r n of t he b ench ma rk g roup), 

or i f t he pa r t icipa nt cea ses to b e employed  

by t he compa ny ot her t ha n for a qua l i f y i n g 

rea son , t he sha res (or i n sta l ment receipt s a s 

appl icable) w i l l b e for feited to t he t r u stee 

w it hout comp en s at ion a nd t he releva nt 

execut ive w i l l receive no b enef it s u nder t he 

pla n . W here t he tota l sha reholder ret u r n 

exceed s t he 5 0 t h p ercent i le of t he b ench ma rk 

p eer g roup but i s b elow t he 7 5t h p ercent i le, 

t hose sha res t hat have not vested w i l l b e 

for feited to t he t r u stee w it hout comp en s at ion . 

To comply w it h t he laws of oversea s 

ju r i sd ict ion s , a ca sh awa rd pla n may b e 

adopted for memb ers of t he execut ive 

ma na gement tea m ba sed out side New Zea la nd . 

T he ter m s of a ny ca sh awa rd pla n , i nclud i n g 

p er for ma nce hu rd les , wou ld seek to repl icate 

t he ter m s of t he E xecut ive LT I Pla n , except to 

t he ex tent t hat a ca sh b onu s (ca lcu lated by 

reference to t he ma rket pr ice of sha res at t he 

vest i n g date) vest s at t he end of t he vest i n g 

p er io d i n stead of sha res . No such pla n i s 

cu r rent ly i n place.

Employee remuneration range

T he nu mb er of employees a nd for mer 

employees of Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited  

a nd it s subsid ia r ies ( not i nclud i n g d i rectors) 

who du r i n g t he yea r ended 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 

received ca sh remu nerat ion a nd ot her 

b enef it s ( i nclud i n g at-r i sk p er for ma nce 

i ncent ives , K iw i S aver cont r ibut ion s  

a nd redu nda ncy pay ment s) exceed i n g  

$10 0,0 0 0 i s out l i ned b elow:

REMUNERATION BAND  
($NZ)

NUMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES

100,000 - 109,999  72 

110,000 - 119,999  66 

120,000 - 129,999  42 

130,000 - 139,999  33 

140,000 - 149,999  21 

150,000 - 159,999  25 

160,000 - 169,999  14 

170,000 - 179,999  18 

180,000 - 189,999  18 

190,000 - 199,999  13 

200,000 - 209,999  11 

210,000 - 219,999  11 

220,000 - 229,999  5 

240,000 - 249,999  6 

250,000 - 259,999  2 

260,000 - 269,999  4 

270,000 - 279,999  3 

280,000 - 289,999  4 

300,000 - 309,999  4 

310,000 - 319,999  2 

320,000 - 329,999  4 

360,000 - 369,999  2 

370,000 - 379,999  2 

380,000 - 389,999  1 

430,000 - 439,999  1 

470,000 - 479,999  1 

500,000 - 509,999  1 

510,000 - 519,999  1 

530,000 - 539,999  1 

580,000 - 589,999  1 

690,000 - 699,999  1 

740,000 - 749,999  1 

790,000 - 799,999  1 

800,000 - 809,999  1 

1,850,000 - 1,859,999  1 

 394*

* This includes 63 employees who are no longer employed 

by Meridian Energy Limited and its subsidiaries.
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The Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 58 to 114 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 2,481.5 2,681.5 2,333.4 2,515.9

Energy Related Services Revenue 15.8 13.3 5.1 2.5

Dividends Received - 0.1 11.5 0.4

Other Revenue 11.5 16.3 10.7 15.1

Total Operating Revenue 2,508.8 2,711.2 2,360.7 2,533.9

Operating Expenses

Energy Related Expenses (1,130.5) (1,361.5) (1,081.9) (1,309.5)

Energy Distribution Expenses (427.6) (404.2) (375.3) (359.3)

Energy Transmission Expenses  (129.3) (115.3) (126.6) (113.2)

Employee Expenses 3 (90.5) (88.6) (66.4) (65.7)

Other Operating Expenses 3 (145.6) (156.8) (130.2) (142.8)

(1,923.5) (2,126.4) (1,780.4) (1,990.5)

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation, Change in  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Other Significant Items (EBITDAF) 585.3 584.8 580.3 543.4

Impairment of Assets 5 - (24.8) (5.6) (21.1)

Gain on Sale of Assets 6 6.6 106.6 14.0 8.6

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures 18 (0.4) 0.1 (0.4) -

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 19 (21.4) (18.5) (19.2) (17.3)

Depreciation 20 (198.6) (201.2) (174.9) (181.6)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Loss)/Gain (Operational) 27 (8.4) 51.1 (13.3) 49.7

Operating Profit 363.1 498.1 380.9 381.7

Finance Costs and Other Finance Related Income/(Expenses)

Finance Costs 7 (82.2) (115.1) (67.2) (79.8)

Interest Income 8 8.5 1.6 16.2 29.6

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain (Financing) 27 27.0 42.7 32.9 42.5

Profit Before Tax 316.4 427.3 362.8 374.0

Income Tax Expense 9 (86.6) (132.2) (97.8) (120.5)

Profit After Tax 229.8 295.1 265.0 253.5

Profit After Tax Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent Company 229.8 295.1 265.0 253.5

Earnings per Share from operations attributable  
to equity holders of the Company during the year:

Basic Earnings per Share ($) 10 0.09 0.12

Diluted Earnings per Share ($) 10 0.09 0.12

Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014
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MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Profit After Tax for the Year 229.8 295.1 265.0 253.5

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss:

Reversal of Asset Revaluation 20 - (476.2) - (476.2)

Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified:

Deferred Tax on Asset Revaluation Reserve 22 - 133.3 - 133.3

- (342.9) - (342.9)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:

Net (Loss)/Gain on Available for Sale Investments (1.4) 2.3 (1.4) 2.3

Net (Loss)/Gain on Cash Flow Hedges (14.6) 28.3 (4.2) (2.9)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation Reserve to Profit & Loss 4.9 13.6 - -

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation of Foreign Operations (15.1) (25.1) - -

Income Tax relating to items that may be reclassified 22 4.7 (9.2) 1.6 0.1

(21.5) 9.9 (4.0) (0.5)

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax (21.5) (333.0) (4.0) (343.4)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax 208.3 (37.9) 261.0 (89.9)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Attributable to:     

Shareholders of the Parent Company 208.3 (37.9) 261.0 (89.9)

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014
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The Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 58 to 114 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Shareholders’ Equity

Share Capital 11 1,598.6 1,600.0 1,598.6 1,600.0

Reserves 3,035.1 3,088.0 2,991.2 2,991.4

Total Equity 4,633.7 4,688.0 4,589.8 4,591.4

Represented by:

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 276.4 382.8 237.6 64.8

Accounts Receivable 14 182.7 254.5 161.5 174.3

Assets Classified as Held for Sale 15 26.5 64.8 43.2 40.8

Other Assets 16 17.5 12.5 12.4 11.7

Derivative Financial Instruments 27 19.5 51.5 15.5 51.8

Total Current Assets 522.6 766.1 470.2 343.4

Non-Current Assets

Other Assets 16 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.6

Investments in Subsidiaries 17 - - 175.5 176.4

Equity Accounted Joint Ventures 18 0.2 - 0.2 -

Intangible Assets 19 54.0 54.8 47.9 48.7

Property, Plant and Equipment 20 6,929.0 6,769.0 6,420.4 6,440.7

Deferred Tax Asset 22 20.4 12.7 - -

Derivative Financial Instruments 27 63.2 134.2 58.9 132.5

Advances to Subsidiaries 29 - - 148.0 412.0

Total Non-Current Assets 7,067.2 6,971.3 6,851.3 7,210.9

Total Assets 7,589.8 7,737.4 7,321.5 7,554.3

Current Liabilities

Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale 15 1.3 2.7 0.2 0.7

Payables and Accruals 21 235.6 274.8 160.2 184.4

Current Tax Payable 57.1 51.3 29.6 21.0

Current Portion of Term Borrowings 23 133.4 146.7 134.0 147.0

Finance Lease Payable 25 0.6 - 0.3 -

Derivative Financial Instruments 27 37.9 45.0 37.4 53.2

Advances from Subsidiaries 29 - - 253.0 229.0

Total Current Liabilities 465.9 520.5 614.7 635.3

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability 22 1,349.7 1,364.2 1,340.6 1,354.4

Term Borrowings 23 959.1 1,033.5 653.0 843.6

Term Payables 0.6 6.7 0.6 6.7

Provisions 24 7.0 - - -

Finance Lease Payable 25 48.6 - 7.6 -

Derivative Financial Instruments 27 125.2 124.5 115.2 122.9

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,490.2 2,528.9 2,117.0 2,327.6

Total Liabilities 2,956.1 3,049.4 2,731.7 2,962.9

Net Assets 4,633.7 4,688.0 4,589.8 4,591.4

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 17 August 2014.

Chris Moller, Chairman, 17 August 2014 Jan Dawson, Chair of Audit and Risk Committee, 17 August 2014

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014
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MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP 2014
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 - 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Profit for the Year - - - - - - 229.8 229.8

Cash Flow Hedges:
Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (14.6) - - (14.6)

Available for Sale Reserve:
Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - - (1.4) - (1.4)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation 
Reserve to Profit and Loss 17 - - - 4.9 - - - 4.9

Exchange Differences Arising from 
Translation of Foreign Operations - - - (15.1) - - - (15.1)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to 
Retained Earnings - - (0.1) - - - 0.1 - 

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 4.3 0.4 - 4.7

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - (0.1) (10.2) (10.3) (1.0) 229.9 208.3

Movement in Share Options - 0.2 - - - - - 0.2

Shares Issued - - - - - - - - 

Acquisition of Treasury Shares (1.4) - - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid 12 - - - - - - (261.4) (261.4)

Balance at 30 June 2014 1,598.6 0.2 3,073.8 (23.4) (1.4) 0.6 (14.7) 4,633.7
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Balance at 1 July 2012 1,600.0 3,418.0 (1.7) (41.8) - (148.8) 4,825.7

Profit for the Year - - - - - 295.1 295.1

Reversal of Asset Revaluation - (476.2) - - - - (476.2)

Cash Flow Hedges:
Net Gain Taken to Equity - - - 28.3 - - 28.3

Available for Sale Reserve:
Net Gain Taken to Equity - - - - 2.3 - 2.3

Transfer Cash Flow Hedge Reserve to Retained Earnings 
on Sale of Subsidiary - - - 44.2 - (44.2) - 

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation Reserve to Profit and Loss - - 13.6 - - - 13.6

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation of Foreign Operations - - (25.1) - - - (25.1)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to Retained Earnings - (1.6) - - - 1.6 - 

Deferred Tax on Revaluation Reserve - 133.7 - - - (0.4) 133.3

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - (21.8) (0.7) 13.3 (9.2)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - (344.1) (11.5) 50.7 1.6 265.4 (37.9)

Dividends Paid 12 - - - - - (99.8) (99.8)

Balance at 30 June 2013 1,600.0 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2014

MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED PARENT 2014
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 - 3,068.7 0.3 1.6 (79.2) 4,591.4

Profit for the Year - - - - - 265.0 265.0

Cash Flow Hedges:
Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - (4.2) - - (4.2)

Available for Sale Reserve:
Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (1.4) - (1.4)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to Retained Earnings - - (0.1) - - 0.1 - 

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - 1.2 0.4 - 1.6

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - (0.1) (3.0) (1.0) 265.1 261.0

Movement in Share Options - 0.2 - - - - 0.2

Shares Issued - - - - - - - 

Acquisition of Treasury Shares (1.4) - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid 12 - - - - - (261.4) (261.4)

Balance at 30 June 2014 1,598.6 0.2 3,068.6 (2.7) 0.6 (75.5) 4,589.8
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Balance at 1 July 2012 1,600.0 3,412.8 2.4 - (234.1) 4,781.1

Profit for the Year - - - - 253.5 253.5

Reversal of Asset Revaluation - (476.2) - - - (476.2)

Cash Flow Hedges:
Net Loss Taken to Equity - - (2.9) - - (2.9)

Available for Sale Reserve:
Net Gain Taken to Equity - - - 2.3 - 2.3

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to Retained Earnings - (1.6) - - 1.6 - 

Deferred Tax on Revaluation Reserve - 133.7 - - (0.4) 133.3

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - 0.8 (0.7) - 0.1

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - (344.1) (2.1) 1.6 254.7 (89.9)

Dividends Paid 12 - - - - (99.8) (99.8)

Balance at 30 June 2013 1,600.0 3,068.7 0.3 1.6 (79.2) 4,591.4

55



The Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements on pages 58 to 114 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Operating Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Receipts from Customers 2,083.4 2,390.0 1,937.2 2,219.1

Interest Received 8.5 2.0 53.0 0.7

Dividends Received - 0.1 11.5 0.3

2,091.9 2,392.1 2,001.7 2,220.1

Cash was Applied to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees (1,480.5) (1,811.8) (1,345.2) (1,686.4)

Interest Paid (80.0) (106.5) (65.1) (77.3)

Income Tax Paid (98.6) (57.1) (98.6) (56.7)

(1,659.1) (1,975.4) (1,508.9) (1,820.4)

Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 432.8 416.7 492.8 399.7

Investment Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 41.1 0.6 38.3 0.5

Finance Lease Receivable 0.2 - 0.2 -

Repayment of Advances to Subsidiaries - - 233.2 1.7

Sale of Subsidiaries 20.1 151.2 - 56.3

Sale of Investments 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.8

62.4 152.6 272.7 59.3

Cash was Applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (283.7) (244.8) (133.8) (44.1)

Capitalised Interest (9.3) (5.7) (6.4) (1.9)

Purchase of Intangible Assets (21.7) (25.9) (18.9) (23.1)

Purchase of Investments (0.6) (0.3) (0.6) -

Finance Lease Payable (0.5) - (0.1) -

Advances to Subsidiaries - - (14.7) (2.3)

Investment in Subsidiaries - - (28.6) (15.3)

(315.8) (276.7) (203.1) (86.7)

Net Cash (Outflows)/Inflows from Investing Activities (253.4) (124.1) 69.6 (27.4)

Financing Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Advances from Subsidiaries - - 99.9 7.1

Proceeds from Borrowings 133.7 1,115.9 0.5 309.5

133.7 1,115.9 100.4 316.6

Cash was Applied to:

Repayment of Advances from Subsidiaries - - (74.1) (6.9)

Shares Purchased for Long Term Incentive (1.0) - (1.0) -

Dividends Paid 12 (261.4) (99.8) (261.4) (99.8)

Term Borrowings Paid (153.5) (1,117.4) (153.5) (603.8)

(415.9) (1,217.2) (490.0) (710.5)

Net Cash Outflows from Financing Activities (282.2) (101.3) (389.6) (393.9)

Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (102.8) 191.3 172.8 (21.6)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 382.8 214.4 64.8 86.4

Cash Removed on Sale of Subsidiaries (1.8) (14.1) - -

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Net Cash (1.8) (8.8) - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 13 276.4 382.8 237.6 64.8

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2014
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MERIDIAN ENERGY LIMITED GROUP PARENT

RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR
TO CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES NOTE

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Profit after Tax for the Year 229.8 295.1 265.0 253.5

Adjustments for Operating Activities Non-Cash Items:

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 19 21.4 18.5 19.2 17.3

Depreciation 20 198.6 201.2 174.9 181.6

Movement in Deferred Tax (17.8) 40.3 (12.2) 39.5

Total Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain 27 (18.6) (93.8) (19.6) (92.2)

Cash Receipt on Closeout of Aluminium Commodity Swap 54.6 - 54.6 -

Cash Payments of Option Premiums (21.2) (20.4) (21.1) (20.5)

Transfer of Tax Losses to Parent - - 2.9 8.7

Share Based Payments 0.2 - 0.2 -

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures 0.4 (0.1) 0.4 -

Finance Costs - 10.5 36.7 (27.5)

217.6 156.2 236.0 106.9

Items Classified as Investing Activities:

Impairment of Assets 5 - 24.8 5.6 21.1

(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6 (11.3) 0.2 (13.8) (0.3)

Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Subsidiaries 6 4.9 (107.3) - (8.8)

Gain on Sale of Investments (0.2) - (0.2) -

(6.6) (82.3) (8.4) 12.0

Items Classified as Financing Activities:

Amortisation of Prepaid Debt Facility Fees 1.9 (2.3) 2.6 0.3

1.9 (2.3) 2.6 0.3

Changes in Working Capital Items

Decrease in Accounts Receivable 71.8 36.2 12.8 95.3

Increase in Other Assets (5.0) (0.2) (0.7) (0.6)

Decrease in Payables and Accruals (39.2) (11.3) (24.2) (75.1)

Increase in Current Tax Payable 5.8 45.3 8.6 15.2

Working Capital Items included in Investing Activities (53.2) (19.1) (8.4) (18.1)

Working Capital Items included in Financing Activities and Other Non-cash items 9.9 (0.9) 9.5 10.3

(9.9) 50.0 (2.4) 27.0

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 432.8 416.7 492.8 399.7

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2014
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity and  
Statement of Compliance

Meridian Energy Limited is a profit-oriented 
entity domiciled in New Zealand, registered 
under the Companies Act 1993 and an 
issuer for the purposes of the Financial 
Reporting Act 1993. The registered office 
of the Company is 33 Customhouse Quay, 
Wellington. Meridian Energy Limited is a 
mixed ownership model Company, that is 
majority owned by Her Majesty the Queen  
in Right of New Zealand (the “Crown”)  
and is dual listed on the New Zealand  
Stock Exchange (NZX) and the Australian 
Securities Exchange (ASX). The Company 
is bound by the requirements of the Public 
Finance Act 1989 but is no longer bound  
by the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986.

Meridian Energy Limited’s core business 
is the generation, trading and retailing 
of electricity and wider complementary 
products and services.

The consolidated financial statements 
comprise those of Meridian Energy Limited 
(the “Parent” or the “Company”) and 
its subsidiaries (together referred to as 
“Meridian” or the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice in New Zealand. They 
comply with the New Zealand equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(NZ IFRS) and International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as appropriate 
for a profit-oriented entity and are prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the 
Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The reporting period for these financial 
statements is the year ended 30 June 2014.

The financial statements were authorised for 
issue by the Directors on 17 August 2014.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared 
on the basis of historical cost modified by  
the revaluation of certain assets and 
liabilities as identified in the following 
accounting policies.

These financial statements are presented in 
New Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest 
million ($m). 

The same accounting policies, presentation 
and methods of computation have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented 
in these consolidated financial statements 
except for the additional relevant new 
Standards as listed below. The additional 
new Standards are as follows:

STANDARD/INTERPRETATION

EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL 
REPORTING PERIODS 

BEGINNING ON OR AFTER

NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013

NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013

NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013

NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised 2011) 1 January 2013

NZ IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (revised 2011) 1 January 2013

NZ IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013

Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013

Improvements to IFRS:2009-2011 cycle 1 January 2013

Other than additional disclosures, the application of these new standards has not had any material impact on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements.
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 

Adoption Status of Relevant Financial Reporting Standards

Meridian has elected not to early adopt the following standards that have been issued but are not yet effective for application:

STANDARD/INTERPRETATION

EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL 
REPORTING PERIODS 

BEGINNING ON OR AFTER

EXPECTED TO BE INITIALLY 
APPLIED IN THE FINANCIAL 

YEAR ENDING

Amendments to NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IAS 19 Employee Benefits Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements – Investment Entities 1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation  
– Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement  
– Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to FRS-42 Prospective Financial Statements 1 January 2014 30 June 2015

NZ IFRIC 21 Levies 1 January 2014 30 June 2015

Annual Improvements to NZ IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014 30 June 2015

Annual Improvements to NZ IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014 30 June 2015

Amendments to NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests  
in Joint Operations

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation  
and Amortisation

1 January 2016 30 June 2017

IAS 38 Intangible Assets Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016 30 June 2017

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 30 June 2019

NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017 30 June 2018

Further to the above, NZ IFRS 9 (once 
adopted in New Zealand) is anticipated  
to have the most impact on Meridian’s 
financial statements upon adoption.

NZ IFRS 9 requires all financial assets  
to be measured at fair value, unless the 
entity’s business model is to hold the  
assets to collect contractual cash flows  
and contractual terms give rise to cash  
flows that are solely payments of interest  
and principal, in which case they are 
measured at amortised cost. NZ IFRS 9  
also broadens the eligibility for hedge 
accounting as it introduces an objectives-
based test that focuses on the economic 
relationship between hedged items and 
hedging instruments.

The financial statement impact of the 
adoption of these standards (particularly  
NZ IFRS 9 and NZ IFRS 15) has not yet  
been analysed.

Judgements and Estimations

The preparation of financial statements 
in conformity with NZ IFRS requires 
judgements, estimates and assumptions  
that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised  
if the revision affects only that period or in 
the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and  
future periods.

Judgements that have a significant effect on 
the financial statements and estimates with 
a significant risk of material adjustment in 
the next year are in relation to the valuation 
of generation structures, plant assets 
and derivatives. In addition, accounting 
judgements are made in respect of the 
hedge designation and valuation of certain 

financial instruments, assessment of hedge 
effectiveness and the determination of useful 
lives of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Fair Value Estimation of Financial Assets 
and Liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabilities, including derivative instruments, 
must be estimated for recognition and 
measurement, or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of instruments traded in active 
markets is based on closing market prices at 
balance date.

The fair value of instruments that are not 
traded on an active market is determined 
using various valuation techniques which 
include assumptions on both observable 
data when such data is available and non-
observable data in all other instances.  
Fair values are based on the discounted 
value of future cashflows. Assumptions on 
the determination of future cash flows are 
based on the publicly available forecast 
prices where available and internal models 
when a forecast price is not available.

More detail is provided in Note 27 –  
Financial Instruments.
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 

In relation to forecast prices used to 
determine future cash flows for Contracts 
for Difference (CfDs) for non-observable 
periods, the following significant 
assumptions are used where relevant:

· Forecast of the forward wholesale 
electricity price for the non-observable 
period based on a fundamental analysis of 
expected demand and cost of new supply

· Forecast consumer price index

Future electricity price estimates are used 
to determine expected cash flows to be 
settled on CfDs. The expected cash flows are 
then discounted to determine a fair value of 
the CfD. The discount rates used are based 
on Interest Rate Swap Rates adjusted for 
additional risks including credit risk and the 
remaining term of the CfD.

The fair value of Foreign Exchange Contracts 
(FECs) is determined using forward exchange 
market rates at balance date discounted 
to present value. The fair value of currency 
options is determined using appropriate 
binomial models or the Black-Scholes model.

The fair value of financial liabilities in a fair 
value hedge relationship and for the purpose 
of disclosure is estimated by discounting 
the future designated cash flows at current 
market interest rates applicable to the risks 
being hedged.

The valuations determined for instruments 
not traded on an active market, particularly 
in respect to CfDs can vary significantly 
based on assumptions in relation to the 
forecast electricity price and interest rates. 
The sensitivity to changes in assumptions for 
level 3 financial instruments is quantified in 
Note 26 – Financial Risk Management.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Meridian’s generation structures and plant 
are stated at fair value. The Group applies 
judgement regarding the methodology and 
key assumptions to be used. Meridian also 
uses judgement to determine the estimated 
remaining useful lives of assets (refer to  
Note 20 – Property, Plant & Equipment for 
more detail).

Intangible Assets

Meridian has used judgement to determine 
the estimated remaining useful lives of 
intangible assets. The residual value and the 
useful lives of assets are reviewed, and if 
appropriate adjusted, at each balance date.

Retail Revenue

Meridian has exercised judgement in 
determining estimated retail sales for 
unread electricity meters at balance date. 
Specifically this involves an estimate of 
consumption for each unread meter, based 
on the customer’s past consumption history.

Taxation

Tax depreciation deductions for buildings 
were disallowed effective 1 July 2011. 
Meridian has used judgement in regard to 
the tax definition of buildings (refer to Note 9 
Income Tax Expense for more details).

Significant Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies 
have been adopted in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial report:

Basis of Consolidation

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled 
directly or indirectly by the Company. 
Control is achieved where the Company 
has exposure to variable returns from its 
involvement in the entity and the ability  
to use its power over it to affect the amount 
of the returns.

The acquisition method is used to account 
for the purchase of subsidiaries by the 
Company. The results of subsidiaries 
acquired or disposed of during the year 
are included in the consolidated income 
statement from the effective date of 
acquisition or up to the effective date of 
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries 
to bring their accounting policies into line 
with those used by other members of the 
Group. All material intra-group transactions, 
balances, income and expenses are 
eliminated on consolidation.

COMMON CONTROL  
AMALGAMATION TRANSACTIONS

Under a business combination where entities 
under common control are amalgamated, 
the carrying values of the assets and 
liabilities of the entities are combined, with 
any gain or loss on amalgamation recognised 
in equity.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint Ventures

In a joint venture the parties that have joint 
control of the arrangement have rights to 
the net assets of the arrangement. Meridian 
reports its interest in joint ventures using the 
equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, investments in 
joint ventures are carried in the consolidated 
Statement of Financial Position at cost as 
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the 
Company’s share of the net assets of the  
joint venture, less any impairment in the 
value of individual investments. Losses of 
a joint venture in excess of the Company’s 
interest in that joint venture (which includes 
any long-term interests that, in substance, 
form part of the Company’s net investment  
in the joint venture) are not recognised 
unless there is a legal or constructive 
obligation incurred by Meridian on behalf  
of the joint venture.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a 
manner consistent with internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision maker, 
who is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating 
segments, has been identified as the  
Chief Executive.

Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in a foreign 
currency are converted at the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign 
currency monetary assets and liabilities at 
reporting date are translated at the exchange 
rate prevailing at reporting date.

Assets and liabilities of overseas entities, 
whose functional currency is other than NZD, 
are translated at the closing rate at balance 
date. The revenues and expenses of these 
entities are translated at rates approximating 
the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Exchange differences arising 
on the translation of the financial statements 
of these entities are recorded in the 
foreign currency translation reserve. Such 
translation differences are recognised in the 
income statement in the period in which the 
foreign operation is disposed of.
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fair Value Hierarchy

All assets and liabilities measured or 
disclosed at fair value are categorised 
into a three-level hierarchy based on the 
observability of inputs to the valuation  
(see Note 27 – Financial Instruments –  
for details of these levels). Should market 
liquidity/products alter significantly or the 
observability of inputs change, consideration 
will be given to transfers from one level of 
the hierarchy to another.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Meridian’s generation structures and plant 
assets (including land and buildings) are 
stated in the Statement of Financial Position 
at their fair value at the date of revaluation, 
less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 
Revaluations are performed with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount 
does not differ materially from that which 
would be determined using fair values at  
the balance date.

The fair value of generation assets is 
determined using an income approach.  
In using the income approach, consideration 
is given to application of either net present 
value of expected future cash flows or 
capitalisation of earnings approach, 
whichever is more appropriate (for further 
detail, see Note 20 – Property, Plant  
& Equipment).

Any increase arising on revaluation is 
credited to the revaluation reserve, except 
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease for the same asset previously 
recognised in the income statement, in 
which case the increase is credited to the 
income statement to the extent of the 
decrease previously charged. A decrease 
in carrying amount arising on revaluation 
is charged to the income statement to the 
extent it exceeds the balance, if any, held in 
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous 
revaluation of that asset.

Accumulated depreciation at revaluation 
date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount so that the carrying amount after 
revaluation equals the revalued amount.

Subsequent additions to generation 
structures and plant assets are recorded 
at cost, which is considered fair value, 
including costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for its intended service. 
The cost of assets constructed includes 
all expenditure directly related to specific 
contracts including financing costs  
where appropriate.

Financing costs for qualifying assets are 
capitalised based on either the actual 
borrowing costs incurred or Meridian’s 
weighted average borrowing cost applicable 
to the general borrowings (excluding specific 
borrowings) that were outstanding during 
the period. Costs cease to be capitalised  
as soon as the asset is ready for use.

All other property, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
income statement. Any balance attributable 
to the disposed asset in the asset revaluation 
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment assets, other than freehold  
land, is calculated on a straight-line basis  
to allocate the cost or fair value amount  
of an asset, less any residual value, over  
its estimated remaining useful life.

The estimated remaining useful lives  
of assets are as follows:

· Generation Structures and Plant up  
to 80 years

· Freehold Buildings up to 67 years

· Other Plant and Equipment up to 20 years

The residual value and the useful lives of 
assets are reviewed, and if appropriate 
adjusted, at each balance date (see Note 
20 – Property, Plant & Equipment for further 
details of the valuation assumptions used).

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups 
comprising assets and liabilities) that are 
expected to be recovered primarily through 
sale rather than continuing use are classified 
as held for sale.

Immediately before classification as held 
for sale, the assets (or disposal group) are 
re-measured in accordance with Meridian’s 
accounting policies. Thereafter the assets 
(or disposal group) are measured at the 
lower of their carrying amount or fair value 
less cost to sell. Impairment losses on initial 
classification as held for sale and subsequent 
gains or losses on re-measurement are 
recognised in the income statement. 
Gains are not recognised in excess of any 
cumulative impairment loss.

Finance Lease Receivable

A lease is classified as a finance lease if 
it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership to the 
lessee. Meridian recognises assets under 
finance lease arrangements as a receivable 
at an amount equal to the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. Finance lease 
receipts are apportioned between principal 
repayments, relating to the lease receivable, 
and interest revenue. The interest reflects 
a constant periodic rate of return over the 
term of the lease. Finance lease receivables 
are classified as loans and receivables.

Intangible Assets

CUSTOMER ACQUISITION COSTS

Customer acquisition costs are finite life 
intangibles and represent the capitalisation 
of costs incurred to acquire retail customers 
from other parties. Amortisation is 
calculated using the straight-line method  
to allocate the cost over its useful life  
(up to 10 years).

COMPUTER SOFTWARE

Acquired computer software licences, that 
are not considered an integral part of related 
hardware, are capitalised on the basis of the 
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use 
the specific software. Additionally, costs 
directly associated with the production of 
identifiable and unique software products 
that will generate economic benefits beyond 
one year are also recognised as intangible 
assets. All these costs are amortised over 
their useful lives (up to 3 years) on a straight-
line basis.

Costs associated with maintaining computer 
software programs are recognised as an 
expense as incurred.

PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

Patents and Trademarks are finite life 
intangibles and are recorded at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment. 
Amortisation is charged on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives of up 
to 20 years.

LICENCE AGREEMENTS

Licence Agreements are finite life intangibles 
recorded at fair value less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment. Amortisation 
is charged on a straight-line basis over a 
period of up to 10 years.
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL  
ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL

At each balance date or when events/
circumstances indicate, Meridian reviews 
the recoverability of the carrying amounts 
of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether they have suffered an 
impairment loss. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and value in use. Value in use 
is the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels 
for which there are separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash generating units). An 
impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in the income statement for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount, unless the relevant 
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in 
which case the impairment loss is treated  
as a revaluation decrease.

Non-financial assets that have suffered 
impairment are reviewed for possible 
reversal of the impairment at each reporting 
date. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the income 
statement, unless the relevant asset is 
carried at a revalued amount, in which case 
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated 
as a revaluation increase.

GOODWILL

Goodwill, representing the excess of the 
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities acquired, is recognised as an 
asset and not amortised, but tested for 
impairment annually and whenever there 
is an indication that the goodwill may be 
impaired. Any impairment is recognised 
in the income statement and is not 
subsequently reversed. For the purpose of 
assessing impairment, goodwill is allocated 
to cash generating units.

Non Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are recognised on Meridian’s Statement 
of Financial Position when the Parent or 
Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument (trade date).

NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Meridian currently categorises its non 
derivative financial assets as either loans 
and receivables or assets available for sale 
depending on the purpose of the financial 
assets. Meridian establishes the category  
at initial recognition.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash  
on hand and demand deposits and other 
short-term highly liquid investments that  
are readily convertible to a known amount  
of cash and are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are measured on 
initial recognition at fair value, and are 
subsequently carried at amortised cost. 
Appropriate allowances for estimated 
unrecoverable amounts are recognised in  
the income statement when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired. The 
allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and expected future cash flows.

Available for Sale Investments

Certain shares held by Meridian are classified 
as being available for sale and stated at 
fair value. Gains and losses arising from 
changes in fair value are recognised directly 
in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve, 
until the investment is disposed of or is 
determined to be impaired, at which time the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve 
is included in the income statement for the 
period. Dividend income is recognised in the 
Income Statement separately from other 
changes in fair value.

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Financial assets are presented as held for 
sale if the sale of the asset or disposal group 
to which they relate is highly probable and 
is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition subject only to normal sale terms. 
Meridian measures a non-current asset  
(or disposal group) classified as held for  
sale at the lower of its carrying amount  
and fair value less costs to sell.

Investments in Subsidiaries  
and Joint Ventures

In the financial statements of the Parent 
the cost method is used to account for 
investments in subsidiaries and jointly 
controlled entities.

NON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Meridian currently measures its non 
derivative financial liabilities at amortised 
cost based on the purpose for which they 
were acquired. Meridian establishes the 
category at initial recognition.

Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale

Financial liabilities are presented as held for 
sale if the sale of the asset or disposal group 
to which they relate is highly probable and 
is available for immediate sale in its present 
condition subject only to normal sale terms.

Payables and Accruals

Payables and Accruals are recognised when 
Meridian becomes obligated to make future 
payments resulting from the purchase of 
goods and services.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair 
value, net of transaction costs. Borrowings 
not designated as hedged items are 
subsequently stated at amortised cost and 
any difference between the proceeds (net 
of transaction costs) and the redemption 
value is recognised in the income statement 
over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. Borrowings 
designated as hedged items are carried at 
amortised cost plus a fair value adjustment 
under hedge accounting requirements.

Finance Lease Payable

A lease is classified as a finance lease if 
it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership to the 
lessee. Meridian recognises liabilities under 
finance lease arrangements as a payable at 
an amount equal to the present value of the 
minimum lease payments. Finance lease 
payments are apportioned between principal 
repayments, relating to the lease payable, 
and interest expense. The interest reflects 
a constant periodic rate of return over the 
term of the lease. Finance lease payables  
are classified as financial liabilities at 
amortised cost.

Derivative Financial Instruments  
and Hedge Accounting

Derivatives include cross currency interest 
rate swaps (CCIRSs), interest rate swaps 
(IRSs) (including forward rate agreements 
and interest rate options), foreign exchange 
contracts (FECs) (including currency options) 
and electricity contracts for differences 
(CfDs) (including electricity options).

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date a derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently 
re-measured on a periodic basis at their 
fair value. The method of recognising the 
resulting gain or loss depends on whether 
the derivative is designated as a hedging 
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instrument, and if so, the nature of the item 
being hedged. Meridian designates certain 
derivatives as either:

· hedges of the fair value of recognised 
assets or liabilities or a firm commitment 
(fair value hedge); or 

· hedges of a particular risk associated  
with a recognised asset or liability or  
a highly probable forecast transaction  
(cash flow hedge).

For derivatives designated in a hedge 
relationship, Meridian documents at the 
inception of the transaction the relationship 
between hedging instruments and hedged 
items, as well as its risk management 
objectives and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions. Meridian also 
documents its assessment, both at hedge 
inception and on an ongoing basis, of 
whether the derivatives that are used in 
hedging transactions are highly effective in 
offsetting changes in fair values or cash  
flows of hedged items.

Some derivatives (within risk management 
policy) are not in a designated hedging 
relationship.

FAIR VALUE HEDGE

Changes in the fair value of derivatives 
that are designated and qualify as fair 
value hedges are recorded in the income 
statement in “Net Change in Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments (Financing)” within 
other finance related expenses in respect 
of CCIRSs, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that 
are attributable to the hedged risk. Interest 
expense on the loans designated as hedged 
items in fair value hedges is recognised in 
finance costs.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria 
for hedge accounting, the adjustment to 
the carrying amount of a hedged item is 
amortised to the income statement over  
the period to maturity.

CASH FLOW HEDGE

The effective portion of changes in the fair 
value of derivatives that is designated and 
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised 
in other comprehensive income. The gain 
or loss relating to the ineffective portion 
is recognised immediately in the income 
statement in “Net Change in Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments (Operational)” in 
respect of FECs and “Net Change in Fair 
Value of Financial Instruments (Financing)”  
in respect of CCIRSs.

Amounts accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are recycled in  
the income statement in the periods  
when the hedged item affects profit or loss  
(for instance when the forecast transaction 
that is hedged takes place). The realised 
gain or loss relating to the effective portion 
of derivatives is recognised in the income 
statement on the same line as the  
hedged item.

When the forecast transaction that is hedged 
results in the recognition of a non-financial 
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains 
and losses previously deferred in other 
comprehensive income are transferred from 
other comprehensive income and included 
in the initial measurement of the cost of the 
asset or liability as a “basis adjustment”.

However, if Meridian expects that all or a 
portion of a loss previously deferred in equity 
will not be recovered in one or more future 
periods, the amount that is not expected  
to be recovered is reclassified into profit or 
loss immediately.

When a hedging instrument expires or is 
sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the 
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative 
gain or loss existing in equity at that time 
remains in equity and is recognised when the 
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised 
in the income statement. When a forecast 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, 
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported 
in equity is immediately transferred to the 
income statement.

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED  
AS HEDGES

Derivative instruments that do not qualify 
for hedge accounting or for which hedge 
accounting is not actively sought are 
classified as being held for trading at fair 
value through profit or loss. Changes in 
their fair value (along with the cost of 
material electricity options) are recognised 
immediately in the income statement within 
“Net Change in Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments (Operational)” in respect of CfDs 
and FECs and “Net Change in Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments (Financing)” in respect 
of IRSs. Cash settlements on such derivatives 
will adjust the price of the underlying item to 
which they relate.

DAY 1 ADJUSTMENT

A Day 1 adjustment arises when an 
electricity derivative is entered into at a 
fair value determined to be different from 
the transaction price. To account for this 
difference the derivative valuation model 

is recalibrated by a fixed percentage to 
result in a value at inception equal to 
the transaction price (fair value). This 
recalibration adjustment is then applied to 
future valuations over the life of the contract.

Reserves

The revaluation reserve arises on the 
revaluation of generation structures and 
plant. Where revalued generation structures 
and plant assets are sold, that portion of the 
asset revaluation reserve which relates to 
that asset is transferred directly to retained 
earnings. Where a revalued asset is impaired 
the impairment is recognised in the reserve 
to the extent of any surplus for that asset, 
otherwise the impairment is recognised in 
the income statement.

The foreign currency translation reserve 
comprises all foreign currency differences 
arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of foreign operations.

The cash flow hedge reserve comprises 
the effective portion of the cumulative net 
change in the fair value of cash flow hedging 
instruments relating to hedged transactions 
that have not yet occurred. The cumulative 
deferred gain or loss on the hedge is 
recognised in the income statement when 
the transaction impacts the profit and loss, 
or is included as a basis adjustment to the 
non-financial hedged item, consistent with 
the applicable accounting policy.

The available-for-sale revaluation reserve 
arises on the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets. Where a revalued 
asset is sold, that portion of the reserve 
which relates to that financial asset, and 
is effectively realised, is recognised in 
the income statement. Where a revalued 
financial asset is impaired, the impairment 
is recognised in the reserve to the extent 
of any surplus for that asset, otherwise the 
impairment is recognised in the income 
statement.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of 
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable 
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 
profit as reported in the income statement 
because it excludes items of income and 
expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and it further excludes items 
that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated 
using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period.

1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued) 

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is recognised on differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit, and is 
accounted for using the balance sheet 
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities 
are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. Such assets and 
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary 
difference arises from goodwill or from the 
initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities  
in a transaction that affects neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for 
taxable temporary differences arising on 
investments in subsidiaries and interests 
in joint ventures, except where Meridian is 
able to control the reversal of the temporary 
difference and it is probable that the 
temporary difference will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
is reviewed at each balance date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will 
be available to allow all or part of the asset 
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the period when 
the liability is settled or the asset realised. 
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the 
income statement, except when it relates to 
items charged or credited directly to equity, 
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt 
with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 
when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and when they relate to income 
taxes levied by the same taxation authority 
and Meridian intends to settle its current tax 
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee Benefits

WAGES, SALARIES AND LEAVE

Provision is made for benefits accruing to 
employees in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave, long service leave, and 
employee incentives when it is probable that 
settlement will be required and they are 
capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee 
benefits are measured using the remuneration 
rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Employees (including Senior Management) 
of the Company may receive remuneration in 
the form of share-based payments, whereby 
employees render services as consideration 
for shares (equity settled) or cash (cash 
settled) based on the Company share price. 
The cost of equity settled transactions 
with employees is measured at the fair 
value of the shares at the date at which 
they are granted. The cost of cash settled 
transactions with employees is measured  
at the fair value of the liability at each 
reporting date.

The fair value of equity settled options at 
the grant date is recognised as an expense, 
together with a corresponding increase to 
the share option reserve within equity, over 
the vesting period in which the performance 
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The 
total amount to be expensed is based on the 
fair value of each option along with the best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments 
that will ultimately vest which includes an 
assessment of the likelihood that service 
conditions will be met.

The fair value of the liability associated with 
cash settled transactions is recognised as 
an expense, together with a corresponding 
increase in a share based payment liability, 
over the period in which the performance 
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The 
total amount to be expensed is based on the 
fair value of the liability along with the best 
estimate of the number of notional shares 
that will ultimately vest which includes an 
assessment of the likelihood that service 
conditions will be met.

The expense or credit for a period represents 
the movement in cumulative expense 
recognised as at the beginning and end of 
that period.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The income statement and statement of 
cash flows are prepared on a GST exclusive 
basis. All items in the Statement of Financial 
Position are stated net of GST, except for 
receivables and payables, which include GST.

Environmental Products

Australian Renewable Energy Certificates 
(RECs) are created monthly and validated 
shortly thereafter on the Australian REC 
registry based on the amount of eligible 
renewable electricity generated by certain 

Australian-based facilities. New Zealand 
emission units are allocated by the  
New Zealand government to renewable 
electricity generators on an annual basis. 
Both types of units are readily tradable.

If the units can be measured reliably and it  
is probable that expected future benefits will 
flow to the Group, they are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position. After initial 
recognition at market value, the units are 
reviewed regularly for impairment with any 
movements taken to the Income Statement. 
Initial market value is determined with 
reference to quoted prices.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Meridian 
has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event, and it is probable that Meridian will 
be required to settle that obligation and the 
amount has been reliably estimated.

WARRANTIES

A provision for warranties is recognised as 
a liability when the underlying products or 
services are sold.

Restructuring

Restructuring is a programme planned 
and controlled by Meridian that materially 
changes the scope of a business undertaken 
by Meridian or the manner in which that 
business is conducted by Meridian. Meridian 
recognises a provision for restructuring 
when the Directors have approved a 
detailed formal plan, and restructuring 
has commenced or a public announcement 
regarding the restructuring has been made. 
Costs and expenditures related to ongoing 
operations are not included in the provision 
for restructuring.

Operating Leases

Operating leases are leases where the  
lessor effectively retains substantially all  
the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased items.

Operating lease payments are recognised as 
an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease.

Revenue Recognition

SALE OF ENERGY AND OTHER  
RELATED SERVICES

Revenue comprises amounts received 
or receivable in the ordinary course of 
business for the sale of electricity sold into 
the wholesale electricity market, to retail 
customers and CfD counterparties; and for 
energy related goods and services provided.
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Revenue from a contract to provide dam 
related maintenance services is recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion  
of the contract. The stage of completion  
is assessed by reference to surveys of  
work performed.

DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income is recognised when the right 
to receive payment is established.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised on a time 
proportionate basis using the effective 
interest method.

Energy Related Expenses

Energy related expenses reported in the 
income statement include amounts payable 
for electricity purchased from the wholesale 
market and from CfD counterparties as well 
as energy related services purchased  
from suppliers.

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows is prepared 
exclusive of GST, which is consistent with  
the method used in the income statement. 
The GST component of cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities, 
which is recoverable from or payable to 
the taxation authority, is classified as an 
operating cash flow.

1. Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

2. Segment Reporting

Meridian has determined the operating 
segments based on the reports reviewed  
by the Chief Executive to assess 
performance, allocate resources and  
make strategic decisions.

The Chief Executive assesses the 
performance of the operating segments 
on a measure of EBITDAF. Segment 
EBITDAF represents profit earned by each 
segment before the allocation of central 
administration costs, Directors’ fees, 
equity accounted earnings of joint ventures, 
changes in fair value of financial instruments, 
finance costs, gains/losses on sale of 
property, plant and equipment, subsidiaries 
and investments, depreciation, amortisation, 
impairments and income tax expense.

The following balance sheet items are not 
allocated to operating segments as they  
are not reported to the Chief Executive at  
a segmental level:

• Assets

• Liabilities

• Capital Expenditure

The Chief Executive considers the business 
from the perspective of three reportable 
segments, being Wholesale, Retail and 
International.

Revenues are derived from external 
customers within New Zealand, Australia 
and the United States of America. Meridian 
transacted the equivalent of approximately 
38% (2013: 40%) of its generation output 
to a single counterparty through a CfD. The 
revenues received from this customer are 
attributable to the Wholesale segment.

The revenue from external parties reported 
to the Chief Executive is measured in a 
manner consistent with that in the  
Income Statement.

The accounting policies of the reportable 
segments are the same as Meridian’s 
accounting policies described in Note 1.

Wholesale Segment

The Wholesale segment encompasses 
activity associated with Meridian’s 
generation of electricity and the sale into the 
wholesale electricity market, the purchase 
of electricity from the wholesale electricity 
market to sell to large industrial customers 
and the Retail segment, the development of 
New Zealand renewable energy generation 
opportunities and activities such as risk 
management and dam consultancy services.

Costs to develop New Zealand renewable 
generation opportunities and for dam 
consultancy services offered by Damwatch 
Engineering Limited (previously Damwatch 
Services Limited) are reported as part of 
the Wholesale operating segment as it is 
determined that they have similar long term 
economic characteristics. 

Retail Segment

The Retail segment encompasses activity 
associated with the purchase of electricity 
from the Wholesale segment, the retail sale 
of electricity to retail customers and the 
provision of metering services.

The Retail segment purchases electricity 
from the Wholesale segment at an average 
annual fixed price of $80-$85 per MWh for 
electricity which is sold to customers on 
fixed price, variable volume agreements and 
electricity purchased for customers on spot 
agreements at the prevailing wholesale spot 
market rates.

International Segment

The International segment comprises 
Meridian’s Australian and United States of 
America operations which generate, sell and 
retail electricity into the relevant markets.

On 15 May 2014, CalRENEW-1 LLC, a 
controlled entity involved in the solar 
generation of electricity, was sold as a  
going concern.

On 28 June 2013, Meridian Wind Macarthur 
Holdings Pty Ltd, a controlled entity involved 
in the construction of the Macarthur wind 
farm, was sold as a going concern.

Unallocated

Unallocated encompasses the activities 
and centrally based costs that support 
the Wholesale, Retail, and International 
segments, and includes non-operating 
subsidiaries.

Other segments, which were not considered 
reportable segments, included Meridian’s 
portfolio of subsidiaries that provide 
insurance services and energy solutions 
to industry. On 20 December 2012, Energy 
for Industry Limited, the subsidiary that 
provided energy solutions to industry, was 
sold as a going concern. Consequently, 
“Other segments” has been included in 
Unallocated as it no longer meets the 
characteristics of an operating segment. 
Comparatives have been restated.

Inter-Segment Items

Inter-segment revenue and expenses are 
sales and purchases between the Wholesale, 
Retail and International segments.
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2. Segment Reporting (continued) 

The segment information provided to the Chief Executive for the reportable segments for the year ended 30 June 2014 is as follows:

WHOLESALE
$M

RETAIL
$M

INTERNATIONAL
$M

UNALLOCATED
$M

INTER-SEGMENT 
ITEMS

$M
TOTAL

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 1,862.9 1,120.6 37.4 - (539.4) 2,481.5

Energy Related Expenses (1,063.7) (603.0) (3.2) - 539.4 (1,130.5)

Energy Distribution Expense - (425.3) (2.3) - - (427.6)

Energy Margin 799.2 92.3 31.9 - - 923.4

Other Revenue 9.8 19.7 - 12.2 (14.4) 27.3

Energy Transmission Expense (126.6) - (2.7) - - (129.3)

Gross Margin 682.4 112.0 29.2 12.2 (14.4) 821.4

Employee Expenses (28.3) (32.1) (8.0) (23.0) 0.9 (90.5)

Other Operating Expenses (51.0) (55.5) (10.2) (30.8) 1.9 (145.6)

EBITDAF 603.1 24.4 11.0 (41.6) (11.6) 585.3

Reconciliation of Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 1,862.9 1,120.6 37.4 - (539.4) 2,481.5

Other Revenue 9.8 19.7 - 12.2 (14.4) 27.3

Inter-Segment Revenue (539.4) - - (14.4) 553.8 - 

Revenue from External Customers 1,333.3 1,140.3 37.4 (2.2) - 2,508.8

The segment information provided to the Chief Executive for the reportable segments for the year ended 30 June 2013 is as follows:

WHOLESALE
$M

RETAIL
$M

INTERNATIONAL
$M

UNALLOCATED
$M

INTER-SEGMENT 
ITEMS

$M
TOTAL

$M

Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 2,061.2 1,166.5 51.4 9.7 (607.3) 2,681.5

Energy Related Expenses (1,289.3) (674.8) (0.6) (4.1) 607.3 (1,361.5)

Energy Distribution Expense (1.1) (403.0) (0.1) - - (404.2)

Energy Margin 770.8 88.7 50.7 5.6 - 915.8

Dividend and Other Revenue 12.3 15.1 - 3.0 (0.7) 29.7

Energy Transmission Expense (113.2) - (2.1) - - (115.3)

Gross Margin 669.9 103.8 48.6 8.6 (0.7) 830.2

Employee Expenses (29.3) (28.2) (7.1) (24.0) - (88.6)

Other Operating Expenses (64.2) (58.0) (6.9) (28.2) 0.5 (156.8)

EBITDAF 576.4 17.6 34.6 (43.6) (0.2) 584.8

Reconciliation of Operating Revenue

Energy Sales Revenue 2,061.2 1,166.5 51.4 9.7 (607.3) 2,681.5

Dividend and Other Revenue 12.3 15.1 - 3.0 (0.7) 29.7

Inter-Segment Revenue (607.5) - - (0.5) 608.0 - 

Revenue from External Customers 1,466.0 1,181.6 51.4 12.2 - 2,711.2
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2. Segment Reporting (continued) 

GROUP

INFORMATION RELATING TO GEOGRAPHICAL AREA OPERATIONS
2014

$M
2013

$M

Total Revenue in:

New Zealand 2,471.4 2,659.8

Australia 34.8 48.3

United States of America 2.6 3.1

2,508.8 2,711.2

Reconciliation of EBITDAF to profit before tax provided as follows:

GROUP

2014
$M

2013
$M

EBITDAF for Reportable Segments 638.5 628.6

Unallocated and Inter Segment EBITDAF (53.2) (43.8)

Total Group EBITDAF 585.3 584.8

Impairment of Assets - (24.8)

Gain on Sale of Assets 6.6 106.6

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.4) 0.1

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (21.4) (18.5)

Depreciation (198.6) (201.2)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain 18.6 93.8

Finance Costs and Other Finance Related Income/(Expenses) (73.7) (113.5)

Group Profit before Tax 316.4 427.3

3. Operating Expenses

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Employee Expenses include:

Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans 3.2 2.4 2.6 2.0

Movement in Share Based Incentives 0.4 - 0.4 - 

Other Operating Expenses include:

Foreign Exchange Losses 1.4 - - - 

Operating Lease Payments 5.3 5.2 3.9 4.0

Initial Public Offer (IPO) costs1 8.3 2.9 8.3 2.9

1 Includes IPO related services performed by Deloitte. 

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Auditor General has appointed Michael 
Wilkes of Deloitte as auditor of the company. 
Michael Wilkes has been auditor of the 
company since 2012. The amount payable by 
Meridian and its subsidiaries to Deloitte as 
audit fees in respect of 2014 was $0.6 million 
(2013:$0.6 million).

The Board has adopted a strict policy to 
maintain the independence of the Company’s 
external auditor, including a review of all 
other services performed by Deloitte and 
recommending to the Office of the Auditor 
General that there be lead partner rotation 
after a maximum of 5 years.

Other services undertaken by Deloitte  
during the year totalled $0.6 million 
(2013:$0.2 million). This related to other 
assurance activity including investigating 
accountant services during Meridian’s IPO.
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3. Operating Expenses (continued) 

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Auditor’s Remuneration to Deloitte for:

Audit of financial statements

Audit and review of New Zealand-based Companies’ Financial Statements1 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3

Audit of Overseas-based Companies’ Financial Statements 0.1 0.1 - - 

0.6 0.6 0.4 0.3

Other services

IPO related services 0.5 - 0.5 - 

Other2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.6 0.2 0.6 0.1

Total Auditor’s Remuneration 1.2 0.8 1.0 0.4

1 Includes Office of the Auditor General overhead contribution of $27,000 (2013: $26,500), and includes the fees for both the annual 
audit of the financial statements and the review of the interim financial statements.

2 In addition to the audit of the Financial Statements and IPO related services, Deloitte performed other assurance activities including 
reviews of carbon emissions, securities registers, solvency return of insurance captive and trustee reporting.

4. Share Based Payments

Recognised employee share based payment expense

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of employee benefit expense were  
as below:

GROUP & PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

Expense for equity settled share based payment transactions 0.4 -

Long Term Incentive

During the period the Group established  
a long-term equity settled incentive plan  
for New Zealand based senior executives. 
It is designed to enhance the alignment 
between Shareholders and those executives 
most able to influence the performance of 
the company. 

Under the plan senior executives have the 
option to purchase shares at market value 
funded by an interest free loan from the 
Company, with the shares held on trust by 
the Trustee of the long term incentive (LTI) 
plan until the end of the vesting period. 
Vesting of shares is dependent on continued 
employment through the vesting period.  
It is also dependent on: the Company 
achieving a positive total shareholder 
return over the period and the Company’s 
performance relative to the benchmark peer 

group. If the Company’s total shareholder 
return performance over the vesting 
period exceeds the 50th percentile total 
shareholder return of the benchmark peer 
group, 50% of the shares will vest. 100% of 
an executive’s shares will vest upon meeting 
the performance of the 75th percentile of 
the benchmark peer group, with vesting on a 
straight line basis between these two points. 
In the event that total shareholder return is 
negative over the period or less than 50th 
percentile of the benchmark peer group,  
no shares will vest. The benchmark peer 
group comprises a selected number of NZX 
and ASX listed electricity generators and 
energy retailers.

Should the relevant total shareholder return 
performance hurdle not be met, or if the 
executive ceases to be employed by the 
Company other than for a qualifying reason, 

or the executive does not execute the option, 
the shares or notional shares will be forfeited 
to the trustee without compensation and the 
relevant executive will receive no benefits 
(subject to the Board exercising a discretion 
to allow some or all of the shares or notional 
shares to vest). 

If the shares vest, executives are entitled to  
a bonus amount which, after deduction of 
tax, is equal to the loan balance at grant 
date for the shares which have vested. That 
amount must be applied towards repayment 
of their loan balance and the corresponding 
shares are released by the trustee to the 
individual. The initial vesting period for the 
plan is from January 2014 to June 2016.

The plan represents the grant of in-
substance nil-price options to executives. 
The fair value of the options granted under 
the plan are estimated as at the date of  
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grant using an option pricing model that 
takes into account the terms and conditions 
upon which the options were granted.  
In accordance with the rules of the plans,  
the model simulates the Company’s total 

shareholder return and compares it against 
the peer group over the vesting period. 
The model takes into account the historical 
dividends, share price volatilities and  
co-variances of the Company and peer  

group to produce a predicted distribution  
of relative share performance. This is applied 
to the relevant grant to give an expected 
value of the total shareholder return element 
for the plan.

The balance of zero-priced share options (due to vest in June 2016) is as follows:

GROUP & PARENT

2014
NO OF OPTIONS

2013
NO OF OPTIONS

Opening Balance - -

Granted during the period 908,166 -

Closing Balance 908,166 -

The weighted average fair value of these 
options at grant date was $0.825 per option 
(2013: Nil). 

5. Impairment of Assets

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - 19.1 - 19.1

Impairment of Held for Sale Assets - 5.7 - - 

Impairment of Subsidiary Advances - - 5.6 2.0

- 24.8 5.6 21.1

Impairment of Property, Plant  
and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment has not  
been impaired in 2014 (2013: $19.1 million).

Prior Financial Year

The 2013 Property, Plant and Equipment 
impairments of $19.1 million included the 
North Bank Tunnel Hydro Project ($17.9 
million) and other early stage development 
projects ($1.2 million).

Impairment of Held for Sale Assets

Held for Sale Assets have not been impaired 
in 2014 (2013: $5.7 million).

Prior Financial Year

In 2013, the Group impaired two proposed 
solar developments in the USA (Jacobs Creek 
and San Luis Valley Projects) by $5.7 million.

Impairment of Advances  
to Subsidiaries

MEL Solar Holdings Limited  

Following the Group’s sale of CalRENEW-1,  
the Parent’s loan to MEL Solar Holdings 
Limited was tested for impairment. As a 
result of restructuring the US business prior 
to sale and a stronger currency, the Parent 
has recorded an impairment of $5.6 million 
on the loan.

Prior Financial Year

In 2013, the Parent recognised an impairment 
totalling $2.0 million in respect of its loan to 
MEL Solar Holdings Limited.

4. Share Based Payments (continued) 
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6. Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets

GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.3 (0.2) 13.8 0.3

Gain on Sale of Investments Available for Sale 0.2 - 0.2 - 

(Loss)/Gain on Sale of Subsidiaries 17 (4.9) 107.3 - 8.8

Loss on Sale of Finance Lease Receivable - (0.5) - (0.5)

Total Gain on Sale of Assets 6.6 106.6 14.0 8.6

7. Finance Costs

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Interest on Borrowings 87.9 123.0 73.3 81.6

Interest on Finance Lease Payable 3.7 - 0.3 -

Less Capitalised Interest (9.4) (7.9) (6.4) (1.8)

82.2 115.1 67.2 79.8

Interest is capitalised during construction  
of assets that take a substantial period  
of time and where borrowing costs are 
directly attributable to the construction  
of those assets.

Total interest expense for financial liabilities 
at amortised cost is $33.4 million  
(2013: $59.6 million).

8. Interest Income

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Interest Income on Financial Assets at amortised cost: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.5 1.6 7.0 0.9

Loans to Subsidiaries - - 9.2 28.7

8.5 1.6 16.2 29.6
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9. Income Tax Expense

GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax Expense

Current Income Tax Charge 110.6 100.3 113.6 87.2

Adjustments Regarding Current Income Tax of Prior Years (6.2) (5.7) (3.6) (5.6)

Total Current Tax Expense 104.4 94.6 110.0 81.6

Deferred Tax Expense

Relating to Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (17.8) 37.6 (12.2) 38.9

Total Deferred Tax Expense 22 (17.8) 37.6 (12.2) 38.9

Total Income Tax Expense 86.6 132.2 97.8 120.5

Income Tax Expense can be reconciled to Accounting Profit as follows:

Profit Before Tax 316.4 427.3 362.8 374.0

Income Tax at Applicable Tax Rates 88.0 120.2 101.6 104.7

Tax Effect of Expenditure Not Deductible for Tax 5.5 9.8 4.6 7.1

Tax Effect of Income Not Subject to Tax (4.3) (0.9) (4.3) (2.5)

Income Tax (Over)/Under Provided in Prior Year (2.6) 3.1 (0.9) 11.2

Inter-Company Dividend Received Not Subject to Tax - - (3.2) (0.1)

Other - - - 0.1

Income Tax Expense 86.6 132.2 97.8 120.5

Applicable Group tax rates for the current 
and prior financial years are 28% for  
New Zealand and 30% for Australia.

The discontinuation of tax depreciation on 
buildings with a useful life of greater than 
50 years was effective for the Group on 
1 July 2011. The effect of this change was 
reflected in the Income Statement in 2010 
($14.7 million). At the time Meridian used 
judgement in regard to the tax definition of 
buildings with the above ground structure 
of Generation Structures and Plant being 

treated as buildings. Meridian maintains 
this view but took a further provision in 2012 
due to the Inland Revenue Department’s 
current interpretation of the definition of 
buildings that in relation to generation assets 
includes the structures below ground. The 
effect included in the Income Statement in 
2012 was $23.6 million. This approach has 
been reflected in the tax returns for the 2012 
and 2013 tax years (resulting in a combined 
increased tax payable of $2.7 million) 
however the Group is still disputing the 
interpretation.

In addition to the income tax charge to the 
income statement, deferred tax credits 
(representing temporary differences) of  
$4.7 million for the Group (2013: $124.1 million 
credit) and $1.6 million for the Parent (2013: 
$133.4 million credit) have been recognised 
in equity for the year (see Note 22 –  
Deferred Tax).

At balance date the imputation credits 
available for use in future periods were 
Group $73.1 million (2013: $50.8 million)  
and Parent $73.1 million (2013: $50.6 million).

10. Earnings per Share

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE OF THE GROUP
2014

$M
2013

$M

Profit After Tax Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent Company 229.8 295.1

Number of shares on issue at 30 June 2,562,034,984 1,600,000,002

Number of shares used as the basis for the calculation of Earnings per Share 2,562,034,984 2,562,034,984

Basic Earnings per Share ($) 0.09 0.12

Diluted Earnings per Share ($) 0.09 0.12
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11. Equity

Share Capital

2014
SHARES

2014
$M

2013
SHARES

2013
$M

Opening Balance of Ordinary Shares issued 1,600,000,002 1,600.0 1,600,000,002 1,600.0

Bonus Shares Issued 962,999,998 - - - 

Treasury shares acquired1 (965,016) (1.4) - - 

Closing Balance of Ordinary Shares issued 2,562,034,984 1,598.6 1,600,000,002 1,600.0

1 Includes provision for payment of final instalment of $0.50 per share.

On 19 September 2013 Meridian issued 
962,999,998 bonus shares for total 
consideration of $1.

All shares are fully paid and have equal 
voting rights. All shares participate equally in 
any dividend distribution or any surplus  
on the winding up of the Company.

Changes to the Companies Act in 1993 
abolished the authorised capital and par 
value concept in relation to share capital 
from 1 July 1994. Therefore the Company 
does not have a limited amount of authorised 
capital and issued shares do not have  
a par value.

As outlined in Note 4 – Share Based 
Payments, the Group established a long-
term equity settled incentive plan for  
New Zealand based senior executives during 
the period. The movement in treasury shares 
during the period relates to the purchase  
of shares by a trustee as part of this plan.

12. Dividends

2014
$M

2014
CENTS PER 

SHARE1
2013

$M

2013
CENTS PER 

SHARE1

2014 Interim Dividend Paid 108.8 4.2 - - 

2013 Final Dividend Paid 152.6 6.0 - - 

2013 Interim Dividend Paid - - 99.8 3.9

261.4 10.2 99.8 3.9

1 Based on the number of shares on issue at time of dividend payment.

On the 17 August 2014 the Board declared  
a partially imputed final ordinary dividend  
of $174.8 million (6.82 cents per share), before 
supplementary dividends for international 

investors. This takes total ordinary dividends 
declared in respect of the 2014 financial 
year to $282.2 million (11.01 cents per share). 
Additionally on the 17 August 2014 the Board 

declared a partially imputed special  
dividend of $51.3 million (2.00 cents per 
share), before supplementary dividends  
for international investors. 

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Current Account 241.8 335.9 203.5 18.7

Money Market Account 34.6 46.9 34.1 46.1

Cash and cash equivalents 276.4 382.8 237.6 64.8

There are no cash and cash equivalent 
balances that are not available for use by the 
Group with the exception of funds held on 
deposit with J.P. Morgan. The Group trades  
on the ASX using J.P. Morgan as a broker.  

As a result, a proportion of the funds it holds 
on deposit are pledged as margin which 
varies depending on the market volatility 
and contracts held. At 30 June 2014, this 
collateral was $5.8 million for the Parent and 

$6.6 million for the Group (2013 Parent:  
$7.8 million and Group: $9.4 million).

All cash and cash equivalents are held with 
money market dealers, J.P. Morgan and banks.
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14. Accounts Receivable

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Current

Billed and Accrued Receivables 185.8 199.3 164.2 177.9

Promissory Note - 59.1 - - 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (3.1) (3.9) (2.7) (3.6)

Total Accounts Receivable 182.7 254.5 161.5 174.3

Movement in Provision for Doubtful Debts

Opening Provision for Doubtful Debts (3.9) (6.6) (3.6) (6.3)

Provision Created During the Year (7.0) (5.9) (5.8) (4.8)

Provision Used During the Year 7.8 8.6 6.7 7.5

Closing Provision for Doubtful Debts (3.1) (3.9) (2.7) (3.6)

Trade Receivables Ageing

Not Past Due 175.4 245.9 155.8 170.3

Past Due 1-30 days 5.2 7.3 3.8 3.1

Past Due 31-60 1.8 0.9 1.5 0.6

Past Due 61-90 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.8

Past Due > 90 days 2.4 3.4 2.2 3.1

185.8 258.4 164.2 177.9

Trade receivables that are less than 90 
days past due are generally not considered 
impaired. As of 30 June 2014 trade 
receivables of $7.3 million for the Group 
(2013: $8.6 million) and $5.7 million for the 
Parent (2013: $4.0 million) were past due but 
not impaired. These relate to energy sales 
to a number of independent customers for 
whom there is no recent history of default.

Receivables more than 90 days overdue 
relate mainly to retail electricity customers 
of which some of the balance is disputed.  
It is assessed that a portion of these 
receivables is likely to be recovered.

Meridian maintains a doubtful debt  
provision that reflects the limited likelihood 
of payment defaults. Meridian considers  
that the carrying amount of accounts 
receivable approximates their fair values. 
Trade receivables written off during the  
year were $7.8 million for the Group  
(2013: $8.6 million) and $6.7 million for  
the Parent (2013: $7.5 million).

15. Assets and Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Arc Innovations Limited 12.8 - 29.5 - 

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated - 24.0 - - 

Farm Related Assets 13.7 40.8 13.7 40.8

Total Assets Held for Sale 26.5 64.8 43.2 40.8

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated - 2.0 - - 

Farm Related Liabilities 0.2 0.7 0.2 0.7

Arc Innovations Limited 1.1 - - - 

Total Liabilities Held For Sale 1.3 2.7 0.2 0.7

Net Assets Classified as Held for Sale 25.2 62.1 43.0 40.1
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15. Assets and Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale (continued) 

The major classes of assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Accounts Receivable 0.8 0.6 - - 

Other Assets 0.1 - - - 

Available for Sale Investments 3.7 5.9 3.7 5.9

Intangible Assets 0.9 - - - 

Property, Plant & Equipment 21.0 58.3 10.0 34.9

Investment in Subsidiaries - - 29.5 - 

Total Assets Classified as Held For Sale 26.5 64.8 43.2 40.8

Payables and Accruals 1.3 2.7 0.2 0.7

Total Liabilities Classified as Held For Sale 1.3 2.7 0.2 0.7

Net Assets Classified as held for sale 25.2 62.1 43.0 40.1

Arc Innovations Limited

Meridian is actively marketing its interest 
in Arc Innovations Limited with a view to 
selling, therefore it is now classified as held 
for sale at carrying value of $11.7 million  
(not held for sale in the prior year).

Arc Innovations Limited forms part  
of Meridian’s Retail Segment.

Farm Related Assets

Meridian is committed to an active 
programme to sell land, buildings and other 
farm assets that are no longer required for 
development projects. 

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated

In accordance with its decision to market 
its US assets for sale, Meridian Energy USA 
Incorporated sold its interest in CalRENEW-1 
LLC during the financial year resulting in a 
loss of $4.9 million (refer Note 17).

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated formed 
part of Meridian’s International Segment.

16. Other Assets

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Prepayments 6.5 7.4 6.0 7.1

Inventory 6.6 4.3 5.8 4.3

Finance Lease Receivable – Current 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2

New Zealand Carbon Credit Units 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.1

Australian Renewable Energy Certificates 3.8 0.5 - - 

Total Other Assets – Current 17.5 12.5 12.4 11.7

Finance Lease Receivable – Non Current 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.6

Total Other Assets – Non Current 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.6

Total Other Assets 17.9 13.1 12.8 12.3
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16. Other Assets (continued) 

Inventory

Inventory utilised is recognised in the Income 
Statement as follows:

• other operating expenses (Group  
$0.6 million (2013: $0.2 million),  
Parent $0.4 million (2013: Parent Nil))

• energy related costs (Group Nil  
(2013: $0.5 million), Parent Nil  
(2013: $0.5 million))

Certain inventory items are subject to 
retention of title clauses.

Finance Lease Receivables

In 2013 Meridian entered into an arrangement 
with Tonga Power Limited to provide lease 
finance for Popua Solar Farm. The lease is for 
a period of 5 years.

New Zealand Carbon Credit Units

NZ carbon credit units are a consequence of 
the Parent’s acquisition of Rototuna Forest, 
Pouto Peninsula to secure land and access 
for a development project. 

Australian Renewable Energy 
Certificates (RECs)

Australian RECs are earnt through renewable 
energy generation at Australian windfarms.

17. Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries comprise shares at cost less impairments

NAME OF ENTITY INCORPORATED PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY INTEREST HELD BY PARENT

2014
%

2014
$M

2013
%

2013
$M

Damwatch Engineering Limited Professional Services 100% - 100% - 

Three River Holdings (No.1) Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 107.1 100% 82.5

Meridian Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% - 100% - 

ARC Innovations Limited Metering Services - - 100% 29.5

Meridian Energy Captive Insurance Limited Insurance Company 100% 2.5 100% 2.5

Meridian Energy International Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% 50.0 100% 50.0

Meridian (Whisper Tech) Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% - 100% - 

Meridian (Whisper Tech No.2) Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% - 100% - 

Powershop New Zealand Limited Electricity Retailer 100% 15.9 100% 11.9

MEL Solar Holdings Limited Holding Company 100% - 100% - 

Whisper Tech Limited2 Non-Trading Entity 30% - 30% - 

Meridian LTI Trustee Limited 13/09/2013 Trustee Company 100% - - - 

175.5 176.4

Held for Sale

ARC Innovations Limited Metering Services 100% 29.5 - -

1 Member of Guaranteeing Group.
2 The Parent holds 29.77% of Whisper Tech Limited with WhisperGen Limited (Controlled Entity) holding 70.23%.
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17. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 

Controlled Entities (Other Subsidiaries)

SOLD/DISSOLVED PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY INTEREST HELD BY GROUP

NAME OF ENTITY 2014 2013

Three River Holdings (No.2) Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

WhisperGen Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Whisper Tech Limited Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Damwatch Projects Limited Professional Services 100% 100%

Incorporated in Australia

Damwatch Pty Limited Professional Services 100% 100%

Meridian Australia Holdings Pty Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Meridian Wind Australia Holdings Pty Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Meridian Energy Markets Pty Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Meridian Wind Monaro Range Holdings Pty Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Meridian Wind Monaro Range Pty Limited1 Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Mt Mercer Windfarm Pty Limited1 Electricity Generation 100% 100%

Meridian Energy Australia Pty Limited1 Management Services 100% 100%

MEL Meridian Australia Partnership1, 3 12/05/14 Financing Entity - 100%

Meridian Finco Pty Limited1 Financing Company 100% 100%

Mt Millar Wind Farm Pty Limited1 Electricity Generation 100% 100%

Powershop Australia Pty Limited Electricity Retailer 100% 100%

Incorporated in United Kingdom

Whisper Tech (UK) Limited² Non-Trading Entity 100% 100%

Incorporated in United States of America

Meridian Energy USA Incorporated Development 100% 100%

CalRENEW-1 LLC 15/05/14 Electricity Generation - 100%

Jacob Canal Solar Farm LLC3 18/06/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

Laurel West Solar Farm LLC3 15/05/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

Laurel East Solar Farm LLC3 15/05/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

Hatteson Solar Farm LLC3 8/05/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

San Luis Valley Solar Farm LLC3 8/05/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

Desert Butte LLC3 8/05/14 Non-Trading Entity - 100%

1 Members of Guaranteeing Group.
2 Liquidation complete and will be struck off the UK Companies Register on 11 September 2014.
3 Dissolved.

Balance Dates

All subsidiaries have a balance date of 
30 June except for Meridian Energy USA 
Incorporated, CalRENEW-1 LLC, Jacob  
Canal Solar Farm LLC, Laurel West Solar 
Farm LLC, Laurel East Solar Farm LLC, 
Hatteson Solar Farm LLC, San Luis Valley 
Solar Farm LLC and Desert Butte LLC 
that have balance dates of 31 December. 
The results to 30 June 2014 have been 
incorporated in these financial statements.

As noted below, Meridian exited its US assets 
with the sale of CalRENEW-1 LLC during the 
financial year. As a result Jacob Canal Solar 
Farm LLC, Laurel West Solar Farm LLC, 
Laurel East Solar Farm LLC, Hatteson Solar 
Farm LLC, San Luis Valley Solar Farm LLC and 
Desert Butte LLC were dissolved.

Financial Support

Meridian Energy Limited provides support 
to its subsidiaries where necessary in order 
to ensure they meet their obligations as they 
fall due.
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17. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 

Disposal of Controlled Entities

CalRENEW-1 LLC

On 15 May 2014 the Group disposed of  
its entire interest in CalRENEW-1 LLC,  
a controlled entity of the Parent. Based  
on draft completion accounts as at  
the same date, a loss of $4.9 million is 
recognised in the Group Income Statement.

2014
$M

Assets and Liabilities disposed of:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.8

Accounts Receivable 0.4

Property, Plant and Equipment 16.0

Other Long Term Assets 0.6

Term Payables (0.3)

Assets and Liabilities Disposed 18.5

Cash Proceeds (18.5)

Reclassification of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 4.9

Loss on Disposal 4.9 

18. Joint Ventures

Equity Accounted Joint Ventures

Details of the Group’s Equity Accounted Joint Ventures are as follows:

NAME OF ENTITY COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION DATE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY VOTING RIGHTS HELD  
BY GROUP

INTEREST HELD  
BY GROUP

2014 2013 2014 2013

EDDI Project JV New Zealand 1/05/12 Dam Management Systems 50% 50% 50% 50%

Hunter Downs JV New Zealand 1/07/13 Irrigation Development 50% - 100% -

On 1 May 2012 Damwatch Projects Limited 
entered into an unincorporated joint venture 
with GNS Science International Limited to 
provide dam consultancy in Vietnam.  
The carrying value of the investment at  
30 June 2014 is $20,900 (2013: $11,100).

On 1 July 2013 Meridian Energy Limited 
entered into an agreement with Hunter 
Downs Irrigation Limited to investigate 
irrigation options in the South Island. During 
the period, Meridian changed the accounting 
treatment of Hunter Downs Development 
Company to recognise the entity as a joint 

venture as it was determined that despite 
holding 100% of the shares, the Group did 
not have control (the venture was previously 
recognised by the Group as a subsidiary). 
The carrying value of the investment at  
30 June 2014 is $0.2 million (2013: $Nil).
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19. Intangible Assets

GROUP

SOFTWARE 
$M

GOODWILL  
$M

LICENCE 
AGREEMENT 

$M

PATENTS AND 
TRADEMARKS 

$M

CUSTOMER 
ACQUISITION 

COSTS  
$M

TOTAL  
$M

Cost or Fair Value

Balance at 1 July 2012 87.0 15.9 22.4 1.6 66.9 193.8

Acquisitions 32.0 - - - - 32.0

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements (0.1) (0.2) - - - (0.3)

Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 20.6 - - - - 20.6

Sale of Subsidiary (4.5) - - - - (4.5)

Disposals (1.3) - - - - (1.3)

Balance at 30 June 2013 133.7 15.7 22.4 1.6 66.9 240.3

Balance at 1 July 2013 133.7 15.7 22.4 1.6 66.9 240.3

Acquisitions 20.3 - - - - 20.3

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements 0.1 (0.2) - - - (0.1)

Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 1.4 - - - - 1.4

Transfer to Assets Classified as Held for Sale (1.6) - - (1.6) - (3.2)

Disposals (0.3) - - - - (0.3)

Balance at 30 June 2014 153.6 15.5 22.4 - 66.9 258.4

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment

Balance at 1 July 2012 (64.5) (13.2) (22.4) (1.5) (65.4) (167.0)

Amortisation during Year (18.4) - - (0.1) - (18.5)

Sale of Subsidiary 0.2 - - - (1.5) (1.3)

Disposals 1.3 - - - - 1.3

Balance at 30 June 2013 (81.4) (13.2) (22.4) (1.6) (66.9) (185.5)

Balance at 1 July 2013 (81.4) (13.2) (22.4) (1.6) (66.9) (185.5)

Amortisation during Year (21.4) - - - (21.4)

Transfer to Assets Classified as Held for Sale 0.7 - - 1.6 - 2.3

Disposals 0.2 - - - - 0.2

Balance at 30 June 2014 (101.9) (13.2) (22.4) - (66.9) (204.4)

Net Book Value

Net Book Value 30 June 2012 22.5 2.7 - 0.1 1.5 26.8

Net Book Value 30 June 2013 52.3 2.5 - - - 54.8

Net Book Value 30 June 2014 51.7 2.3 - - - 54.0

Goodwill

The goodwill balance represents $2.3 
million (2013:$2.5 million) in relation to the 
acquisition of Mt Millar Windfarm Pty Ltd. 
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19. Intangible Assets (continued) 

PARENT

SOFTWARE 
$M

CUSTOMER 
ACQUISITION 

COSTS  
$M

TOTAL  
$M

Cost or Fair Value

Balance at 1 July 2012 82.2 65.2 147.4

Acquisitions 25.6 - 25.6

Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 19.8 - 19.8

Disposals (1.2) - (1.2)

Balance at 30 June 2013 126.4 65.2 191.6

Balance at 1 July 2013 126.4 65.2 191.6

Acquisitions 17.5 - 17.5

Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 1.0 - 1.0

Disposals (0.3) - (0.3)

Balance at 30 June 2014 144.6 65.2 209.8

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment

Balance at 1 July 2012 (61.6) (65.2) (126.8)

Amortisation During Year (17.3) - (17.3)

Disposals 1.2 - 1.2

Balance at 30 June 2013 (77.7) (65.2) (142.9)

Balance at 1 July 2013 (77.7) (65.2) (142.9)

Amortisation During Year (19.2) - (19.2)

Disposals 0.2 - 0.2

Balance at 30 June 2014 (96.7) (65.2) (161.9)

Net Book Value

Net Book Value 30 June 2012 20.6 - 20.6

Net Book Value 30 June 2013 48.7 - 48.7

Net Book Value 30 June 2014 47.9 - 47.9
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20. Property, Plant & Equipment

GROUP

GENERATION 
STRUCTURES  

AND PLANT  
AT FAIR VALUE

$M

FREEHOLD  
LAND  

AT COST 
$M

 FREEHOLD 
BUILDINGS  

AT COST 
$M

OTHER  
PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT  

AT COST
$M

CAPITAL  
WORK IN 

PROGRESS  
AT COST 

$M
TOTAL  

$M

Cost or Fair Value

Balance at 1 July 2012 7,329.8 40.1 13.0 177.1 726.9 8,286.9

Additions - - - 0.1 276.6 276.7

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements1 (18.5) - - (0.1) (40.7) (59.3)

Reversal of revaluation gains2 (849.0) - - - - (849.0)

Transfers from Capital Work in Progress 3.3 2.9 1.0 10.4 (17.6) - 

Transfers to Finance Lease Receivable - - - - (623.3) (623.3)

Transfers to Assets Held For Sale - (29.2) (3.2) (3.5) - (35.9)

Transfers to Liabilities Held for Sale - 0.3 - - - 0.3

Transfer to Intangible Assets - - - 0.1 (20.7) (20.6)

Disposals (0.1) (0.5) (0.9) (44.3) (5.7) (51.5)

Reclassification 1.7 - (0.3) (1.4) - - 

Balance at 30 June 2013 6,467.2 13.6 9.6 138.4 295.5 6,924.3

Balance at 1 July 2013 6,467.2 13.6 9.6 138.4 295.5 6,924.3

Additions 6.7 - - - 339.6 346.3

Additions through Finance Lease Payable - - - - 48.8 48.8

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements1 (17.1) - - (0.1) (14.6) (31.8)

Transfers from Capital Work in Progress 310.5 4.4 0.1 59.2 (374.2) - 

Transfers from/(to) Assets Held For Sale - 9.7 - (32.9) (0.4) (23.6)

Transfer to Intangible Assets - - - - (1.4) (1.4)

Disposals (1.4) (0.4) - (6.6) - (8.4)

Balance at 30 June 2014 6,765.9 27.3 9.7 158.0 293.3 7,254.2

1 Through the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.
2 Through the Revaluation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.

In 2013, the $623.3 million transfer to finance 
lease receivable represents the conversion 
of previously capitalised construction costs 
associated with the Macarthur Wind Farm 
to a finance lease based on the terms of the 
Joint Venture.

Other Plant and Equipment include Plant and 
Equipment subject to Finance leases that 
have a net book value of $48.3 million.
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20. Property, Plant & Equipment (continued) 

GROUP

GENERATION 
STRUCTURES  

AND PLANT  
AT FAIR VALUE

$M

FREEHOLD  
LAND  

AT COST 
$M

 FREEHOLD 
BUILDINGS  

AT COST 
$M

OTHER  
PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT  

AT COST
$M

CAPITAL  
WORK IN 

PROGRESS  
AT COST 

$M
TOTAL  

$M

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 1 July 2012 (195.6) - (2.8) (93.5) (31.4) (323.3)

Depreciation Expense (183.1) - (0.3) (17.8) - (201.2)

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements1 2.2 - - - - 2.2

Disposals - - 0.1 11.2 - 11.3

Transfer to Assets Held For Sale - - 0.5 1.5 - 2.0

Offset of Accumulated Depreciation on 
Revaluation Reversal2 372.8 - - - - 372.8

Reclassification (0.4) - - 0.4 - - 

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - - - (0.1) (19.0) (19.1)

Balance at 30 June 2013 (4.1) - (2.5) (98.3) (50.4) (155.3)

Balance at 1 July 2013 (4.1) - (2.5) (98.3) (50.4) (155.3)

Depreciation Expense (179.9) - (0.3) (18.4) - (198.6)

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Movements1 0.2 - - - - 0.2

Disposals 0.2 - - 6.0 - 6.2

Transfer to Assets Held For Sale - - - 22.3 - 22.3

Balance at 30 June 2014 (183.6) - (2.8) (88.4) (50.4) (325.2)

Net Book Value

Net Book Value 30 June 2012 7,134.2 40.1 10.2 83.6 695.5 7,963.6

Net Book Value 30 June 2013 6,463.1 13.6 7.1 40.1 245.1 6,769.0

Net Book Value 30 June 2014 6,582.3 27.3 6.9 69.6 242.9 6,929.0

1 Through the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.
2 Through the Revaluation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.
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20. Property, Plant & Equipment (continued) 

PARENT

GENERATION 
STRUCTURES  

AND PLANT  
AT FAIR VALUE

$M

FREEHOLD  
LAND  

AT COST 
$M

 FREEHOLD 
BUILDINGS  

AT COST 
$M

OTHER  
PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT  

AT COST
$M

CAPITAL  
WORK IN 

PROGRESS  
AT COST 

$M
TOTAL  

$M

Cost or Fair Value

Balance at 1 July 2012 7,084.5 39.6 12.1 100.5 154.4 7,391.1

Additions - - - 0.1 59.0 59.1

Reversal of revaluation gains1 (817.9) - - - - (817.9)

Transfers from Capital Work in Progress 3.2 2.9 1.0 7.0 (14.1) - 

Transfer to Finance Lease Receivable - - - - (0.3) (0.3)

Transfers to Assets Held for Sale - (29.2) (3.2) (3.5) - (35.9)

Transfer to Liabilities Held for Sale - 0.3 - - - 0.3

Transfers to Intangible Assets - - - - (19.8) (19.8)

Disposals (0.4) - - (5.1) - (5.5)

Reclassification 1.7 - (0.3) (1.4) - - 

Balance at 30 June 2013 6,271.1 13.6 9.6 97.6 179.2 6,571.1

Balance at 1 July 2013 6,271.1 13.6 9.6 97.6 179.2 6,571.1

Additions - - - - 141.2 141.2

Addition of Finance Lease Payable - - - - 6.3 6.3

Transfers from Capital Work in Progress 17.0 4.4 0.1 15.3 (36.8) - 

Transfers to Assets Held for Sale - 9.7 - - (0.4) 9.3

Transfers to Intangible Assets - - - - (1.0) (1.0)

Disposals (1.0) (0.4) - (5.8) - (7.2)

Balance at 30 June 2014 6,287.1 27.3 9.7 107.1 288.5 6,719.7

1 Through the Revaluation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.

Other Plant and Equipment include Plant  
and Equipment subject to Finance leases  
that have a net book value of $7.6 million.
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20. Property, Plant & Equipment (continued) 

PARENT

GENERATION 
STRUCTURES  

AND PLANT  
AT FAIR VALUE

$M

FREEHOLD  
LAND  

AT COST 
$M

 FREEHOLD 
BUILDINGS  

AT COST 
$M

OTHER  
PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT  

AT COST
$M

CAPITAL  
WORK IN 

PROGRESS  
AT COST 

$M
TOTAL  

$M

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 1 July 2012 (172.9) - (2.7) (75.1) (27.7) (278.4)

Depreciation Expense (172.5) - (0.3) (8.8) - (181.6)

Disposals - - - 5.0 - 5.0

Transfer to Assets Classified as Held For Sale - - 0.5 1.5 - 2.0

Offset of Accumulated Depreciation on 
Revaluation Reversal1 341.7 - - - - 341.7

Reclassification (0.4) - - 0.4 - - 

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - - - (0.1) (19.0) (19.1)

Balance at 30 June 2013 (4.1) - (2.5) (77.1) (46.7) (130.4)

Balance at 1 July 2013 (4.1) - (2.5) (77.1) (46.7) (130.4)

Depreciation Expense (166.7) - (0.3) (7.9) - (174.9)

Disposals 0.2 - - 5.8 - 6.0

Balance at 30 June 2014 (170.6) - (2.8) (79.2) (46.7) (299.3)

Net Book Value

Net Book Value 30 June 2012 6,911.6 39.6 9.4 25.4 126.7 7,112.7

Net Book Value 30 June 2013 6,267.0 13.6 7.1 20.5 132.5 6,440.7

Net Book Value 30 June 2014 6,116.5 27.3 6.9 27.9 241.8 6,420.4

1 Through the Revaluation Reserve in Other Comprehensive Income.

Generation Structures  
and Plant Valuation

Generation structures and plant assets 
(including land and buildings) are stated  
at fair value. They were revalued at  
30 June 2013 by an independent valuer.  
The revaluation resulted in previous 
revaluations held in the revaluation reserve 
decreasing by $476.2 million (gross of 
deferred tax).

A review of the carrying value of Meridian’s 
generation structures and plant assets has 
been undertaken, indicating the carrying 
value is a fair representation of fair value. 
For this reason Meridian has not completed  
a full revaluation of this asset class.  
The review of carrying value identified 
several potential impacts on value including 
the possible implications of a change of  
New Zealand Government electricity industry 
policy settings and outcomes of the review  
of the Renewable Energy Target (RET) 
scheme in Australia. It is considered that 
at the time of issue of these financial 
statements, these potential impacts are  
not sufficiently certain nor precise enough  
to alter the underlying assumptions for 
current generation asset valuation.

The Audit and Risk Committee of 
the Company determines the overall 
appropriateness of key valuation techniques 
and inputs for fair value measurement.
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20. Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
FAIR VALUE  
HIERARCHY VALUATION TECHNIQUE(S) AND KEY INPUT(S)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

RELATIONSHIP OF UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS TO FAIR VALUE

Generation  
structures and  
plant assets 
(including land  
and buildings)

Level 3 Fair values were calculated for Meridian’s 
generation structures and plant assets as 
at 30 June 2013 by an independent valuer 
using an income approach assessing both 
the capitalisation of earnings and the 
discounted cash flows (DCFs).

The capitalisation of earnings methodology 
calculates value by reference to an 
assessment of future maintainable 
earnings and capitalisation multiples as 
observed from market prices of listed 
companies with broadly comparable 
operations to Meridian. In preparing 
the capitalisation of earnings valuation 
an EBITDAF multiple range at which 
to capitalise Meridian’s historical and 
forecast earnings was determined.

The DCF calculates value based on the 
present value of the cash flows that the 
asset or entity can be expected to earn  
in the future.

The independent valuer established a 
valuation range with reference to these 
two methodologies on which the Board’s 
ultimate valuation decision was based.

Future NZ electricity  
price estimates

Generation Volume 

Operating Expenditure

The higher the future  
prices/volume, the higher 
the valuation.

The higher the operating 
expenditure, the lower  
the valuation.

There have been no transfers between levels 
in respect of these assets.

As a consequence of the 2013 revaluation, 
accumulated depreciation on these assets 
was reset to $Nil in line with treatment 
prescribed under NZ IAS 16: Property, Plant 
and Equipment. There was no depreciation 
impact of this revaluation in the Income 
Statement for 30 June 2013.

At 30 June 2014, had the generation 
structures and plant been carried 
at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated  
impairment losses, their carrying  
amount would have been approximately  
$2.8 billion (2013: $2.6 billion).

VALUATION SENSITIVITIES:

The following table outlines the key 
assumptions used in preparing the valuation 
of generation structures and plant assets.  
In all cases there is an element of judgement 
required. The table shows the movement 
in fair value as a result of the change in 
assumption and keeping all other valuation 
inputs constant.

ASSUMPTION BASE CASE SENSITIVITY VALUATION IMPACT

Future NZ electricity  
price estimates*

$69/MWh to $98/MWh by 2033  
(in real terms)

+/- $3/MWh $365 million/($365 million)

Generation Volume 13,052 GWh +/- 250 GWh $261 million/($261 million)

Operating Expenditure $258 million p.a. +/– $10 million p.a. ($127 million)/$127 million

* The future NZ electricity prices reflect an approximation of the future prices implicit in the EBITDAF capitalisation of earnings valuation.

Capitalised Interest

Finance costs totalling $9.4 million (2013: 
$7.9 million) have been capitalised in relation 
to new builds and refurbishment of certain 
generation structures and plant assets.  
For non-specific financing, a capitalisation 
rate of 6.80% p.a. was used during the year 
(2013: 6.50%p.a.). 

Land

The Group is formally registered as proprietor 
under the Land Transfer Act in relation to the 
majority of its land assets. In relation to the 
small portion for which it is not registered 
as proprietor, the Group has full beneficial 
ownership rights and the benefit of an 
obligation from the Crown to create titles 
under the Land Transfer Act and transfer 
them to the Group. Titles will be issued once 
land title processes have been completed.

Impairments

For details of property, plant and equipment 
impairments refer to Note 5.
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21. Payables and Accruals

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Trade Creditors 10.9 10.6 5.8 6.0

Accruals 192.1 230.3 132.1 154.1

GST 10.7 10.6 10.9 12.2

Employee Entitlements 14.4 14.9 11.4 12.1

Unearned Income 7.5 8.3 - - 

Provisions - 0.1 - - 

235.6 274.8 160.2 184.4

Payables and accruals are carried at amortised cost which approximates fair value.

22. Deferred Tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group, and the movements thereon, during the current and 
prior reporting periods.

GROUP PARENT

NOTE
2014

$M
2013

$M
2014

$M
2013

$M

Balance at Beginning of Year 1,351.5 1,435.8 1,354.4 1,448.3

Recognised in the Income Statement:

Movement in Temporary Differences 9 (17.8) 37.6 (12.2) 38.9

(17.8) 37.6 (12.2) 38.9

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

Deferred Tax on Asset Revaluation Reserve Movements  
(Revaluation Reserve)

- (133.3) - (133.3)

Movement in Temporary Differences (Equity) (4.7) 9.2 (1.6) (0.1)

(4.7) (124.1) (1.6) (133.4)

Effect of Retranslating Foreign Opening Balances 0.3 (0.1) - - 

Adjustments Regarding Deferred Tax of Prior Years - 2.7 - 0.6

Effect of Sale of Subsidiaries - (0.4) - - 

Balance at End of Year 1,329.3 1,351.5 1,340.6 1,354.4

The movement in temporary differences recognised in the income statement consists of the following:

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Property, Plant and Equipment (4.8) 4.6 (7.8) 0.1

Term and Finance Lease Payables 5.7 14.4 5.7 14.4

Financial Instruments (10.0) 26.5 (9.7) 26.0

Carried Forward Losses to be Utilised against Future Taxable Income (8.9) (6.4) - - 

Other 0.2 (1.5) (0.4) (1.6)

(17.8) 37.6 (12.2) 38.9
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22. Deferred Tax (continued) 

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The following is the analysis of the 
deferred tax balances (after offset) for Statement of Financial Position purposes:

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Property, Plant and Equipment – Revaluation 941.9 942.0 941.9 942.0

Property, Plant and Equipment – Accelerated Depreciation 434.1 428.9 410.3 418.2

Term Payables (0.4) (8.6) 11.9 (8.6)

Financial Instruments (19.6) 0.9 (18.5) (1.4)

Other (6.3) 1.0 (5.0) 4.2

Deferred Tax Liability 1,349.7 1,364.2 1,340.6 1,354.4

Carried Forward Losses to be Utilised Against Future Taxable Income (20.3) (12.5) - - 

Other (0.1) (0.2) - - 

Deferred Tax Asset (20.4) (12.7) - - 

1,329.3 1,351.5 1,340.6 1,354.4

Carried forward losses relate to Australian operations and will be utilised against future taxable income from retail and generation activities.

23. Borrowings

GROUP PARENT

CURRENCY

FACE VALUE 
2014

$M

CARRYING 
VALUE 2014

$M

FACE VALUE 
2013

$M

CARRYING 
VALUE 2013

$M

FACE VALUE 
2014

$M

CARRYING 
VALUE 2014

$M

FACE VALUE 
2013

$M

CARRYING 
VALUE 2013

$M

Borrowings – Current

Unsecured Borrowings NZD 135.0 133.4 92.5 90.9 135.0 134.0 92.5 91.2

Unsecured Borrowings USD - - 61.1 55.8 - - 61.1 55.8

Total Current Borrowings 135.0 133.4 153.6 146.7 135.0 134.0 153.6 147.0

Borrowings – Non Current

Unsecured Borrowings NZD 285.0 283.2 420.0 416.3 285.0 283.2 420.0 416.1

Unsecured Borrowings AUD 306.9 306.1 190.3 189.7 - - - - 

Unsecured Borrowings USD 418.8 369.8 418.8 427.5 418.8 369.8 418.8 427.5

Total Non Current Borrowings 1,010.7 959.1 1,029.1 1,033.5 703.8 653.0 838.8 843.6

Total Borrowings 1,145.7 1,092.5 1,182.7 1,180.2 838.8 787.0 992.4 990.6

Borrowings are carried at amortised cost 
with the exception of USD borrowings which 
are in a designated hedge relationship (and 
are classified as Level 3 in the Fair Value 
Hierarchy). The total carrying value of all 
borrowings is considered to approximate  
fair value. 

Meridian borrows under a negative pledge 
arrangement, which does not permit it to 
grant any security interest over its assets, 
unless it is an exception permitted within  
the negative pledge.

Meridian has entered into hedge contracts 
to manage its exposure to interest rates and 
borrowings sourced in foreign currencies. 
The foreign currency denominated term 
borrowings reported in the financial 
statements at fair value for the hedge risk 
are hedged by Cross Currency Interest Rate 
Swaps (CCIRSs). The NZD equivalent of the 
carrying value of these borrowings including 
the effect of foreign exchange hedging is 
$369.8 million (30 June 2013: $483.3 million).

In June 2014 Meridian Finco Pty Ltd, an 
entity within the Group, committed to issue 
$USD 140 million senior unsecured notes in 
September 2014. As at 30 June 2014 Meridian 

Finco Pty Ltd has entered into CCIRSs to 
hedge this exposure.

Meridian’s (net) cost of funds for the year 
ended 30 June 2014 was 6.74% (2013: 7.21%).

Meridian has committed bank facilities  
of $850.8 million ($1,277.8 million at  
30 June 2013) of which $423.9 million were 
undrawn at 30 June 2014 ($957.5 million at  
30 June 2013).

For more information about Meridian’s 
management of interest rate, foreign 
currency and liquidity risk, see Note 26 – 
Financial Risk Management.
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23. Borrowings (continued) 

Funding Facilities

The table below analyses the Parent and Group’s funding facilities:

2014 2013

CURRENCY
FACILITY LIMIT

$M
DRAWN DEBT

$M
AVAILABLE

$M
FACILITY LIMIT

$M
DRAWN DEBT

$M
AVAILABLE

$M

Bank Funding1 NZD 300.0 - 300.0 675.0 - 675.0

Renewable Energy Bonds2 NZD 200.0 200.0 - 200.0 200.0 - 

Renewable Energy Notes3 NZD - - - 12.5 12.5 - 

EKF Facility4 NZD 120.0 120.0 - 130.0 130.0 - 

Floating Rate Notes5 NZD 100.0 100.0 - 100.0 100.0 - 

Fixed Rate Bond Issue6 USD 418.8 418.8 - 479.9 479.9 - 

Commercial Paper7 NZD - - - 70.0 70.0 - 

Total Parent 1,138.8 838.8 300.0 1,667.4 992.4 675.0

Bank Funding8 AUD 430.8 306.9 123.9 472.8 190.3 282.5

Total Group 1,569.6 1,145.7 423.9 2,140.2 1,182.7 957.5

1 New Zealand Dollar unsecured bank funding bears interest at the relevant NZ market rate plus a margin.
2 Renewable Energy Bonds are senior unsecured retail bonds bearing interest rates of 7.15% to 7.55%.
3 Renewable Energy Notes are senior unsecured debt obligations paying a fixed rate of return over a set period of time.  

These were repaid during 2014.
4 EKF facility is an unsecured 15 year amortising term loan, provided by the official export credit agency of Denmark,  

for the construction of Te Uku Wind Farm.
5 New Zealand Dollar unsecured floating rate note bears interest at the relevant NZ market rate plus a margin.
6 US Dollar fixed rate bond issue are unsecured fixed rate bonds issued in the US Private Placement Market.
7 New Zealand Dollar commercial paper are senior unsecured short term debt obligations paying a fixed rate of return  

over a set period of time. These were repaid during 2014.
8 Australian Dollar unsecured bank funding bears interest at the relevant Australian market rate plus a margin.
 All facility limits and drawn debt are shown in NZD.

24. Provisions

Asset retirement obligations have been 
recognised for Mt Millar and Mt Mercer 
windfarms. Estimated costs for bringing 
the sites back to their original states are 

estimated at future cost using current annual 
CPI% change on current costs. Timing of 
obligations have been based on the expiry 
of the current landowner agreements, 

currently 25 years with an option to renew. 
The provision will be reassessed when there 
is certainty that any of the renewal options 
will be taken up.

GROUP

2014
$M

2013
$M

Asset Retirement Obligation

Opening Balance - - 

Increase in Provision 7.1 - 

Provisions used during the year - - 

Provisions reversed during the year - - 

Movement in effect of discounting (0.1) - 

Closing balance 7.0 - 

Current - - 

Non-Current 7.0 - 

7.0 - 
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25. Finance Lease Payable

During the year Meridian entered into a 
finance lease for the Mill Creek transmission 
line with Wellington Electricity. The lease is 
for a period of 25 years.

In addition Mt Mercer Windfarm Pty Limited 
entered into finance leases with SP Ausnet 
and Transmission Operations Australia (TOA) 
for transmission connection assets at the 
Elaine Terminal Station for the Mt Mercer 
Wind Farm. SP Ausnet constructed the 

Interface to provide transmission services, 
while TOA was engaged to construct the 
Elaine Terminal Station. The term of the  
lease agreements is 25 years from the 
Connection Commencement Date, being  
10 November 2014.

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Minimum Lease Payments:

Not Later than One Year 6.9 - 1.4 - 

Later than One Year and Not Later than Three Years 13.6 - 2.7 - 

Later than Three Years and Not Later than Five Years 13.5 - 2.5 - 

Later than Five Years 120.8 - 15.0 - 

Gross Investment in Finance Lease 154.8 - 21.6 - 

Less: Future Finance Cost (105.6) - (13.7) - 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 49.2 - 7.9 - 

Analysed as:

Not Later than One Year 0.6 - 0.3 - 

Later than One Year and Not Later than Three Years 1.3 - 0.6 - 

Later than Three Years and Not Later than Five Years 1.5 - 0.6 - 

Later than Five Years 45.8 - 6.4 - 

Total Finance Lease Payable 49.2 - 7.9 - 

Comprising

Current 0.6 - 0.3 - 

Non-current 48.6 - 7.6 - 

49.2 - 7.9 - 

As a result of the above finance lease, the Group has reported an expense of $3.7 million (2013: $Nil) which is included in Finance Costs in the 
Income Statement.

26. Financial Risk Management

Capital Risk Management Objectives 

Meridian’s objectives when managing 
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern in order to 
provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders and to maintain an 
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost 
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, Meridian may adjust the amount 
of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, issue new shares  
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Meridian monitors capital on the basis of the 
gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided 
by total capital) and interest cover (calculated 
as EBITDAF divided by interest cost).

Net debt is calculated as total borrowings 
net of foreign exchange hedging less cash 
and cash equivalents.

Total capital is calculated as ‘equity 
attributable to shareholders of the Parent’ as 
shown in the Statement of Financial Position, 
adjusted for the effect of the fair value of 
financial instruments, plus net debt.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

GROUP

2014
$M

2013
$M

Borrowings – NZD Equivalent Net of Foreign Exchange Hedging 1,145.7 1,182.7

Finance Lease Payables 49.2 - 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 276.4 382.8

Net Debt 918.5 799.9

Adjusted Shareholders' Equity 4,826.3 4,780.6

Net Debt plus Equity 5,744.8 5,580.5

Meridian’s debt facilities have financial covenants that relate to the Guaranteeing Group (which it is in full compliance with)  
– refer to Note 17 for members. The two key financial covenants are as follows:

GROUP

2014
$M

2013
$M

Net Debt to Net Debt Plus Equity (Gearing) < 55%1 15.99% 14.33%

EBITDAF Interest Cover (# of times) > 2.5 times1 6.81 5.04

1 The Net Debt to Net Debt Plus Equity ratio is calculated using Total Capital and Net Debt as shown in the table above, and the EBITDAF Interest Cover ratio is calculated using EBITDAF and Interest  
and Financing Costs, with the components of both of these ratios meeting the definitions in the trust deed covering the Guaranteeing Group externally imposed capital requirements.

During the year all capital requirements 
relating to Meridian’s debt facilities have 
been complied with and a BBB+ (stable) 
credit rating retained.

Financial Risk Management

Meridian’s activities expose it to a variety 
of financial risks: liquidity risk, market risk 
(including currency risk, cash flow risk, 
interest rate risk, electricity and other 
price risk) and credit risk. Meridian’s overall 
risk management programme focuses on 
the unpredictability of financial markets 
and the electricity spot price and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the 
financial performance and economic value 
of the Group. In order to hedge certain 
risk exposures, Meridian uses derivative 
financial instruments such as: foreign 
exchange contracts (FECs) and options; 
cross currency interest rate swaps (CCIRSs); 
interest rate swaps (IRSs) including forward 
rate agreements and interest rate options; 
electricity contracts for differences (CfDs) 
and options; and financial transmission 
rights (FTRs) and options.

Meridian uses sensitivity analysis to measure 
the amount of risk it is exposed to for: foreign 
exchange risk; interest rate risk; and price 
risk; and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Risk management for currency risk and 
interest rate risk is carried out by the Group 
Treasury function under policies approved by 
the Board. Electricity price risk management 
is carried out by a centralised electricity 
risk management group, also under Board 
approved policies. These groups identify, 
evaluate and economically hedge financial 
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s 
operating units. Hedges are undertaken on 
an economic basis based on net exposures 
and cash flows. The Board provides written 
principles for overall risk management, as 
well as policies covering specific areas such 
as electricity price risk, interest rate risk, 
foreign exchange risk, and credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Meridian maintains sufficient funding through 
adequate committed funding facilities and 
the ability to close out market positions 
as part of its management of liquidity risk. 
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying 
businesses, Group Treasury maintains 
flexibility in funding by keeping committed 
surplus credit lines available of at least $250 
million to ensure it has sufficient headroom 
under normal and abnormal conditions.

In addition to its borrowings, Meridian has 
entered into a number of letters of credit and 
performance guarantee arrangements which 
provide credit support of $103.0 million for 
the collateral requirements of Meridian’s 
trading business (2013: $96.1 million). 
Meridian indemnifies the obligations of the 
bank in respect of the letters of credit and 
performance guarantees issued by the bank 
to counterparties of Meridian.

The Group trades electricity CfDs on the  
ASX (Australian Securities Exchange)  
using J.P. Morgan as a broker. As a result,  
a proportion of the funds it holds on 
deposit are pledged as margin which varies 
depending on market volatility and contracts 
held. At 30 June 2014, this collateral was  
$5.8 million for the Parent and $6.6 million 
for the Group (2013 Parent: $7.8 million,  
2013 Group: $9.4m).
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

Contractual Maturities 

The following table is an analysis of the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows  
relating to financial liabilities at the end  

of the reporting period and reconciliation  
from total undiscounted cash flows to 
carrying amounts.

 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except 
for IRSs, CCIRSs, forward exchange contracts 
and CfDs which are the undiscounted 
settlements expected under the contracts.

GROUP 2014

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2014 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Payables and Accruals and Term Payables 235.6 0.6 - - 236.2 - - 236.2

Provisions - - - 7.0 7.0 - - 7.0

Finance Lease Payable 6.9 13.6 13.5 120.8 154.8 - (105.6) 49.2

Borrowings 189.2 238.1 647.2 199.2 1,273.7 (4.3) (176.9) 1,092.5

431.7 252.3 660.7 327.0 1,671.7 (4.3) (282.5) 1,384.9

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 22.8 13.6 20.4 12.2 69.0 - (11.6) 57.4

Electricity Derivatives 72.6 71.4 55.4 1,144.7 1,344.1 (876.1) (417.8) 50.2

95.4 85.0 75.8 1,156.9 1,413.1 (876.1) (429.4) 107.6

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 23.7 - - - 23.7

Outflows 27.0 - - - 27.0

Net Outflows 3.3 - - - 3.3 - (0.1) 3.2

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps

Inflows 17.7 139.0 266.6 197.3 620.6

Outflows 18.7 175.7 342.9 217.4 754.7

Net Outflows 1.0 36.7 76.3 20.1 134.1 - (81.8) 52.3

Total Financial Liabilities 531.4 374.0 812.8 1,504.0 3,222.2 (880.4) (793.8) 1,548.0
 PARENT 2014

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2014 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Payables and Accruals and Term Payables 160.2 0.6 - - 160.8 - - 160.8

Borrowings 178.8 161.3 395.7 199.2 935.0 (2.8) (145.2) 787.0

Finance Lease Payable 1.4 2.7 2.5 15.0 21.6 (13.7) 7.9

340.4 164.6 398.2 214.2 1,117.4 (2.8) (158.9) 955.7

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 19.2 10.2 16.6 11.8 57.8 - (11.2) 46.6

Electricity Derivatives 72.6 71.4 55.4 1,144.7 1,344.1 (876.1) (417.8) 50.2

91.8 81.6 72.0 1,156.5 1,401.9 (876.1) (429.0) 96.8

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 49.3 - - - 49.3

Outflows 55.3 - - - 55.3

Net Outflows 6.0 - - - 6.0 - 0.2 6.2

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps

Inflows 17.7 133.0 248.6 - 399.3

Outflows 18.7 168.7 317.7 - 505.1

Net Outflows 1.0 35.7 69.1 - 105.8 - (56.2) 49.6

Total Financial Liabilities 439.2 281.9 539.3 1,370.7 2,631.1 (878.9) (643.9) 1,108.3

Except for borrowings, the carrying value of financial liabilities equals the fair value. Financial guarantees are disclosed in Note 28.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

GROUP 2013

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2013 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Payables and Accruals and Term Payables 274.8 7.2 - - 282.0 - (0.5) 281.5

Borrowings 386.9 181.1 330.3 478.3 1,376.6 (6.1) (190.3) 1,180.2

661.7 188.3 330.3 478.3 1,658.6 (6.1) (190.8) 1,461.7

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 32.7 24.2 32.0 13.3 102.2 - (12.6) 89.6

Electricity Derivatives 15.0 133.4 54.4 79.5 282.3 (157.1) (54.7) 70.5

47.7 157.6 86.4 92.8 384.5 (157.1) (67.3) 160.1

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 64.2 8.8 - - 73.0

Outflows 66.0 9.1 - - 75.1

Net Outflows 1.8 0.3 - - 2.1 - (1.4) 0.7

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps

Inflows 63.8 6.8 137.3 - 207.9

Outflows 68.3 6.1 153.8 - 228.2

Net Outflows/(Inflows) 4.5 (0.7) 16.5 - 20.3 - (11.6) 8.7

Total Financial Liabilities 715.7 345.5 433.2 571.1 2,065.5 (163.2) (271.1) 1,631.2
PARENT 2013

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2013 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Payables and Accruals and Term Payables 184.4 7.2 - - 191.6 - (0.5) 191.1

Borrowings 194.9 181.1 330.3 478.3 1,184.6 (5.3) (188.7) 990.6

379.3 188.3 330.3 478.3 1,376.2 (5.3) (189.2) 1,181.7

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 30.5 22.7 29.4 13.4 96.0 - (11.8) 84.2

Electricity Derivatives 14.5 133.3 54.4 79.5 281.7 (156.6) (54.7) 70.4

45.0 156.0 83.8 92.9 377.7 (156.6) (66.5) 154.6

Derivative Financial Liabilities – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 139.3 28.8 - - 168.1

Outflows 149.9 30.8 - - 180.7

Net Outflows 10.6 2.0 - - 12.6 - 0.2 12.8

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps

Inflows 63.8 6.8 137.3 - 207.9

Outflows 68.3 6.1 153.8 - 228.2

Net Outflows/(Inflows) 4.5 (0.7) 16.5 - 20.3 - (11.6) 8.7

Total Financial Liabilities 439.4 345.6 430.6 571.2 1,786.8 (161.9) (267.1) 1,357.8

Except for borrowings, the carrying value of financial liabilities equals the fair value. Financial guarantees are disclosed in Note 28.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

The following tables are an analysis of the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows  
relating to financial assets at the end of  
the reporting period and reconciliation  
from total undiscounted cash flows to 
carrying amounts.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows, except 
for IRSs, CCIRSs, forward exchange contracts 
and CfDs which are the undiscounted 
settlements expected under the contracts.

The inclusion of information on derivative 
and non-derivative financial assets is 
necessary in order to understand Meridian’s 
liquidity risk management, as liquidity is 
managed on a net asset and liability basis.

GROUP 2014

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2014 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 276.4 - - - 276.4 - - 276.4

Trade and Other Receivables 182.7 - - - 182.7 - - 182.7

Finance Lease Receivables 0.3 0.3 0.3 - 0.9 - (0.2) 0.7

459.4 0.3 0.3 - 460.0 - (0.2) 459.8

Derivative Financial Assets – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 4.7 0.9 2.8 - 8.4 - (3.1) 5.3

Electricity Derivatives 9.7 4.9 10.1 25.4 50.1 34.7 (11.7) 73.1

14.4 5.8 12.9 25.4 58.5 34.7 (14.8) 78.4

Derivative Financial Assets – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 28.3 - - - 28.3

Outflows 25.6 - - - 25.6

Net Inflows 2.7 - - - 2.7 - 0.2 2.9

Cross Currency Interest Rate

Inflows 167.2 - - - 167.2

Outflows 164.9 - - - 164.9

Net Inflows/(Outflows) 2.3 - - - 2.3 - (0.9) 1.4

Total Financial Assets 478.8 6.1 13.2 25.4 523.5 34.7 (15.7) 542.5

PARENT 2014

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2014 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 237.6 - - - 237.6 - - 237.6

Trade and Other Receivables 161.5 - - - 161.5 - - 161.5

Finance Lease Receivables 0.3 0.3 0.3 - 0.9 - (0.2) 0.7

399.4 0.3 0.3 - 400.0 - (0.2) 399.8

Derivative Financial Assets – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 4.7 0.9 2.8 - 8.4 - (3.1) 5.3

Electricity Derivatives 6.9 2.2 8.3 25.4 42.8 35.0 (11.6) 66.2

11.6 3.1 11.1 25.4 51.2 35.0 (14.7) 71.5

Derivative Financial Assets – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 28.3 - - - 28.3

Outflows 25.6 - - - 25.6

Net Inflows 2.7 - - - 2.7 - 0.2 2.9

Total Financial Assets 413.7 3.4 11.4 25.4 453.9 35.0 (14.7) 474.2

The carrying value of all financial assets equals the fair value.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

GROUP 2013

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2014 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 382.8 - - - 382.8 - - 382.8

Trade and Other Receivables 254.5 - - - 254.5 - - 254.5

Finance Lease Receivables 0.3 0.7 0.3 - 1.3 - (0.5) 0.8

637.6 0.7 0.3 - 638.6 - (0.5) 638.1

Derivative Financial Assets – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 5.1 4.2 3.4 0.4 13.1 - (3.2) 9.9

Electricity Derivatives (10.2) 38.7 32.5 28.1 89.1 77.5 (17.3) 149.3

(5.1) 42.9 35.9 28.5 102.2 77.5 (20.5) 159.2

Derivative Financial Assets – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 88.6 21.7 - - 110.3

Outflows 79.6 20.1 - - 99.7

Net Inflows 9.0 1.6 - - 10.6 - 1.6 12.2

Cross Currency Interest Rate

Inflows 13.2 13.2 39.7 254.9 321.0

Outflows 9.6 11.3 41.8 287.2 349.9

Net Inflows/(Outflows) 3.6 1.9 (2.1) (32.3) (28.9) - 43.2 14.3

Total Financial Assets 645.1 47.1 34.1 (3.8) 722.5 77.5 23.8 823.8

PARENT 2013

DUE WITHIN
1 YEAR

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

1 AND 2 
YEARS

$M

DUE 
BETWEEN 

3 AND 5 
YEARS

$M

DUE AFTER  
5 YEARS

$M

TOTAL 
UNDISCOUNTED 

CASH FLOWS
$M

IMPACT OF 
OTHER NON-
CASH ITEMS

$M

IMPACT OF 
INTEREST/FX 

DISCOUNTING
$M

30 JUNE 2013 
CARRYING 

VALUE
$M

Non-derivative Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 64.8 - - - 64.8 - - 64.8

Trade and Other Receivables 174.3 - - - 174.3 - - 174.3

Finance Lease Receivables 0.3 0.7 0.3 - 1.3 - (0.5) 0.8

239.4 0.7 0.3 - 240.4 - (0.5) 239.9

Derivative Financial Assets – Net Settled

Interest Rate Swaps/Options 5.1 4.6 2.8 0.2 12.7 - (3.3) 9.4

Electricity Derivatives (10.4) 37.5 32.5 28.1 87.7 78.0 (17.3) 148.4

(5.3) 42.1 35.3 28.3 100.4 78.0 (20.6) 157.8

Derivative Financial Assets – Gross Settled

Foreign Exchange Contracts

Inflows 88.6 21.7 - - 110.3

Outflows 79.6 20.1 - - 99.7

Net Inflows 9.0 1.6 - - 10.6 - 1.6 12.2

Cross Currency Interest Rate

Inflows 13.2 13.2 39.7 254.9 321.0

Outflows 9.6 11.3 41.8 287.2 349.9

Net Inflows/(Outflows) 3.6 1.9 (2.1) (32.3) (28.9) - 43.2 14.3

Total Financial Assets 246.7 46.3 33.5 (4.0) 322.5 78.0 23.7 424.2

The carrying value of all financial assets equals the fair value.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

Meridian has substantial committed 
borrowing facilities available as described 
in note 23 preceding, of which $423.9 million 
was undrawn at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: 
$957.5 million). Meridian expects to meet its 
other obligations from operating cash flows 
and maturing financial assets.

Market Risk

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Meridian borrows in foreign currencies 
and is exposed to foreign exchange risks, 
primarily in respect of the US and Australian 
dollar. In addition, the Group incurs capital 
and operating expenditure denominated in 
foreign currencies which exposes the Group 
to foreign exchange risk primarily in respect 
of US dollars, Australian dollars and the 
Euro. Meridian does not enter into FECs  
for speculative purposes.

In respect of overseas borrowings, the 
Group’s policy is to hedge the foreign 
currency exposure of both interest and 
principal repayments. This is achieved 
through CCIRSs which swap all foreign 
currency denominated interest and  
principal repayments with New Zealand 
denominated payments over the life of the 
borrowings. The combination of the foreign 
denominated debt and the CCIRSs results in 
a Group exposure to New Zealand floating 

interest rates and a fixed New Zealand 
denominated principal repayment.  
The New Zealand floating interest rate  
risk is managed as part of the New Zealand 
interest rate risk as described in the 
following section.

Meridian establishes a combination of 
both cash flow and fair value hedges for 
the CCIRSs and the foreign denominated 
borrowings (refer to Note 27 – Financial 
Instruments). The aggregate notional 
principal amount of the outstanding  
CCIRSs at 30 June 2014 was $742.8 million  
(30 June 2013: $479.9 million).

In respect of foreign exchange exposures 
on capital and operating expenditures 
denominated in foreign currencies, Meridian 
hedges the foreign exchange risk through 
a combination of FECs and options. Capital 
projects which are approved by the Board 
are hedged. All committed foreign currency 
exposures of greater than $0.1 million NZD 
equivalent are hedged. The aggregate 
notional principal amount of the outstanding 
FECs at 30 June 2014 was $52.6 million  
(30 June 2013: $174.6 million).

In cases where the capital expenditure 
qualifies as a highly probable transaction or 
a firm commitment, Meridian establishes a 
combination of both cash flow and fair value 
hedges. To the extent these hedges are 

effective, gains and losses on the derivatives 
are included as a component of the cost of 
the capital expenditure. In instances where 
the forecast capital expenditure does not 
meet the highly probable requirements, 
hedge accounting is not sought and the 
derivatives are classified as held for trading 
(refer to Note 27 – Financial Instruments).

The Group has monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in Australian and US 
dollars as at 30 June 2014. These monetary 
assets and liabilities have been converted 
to New Zealand dollars at closing exchange 
rates of AUD 0.9286 and USD 0.8758 (30 June 
2013: AUD 0.8460, USD 0.7738).

The values of foreign currency derivatives are 
sensitive to changes in the forward prices  
for currencies. The table below summarises 
the impact of a 20% increase/decrease in  
the New Zealand dollar against the forward 
price of the U.S. dollar and the Euro as at  
30 June, on the Group’s profit and equity on 
the assumption that all other variables are 
held constant.

As previously noted, Meridian’s CCIRSs and 
foreign denominated borrowings are in a 
combination of a fair value hedge and cash 
flow hedge relationship. A 20% increase/
decrease movement in currency does not 
materially impact NPAT or Equity.

Sensitivity Analysis – Foreign Currency

IMPACT ON AFTER TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Group and Parent

NZ Dollar/US Dollar -20% - 0.7 1.1 3.1

+20% - (0.5) (0.7) (2.1)

NZ Dollar/Euro -20% - 0.1 3.1 10.8

+20% - (0.1) (2.1) (7.2)

Group only

AUD/Euro -20% - - 5.1 19.0

+20% - - (3.4) (12.6)
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

CASH FLOW AND INTEREST RATE RISK

Meridian’s primary interest rate risk 
arises from long term borrowings which 
are sourced at both fixed interest rates 
and floating interest rates. In addition, 
as described in the section above, the 
combination of foreign denominated 
borrowings and the CCIRSs results in 
an exposure to floating interest rates in 
the currency of the funding’s ultimate 
destination. Borrowings in floating  
New Zealand or Australian interest rates 
expose Meridian to risk of changes in cash 
flow and the fair value of the debt issued. 
Meridian does not enter into interest rate 
swaps for speculative purposes.

Interest rate risk is managed on a dynamic 
basis and various scenarios are simulated 
taking consideration of existing and forecast 
debt requirements, existing hedge positions, 
forecast interest rates and in accordance 
with the Board approved policies.

In accordance with the Board policy, 
Meridian manages its exposure to interest 
rate risk by identifying a core level of debt 
and using IRSs that apply minimum and 
maximum bands of interest rate (hedge) 
cover to fix interest rates.

The majority of Meridian IRSs are not 
designated as hedges for accounting 
purposes and are therefore classified  

as held for trading. In the case of the prior 
year Macarthur Wind Farm Project Financing, 
Meridian established cash flow hedges 
for the IRSs and related debt (see Note 27 
for further detail). The aggregate notional 
principal amount of the outstanding IRSs at 
30 June 2014 is $2,433 million (30 June 2013: 
$1,866.4 million). This covers multiple legs 
and maturities out to 2024.

The table below summarises the impact  
of increases/decreases in the forward price 
of interest, using the benchmark bank bill 
rate (BKBM) and the bank bill swap bid rate 
(BBSY), as at 30 June, on Meridian’s profit 
and equity on the assumption that all other 
variables are held constant.

Sensitivity Analysis – Interest rates

GROUP AND PARENT

IMPACT ON AFTER TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

New Zealand BKBM -100 bps (24.0) (34.7) (24.0) (34.7)

+100 bps 22.4 32.3 22.4 32.3

Australian BBSY -100 bps (9.0) (6.6) (9.0) (6.6)

+100 bps 8.5 6.2 8.5 6.2

PRICE RISK

Meridian is exposed to movements in the 
spot price of electricity arising through 
the sale and purchase of electricity to and 
from the market. Meridian manages the 
net exposure to this risk by estimating 
both expected generation and electricity 
purchases required to support sales. Based 
on this net position, Meridian enters into 
derivative contracts to protect against price 
volatility within trading parameters set 
and monitored by the Board. The derivative 
contracts include forward electricity CfDs 
traded on the ASX, FTRs under the NZX 
auction process and bi-lateral derivative 
contracts (including options) with other 
electricity generators and major customers. 
Meridian does not enter into derivative 
contracts for speculative purposes.

In addition, as Meridian’s Australian 
windfarms earn RECs (in the form of Large 
Scale Generation Certificates (LGCs)),  
LGC options are used to hedge this 
associated price risk.

Although Meridian considers itself 
economically hedged in relation to these 
price risks, for accounting purposes all  
of the CfDs are currently classified as held 
for trading, with movements in fair value 
recognised in the income statement.

The values of all the derivative contracts  
are sensitive to changes in the forward  
prices for electricity and interest rates.

In terms of overall exposure, the aggregate 
notional volume of the outstanding 
electricity derivatives at 30 June 2014  
is 93,003GWh (Group, 2013: 52,016GWh)  

and 91,704GWh (Parent, 2013: 50,838GWh). 
One contract makes up 61,645GWh of these 
totals in both the Group and the Parent 
(2013: 17,059GWh).

The aggregate notional LGC option at  
30 June 2014 is $1,115,000 for the Group  
(2013: Nil).

In prior years, Meridian was also required to 
hedge aluminium prices, thus at 30 June 2013 
the aggregate notional principal amount of 
outstanding Aluminium Commodity Swaps 
(ACSs) was $436.0 million for the Group  
and Parent. Due to a risk profile change 
during the year, these swaps were no  
longer required, therefore the balance  
at 30 June 2014 is Nil.
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26. Financial Risk Management (continued) 

The table below summarises the impact of 
increases/(decreases) in changes to certain 
assumptions as at 30 June on Meridian’s 

profit and equity, on the assumption that 
all other variables are held constant and 
Meridian’s current accounting policies are 

followed as stated. Post tax profit and equity 
would increase/(decrease) as shown in the 
table below due to unrealised gains/losses 
on CfDs.

Sensitivity Analysis – Electricity price risk

GROUP PARENT

IMPACT ON AFTER  
TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY IMPACT ON AFTER  

TAX PROFIT IMPACT ON EQUITY

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

CfDs held for trading

Electricity Prices -10% 138.2 16.9 138.2 16.9 137.0 15.0 137.0 15.0

10% (133.9) (13.7) (133.9) (13.7) (132.7) (12.0) (132.7) (12.0)

Interest Rates (discount rate) -100 bps 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.1

+100 bps (0.7) (0.1) (0.7) (0.1) (0.7) (0.1) (0.7) (0.1)

Level 3 CfDs only

Electricity Prices -10% 138.3 18.3 138.3 18.3 138.2 18.0 138.2 18.0

10% (134.0) (15.2) (134.0) (15.2) (133.9) (15.0) (133.9) (15.0)

Interest Rates (discount rate) -100 bps 0.7 (1.0) 0.7 (1.0) 0.7 (1.0) 0.7 (1.0)

+100 bps (0.7) 1.0 (0.7) 1.0 (0.7) 1.0 (0.7) 1.0

Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed on net exposures 
at Group level. Credit risk arises from 
cash and cash equivalents, derivative 
financial instruments and deposits with 
banks and financial institutions, as well as 
credit exposures to wholesale and retail 
customers, including derivatives which have 
a positive value, outstanding receivables 
and guarantees. For banks and financial 
institutions, only independently rated 
parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’ are 
accepted and where wholesale customers 

are independently rated, these ratings are 
used. Otherwise, if there is no independent 
rating, the Credit Management Unit assesses 
the credit quality of the customer, taking 
into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors. Individual risk 
limits are set based on internal or external 
ratings in accordance with limits set by the 
Board. The utilisation of credit limits and 
provision of prudential security by wholesale 
customers are regularly monitored by line 
management. Credit risk surrounding the 
sales to retail customers is predominantly 

mitigated by the accounts being settled on 
a monthly basis. Retail credit management 
continually monitors the size and nature 
of the exposure and acts to mitigate risks 
deemed to be over acceptable levels.

The carrying amounts of financial assets 
recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position best represent Meridian’s maximum 
likely exposure to credit risk at the date 
of this report. Meridian does not have any 
significant concentration of credit risk with 
any one financial institution.

27. Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

NZ IFRS 13 provides for a three-level fair 
value hierarchy that requires inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure  
fair value to be categorised as follows:

• Level 1 Inputs – Quoted prices (unadjusted)  
in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the entity can access at  
the measurement date

· Level 2 Inputs – Either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from 
prices) observable inputs other than 
quoted prices included in Level 1

· Level 3 Inputs – Inputs for the asset or 
liability that are not based on observable 
market data (unobservable inputs)

Where the fair value of a financial instrument 
is calculated as the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows of the instrument, 
two key types of variables are used by the 
valuation technique. These are:

· forward price curve; and 

· discount rates
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The following table gives information about how the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,  
the valuation technique(s) and input(s) used).

FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

FAIR VALUE 
HIERARCHY VALUATION TECHNIQUE(S) AND KEY INPUT(S)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS

RELATIONSHIP OF  
UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS 
TO FAIR VALUE

Electricity related CfDs Level 3 Valuation technique: Discounted cash flows. Future cash 
flows have been calculated with reference to:

Price
Quoted market data (Australian Securities Exchange 
(ASX)) where available and relevant. Where quoted 
prices are not available or not relevant (ie. for long 
dated and large volume contracts such as the NZAS 
CfD), Meridian’s best estimate of long-term forward 
wholesale electricity price is used. Meridian’s best 
estimate is based on a fundamental analysis of  
expected demand and the cost of new supply

Discount Rate
Rates based on the forward interest rate swap curve 
adjusted for additional risks including counterparty 
credit risk

Term and volumes
All contracts are assumed to run for the full duration 
of the contracts (adjusted for any potential early 
termination or discontinuation) and for the volume 
stated in the contracts

Estimate of forward 
wholesale electricity 
price ranging from 
$55 per MWh to  
$98 per MWh  
(in real terms) – 
excludes observable 
ASX pricing

For a buy contract, 
the higher the 
forward wholesale 
electricity price,  
the lower the fair 
value loss or the 
higher the gain,  
and for a sell 
contract, the higher 
the fair value loss  
or lower the fair 
value gain

Forecast CPI
An internal forecast of expected inflation rates

2.25% The higher the 
forecast rate, the 
lower the gain/loss 
on a contract

Other factors
London Metal Exchange (LME) quoted prices  
of primary aluminium

Calibration factor
Factor applied to forward price curve as  
a consequence of initial recognition differences

Electricity related CfD’s Level 2 Valuation technique: Discounted cash flows. Quoted 
market data for similar assets and liabilities in an active 
market (ASX) and discount rates based on the forward 
interest rate swap curve adjusted for counterparty 
credit risk

N/A N/A

Electricity related CfD’s Level 1 Quoted market data (Australian Securities  
Exchange (ASX))

N/A N/A

Interest rate Swaps and 
Cross Currency Interest 
Rate Swaps

Level 2 Valuation technique: Discounted cash flows. Published 
market interest rates as applicable to the remaining 
life of the instrument and discount rates based on 
the forward interest rate swap curve adjusted for 
counterparty credit risk 

N/A N/A

Foreign Exchange 
Contracts

Level 2 Valuation technique: Discounted cash flows. Published 
forward exchange market rates and discount rates 
based on the forward interest rate swap curve adjusted 
for counterparty credit risk 

N/A N/A

Held for Sale Financial 
Assets – Listed Securities

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market N/A N/A
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

In estimating the fair value of an asset or 
liability, the Group uses market-observable 
data to the extent it is available. Where 
observable inputs are not available, the 
Group engages third party experts to 
support the establishment of appropriate 
valuation techniques and inputs to  
valuation models.

There have been no transfers between levels 
in respect of these assets and liabilities.

The Audit and Risk Committee of 
the Company determines the overall 
appropriateness of key valuation techniques 
and inputs for fair value measurement.

The Chief Financial Officer, in his report  
to the Board, includes explanations of fair 
value movements.

The Group is subject to International Swaps 
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master 
agreements with its counterparties thus, 
where relevant, settlements of financial 
instruments are netted.

The table below shows the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value by the Group:

GROUP

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
LEVEL 1

$M
LEVEL 2

$M
LEVEL 3

$M
30 JUNE 2014

$M
LEVEL 1

$M
LEVEL 2

$M
LEVEL 3

$M
30 JUNE 2013

$M

Assets:

Held for Trading

CfDs 6.5 (0.1) 66.7 73.1 3.7 62.6 83.0 149.3

Interest Rate Swaps - 5.3 - 5.3 - 9.9 - 9.9

Foreign Exchange Contracts - - - - - 0.1 - 0.1

Cash Flow Hedges

CfDs - - - - - - - - 

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 2.9 - 2.9 - 12.1 - 12.1

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - 1.4 - 1.4 - - - - 

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - - - - - 14.3 - 14.3

Total 6.5 9.5 66.7 82.7 3.7 99.0 83.0 185.7

Current 19.5 51.5

Non Current 63.2 134.2

Liabilities:

Held for Trading

CfDs 10.2 0.1 39.9 50.2 7.3 0.3 62.9 70.5

Interest Rate Swaps - 57.4 - 57.4 - 89.6 - 89.6

Foreign Exchange Contracts - - - - - - - - 

Cash Flow Hedges

CfDs - - - - - - - - 

Interest Rate Swaps - - - - - - - 

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 3.2 - 3.2 - 0.7 - 0.7

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - 3.0 - 3.0 - 1.4 - 1.4

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - 49.3 - 49.3 - 7.3 - 7.3

Total 10.2 113.0 39.9 163.1 7.3 99.3 62.9 169.5

Current 37.9 45.0

Non Current 125.2 124.5

Held for Sale Financial Assets:

Listed Securities 3.7 - - 3.7 5.9 - - 5.9

Total 3.7 - - 3.7 5.9 - - 5.9

The fair value element of borrowings which are subject to fair value hedge accounting is a level 2 valuation.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The following table outlines financial assets and liabilities offset within the Group financial statements:

GROUP 2014

GROSS
$M

SET OFF
$M

NET 1

$M
NOT SET OFF2

$M
COLLATERAL

$M
NET
$M

Financial Assets

Offsettable CfDs 274.9 (206.8) 68.1 - - 68.1

CfDs – stand alone (not offset) 5.0 - 5.0 - - 5.0

Total CfDs 279.9 (206.8) 73.1 - - 73.1

Treasury Derivatives 9.6 - 9.6 (6.7) - 2.9

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Assets 289.5 (206.8) 82.7 (6.7) - 76.0

Financial Liabilities

Offsettable CfDs 256.8 (206.8) 50.0 - (6.6) 43.4

CfDs – stand alone (not offsettable) 0.2 - 0.2 - - 0.2

Total CfDs 257.0 (206.8) 50.2 - (6.6) 43.6

Treasury Derivatives 112.9 - 112.9 (6.7) - 106.2

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities 369.9 (206.8) 163.1 (6.7) (6.6) 149.8

GROUP 2013

GROSS
$M

SET OFF
$M

NET 1

$M
NOT SET OFF2

$M
COLLATERAL

$M
NET
$M

Financial Assets

Offsettable CfDs 298.9 (232.5) 66.4 - - 66.4

CfDs – stand alone (not offset) 82.9 - 82.9 - - 82.9

Total CfDs 381.8 (232.5) 149.3 - - 149.3

Treasury Derivatives 36.4 - 36.4 (7.9) - 28.5

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Assets 418.2 (232.5) 185.7 (7.9) - 177.8

Financial Liabilities

Offsettable CfDs 295.8 (232.5) 63.3 - (9.4) 53.9

CfDs – stand alone (not offsettable) 7.2 - 7.2 - - 7.2

Total CfDs 303.0 (232.5) 70.5 - (9.4) 61.1

Treasury Derivatives 99.0 - 99.0 (7.9) - 91.1

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities 402.0 (232.5) 169.5 (7.9) (9.4) 152.2

1 Per Statement of Financial Position.
2 Legally offsettable but not intended to be settled on a net basis.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The table below shows the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value by the Parent:

PARENT

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
LEVEL 1

$M
LEVEL 2

$M
LEVEL 3

$M
30 JUNE 2014

$M
LEVEL 1

$M
LEVEL 2

$M
LEVEL 3

$M
30 JUNE 2013

$M

Assets:

Held for Trading

CfDs 3.5 (0.1) 62.8 66.2 3.3 62.6 82.5 148.4

Interest Rate Swaps - 5.3 - 5.3 - 9.4 - 9.4

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 2.9 - 2.9 - 12.2 - 12.2

Cash Flow Hedges

CfDs - - - - - - - - 

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - - - - - 14.3 - 14.3

Total 3.5 8.1 62.8 74.4 3.3 98.5 82.5 184.3

Current 15.5 51.8

Non Current 58.9 132.5

Liabilities:

Held for Trading

CfDs 10.2 0.1 39.9 50.2 7.2 0.3 62.9 70.4

Interest Rate Swaps - 46.6 - 46.6 - 84.2 - 84.2

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 3.0 - 3.0 - 12.1 - 12.1

Cash Flow Hedges

CfDs - - - - - - - - 

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - 0.3 - 0.3 - 1.4 - 1.4

Foreign Exchange Contracts - 3.2 - 3.2 - 0.7 - 0.7

Fair Value Hedges

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps - 49.3 - 49.3 - 7.3 - 7.3

Total 10.2 102.5 39.9 152.6 7.2 106.0 62.9 176.1

Current 37.4 53.2

Non Current 115.2 122.9

Held for Sale Financial Assets:

Listed Securities 3.7 - - 3.7 5.9 - - 5.9

Total 3.7 - - 3.7 5.9 - - 5.9

The fair value element of borrowings which are subject to fair value hedge accounting is a level 2 valuation.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The following table outlines financial assets and liabilities offset within the Parent financial statements:

PARENT 2014

GROSS
$M

SET OFF
$M

NET1

$M
NOT SET OFF2

$M
COLLATERAL

$M
NET
$M

Financial Assets

Offsettable CfDs 267.7 (205.0) 62.7 - - 62.7

CfDs – stand alone (not offset) 3.5 - 3.5 - - 3.5

Total CfDs 271.2 (205.0) 66.2 - - 66.2

Treasury Derivatives 8.2 - 8.2 (5.3) - 2.9

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Assets 279.4 (205.0) 74.4 (5.3) - 69.1

Financial Liabilities

Offsettable CfDs 255.0 (205.0) 50.0 - (5.8) 44.2

CfDs – stand alone (not offsettable) 0.2 - 0.2 - - 0.2

Total CfDs 255.2 (205.0) 50.2 - (5.8) 44.4

Treasury Derivatives 102.4 - 102.4 (5.3) - 97.1

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities 357.6 (205.0) 152.6 (5.3) (5.8) 141.5

PARENT 2013

GROSS
$M

SET OFF
$M

NET1

$M
NOT SET OFF2

$M
COLLATERAL

$M
NET
$M

Financial Assets

Offsettable CfDs 297.4 (231.5) 65.9 - - 65.9

CfDs – stand alone (not offset) 82.5 - 82.5 - - 82.5

Total CfDs 379.9 (231.5) 148.4 - - 148.4

Treasury Derivatives 35.9 - 35.9 (8.2) - 27.7

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Assets 415.8 (231.5) 184.3 (8.2) - 176.1

Financial Liabilities

Offsettable CfDs 294.7 (231.5) 63.2 - (7.8) 55.4

CfDs – stand alone (not offsettable) 7.2 - 7.2 - - 7.2

Total CfDs 301.9 (231.5) 70.4 - (7.8) 62.6

Treasury Derivatives 105.7 - 105.7 (8.2) - 97.5

Total Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities 407.6 (231.5) 176.1 (8.2) (7.8) 160.1

1 Per Statement of Financial Position.
2 Legally offsettable but not intended to be settled on a net basis.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The table below shows the changes in the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the Income Statement.

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Fair value hedge

Cross Currency Interest Rate Swaps (8.5) 57.5 (8.5) 57.5

Borrowings – Fair Value of Hedged Risk 8.0 (57.4) 8.0 (57.4)

(0.5) 0.1 (0.5) 0.1

Cash flow hedge

Interest Rate Swaps 27.5 42.6 33.4 42.4

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) – Financing 27.0 42.7 32.9 42.5

Held for trading

Foreign Exchange Contracts (0.1) 0.3 (0.1) 0.3

Other (0.1) (0.8) - (0.8)

CfDs – NZAS Contract (11.3) 56.2 (11.3) 56.2

CfDs – Aluminium (7.7) 27.6 (7.7) 27.6

CfDs – Other 10.8 (32.2) 5.8 (33.6)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) – Operational (8.4) 51.1 (13.3) 49.7

Total Net Change in Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments 18.6 93.8 19.6 92.2

Included in the above is $5.8 million Group (2013: $22.7 million) and $3.1 million Parent (2013:$22.3 million) related to Level 3 financial 
instruments held at year end.

The table below shows a reconciliation of fair value movements in Level 3 financial instruments.

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Energy Derivatives (CfDs)

Opening Balance 20.1 (1.9) 19.6 (1.2)

Total gains/(losses) recognised in the Income Statement

Included in Energy Sales Revenue (44.3) (56.7) (36.9) (53.7)

Net Change in Fair Value of CfDs 2.8 22.9 0.2 21.9

Total gains/(losses) recognised in the Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - (1.1) - (1.1)

Total gains/(losses) recognised in the FX Translation Reserve (0.2) - - - 

CfDs settled during the year 44.3 56.7 36.9 53.7

CfDs entered into during the year 4.1 0.2 3.1 - 

Closing Balance 26.8 20.1 22.9 19.6

Refer to previous Electricity price risk sensitivity analysis (in Note 26 – Financial Risk Management) for sensitivity to changes in valuation 
assumptions of Level 3 financial instruments (CfDs).
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

Material CfD Agreements

On 7 August 2013, Meridian and New Zealand 
Aluminium Smelters (NZAS) entered 
into an electricity price agreement (2013 
Agreement). This replaced the previous 
agreement negotiated in 2007 which took 
effect on 1 January 2013 (2007 Agreement).

The 2013 Agreement is for a period of up 
to eighteen years and is based on 400 to 
572MW of continuous consumption at the 
Tiwai smelter, thereby providing NZAS price 
certainty for this consumption volume which 
NZAS purchases from the New Zealand 
wholesale market. The agreed energy price 
is subject to escalation with reference to 
the Consumers Price Index (All Groups) and 
world aluminium prices.

Meridian considers that the 2013 Agreement 
will best ensure that the electricity price 
NZAS pays will remain competitive for the 
scale of electricity consumption at the 
Tiwai smelter, while recognising both the 
commodity-price driven cycles of NZAS’s 
business environment and the wholesale 
electricity price cycles to which Meridian  
is exposed. 

The 2007 and 2013 agreements have been 
accounted for at fair value as required by  
NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement. Fair value changes 
subsequent to initial recognition are 
recognised in the Income Statement.  
The 2013 Agreement has been measured 
using the fair value guidelines under  
NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Initial Recognition Difference

An initial recognition difference  
(also referred to as Day 1 adjustment)  
arises when an electricity derivative is 
entered into at a fair value determined to 
be different from the transaction price. 
This difference can be accounted for by 
recalibrating the valuation model by a fixed 
percentage to result in a value at inception 
equal to the transaction price (fair value). 
This recalibration adjustment is then 
applied to future valuations over the life 
of the contract. Alternatively, as was done 
previously with the difference on the 2007 
NZAS contract, it can be amortised over  
the life of the contract.

The table below shows the aggregate Day 1 adjustment yet to be recognised in the Income Statement over the term of the contracts:

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Opening Difference 186.0 634.4 186.0 639.7

Initial Difference on New Hedges

NZAS 2013 Agreement 853.2 - 853.2 - 

Electricity Related CfDs (0.2) 0.1 (0.2) 0.1

Volumes Expired and differences amortised during the Period

NZAS 2007 Agreement (116.1) (398.9) (116.1) (398.9)

NZAS 2013 Agreement (35.7) - (35.7) - 

Electricity Related CfDs (6.8) (26.3) (6.8) (31.5)

Recalibration of Model for Future Price Estimates and Time

NZAS 2013 Agreement 31.3 - 31.3 - 

Electricity Related CfDs (0.2) (23.3) (0.5) (23.4)

Closing Difference 911.5 186.0 911.2 186.0

Cash Flow Hedging

Cash Flow Hedges – CfDs

Meridian currently sells and purchases 
electricity at spot prices from the market, 
exposing it to changes in the price of 
electricity. As described in Note 26 – 
Financial Risk Management, it is Group policy 
to manage this risk on a net basis by entering 
into CfDs which swap receipt (payment) of 
spot electricity prices based on a specified 
volume of electricity with fixed electricity 
payments (receipts) for an equivalent 
volume. Cash settlements are made on these 
instruments on a monthly basis and impact 
income on an accrual basis. As discussed 
in Note 26 – Financial Risk Management, 
for accounting purposes, from 1 January 
2009 all of the CfDs are classified as held 
for trading with movements in fair value 
recognised in the income statement. Upon 

cessation of hedge accounting the balance in 
the cash flow hedge reserve is amortised as 
contract volumes expire over the remaining 
life of the respective contracts.

Cash Flow Hedges – FECs

Meridian hedges highly probable forecast 
capital expenditures through a combination 
of forward exchange contracts and foreign 
currency options. The cash flows associated 
with these contracts are timed to mature 
when payment for the capital expenditure is 
made. The contracts range in maturity from 
0 to 36 months. For contracts designated 
as hedges for accounting purposes, when 
the cash flows occur Meridian adjusts the 
carrying value of the asset acquired.

Cash Flow Hedges – CCIRSs

Meridian hedges its foreign currency 
exposure on foreign currency denominated 

debt using CCIRSs in a combination of cash 
flow and fair value hedges. The cash flow 
hedge component represents the expected 
foreign currency cash flows on the debt 
relating to the credit margin paid by Meridian 
on the borrowings. Cash flows relating to the 
debt and the CCIRSs are settled quarterly for 
the NZ cash flows and semi-annually for the 
foreign currency (US and Australian dollars). 
Income is affected by these settlements on 
an accrual basis.

Cash Flow Hedges – IRSs

Meridian hedges its interest rate exposure 
on debt using IRSs. Cash flow hedges were 
established in relation to the Macarthur 
Wind Farm Project Financing, construction 
and term facilities and related IRS. Cash 
flows relating to the debt and the IRSs were 
settled monthly. Income was affected by 
these settlements on an accrual basis.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

The table below shows the movements in the cash flow hedge (CFH) reserve for the period.

GROUP

IRSs
$M

FECs
$M

DEBT – CFH OF 
MARGIN

$M
CFDs

$M
TAX
$M

TOTAL
$M

Opening Balance at 1 July 2013 - 11.3 1.4 - (3.8) 8.9

Amount Recognised in Equity - (121.6) (3.5) - 36.4 (88.7)

Amount Removed from Equity:

Included in Initial Cost of Assets - 110.0 - - (32.0) 78.0

Recycled through the Income Statement - - 0.5 - (0.1) 0.4

Closing Balance at 30 June 2014 - (0.3) (1.6) - 0.5 (1.4)

Ineffectiveness Recognised in the  
Income Statement from Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - - 

PARENT

FECs
$M

DEBT – CFH OF 
MARGIN

$M
CFDs

$M
TAX
$M

TOTAL
$M

Opening Balance at 1 July 2013 (0.9) 1.4 - (0.2) 0.3

Amount Recognised in Equity (51.2) (2.2) - 14.9 (38.5)

Amount Removed from Equity:

Included in Initial Cost of Assets 48.7 - - (13.6) 35.1

Recycled through the Income Statement - 0.5 - (0.1) 0.4

Closing Balance at 30 June 2014 (3.4) (0.3) - 1.0 (2.7)

Ineffectiveness Recognised in the  
Income Statement from Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - 

GROUP

IRSs
$M

FECs
$M

DEBT – CFH OF 
MARGIN

$M
CFDs

$M
TAX
$M

TOTAL
$M

Opening Balance at 1 July 2012 (63.2) (2.9) 5.2 1.1 18.0 (41.8)

Amount Recognised in Equity 19.0 (11.2) (3.7) - (1.2) 2.9

Amount Removed from Equity:

Amortised to Income Statement - - - (1.1) 0.3 (0.8)

Included in Initial Cost of Assets - 25.4 - - (7.7) 17.7

Transfer Cash Flow Hedge Reserve to Retained 
Earnings on Sale of Subsidiary 44.2 - - - (13.2) 31.0

Recycled through the Income Statement - - (0.1) - - (0.1)

Closing Balance at 30 June 2013 - 11.3 1.4 - (3.8) 8.9

Ineffectiveness Recognised in the  
Income Statement from Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - -
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27. Financial Instruments (continued) 

PARENT

FECs
$M

DEBT – CFH OF 
MARGIN

$M
CFDs

$M
TAX
$M

TOTAL
$M

Opening Balance at 1 July 2012 (2.9) 5.2 1.1 (1.0) 2.4

Amount Recognised in Equity (6.1) (3.7) - 2.8 (7.0)

Amount Removed from Equity:

Amortised to Income Statement - - (1.1) 0.3 (0.8)

Included in Initial Cost of Assets 8.1 - - (2.3) 5.8

Recycled through the Income Statement - (0.1) - - (0.1)

Closing Balance at 30 June 2013 (0.9) 1.4 - (0.2) 0.3

Ineffectiveness Recognised in the  
Income Statement from Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - 

The table below shows when the gross amounts held in the cash flow hedge reserve are expected to impact the income statement (CCIRSs)  
or the Statement of Financial Position (FECs and IRSs).

2014

LESS THAN  
1 YEAR

$M
1-2 YEARS

$M
2-5 YEARS

$M

GREATER THAN 
5 YEARS

$M

CCIRSs - (0.1) (0.2) -

FECs (3.4) - - - 

Total Parent (3.4) (0.1) (0.2) - 

FECs 3.1 - - - 

CCIRSs 1.4 (0.3) (0.9) (1.5) 

Total Group 1.1 (0.4) (1.1) (1.5)

2013

LESS THAN  
1 YEAR

$M
1-2 YEARS

$M
2-5 YEARS

$M

GREATER THAN 
5 YEARS

$M

CCIRSs 0.2 - 0.4 0.8

FECs (0.6) (0.1) - - 

Total Parent (0.4) (0.1) 0.4 0.8

FECs 9.7 2.3 - - 

Total Group 9.3 2.2 0.4 0.8
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28. Commitments

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Operating Lease Commitments

Non Cancellable Operating Lease Payments are as follows:

Less than One Year 5.8 4.6 4.1 3.7

Later than One Year and Not Later than Three Years 11.5 8.6 8.0 7.2

Later than Three Years and Not Later than Five Years 8.5 6.9 5.9 6.0

More than Five Years 16.1 3.5 1.1 3.3

41.9 23.6 19.1 20.2

In Australia, Meridian enters into lease 
agreements for land when developing 
windfarms. These leases range up to  
25 years with options to renew.

Meridian also leases office buildings with 
terms of the leases ranging from one to 
twelve years, with options to extend up to 
twelve years. Lease contracts contain rent 
review clauses including consumer price 
index increases and market rental reviews  
in the event Meridian exercises its options  
to renew.

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Property, Plant and Equipment 29.9 230.1 25.0 15.4

Software 3.6 3.9 1.2 3.9

33.5 234.0 26.2 19.3

Less than One Year 28.7 182.5 24.5 18.3

Later than One Year and Not Later than Three Years 4.8 51.5 1.7 1.0

Later than Three Years and Not Later than Five Years - - - - 

More than Five Years - - - - 

33.5 234.0 26.2 19.3

Guarantees

Meridian Wind Macarthur Pty Limited had 
various obligations arising from the joint 
venture with AGL Energy Limited (disclosed 
above). These included performance and 
funding obligations under the joint venture 
deed, obligations to contractors in relation 
to the construction of the wind farm, 
and obligations under various landowner 
agreements. Meridian Energy Limited had 
provided various guarantees and letters 
of comfort to the relevant parties that 
effectively guaranteed the obligations of 
Meridian Wind Macarthur Pty Limited. 
These obligations ceased when Three Rivers 
Holdings No 2 Limited sold Meridian Wind 
Macarthur Holdings Pty Limited.

However, Meridian Energy Limited has 
provided a bank guarantee (A$37.9 million) 
to the financiers of the Macarthur Wind 
Farm, guaranteeing that it will comply with 
its various obligations under the Refinancing 
Coordination Deed (with that guarantee 
expected to be released in Q4 2014).

Meridian Energy Limited has provided parent 
guarantees for various construction and grid 
connection obligations of Mt Mercer Wind 
Farm Pty Limited. The maximum liability 
under these guarantees is $192.6 million 
(2013: $221.9 million).

Meridian Energy Limited signed a Parent 
Company Guarantee (PCG) on 30 April 2014 
for the benefit of CalRENEW-1 Holdings LLC 
(holding company of SunEdison Inc.) The PCG 
related to Meridian Energy USA Inc’s (MEUSA) 
sale of CalRENEW-1 LLC pursuant to a Unit 
Purchase Agreement (UPA). Under the PCG, 
the Parent guarantees MEUSA’s obligations in 
the UPA, which include payment obligations 
and some representations and warranties. 
The PCG stands for three years.
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29. Related Party Transactions

Transactions with Related Parties

Meridian transacts with other Government 
owned or related entities independently and 
on an arm’s length basis. Transactions cover 
a variety of services including trading energy, 
transmission, postal, travel and tax.

Some directors of the Group may be 
directors or officers of other companies or 
organisations with whom members of the 
Group may transact. Such transactions are 
all carried out independently on an arm’s 
length basis.

Other Transactions involving  
a Related Party

During the financial year the transactions 
outlined in the table below (and their related 
outstanding balances) occurred between 
the Parent and its subsidiaries. These 
transactions are carried out on a commercial 
and arm’s length basis.

ENTITY TRANSACTION
TRANSACTIONS  

$M
BALANCE 

$M DETAILS OF TRANSACTION

Damwatch Services Limited Consultancy Services 2.1 (0.1) Damwatch Services Limited provided 
consultancy services to Meridian Energy 
Limited during the year (2013: $1.6 million).

Meridian Energy Captive 
Insurance Limited

Insurance Services 5.1 0.1 Meridian Energy Captive Insurance Limited 
(MECIL) received payment for insurance 
premiums from Meridian Energy Limited. 
MECIL has this policy underwritten by third 
parties (2013: $5.9 million).

Arc Innovations Limited Meter Management Services 26.5 (0.1) Arc Innovations Limited provided advanced 
meter management services to Meridian 
Energy Limited during the year (2013:  
$21.9 million)

Powershop New Zealand Limited Online Electricity Retailer 7.9 (6.5) Powershop New Zealand Limited entered 
into energy contracts with Meridian Energy 
Limited during the year (2013: $2.8 million)

Mt Mercer Windfarm Pty Limited Foreign Exchange Contracts 2.9 - Mt Mercer Windfarm Pty Limited entered  
into foreign exchange contracts with  
Meridian Energy Limited during the year  
(2013: $12.1 million)

Subsidiaries’ Loan Facilities  
and Advances

Advances to Subsidiaries are repayable  
on demand and are unsecured. Interest  
is charged at an annually set base rate  
plus a margin and is payable on demand.  

Advances from Subsidiaries are repayable  
on demand, are unsecured and attract a 
market rate of return. Interest is paid on 
demand. Total available and undrawn loan 
facilities to Subsidiaries were $33.9 million 
(2013: $72.0 million). 
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29. Related Party Transactions (continued) )

PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries

Loan to Three Rivers No 1 Limited 124.7 380.3

Loan to Three Rivers No 2 Limited - 0.8

Loan to Meridian Energy Captive Insurance Limited 0.1 1.9

Loan to MEL Solar Holdings Limited 23.2 27.0

Loan to Powershop New Zealand Limited - 0.5

Other Advances to Subsidiaries - 1.5

Total Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries 148.0 412.0

Advances from Subsidiaries

Meridian Energy International Limited 219.2 219.2

Three Rivers No 2 Limited 26.8 - 

Arc Innovations Limited 0.1 9.3

Damwatch Services Limited - 0.3

Whisper Tech Limited 0.2 0.2

Powershop New Zealand Limited 6.5 - 

Other Advances from Subsidiaries 0.2 - 

Total Advances from Subsidiaries 253.0 229.0

Impairment

Loan Facilities and Advances to Subsidiaries 
have been impaired by a total of $5.6 million 
in 2014 (2013: $2.0 million), in respect of 
MEL Solar Holdings Limited (refer to Note 5 
for further details of these impairments).

Compensation of Key  
Management Personnel

The remuneration of directors and other 
members of key management during the  
year was as follows:

GROUP PARENT

2014
$M

2013
$M

2014
$M

2013
$M

Directors’ Fees 1.2 0.6 1.0 0.5

Chief Executive Officer, Senior Management Team and Subsidiary Chief Executives:

Salaries and Short Term Benefits 8.6 8.9 6.6 6.2

Post-Employment Benefits 0.4 - 0.4 - 

Redundancy Benefits 0.1 - - - 

Share Based Payments1 0.4 - 0.4 - 

9.5 8.9 7.4 6.2

1 Share Based Payments reflect the accrual of expected benefits for Senior Executives under the Long Term Incentive Plan outlined in Note 4.
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI)

Consolidated Income Statement

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

Operating Revenue 

Energy Sales Revenue 2,481.5 2,416.8

Energy Related Services Revenue 15.8 13.9

Other Revenue 11.5 9.1

Total Operating Revenue 2,508.8 2,439.8

Operating Expenses 

Energy Related Expenses (1,130.5) (1,091.2)

Energy Distribution Expenses (427.6) (410.5)

Energy Transmission Expenses (129.3) (135.6)

Employee and Other Operating Expenses (236.1) (254.1)

(1,923.5) (1,891.4)

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation, Change in Fair 
Value of Financial Instruments and Other Significant Items (EBITDAF)

585.3 548.4

Depreciation and Amortisation (220.0) (222.0)

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets 6.6 (0.3)

Equity Accounted Earnings of Joint Ventures (0.4) - 

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) (Operational) (8.4) (15.3)

Operating Profit 363.1 310.8

Finance Costs and Other Finance Related Income/(Expenses)

Net Finance Expenses (73.7) (78.1)

Net Change in Fair Value of Financial Instruments Gain/(Loss) (Financing) 27.0 28.3

Profit Before Tax 316.4 261.0

Income Tax Expense (86.6) (73.1)

Profit After Tax 229.8 187.9

Variance Analysis Income Statement

Profit after tax is ahead of PFI by $41.9 million 
(22.3%); core influences on this result include:

• Contracted sales revenue (net of 
distribution expenses) from retail and 
wholesale customers was positively 
impacted by additional volumes sold  
and better pricing to corporate and 
industrial customers;

• New Zealand generation production 
was in-line with PFI, however revenues 
benefited from higher than forecast 
average wholesale prices;

• The higher than forecast average 
New Zealand wholesale prices combined 
with a higher volume of electricity 
purchased from the wholesale market  
to support contracted customer  
sales negatively impacted energy  
related expenses;

• Employee and other operating expenses 
benefited from efficiency measures 
implemented;

• Gains made from the sale of farm land, 
partially offset by a loss realised on the 
sale of CalRENEW-1 in the USA; and

• Lower net finance costs reflecting a lower 
than forecast net debt position.
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI) (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

Profit After Tax for the Year 229.8 187.9

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:

Net Loss on Available for Sale Investments (1.4) - 

Net Loss on Cash Flow Hedges (14.6) (13.3)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation Reserve to Profit & Loss 4.9 - 

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation of Foreign Operations (15.1) - 

Income Tax relating to items that may be reclassified 4.7 3.7

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax (21.5) (9.6)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Net of Tax 208.3 178.3

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Attributable to: 

Shareholders of the Parent Company 208.3 178.3

Variance Analysis Consolidated Statement 
of Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income benefited  
from higher than forecast profit after tax  
(see Consolidated Income Statement  
variance analysis).

Exchange differences arising from translation 
of foreign operations reflect exchange rate 
movements in the year. The PFI assumed no 
foreign exchange movements.
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI) (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

Shareholders’ Equity 

Share Capital 1,598.6 1,600.0

Reserves 3,035.1 3,006.3

Total Equity 4,633.7 4,606.3

Represented by: 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 276.4 73.3

Accounts Receivable and Prepayments 182.7 266.0

Other Assets 17.5 69.7

Assets Classified as Held for Sale 26.5 - 

Derivative Financial Instruments 19.5 33.6

Total Current Assets 522.6 442.6

Non-Current Assets 

Other Assets 0.4 0.6

Equity Accounted Joint Ventures 0.2 - 

Intangible Assets 54.0 47.3

Property, Plant and Equipment 6,929.0 6,954.4

Deferred Tax Asset 20.4 12.6

Derivative Financial Instruments 63.2 107.9

Total Non-Current Assets 7,067.2 7,122.8

Total Assets 7,589.8 7,565.4

Current Liabilities 

Liabilities Classified as Held for Sale 1.3 2.6

Payables and Accruals 235.6 259.3

Current Tax Payable 57.1 21.3

Current Portion of Term Borrowings 133.4 133.4

Finance Lease Payable 0.6 - 

Derivative Financial Instruments 37.9 29.4

Total Current Liabilities 465.9 446.0

Non-Current Liabilities 

Deferred Tax Liability 1,349.7 1,359.3

Term Borrowings 959.1 1,060.6

Term Payables 0.6 - 

Provisions 7.0 - 

Finance Lease Payable 48.6 5.2

Derivative Financial Instruments 125.2 88.0

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,490.2 2,513.1

Total Liabilities 2,956.1 2,959.1

Net Assets 4,633.7 4,606.3

Variance Analysis Balance Sheet

Meridian’s net assets are $27.4 million  
(0.6%) higher than forecast.

Movements in working capital are discussed 
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
variance analysis.

Lower than forecast term borrowings  
reflect higher levels of cash which have been 
utilised to repay term borrowings.
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI) (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 - 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Profit for the Year - - - - - - 229.8 229.8

Cash Flow Hedges:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - (14.6) - - (14.6)

Available for Sale Reserve:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - - - (1.4) - (1.4)

Reclassify Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  
to Profit and Loss - - - 4.9 - - - 4.9

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation  
of Foreign Operations - - - (15.1) - - - (15.1)

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to Retained 
Earnings - - (0.1) - - - 0.1 - 

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 4.3 0.4 - 4.7

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - (0.1) (10.2) (10.3) (1.0) 229.9 208.3

Movement in Share Options - 0.2 - - - - - 0.2

Acquisition of Treasury Shares (1.4) - - - - - - (1.4)

Dividends Paid - - - - - - (261.4) (261.4)

Balance at 30 June 2014 1,598.6 0.2 3,073.8 (23.4) (1.4) 0.6 (14.7) 4,633.7
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Balance at 1 July 2013 1,600.0 3,073.9 (13.2) 8.9 1.6 16.8 4,688.0

Profit for the Year - - - - - 187.9 187.9

Cash Flow Hedges:

Net Loss Taken to Equity - - - (13.3) - - (13.3)

Available for Sale Reserve:

Net Gain Taken to Equity - - - - - - - 

Transfer Cash Flow Hedge Reserve to Retained Earnings  
on Sale of Subsidiary - - - - - - - 

Exchange Differences Arising from Translation  
of Foreign Operations - - - - - - - 

Asset Revaluation Reserve Transferred to Retained Earnings - - - - - - - 

Deferred Tax on Revaluation Reserve - - - - - - - 

Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive Income - - - 3.7 - - 3.7

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - (9.6) - 187.9 178.3

Movement is Share Options - - - - - - -

Acquisition of Treasury Shares - - - - - - - 

Dividends Paid - - - - - (260.0) (260.0) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 1,600.0 3,073.9 (13.2) (0.7) 1.6 (55.3) 4,606.3
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI) (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

Operating Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Receipts from Customers 2,083.4 2,439.6

Interest Received 8.5 3.9

2,091.9 2,443.5

Cash was Applied to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees (1,480.5) (1,914.4)

Interest Paid (80.0) (82.7)

Income Tax Paid (98.6) (107.9)

(1,659.1) (2,105.0)

Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities 432.8 338.5

Investment Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 41.1 - 

Finance Lease Receivable 0.2 0.2

Sale of Subsidiaries 20.1 - 

Sale of Investments 1.0 - 

62.4 0.2

Cash was Applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (283.7) (381.2)

Capitalised Interest (9.3) - 

Finance Lease Payable (0.5) - 

Purchase of Intangible Assets (21.7) (20.8)

Purchase of Investments (0.6) - 

(315.8) (402.0)

Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities (253.4) (401.8)

Financing Activities

Cash was Provided from:

Proceeds from Borrowings 133.7 13.8

133.7 13.8

Cash was Applied to:

Shares Purchased for Long Term Incentive (1.0) - 

Dividends Paid (261.4) (260.0)

Term Borrowings Paid (153.5) - 

(415.9) (260.0)

Net Cash Outflows from Financing Activities (282.2) (246.2)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (102.8) (309.5)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 382.8 382.8

Cash Removed on Sale of Subsidiaries (1.8) - 

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Net Cash (1.8) - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 276.4 73.3
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30. Comparison to Prospective Financial Information (PFI) (continued) 

Variance Analysis Cash Flow

Net cash generated from operating activities 
is $94.3 million (27.9%) higher than forecast. 
Core influences include:

• Stronger than forecast financial 
performance (see Consolidated Income 
Statement variance analysis); 

• Closing out an aluminium swap, which was 
used to hedge exposures which arose in 
the 2007 NZAS agreement;

• Lower net finance costs; and

• Lower level of income tax paid. The PFI 
assumed a higher level of tax would be 
paid as a result of the Macarthur sale.

Net cash outflows from investing activities 
are $148.4 million (36.9%) lower than 
forecast. During the year Meridian generated 
cash from the sale of farm land and 
Meridian’s USA investment. These were 

not included within the PFI. Additionally,  
the level of cash applied to capital 
investment is lower than forecast.  
This is mainly a timing difference which  
will reverse in the following year.

Net cash outflows from financing activities 
are $36.0 million (14.6%) higher than 
forecast, reflecting a higher than forecast 
level of term borrowings being repaid.

31. Subsequent Events

Dividends

On 17 August 2014 the Board declared a 
partially imputed final ordinary dividend of 
$174.8 million (6.8 cents per share), before 
supplementary dividends for international 
investors. Additionally on 17 August 2014 the 

Board declared a partially imputed special 
dividend of $51.3 million (2.0 cents per 
share), before supplementary dividends  
for international investors.

The payment of the final ordinary dividend 
and special dividend will not have tax 

consequences for the Group other  
than reducing the imputation credit  
account balance.

There have been no other material events 
subsequent to 30 June 2014.

32. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Assets

There were no contingent assets at  
30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities at  
30 June 2014 (2013: nil).
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Shareholders of Meridian Energy Limited and Group  

Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Meridian Energy Limited (the “Company”) and Group. The Auditor-General 

has appointed me, Michael Wilkes, using the staff and resources of Deloitte, to carry out the audit of the 

financial statements of the Company and Group, on her behalf. 

We have audited the financial statements of the Company and Group on pages 51 to 114, that comprise the 

statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, 

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the 

financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Opinion

Financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements of the Company and Group on pages 51 to 114:

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

• comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

• give a true and fair view of the Company and Group’s:

– financial position as at 30 June 2014; and

– financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other legal requirements

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 we report that, in our opinion, proper accounting records 

have been kept by the Company and Group as far as appears from an examination of those records.

Our audit was completed on 17 August 2014. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

and our responsibilities, and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate 

the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our judgement, are 

likely to influence shareholders’ overall understanding of the financial statements. If we had found material 

misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the Company and Group’s financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate. We consider internal control 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and Group’s internal control.
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An audit also involves evaluating:
• the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently applied;• the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the Board of Directors;• the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements.  
Also we did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements.In accordance with the Financial Reporting Act 1993, we report that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations we have required. We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing financial statements that:• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and • give a true and fair view of the Company and Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.The Board of Directors is also responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
The Board of Directors is also responsible for the publication of the financial statements, whether in printed  
or electronic form.

The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
Responsibilities of the Auditor
We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and reporting that 
opinion to you based on our audit. Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001.
Independence

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General,  which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting Board.In addition to the audit, our firm carries out other assurance assignments for the Company and Group  
in the areas of carbon emissions audit, review of the interim financial statements, audit of the securities  
registers and were appointed as the investigating accountant in respect of the public offer, which are services 
compatible with those independence requirements which incorporate the independence requirements  
of the External Reporting Board. In addition to this, principals and employees of our firm deal with the Company 
and Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the Company  
and Group.

Other than the audit, these assignments and transactions within the ordinary course of trading activities of the 
Company and Group, we have no other relationships with, or interests in, the Company or Group.

Michael Wilkes
Deloitte
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Christchurch, New Zealand
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Non GAAP Financial Information for the year ended 30 June 2014 

Non GAAP Measures

In order to assist readers of Meridian’s 
financial statements to better understand 
Meridian’s financial performance, Meridian 
uses a number of non-GAAP financial 
measures. These measures are described 
below, together with reconciliations showing 
how these items (other than EBITDAF) are 
calculated from the financial statements.

Because they are not defined by NZ GAAP, 
IFRS, or any other body of accounting 
standards, Meridian’s calculations may differ 

from similarly titled measures presented 
by other companies. These measures are 
intended to supplement the NZ GAAP 
measures presented in Meridian’s financial 
statements and not as a substitute for those 
measures.

EBITDAF

EBITDAF is earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation, amortisation, change in fair 
value of financial instruments, impairments, 
gain/(loss) on sale of assets and joint venture 
equity accounted earnings.

EBITDAF is reported in the income statement 
allowing the evaluation of Meridian’s operating  
performance without the non-cash impact 
of depreciation, amortisation, fair value 
movements of financial instruments and 
other one off and/or infrequently occurring 
events and the effects of Meridian’s capital 
structure and tax position. This allows better 
comparison of operating performance to 
other electricity industry companies than  
NZ GAAP measures that include these items.

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

ACTUAL 
2013

$M

EBITDAF 585.3 548.4 584.8

Energy Margin

Energy Margin consists of:

• revenues from sales to customers net  
of distribution costs, sales to large 
industrial customers and fixed price 
revenues from sell-side derivatives 
(contracted sales revenue); 

• the net margin from the buy-side and the 
sell-side of the virtual asset swaps with 
Genesis Energy and Mighty River Power; 

• the fixed cost of buy-side derivatives 
acquired to supplement generation and 
spot price risks, net of spot revenue for 
generation acquired from these derivatives 
(Net cost of acquired generation)

• revenues from the volume of electricity 
that Meridian generates that is in excess 
of volumes required to cover contracted 
customer sales (Spot exposed revenues)

• other associated market revenues and 
costs including Electricity Authority 
levies and ancillary generation revenues 
including frequency keeping 

Energy Margin provides a measure of 
financial performance that, unlike total 
revenue, accounts for the variability of the 
wholesale electricity market and the broadly 
offsetting impact of the wholesale prices 
on the cost of Meridian’s retail electricity 
purchases and revenues from generation. 
Meridian uses the measure of Energy Margin 
within segment reporting in the notes to 
Meridian’s financial statements.

The following tables set out the calculation of New Zealand and International Energy Margin.

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

ACTUAL 
2013

$M

Energy Sales Revenue 2,481.5 2,416.8 2,681.5

Energy Related Expenses (1,130.5) (1,091.2) (1,361.5)

Energy Distribution Expenses (427.6) (410.5) (404.2)

Energy Margin 923.4 915.1 915.8
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Non GAAP Financial Information for the year ended 30 June 2014 (continued)

The components of Energy Margin are set out in the table below: 

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

ACTUAL 
2013

$M

New Zealand Energy Margin

Retail contracted sales revenue 596.7 575.7 597.8

Wholesale contracted sales revenue 304.3 280.5 372.0

Total Contracted Sales Revenue 901.0 856.2 969.8

VAS Margin 16.6 7.8 10.0

Net Cost of Acquired Generation (35.4) (22.2) (48.3)

Meridian generation spot revenue 790.4 735.0 783.4

Cost to supply contracted sales (776.8) (688.3) (852.0)

Net Spot Exposed Revenue 13.6 46.7 (68.6)

Other Market Revenue/(Costs) (4.3) (7.9) 2.2

New Zealand Energy Margin 891.5 880.6 865.1

International Energy Margin

Contracted sales revenue 4.3 4.0 0.2

Generation sales revenue 30.6 33.1 50.6

Electricity purchase expenses (3.0) (2.6) (0.1)

International Energy Margin 31.9 34.5 50.7

Energy Margin 923.4 915.1 915.8

Underlying Net Profit After Tax 
(Underlying NPAT)

Underlying NPAT is presented to enable an 
assessment and comparison of net profit 
after tax (NPAT) after removing from NPAT 
one-off and/or infrequently occurring events, 
impairments and changes in the fair value  
of financial instruments. In contrast to  
NPAT, the exclusion of these items enables  
a comparison of the underlying performance 
of Meridian across time periods.

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

ACTUAL 
2013

$M

NPAT 229.8 187.9 295.1

Net change in fair value of financial instruments – operational 8.4 15.3 (51.1)

Net change in fair value of financial instruments – financial (27.0) (28.3) (42.7)

Premiums paid on electricity options (less interest) (20.1) (17.0) (18.5)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investments and intangibles - - 24.8

Net (gain)/loss on sale of assets (6.6) - (106.6)

Adjustments before tax (45.3) (30.0) (194.1)

Net income tax adjustment 10.1 3.6 61.7

Underlying NPAT 194.6 161.5 162.7

Underlying NPAT per Share 0.08 0.06 0.06
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Non GAAP Financial Information for the year ended 30 June 2014 (continued)

Net Debt

Net debt is defined as the value of current 
and non current borrowings net of foreign 
exchange hedging, plus the value of 
finance lease payables, less cash and cash 
equivalents. Net debt is a metric commonly 
used by investors as a measure of Meridian’s 
indebtedness that takes account of liquid 
financial assets.

   

GROUP

ACTUAL 
2014

$M

FORECAST
2014

$M

ACTUAL 
2013

$M

Total borrowings net of foreign exchange hedging (1,145.7) (1,194.0) (1,182.7)

Finance lease payables (49.2) - - 

Less cash and cash equivalents 276.4 73.3 382.8

Net Debt (918.5) (1,120.7) (799.9)
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1 . Meridian directors during the year ending 
30 June 2014 for the Group

Mer id ia n’s d i rectors a re l i sted on pa ge 9 of 

t he rep or t . No d i rectors resi g ned du r i n g t he 

accou nt i n g p er io d 1 Ju ly 2 01 3 to 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 .

2 . Donations

T he Mer id ia n Group ha s made no donat ion s 

du r i n g t he p er io d . Mer id ia n do es not ma ke 

donat ion s to p ol it ica l pa r t ies . A l l donat ion s 

mu st b e approved by t he B oa rd . 

3. Auditor fees 

T he Aud itor- G enera l ha s app oi nted M ichael 

Wi l kes of D eloit te a s aud itor of t he compa ny, 

M ichael Wi l kes ha s b een aud itor of t he 

compa ny si nce 2 01 2 . T he a mou nt payable by 

Mer id ia n a nd it s subsid ia r ies to D eloit te a s 

aud it fees i n resp ect of 2 014 wa s $0.6 m i l l ion 

( 2 01 3 : $0.6 m i l l ion ).

T he B oa rd ha s adopted a st r ict p ol icy to 

ma i nta i n t he i ndep endence of t he compa ny ’s 

ex ter na l aud itor, i nclud i n g a rev iew of a l l 

ot her ser v ices p er for med by D eloit te a nd 

recom mend i n g to t he O f f ice of t he Aud itor-

G enera l t hat t here b e lead pa r t ner rotat ion 

a f ter a ma x i mu m of f ive yea rs . O t her ser v ices 

u nder ta ken by D eloit te du r i n g t he yea r 

tota l led $0.6 m i l l ion ( 2 01 3 : $0. 2 m i l l ion ).  

T hese related to ot her a ssu ra nce act iv it ies 

i nclud i n g i nvest i gat i n g accou nta nt ser v ices 

du r i n g Mer id ia n’s I PO. 

4 . Information used by directors 

No not ices were received by a ny memb er 

of t he B oa rd request i n g t he u se of compa ny 

i n for mat ion received i n t hei r capacit y a s 

d i rectors t hat wou ld not ot her w i se have b een 

ava i lable to t hem .

5. Directors’ interests

P u rsua nt to sect ion s 14 0 a nd 2 1 1(e) of t he 

Compa n ies Act 1993 , t he genera l d i sclosu res 

of i nterest , i nclud i n g a l l cha n ges made a nd 

recorded du r i n g t he yea r 1 Ju ly 2 01 3 to 3 0 Ju ne 

2 014 for d i rectors of Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited 

a nd it s subsid ia r ies a re l i sted a s fol lows:

Statutory  
information and  
other disclosures
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NAME POSITION DISCLOSURES

John Bongard Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, WilliamsWarn Limited
• Holder, Meridian Energy Bonds (Cessation)

Mark Cairns Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, Prime Port Timaru

Paul Chambers Director, Powershop  
New Zealand Limited

• Director, Energy for Industry (Cessation)
• Director, Meridian Wind Macarthur (Cessation)

Jan Dawson Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, AIG
• Director, Beca Group 
• President, Yachting New Zealand (Cessation)
• Director, Counties Manukau District Health Board (Cessation)

Mary Devine Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, Briscoe Group Limited
• Managing Director, J Ballantyne & Co. Limited (Cessation)

Sally Farrier Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, SP Australia Networks (Distribution) Limited
• Director, SP Australia Networks (Transmission) Limited 
• Director, SP Australia Networks (RE) Limited

Anake Goodall Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Trustee, Akina Foundation (Formerly Hikurangi Foundation) 
• Shareholder, Infratil 
• Director, PledgeMe Limited
• Shareholder, Genesis
• Member, Environmental Protection Authority (Cessation)
• Shareholder, Rio Tinto (Cessation)
• Director, Enspiral Foundation Limited (Cessation)
• Shareholder, Blackrock New Energy Technology (Cessation)

John Journee Director, Powershop  
New Zealand Limited

• Director, Shareholder and Employee of The Warehouse Group Limited
• Director, Max Fashions Limited
• Director, Max Fashions Holdings Limited
• Trustee, JWM Journee Trust
• Employee, Noel Leeming Group (Cessation)
• Director, Ezibuy Holdings Group (Cessation)
• Director, Torpedo7 Limited

Chris Moller Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, ICC Development (International) Limited (Cessation)
• Director, International Cricket Council (Cessation)
• Chairman, New Zealand Cricket Inc. (Cessation)

Stephen Reindler Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Director, Yachting New Zealand
• Director, Resolve Group Limited
• Director, Naylor Love Enterprises
• Director, Port of Napier Limited (Cessation)
• Shareholder, AGL (Cessation)
• Director, Stevenson Group Limited (Cessation)

Rowan Simpson Director, Powershop  
New Zealand Limited

• Shareholder, N7 Limited, W5 Limited and Southgate Labs Limited (as trustee of the Kimo Trust)
• Trustee, Pika Trust and Kimo Trust
• Shareholder, Utiku Limited (as trustee of the Pika Trust)
• Shareholder, Atomic Software Limited
• Director, New Ground Media Limited (Cessation)
• Shareholder, Xero Limited
• Shareholder, Revert Limited
• Shareholder, Timely Limited
• Shareholder, SMX Limited

Peter Wilson Director, Meridian Energy Limited • Shareholder, Genesis 
• Shareholder, King Country Energy (Cessation)
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6. Directors’ interests in Meridian securities

A s at 3 0 Ju ne 2 014 , d i rectors had releva nt i nterest s (a s def i ned i n t he S ecu r it ies Ma rket s Act 198 8) i n Mer id ia n secu r it ies (a s def i ned i n t hat Act ) 

a s fol lows:

DIRECTOR
DATE OF  
ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL NUMBER AND CLASS OF SECURITIES

CONSIDERATION PAID  
OR RECEIVED

John Bongard 29 October 2013 Acquisition 54,000 instalment receipts (Rangiputa Trust) $54,000

Mark Cairns 29 October 2013 Acquisition 90,000 instalment receipts $90,000

(a) 12 March 2014
(b) 13 March 2014
(c) 13 March 2014

(a) 10,000 instalment receipts
(b) 10,000 instalment receipts
(c) 10,000 instalment receipts

(a) NZ$1.095 per  
instalment receipt
(b) NZ$1.09 per  
instalment receipt
(c) NZ$1.09 per  
instalment receipt
$32,750

Jan Dawson 29 October 2013 Acquisition 51,300 instalment receipts (Kinross Trust) $51,300

Mary Devine 29 October 2013 Acquisition 51,210 instalment receipts $51,210

Sally Farrier 29 October 2013 Acquisition 54,000 instalment receipts $54,000

Anake Goodall 29 October 2013 Acquisition 17,250 instalment receipts (Kaupapa Uka Limited)
Acquisition 36,000 instalment receipts (FNZ Custodians Ltd, Broch Murray Trust)
Acquisition 2,500 instalment receipts (Awhioraki TP Goodall)

$17,250
$36,000
$2,500

29 October 2013
30 October 2013

Acquisition 4,000 instalment receipts (FNZ Custodians Ltd, Broch Murray Trust)
Acquisition 2,750 instalment receipts (Kaupapa Uka Limited)

$4,320
$3,025

Chris Moller 29 October 2013 Acquisition 92,880 instalment receipts (FNZ Custodians Limited) $92,880

Stephen Reindler 29 October 2013 Acquisition 51,300 instalment receipts (Reindler Family Trust) $51,300

Peter Wilson 29 October 2013 Acquisition 64,170 instalment receipts $64,170

7. Stock exchange listings

Mer id ia n i s l i sted on b ot h t he New Zea la nd  

a nd Au st ra l ia n sto ck excha n ges . 

8. Waivers from the New Zealand and 
Australian stock exchanges

D eta i l s of a l l wa ivers g ra nted a nd publ i shed 

by N Z X i n t he 1 2 mont h p er io d preced i n g 

Mer id ia n’s ba la nce date a nd rel ied on by 

Mer id ia n a re ava i lable on t he compa ny ’s 

website mer id ia nenerg y.co. n z .

9. Non-standard designation 

I n New Zea la nd , t he compa ny i s l i sted w it h 

a ‘non- sta nda rd’ ( NS) desi g nat ion on t he 

N Z X Ma i n B oa rd . T h i s i s due to pa r t icu la r 

prov i sion s of t he Con st it ut ion , i nclud i n g 

t he requ i rement s reg u lat i n g t he ow nersh ip 

a nd t ra n sfer of Mer id ia n secu r it ies . T he 

desi g nat ion i s a l so requ i red a s a cond it ion of 

t he wa ivers a nd approva l s descr ib ed ab ove.

10. ASX disclosures

Mer id ia n ha s b een ad m it ted to t he of f icia l l i st 

of t he A SX . A s a requ i rement of ad m i ssion , 

Mer id ia n mu st ma ke t he fol low i n g d i sclosu res:

• Mer id ia n’s place of i ncor p orat ion i s 

New Zea la nd .

• Meridian is not subject to Chapters 6, 6A, 6B and 

6C of t he Au st ra l ia n Cor p orat ion s Act dea l i n g 

w it h t he acqu i sit ion of sha res ( i nclud i n g 

substa nt ia l hold i n g s a nd ta keovers).

11 . Shareholding restrictions

T he P ubl ic F i na nce Act wa s a mended i n  

Ju ne 2 01 2 to i nclude rest r ict ion s on t he 

ow nersh ip of cer ta i n t y p es of secu r it y i ssued 

by each m i xed ow nersh ip mo del compa ny 

( i nclud i n g Mer id ia n ) a nd t he con sequences of 

breach i n g t hose rest r ict ion s . T he Con st it ut ion 

a nd t he T r u st D eed 2 6 i ncor p orate t hese 

rest r ict ion s a nd mechanisms for monitoring 

and enforcing them. 

A summary of the restrictions on the 

ownership of shares under the Public F inance 

Act, the Constitution and the Trust Deed is set 

out below. I f the company issues any other 

class of shares, or other securities that confer 

voting rights, in the future, the restrictions 

summarised below would also apply to those 

other classes of shares or voting securities. 

51% holding 

T he C row n mu st hold at lea st 51% of t he sha res 

on i ssue.

T he compa ny mu st not i ssue, acqu i re or 

redeem a ny sha res i f such i ssue, acqu i sit ion or 

redempt ion wou ld resu lt i n t he C row n fa l l i n g 

b elow t h i s 51% hold i n g . 

26 The Trust Deed when used in this report means the New Zealand trust deed between the Crown and New Zealand Guardian 

Trustees (IR) Limited (Trustee) in relation to instalment receipts held by all persons other than Australian residents (the Australian 

Trust Deed between the Crown and the Trust Company (Australia) Limited (‘Australian Trustee’) relates to these holders). 
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10% limit 

No p erson (ot her t ha n t he C row n ) may have 

a ‘releva nt i nterest ’ 2 7 i n more t ha n 10% of t he 

sha res on i ssue ( 10% l i m it ).

A s t he i n sta l ment receipt s con fer a releva nt 

i nterest i n t he u nderly i n g sha res represented 

by t hose i n sta l ment receipt s , t he 10% l i m it  

a l so appl ies to t he i n sta l ment receipt s to t he 

ex tent t hat a hold i n g of i n sta l ment receipt s 

g ives r i se to a n i nterest i n more t ha n 10% of 

t he sha res . B ecau se i n sta l ment receipt s w i l l 

represent a ma x i mu m of 49% of t he sha res 

(w it h t he C row n hold i n g it s sha res d i rect ly 

a nd not hold i n g i n sta l ment receipt s a s a 

con sequence of t he C row n’s of fer of Mer id ia n 

shares), a person may hold more than 10% of all 

i n sta l ment receipt s on i ssue so lon g a s t hose 

i n sta l ment receipt s do not represent more 

t ha n 10% of t he sha res on i ssue ( i nclud i n g 

t hose held by t he C row n ). 

T he compa ny mu st not i ssue, acqu i re or 

redeem a ny sha res , a nd w i l l request t he 

reg i st ra r to not reg i ster a ny t ra n sfer of 

i n sta l ment receipt s , i f it ha s act ua l k nowled ge 

t hat such i ssue, acqu i sit ion , redempt ion or 

t ra n sfer w i l l resu lt i n a ny p erson ot her t ha n 

t he C row n exceed i n g t he 10% l i m it . 

Ascertaining whether a breach has occurred 

I f a holder of i n sta l ment receipt s or sha res 

breaches t he 10% l i m it or k nows or b el ieves 

t hat a p erson who ha s a releva nt i nterest i n 

sha res held by t hat holder may have a releva nt 

i nterest i n sha res i n breach of t he 10% l i m it , t he 

holder mu st not i f y t he compa ny of t he breach 

or p otent ia l breach .

Mer id ia n may requ i re a holder of sha res or 

i n sta l ment receipt s to prov ide t he compa ny 

w it h a stat utor y decla rat ion i f t he B oa rd 

k nows or b el ieves t hat a p erson i s , or i s l i kely 

to b e, i n breach of t he 10% l i m it . T hat stat utor y 

decla rat ion i s requ i red to i nclude, where 

appl icable, deta i l s of a l l p erson s who have a 

releva nt i nterest i n sha res a s a resu lt of t he 

sha res or i n sta l ment receipt s held by or on 

b eha l f of t hat holder. 

Determining whether a breach has occurred 

T he compa ny ha s t he p ower to deter m i ne 

whet her a breach of t he 10% l i m it ha s 

o ccu r red . I n broad ter m s , i f :

• t he compa ny con siders t hat a p erson may  

b e i n breach of t he 10% l i m it ; or

• a holder of i n sta l ment receipt s or sha res 

fa i l s to lo d ge a stat utor y decla rat ion when 

requ i red to do so or lo d ges a decla rat ion t hat 

ha s not b een completed to t he rea sonable 

s at i sfact ion of t he compa ny, t hen Mer id ia n 

i s requ i red to deter m i ne whet her or not 

t he 10% l i m it ha s b een breached a nd , i f so, 

whet her or not t hat breach wa s i nadver tent . 

T he compa ny mu st g ive t he a f fected 

sha reholder or holder of i n sta l ment receipt s 

t he opp or t u n it y to ma ke representat ion s 

to t he compa ny b efore it ma kes a 

deter m i nat ion on t hese mat ters .

Effect of exceeding the 10% limit

A person who is i n breach of t he 10%  

l i m it must:

• comply w it h a ny not ice t hat t hey receive 

f rom t he compa ny requ i r i n g t hem to d i sp ose 

of i n sta l ment receipt s or sha res or t hei r 

releva nt i nterest i n sha res , or ta ke a ny ot her 

steps t hat a re sp eci f ied i n t he not ice, for 

t he pu r p ose of remedy i n g t he breach a nd 

reduci n g t hei r hold i n g b elow t he 10% l i m it

• en su re t hat t hey a re no lon ger i n breach 

w it h i n 60 days a f ter t he date on wh ich t hey 

b eca me awa re, or ou g ht to have b een awa re, 

of t he breach . I f t he breach i s not remed ied 

w it h i n t hat t i mef ra me, t he compa ny ( i n t he 

ca se of sha res) or t he T r u stee ( i n t he ca se 

of i n sta l ment receipt s) may a r ra n ge for 

t he s a le of t he releva nt nu mb er of sha res 

or i n sta l ment receipt s , on b eha l f of t he 

releva nt holder. I n t hose ci rcu m sta nces , 

t he T r u stee or t he compa ny w i l l pay t he net 

pro ceed s of s a le, a f ter t he deduct ion of a ny 

ot her cost s i ncu r red i n con nect ion w it h t he 

s a le ( i nclud i n g brokera ge a nd t he cost s of 

i nvest i gat i n g t he breach of t he 10% l i m it ), to 

t he releva nt holder a s soon a s pract icable 

a f ter t he s a le ha s b een completed . A ny s a le 

of i n sta l ment receipt s held by Au st ra l ia n 

resident s wou ld ta ke place on eit her t he N Z X 

Ma i n B oa rd or t he A SX at t he d i scret ion of t he 

C row n . A ny s a le of i n sta l ment receipt s held 

by ot her p erson s , or a ny s a le of sha res , wou ld 

ta ke place on t he N Z X Ma i n B oa rd . 

I f a releva nt i nterest i s held i n a ny sha res i n 

breach of t he 10% l i m it t hen , for so lon g a s t hat 

breach cont i nues:

• no votes may b e ca st (eit her d i rect ly by a 

sha reholder or by a d i rect ion g iven to t he 

T r u stee by a n i n sta l ment receipt holder) 

i n resp ect of a ny of t he sha res i n wh ich a 

releva nt i nterest i s held i n excess of t he  

 10% l i m it

• a reg i stered holder of i n sta l ment receipt s  

or sha res i n wh ich a releva nt i nterest i n 

sha res i s held i n breach of t he 10% l i m it w i l l 

not b e ent it led to receive, i n resp ect of t he 

sha res i n wh ich a releva nt i nterest i s held  

i n excess of t he 10% l i m it , a ny d iv idend or 

ot her d i st r ibut ion aut hor i sed by t he B oa rd  

i n resp ect of t he sha res .

However, i f t he B oa rd deter m i nes t hat a breach 

of t he 10% l i m it wa s not i nadver tent , or t hat 

it do es not have su f f icient i n for mat ion to 

deter m i ne t hat t he breach wa s not i nadver tent , 

t hen i n t hat ca se t he rest r ict ion s on vot i n g 

a nd ent it lement to receive d iv idend s a nd 

ot her d i st r ibut ion s descr ib ed i n t he preced i n g 

pa ra g raph s w i l l apply i n resp ect of a l l of t he 

i n sta l ment receipt s or sha res (a s appl icable) 

held by t he releva nt sha reholder or holder 

(a nd not ju st t he sha res i n wh ich a releva nt 

i nterest i s held i n excess of t he 10% l i m it ). 

A n e xe rc i s e of a vot i n g r i g ht at t ac he d to a 

share by the Trustee (acting on the direction of  

a holder of i n sta l ment receipt s) or by a holder 

of sha res (a s appl icable) where a releva nt 

i nterest i n t hat sha re i s held i n breach of t he 

10% l i m it mu st b e d i srega rded i n cou nt i n g 

t he votes concer ned . However, a resolut ion 

pa ssed at a meet i n g i s not i nva l id where votes 

exerci sed i n breach of t he vot i n g rest r ict ion 

were cou nted by t he compa ny i n goo d fa it h 

a nd w it hout k nowled ge of t he breach .

T he compa ny may ref u se to reg i ster a t ra n sfer 

of sha res a nd t he compa ny w i l l request t he 

reg i st ra r to ref u se to reg i ster a t ra n sfer of 

i n sta l ment receipt s i f it k nows or b el ieves  

t hat t he t ra n sfer w i l l resu lt i n a breach  

of t he 10% l i m it or where t he t ra n sferee 

ha s fa i led to lo d ge a stat utor y decla rat ion 

requested f rom it by t he compa ny w it h i n  

14 days of t he date on wh ich t he compa ny  

gave not ice to t he t ra n sferee to prov ide  

such stat utor y decla rat ion . 

Crown directions

T he C row n ha s t he p ower to d i rect t he 

compa ny to exerci se cer ta i n of t he p owers 

con fer red on it u nder t he Con st it ut ion .  

For exa mple, where t he C row n su sp ect s 

t hat t he 10% l i m it ha s b een breached but t he 

compa ny ha s not ta ken steps to i nvest i gate  

t he su sp ected breach , t he C row n may requ i re 

t he compa ny to i nvest i gate whet her a breach 

of t he 10% l i m it ha s o ccu r red or to exerci se  

a p ower of s a le of t he releva nt sha re t hat  

ha s a r i sen a s descr ib ed u nder t he head i n g 

“ E f fect of exceed i n g t he 10% l i m it ” ab ove.  

T he C row n ha s si m i la r p owers i n relat ion  

to t he i n sta l ment receipt s .

Trustee corporations and nominee companies 

T r u stee cor p orat ion s ( i nclud i n g t he T r u stee 

a nd P ubl ic T r u st ) a nd nom i nee compa n ies 

(t hat hold secu r it ies on b eha l f of a la rge 

nu mb er of sepa rate u nderly i n g b enef icia l 

holders) a re exempt f rom t he 10% l i m it 

prov ided t hat cer ta i n cond it ion s a re s at i sf ied . 

T he New Zea la nd T r u stee s at i sf ies t hese 

cond it ion s a nd w i l l b e exempt f rom t he 

10% l i m it i n resp ect of it s hold i n g of sha res 

a s T r u stee. T he Au st ra l ia n T r u stee may b e 

subject to t he 10% l i m it wh ich may, i n t he 

f ut u re, requ i re a n add it iona l Au st ra l ia n 

T r u stee to b e app oi nted by t he C row n 

dep end i n g on t he hold i n g s of i n sta l ment 

receipt s by Au st ra l ia n resident s .

Share cancellation

I n cer ta i n ci rcu m sta nces , sha res cou ld b e 

ca ncel led by Mer id ia n t h rou g h a reduct ion of 

capita l , sha re buy back or ot her for m of capita l 

recon st r uct ion approved by t he B oa rd a nd , 

where appl icable, sha reholders . 

27 In broad terms, a person has a ‘relevant interest’ in a share if the person (a) is the registered holder or beneficial owner of 

the share; or (b) has the power to exercise, or control the exercise of, a right to vote attached to the share or has the power to 

acquire or dispose of, or to control the acquisition or disposition of, that share. A person may also have a ‘relevant interest’ 

in a share in which another person has a ‘relevant interest’ depending on the nature of the relationship between them.
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12 . Registered shareholders as at 15 August 2014

T he table b elow set s out t he compa ny ’s reg i stered sha reholders a s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 .

NAME NUMBER OF SHARES % OF SHARES

Her Majesty the Queen in the Right of New Zealand 1,307,586,374 51.02

New Zealand Guardian Trustees (IR) Limited 1,063,464,680 41.49

The Trust Company (Nominees) Limited 191,948,946 7.49

13. Twenty largest registered quoted equity security holders as at 15 August 2014

T he table b elow set s out t he 2 0 la rgest reg i stered quoted equ it y secu r it y holders  

(ot her t ha n sha reholders) a s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 .

NAME
NUMBER OF  

INSTALMENT RECEIPTS
% OF ISSUED 

INSTALMENT RECEIPTS

National Nominees New Zealand Limited* 210,465,807 16.77%

Accident Compensation Corporation* 77,981,204 6.21%

BNP Paribas Nominees (NZ) Limited* 52,630,716 4.19%

New Zealand Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited* 51,801,367 4.13%

Tea Custodians Limited* 40,113,402 3.20%

Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) Limited* 38,056,764 3.03%

HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited A/C State Street* 34,355,656 2.74%

Custodial Services Limited 31,701,262 2.53%

HSBC Nominees (New Zealand) Limited* 28,998,926 2.31%

J.P. Morgan Chase Bank NA NZ Branch* 21,439,110 1.71%

National Nominees Limited 14,334,208 1.14%

FNZ Custodians Limited 12,584,489 1.00%

Custodial Services Limited 12,272,241 0.98%

Masfen Securities Limited 8,700,000 0.69%

Custodial Services Limited 8,486,845 0.68%

Custodial Services Limited 8,205,965 0.65%

Westpac NZ Shares 2002 Wholesale Trust* 8,205,876 0.65%

JBWere (NZ) Nominees Limited 8,200,000 0.65%

Private Nominees Limited* 8,088,667 0.64%

Forsyth Barr Custodians Limited 7,186,760 0.57%

* Held through New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited (NZCSD). NZCSD provides a custodial service that allows electronic trading of securities  

by its members. As at 15 August 2014, 596,553,905 Meridian instalment receipts (or 47.52% of instalment receipts on issue) were held through NZCSD.

E ach i n sta l ment receipt represent s a b enef icia l i nterest i n one Mer id ia n sha re.
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14 . Substantial security holders 

T he fol low i n g i n for mat ion i s prov ided i n compl ia nce w it h sect ion 3 5F of t he S ecu r it ies Ma rket s Act 198 8 a nd i s stated a s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 .  

T he tota l nu mb er of vot i n g secu r it ies of Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited at t hat date wa s 2 , 5 6 3 ,0 0 0,0 0 0.

Shares

NAME

RELEVANT  
INTEREST IN  

NUMBER OF SHARES

% OF SHARES  
HELD AT THE  

DATE OF NOTICE
DATE OF  
NOTICE

Her Majesty the Queen in the Right of New Zealand 1,307,586,374 51.02 31 October 2013

Her Majesty the Queen in the Right of New Zealand1,2,3 1,255,413,626 48.98 31 October 2013

Instalment Receipts

RELEVANT INTEREST  
IN NUMBER OF  

INSTALMENT RECEIPTS

% OF ORDINARY SHARES  
(INSTALMENT RECEIPTS)  

HELD AT THE DATE OF NOTICE

Mellon Bank of New York 166,300,000 6.49% 1 November 2013

1 This holding represents the number of Shares for which Instalment Receipts were issued (such Instalment Receipts are held by members of the public). The current registered holders  

of these Shares are New Zealand Guardian Trustees (IR) Limited or The Trust Company (Nominees) Limited in their respective capacities as Instalment Receipt trustees under the 

Instalment Receipt Trust Deeds. The Crown, by virtue of its security interests under the Instalment Receipt Trust Deeds has a relevant interest in these Shares until such time as they  

are transferred or sold by the trustees in accordance with the terms of the Instalment Receipt Trust Deeds.

2 Of this holding , the New Zealand Superannuation Fund is the current beneficial owner of 20,784,887 or 0.81% of the Shares corresponding to Instalment Receipts (and New Zealand 

Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited or its duly authorised custodians is the registered owner of the corresponding Instalment Receipts). The Crown has a relevant interest in the  

Shares, by virtue of the fact that the New Zealand Superannuation Fund is the property of the Crown pursuant to the New Zealand Superannuation and Retirement Income Act 2001.

3 Of this holding , Judith MacDonald, Jeffrey Hynes and Richard Andrell, in their capacities as trustees of the Rangitāne O Wairau Settlement Trust, are the current beneficial owners  

of 427,666 or 0.02% of the Shares corresponding to Instalment Receipts (and Judith MacDonald, Jeffrey Hynes and Richard Andrell, in their capacities as trustees of the Rangitāne  

O Wairau Settlement Trust are the registered owners of the corresponding Instalment Receipts). . The Crown has a relevant interest in the Shares, by virtue of a Deed of Embargo  

between Rangitāne O Wairau Settlement Trust and the Crown dated 23 October 2013. 

Table prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Markets Act (Meridian Energy Limited Substantial Security Holder) Exemption Notice 2013.

15. Distribution of security holders and holdings as at 15 August 2014

The table below sets out the distribution of security holders and holdings as at 15 August 2014.

SIZE OF HOLDING

NUMBER OF  
INSTALMENT  

RECEIPT HOLDERS %
NUMBER OF  

INSTALMENT RECEIPTS

% 
HOLDING  

QUANTITY 

1 to 1,000 7,312 14.39% 7,212,677 0.58

1,001 to 5,000 24,376 47.96% 72,489,320 5.77

5,001 to 10,000 10,176 20.02% 81,670,784 6.51

10,001 to 50,000 7,892 15.53% 165,045,310 13.15

50,001 to 100,000 681 1.34% 49,144,435 3.91

100,001 to 500,000 299 0.59% 58,142,419 4.63

500,001 and Over 88 0.17% 821,708,681 65.45

Total 50,824 100.00% 1,255,413,626 100.00

1 25

 Meridian Energy Limited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014



16. Bondholder statistics as at 15 August 2014

T he table b elow set s out t he Reta i l f i xed rate b ond s ( M E L010) a s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 .

SIZE OF HOLDING
NUMBER OF  

BONDHOLDERS
%  

OF BONDHOLDERS
NUMBER  

OF BONDS
%  

OF BONDS

1,001 to 5,000 185 12.88% 925,000 0.74%

5,001 to 10,000 327 22.77%  3,133,000 2.51%

10,001 to 50,000 757 52.72%  20,948,000 16.75%

50,001 to 100,000 83 5.78%  6,902,000 5.52%

100,001 to 500,000 60 4.18%  14,197,000 11.36%

500,001 and Over 24 1.67%  78,895,000 63.12%

Total 1,436 100.00% 125,000,000 100.00%

T he table b elow set s out t he Reta i l f i xed rate b ond s ( M E L02 0) a s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 .

SIZE OF HOLDING
NUMBER OF  

BONDHOLDERS
%  

OF BONDHOLDERS
NUMBER  

OF BONDS
%  

OF BONDS

1,001 to 5,000 48 6.16% 240,000 0.32%

5,001 to 10,000 136 17.46% 1,295,000 1.73%

10,001 to 50,000 444 57.00% 13,263,000 17.69%

50,001 to 100,000 74 9.50% 5,897,000 7.86%

100,001 to 500,000 55 7.06%  11,996,000 15.99%

500,001 and Over 22 2.82% 42,309,000 56.41%

Total 779 100.00% 75,000,000 100.00%

17. Security holders with less than marketable 
parcel of shares

A s at 1 5 Au g u st 2 014 , t here were t wo secu r it y 

holders (w it h a tota l of 7 1 i n sta l ment receipt s) 

hold i n g less t ha n a ma rketable pa rcel of sha res 

u nder t he A SX L i st i n g Ru les . T he A SX L i st i n g 

Ru les def i ne a ma rketable pa rcel of sha re a s a 

pa rcel of sha res of not less t ha n AU D $ 5 0 0.

18. Subsidiary companies 

T he fol low i n g tables set out subsid ia r ies 

of Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited du r i n g t he 

accou nt i n g p er io d , a ny cha n ges to t hose 

subsid ia r ies , a nd p erson s who held of f ice a s 

d i rectors . A lter nate d i rectors a re i nd icated 

w it h a n ( A ).

New Zealand subsidiaries

COMPANY NAME DIRECTORS FURTHER INFORMATION

Arc Innovations Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers

Damwatch Engineering Ltd Neal Barclay, Peter Amos
Formerly Damwatch  
Services Limited

Damwatch Projects Peter Amos

MEL Solar Holdings Mark Binns, Paul Chambers

Meridian Energy Captive Insurance Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Jason Stein (A)

Meridian Energy International Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Jason Stein (A)

Meridian Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Jason Stein (A)

Meridian LTI Trustee Limited
Mary Devine (appointed 13/09/14), John Bongard  
(appointed 13/09/14), Anake Goodall (appointed 13/09/14)

Subsidiary created 
13/09/2013

Meridian (Whisper Tech No. 2) Ltd Thomas Hannah, Jason McDonald

Meridian (Whisper Tech) Ltd Thomas Hannah, Jason McDonald

Powershop New Zealand Ltd
John Journee, Rowan Simpson, Paul Chambers,  
Gillian Blythe (A), Jason McDonald (resigned 24/01/14)

Three River Holdings No. 1 Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Jason Stein (A), Kelvin Mason (A)

Three River Holdings No. 2 Ltd Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Jason Stein (A), Kelvin Mason (A)

WhisperGen Ltd Thomas Hannah, Jason McDonald

Whisper Tech Limited Thomas Hannah, Jason McDonald

 Meridian Energy Limited Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014

1 26



Australian subsidiaries

COMPANY NAME DIRECTORS FURTHER INFORMATION

Damwatch Pty Limited Stanley Brogan, Peter Amos

MEL Meridian Australia Partnership
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers.  
All directorships ceased on dissolution.

Dissolved 12 May 2014

Meridian Australia Holdings Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Energy Australia Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Energy Markets Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Finco Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Wind Australia  
Holdings Pty Ltd

Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Wind Macarthur  
Holdings Pty Ltd

Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

Meridian Wind Monaro Range  
Holdings Pty Ltd

Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Meridian Wind Monaro Range Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Mt Mercer Windfarm Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Mt Millar Wind Farm Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Powershop Australia Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe (resigned 30/06/2014), Darryl Flukes (resigned 30/06/2014),  
Mark Binns, Paul Chambers, Ben Burge (appointed 30/06/2014)

Wind Macarthur Finco Pty Ltd
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

Wind Macarthur Holdings (T) Pty Ltd 
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

Wind Macarthur Holdings Trust
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

Wind Macarthur (T) Pty Ltd 
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

Wind Macarthur Trust
Peter Lowe, Darryl Flukes, Mark Binns, Paul Chambers  
All directorships ceased on sale

Sold and removed  
from 28/06/13

US subsidiaries

COMPANY NAME DIRECTORS FURTHER INFORMATION

CalRENEW-1 LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Sold 15/05/14

Desert Butte, LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 08/05/14

Hatteson Solar Farm LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 08/05/14

Jacob Canal Solar Farm LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 15/05/14

Laurel East Solar Farm LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 15/05/14

Laurel West Solar Farm LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 15/05/14

Meridian Energy USA, Inc Member: Guy Waipara

San Luis Valley Solar Farm, LLC Member: Bill Overholt (resigned 01/11/2013), Guy Waipara (appointed 01/11/2013) Dissolved 08/05/14

UK subsidiaries

COMPANY NAME DIRECTOR FURTHER INFORMATION

Whisper Tech (UK) Limited Thomas Hannah In liquidation
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23. Meridian group workforce

FEMALE MALE TOTAL

Permanent Employees

Full Time 304 445 749

Part Time 26 2 28

Temp/Fixed Term Employees 42 33 75

Contractors

Professional Contractor 12 64 76

Vendor Services 50 161 211

Total 434 705 1,139

MERIDIAN GROUP - REGION OF WORK FEMALE MALE TOTAL

Australia 11 38 491 

New Zealand 392 542 934

Offsite2 31 125 156

Total 434 705 1,139

1 10% of these staff are covered by collective bargaining agreements. 

2 Contractor data does not currently specify region of work or whether work is full time. The majority of this group  

is based in New Zealand or Australia. Future data collection will require this information.

28 The Co-ordination Agreement is an agreement between Meridian, the Crown and the Trustee dated 19 September 2013  

that (amongst other things) arranges for matters relating to the administration of Instalment Receipts.

29 The Final Instalment is the amount of $0.50 per share payable by 15 May 2015. 

Markets and 
Production

DIVERSITY BY AGE FOR MERIDIAN ENERGY
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Board
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53

Corporate 
Centre 15 73 12

Executive 78 22

19. Voting rights attached to each class  
of security

D ue to t he nat u re of I n sta l ment Receipt s ,  

u nder t he Co - ord i nat ion A g reement 2 8, secu r it y 

holders do not have t he r i g ht to exerci se votes 

i n p erson at t he f i rst A n nua l Sha reholder 

meet i n g of t he compa ny. 

I n stead , each secu r it y holder w i l l b e i nv ited to 

i n st r uct t he T r u stee a s to t he ma n ner i n wh ich 

t hei r r i g ht to ca st one vote p er u nderly i n g 

sha re i s to b e exerci sed by t he T r u stee on a 

p ol l of a ny resolut ion put to t he sha reholders . 

T h i s i n for mat ion , a lon g w it h i n st r uct ion s a s 

to how to i n st r uct t he T r u stee, w i l l b e sent 

to secu r it y holders a s pa r t of t he Not ice of 

A n nua l Sha reholder Meet i n g .

Up on pay ment of t he f i na l i n sta l ment 2 9, 

holders of I n sta l ment Receipt s w i l l receive 

t he sha res represented by t hei r I n sta l ment 

Receipt s . E ach sha re g ives t he holder a r i g ht to 

at tend a nd vote at a meet i n g of sha reholders . 

T h i s mea n s t hat at subsequent A n nua l 

Sha reholder meet i n g s , holders w i l l have t he 

r i g ht to ca st one vote p er sha re on a p ol l of  

a ny resolut ion put to t he sha reholders .

20. Share buybacks

Mer id ia n do es not have a cu r rent on-ma rket 

buyback scheme i n place.

21 . Exercise of NZX disciplinary powers

N Z X d id not exerci se a ny of it s p owers u nder 

L i st i n g Ru le 5 .4 . 2 i n relat ion to Mer id ia n 

E nerg y L i m ited du r i n g t he p er io d .

22 . Disclosure in relation to ASX 4 .10.19

T he compa ny ha s u sed it s ca sh , a nd a sset s  

i n a for m read i ly conver t ible to ca sh , i n t he 

p er io d f rom 2 9 O ctob er 2 01 3 to 3 0 Ju ne 2 014  

i n a way consistent w it h its busi ness object ives .

23. Credit rating as at 15 August 2014

Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited had a Sta nda rd  

& Poor ’s cor p orate cred it rat i n g of  

BBB+/Stable/A-2 .

24 . Registration as a foreign company

Mer id ia n ha s reg i stered w it h t he Au st ra l ia n 

S ecu r it ies a nd I nvest ment s Com m i ssion a s a 

forei g n compa ny. Mer id ia n ha s b een i ssued 

w it h a n Au st ra l ia n Reg i stered B o dy Nu mb er 

( A R BN ) of 1 51 80 0 39 6 .
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2 5. Greenhouse gas emissions

Efficient resource use – managing emissions

Mer id ia n’s elect r icit y generat ion f rom t he 

renewable sou rces of w i nd a nd water do es  

not produce g reenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

Mer id ia n’s tota l GHG em i ssion s t h i s yea r 

were 3 4 , 1 5 8 ton nes of ca rb on d iox ide (CO 2) 

equ iva lent (tCO 2 e). T he major it y of t hese 

em i ssion s were ‘one t i me’ a s a resu lt of 

bu i ld i n g t he M i l l C reek w i nd fa r m . Usi n g 

t her ma l f uel such a s coa l or ga s to pro duce  

a si m i la r a mou nt of elect r icit y wou ld resu lt  

i n m i l l ion s of ton nes of CO 2 em i ssion s ever y 

yea r. Mer id ia n ha s volu nta r i ly ca lcu lated  

t he compa ny ’s ‘ca rb on foot pr i nt ’ si nce 2 0 01  

a nd ou r rep or t i n g pro cesses a re con si stent 

w it h i nter nat iona l sta nda rd s 3 0.

Our performance

Mer id ia n fo cu ses on reduci n g t he cor p orate 

GHG em i ssion s resu lt i n g f rom act iv it ies over 

wh ich t he compa ny ha s t he most cont rol . 

T hese i nclude bu si ness t ravel (a i r, ca r a nd 

b oat ), wa ste a nd of f ice elect r icit y. T he 

cor p orate em i ssion s p or t ion of ou r overa l l 

foot pr i nt of wa s 2 ,9 69 tCO 2 e. Relat ive to t he 

nu mb er of f u l l-t i me employees , t h i s i s a 

3 . 8% i ncrea se f rom la st yea r. T h i s i ncrea se 

wa s pr i ma r i ly due to a h i g h u se of ca r t ravel 

b et ween C h r i stchu rch a nd t he Wa ita k i Va l ley 

for major ma i ntena nce a nd generat ion cont rol 

project s . O n a p osit ive note, a i r t ravel a nd 

wa ste em i ssion s cont i nue to reduce a head  

of ta rget s .

Continuing reductions

Mer id ia n ha s develop ed a f ive -yea r em i ssion 

reduct ion pla n , wh ich ha s a n overa l l ta rget of 

reduci n g cor p orate GHG em i ssion s p er f u l l-

t i me sta f f memb er by 10% . E f f iciencies w i l l b e 

ga i ned t h rou g h a ra n ge of i n it iat ives , i nclud i n g 

bu i ld i n g a new T w i zel of f ice t hat w i l l 

si g n i f ica nt ly reduce elect r icit y u se toget her 

w it h a i r, ca r a nd ta x i t ravel reduct ion s .

I n it iat ives such a s feat u r i n g sta f f w it h 

su sta i nabi l it y stor ies on ou r i nter na l website 

encou ra ge sta f f to t h i n k ab out su sta i nabi l it y i n 

t he work place. T h i s ha s resu lted i n cha n g i n g 

b ehav iou rs , w it h 61% 3 1 of sta f f rep or t i n g t hat 

Mer id ia n’s fo cu s on su sta i nabi l it y ha s cha n ged 

t hei r b ehav iou r at work or at home. I n add it ion , 

7 5% of sta f f con sider t he p erson t hey rep or t to 

supp or t s a nd encou ra ges su sta i nabi l it y w it h i n 

Mer id ia n . T hese a re sma l l decrea ses f rom 6 3% 

a nd 7 7% resp ect ively i n 2 01 3 .

Mer id ia n adopted t he GHG P roto col Cor p orate 

Va lue C ha i n Sta nda rd i n 2 01 2 , substa nt ia l ly 

i ncrea si n g S cop e 3 em i ssion sou rces a nd 

requ i r i n g a cha n ge of ba se yea r f rom 2 0 08  

to 2 01 2 . T h i s yea r we rea ssessed t he S cop e 3 

em i ssion s mea su rement a nd ret u r ned to t he 

prev iou s met ho dolog y. P u rcha sed goo d s a nd 

ser v ices made up a la rge prop or t ion of t he 

S cop e 3 em i ssion s . A s t he met ho dolog y for 

ca lcu lat i n g em i ssion s wa s ba sed on dol la rs 

sp ent , t he on ly ef fect ive way to reduce t hese 

em i ssion s wa s to reduce t he pu rcha se of goo d s 

a nd ser v ices necess a r y to t he bu si ness . 

E m i ssion s for t he S cop es 1 , 2 a nd 3 categor ies 

have b een qua nt i f ied u si n g a ca lcu lat ion 

met ho d ba sed on act iv it y data mu lt ipl ied by 

GHG em i ssion factors . E m i ssion factors have 

b een pr i ma r i ly sou rced f rom t he New Zea la nd 

M i n i st r y for t he E nv i ron ment or, where t hese 

were not ava i lable, f rom t he Un ited K i n gdom’s 

D epa r t ment of E nv i ron ment , Foo d a nd  

Ru ra l A f fa i rs .

To m i n i m i se u ncer ta i nt ies i n accu racy,  

data ha s b een sou rced f rom ver i f iable  

sou rces wherever p ossible. D eta i led  

GHG em i ssion i n for mat ion i s prov ided at  

w w w. mer id ia n .co. n z /g reen hou sega s .

30 These include the International Standards Organisation ISO 14064.

31 2014 Employee Engagement Survey managed by IBM Kenexa.

2014 2013 2012

Direct Emissions (Scope 1) 1,546 964 1,102

Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) 2,040 2,408 3,641

Indirect Emissions (Scope 3) 30,572 7,759 44,092

Total Emissions (S1, 2 and 3) 34,158 11,132 48,835
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26. Sustainability framework

Mer id ia n’s su sta i nabi l it y f ra mework h i g h l i g ht s t he t h i n g s t hat mat ter most to u s a nd ou r sta keholders .  

We set ta rget s a nd mon itor a nd rep or tou r prog ress across a ra n ge of econom ic , so cia l a nd env i ron menta l goa l s .

Per for ma nce a ga i n st t he key f ra mework i nd icators i s rep or ted t h rou g hout t he releva nt sect ion s of t h i s rep or t .  

T h i s table prov ides a su m ma r y of ou r p er for ma nce for 2 01 2–2 014 .

KEY AREA OVERALL GOAL KEY INDICATOR 2014 PERFORMANCE 

Water  
Stewardship

To collaborate with 
stakeholders to  
manage water  
catchments effectively

Collaboration with 
stakeholders on water 
use 

Collaborated with all levels of government and/or relevant stakeholders in
government and hydro sectors re economic impacts of flow change
freshwater reform and RMA amendment
Independent report recommending Waitaki water remain in catchment
Proposed Plan Change 3 to the Waitaki Catchment Water Allocation Regional Plan

Renewable  
Energy 

To maintain and  
develop renewable  
energy assets, and help 
minimise the electricity 
industry’s contribution  
to climate change

Habitat enhancement 
and restoration

Project River Recovery, Waiau River Restoration, Te Uku wetlands

Net energy output PERFORMANCE

2012 2013 2014

10,996GWh 12,071GWh 
Mill Creek underway

13,148GWh
Mill Creek first power

Energy  
Services

To provide our customers 
with good service, value for 
money and the opportunity 
to lower their impacts on  
the environment

Sustainable  
offering uptake 

66,000 customers 
taking up at least one 
sustainable offering

131,000 customers 
taking up at least one 
sustainable offering

155,000 customers 
taking up at least one 
sustainable offering

Engaged  
Communities

To support and connect  
with the communities  
in which we operate  
and interact

Community funding  
and sponsorships 

$1.96 million $1.25 million granted  
to community 
organisations and 
sponsorship partners 
incl KidsCan sponsorship

$1.42 million granted  
to community 
organisations and 
sponsorship partners 
incl KidsCan sponsorship

Working  
Sustainably

To incorporate sustainability 
in our culture, policies, 
processes and systems, 
and engage our people 
in sustainability issues, 
supporting them to make 
business decisions with a 
long-term view

Lost-time injuries 2 0 1

Employee engagement 76% 78.9% 76.1% 

Corporate greenhouse 
gas emissions 

3,227tCO₂e 2,856tCO₂e 2,969tCO₂e 

Financial  
Return

To provide shareholders  
with a financial return that 
meets their expectations, 
given the risks associated 
with its business

Total shareholder 
return

N/A N/A 21.8%* 

* Based on Meridian’s final IPO share price and cash dividends declared for FY2014.

W here a ny data met ho dolog y cha n ges have o ccu r red du r i n g t he 2 01 2–2 014 p er io d ,  

data ha s b een adju sted to enable accu rate yea r- on-yea r compa r i son s .
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27. Memberships and commitments

Membership Organisation

Australian Stock Exchange User Group

Business New Zealand

The Sustainable Business Council 

EA Wholesale Advisory Group 

EA Retail Advisory Group

EA Security and Reliability Council

EA Locational Price Risk Technical Group

EA Multiple Frequency Keeping Technical Steering Group

Electricity and Gas Complaints Commissioner Scheme

New Zealand Institute for the Study of Competition and Regulation

StayLive (industry sector safety forum)

New Zealand Business and Parliament Trust

Commitments 

ASX Corporate Governance Principles

Zero Harm Pledge

Carbon Disclosure Project

28. Carbon trading 

A s a renewable elect r icit y generator, 

Mer id ia n ha s no d i rect obl i gat ion s u nder t he 

E m i ssion s T rad i n g S cheme ( ETS) for fossi l f uel 

generat ion . Mer id ia n’s Te Āpit i a nd W h ite H i l l 

w i nd fa r m s were a l lo cated Kyoto - compl ia nt 

ca rb on cred it s u nder t he G over n ment ’s 

P roject s to Reduce E m i ssion s S cheme u nt i l 

la st yea r when t he f i rst com m it ment p er io d  

of t he Kyoto P roto col ended . 

Mer id ia n received 24 ,7 1 3 New Zea la nd Un it s 

t h i s yea r ( 1 3 ,66 3 f rom t he cu r rent yea r a nd 

1 1 ,0 5 0 add it iona l u n it s received t h i s yea r for 

t he 2 0 08-2 01 2 p er io d ) u nder t he ETS ( ETS 

Forest r y p ost 1989) relat i n g to t he Rotot u na 

forest i n Nor t h la nd .

29. Supply chain

A s a n elect r icit y generator a nd reta i ler, 

Mer id ia n’s supply cha i n i ncludes sou rci n g 

pro duct s a nd ser v ices to bu i ld a nd ma i nta i n 

generat ion a sset s a nd to r u n t he reta i l i n g 

a nd cor p orate bu si ness f u nct ion s . I n 2 014 t he 

Mer id ia n Group had d i rect orders w it h a rou nd 

5 ,0 0 0 vendors f rom more t ha n 5 0 cou nt r ies , 

wh ich i ncluded non- buy i n g ser v ices (pay i n g 

lo ca l aut hor it ies or la ndow ners for exa mple). 

O u r ma i n supply act iv it ies t h i s yea r i ncluded : 

• t he major it y of t he 2 6 -t u rbi ne a nd tower 

comp onent s du r i n g con st r uct ion of t he M i l l 

C reek w i nd fa r m , nea r Wel l i n g ton , wh ich 

ca me f rom C h i na a nd Eu rop e t h rou g h 

Siemen s N Z Ltd

• t he major it y of t he 6 4 -t u rbi ne a nd tower 

comp onent s du r i n g con st r uct ion of t he  

Mt Mercer w i nd fa r m i n Victor ia , Au st ra l ia , 

wh ich ca me f rom C h i na , Korea a nd I nd ia 

t h rou g h S env ion SE ( for merly R E p ower 

System s SE ) 

• Steel for ou r Wa ita k i ref u rbi sh ment project 

wh ich ca me f rom t he Net herla nd s . 
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30. Stakeholders

Mer id ia n u nder ta kes comprehen sive st rateg y 

development a nd i mplementat ion pla n n i n g 

to enable u s to ident i f y, u ndersta nd a nd 

en ga ge ef fect ively w it h ou r sta keholders . 

We recog n i se t hat ef fect ive relat ion sh ip 

ma na gement i s a core comp onent of success 

for a ny orga n i s at ion . We ident i f y sta keholders 

t hat ca n i n f luence ou r success a nd work to 

develop a nd ma na ge t hose relat ion sh ips at 

a cor p orate level a nd t h rou g h com mu n it y 

a nd sta keholder en ga gement . Sta keholder 

relat ion sh ips a re t he resp on sibi l it y of sta f f 

across t he orga n i s at ion a nd recog n i sed a s  

a n essent ia l pa r t of ou r bu si ness . 

T he d iverse nat u re of ou r bu si ness a s b ot h a n 

elect r icit y generator a nd a reta i ler mea n s ou r 

sta keholders a re a l so d iverse. We en ga ge w it h 

d i f ferent sta keholders a s requ i red dep end i n g 

on cu r rent work prog ra m mes a nd sta keholder 

need . For exa mple, du r i n g t he con st r uct ion 

of a w i nd fa r m we have i nten se en ga gement 

w it h t he lo ca l com mu n it y, du r i n g a stat utor y 

pla n development pro cess we en ga ge w idely 

w it h sta keholders a nd i f ma k i n g cha n ges 

to resident ia l ta r i f fs or bi l l i n g we w i l l fo cu s 

on resident ia l cu stomer com mu n icat ion s . 

No sp eci f ic en ga gement wa s u nder ta ken to 

prepa re t h i s rep or t . 

STAKEHOLDER KEY INTERESTS AND CONCERNS MERIDIAN’S RESPONSE ENGAGEMENT METHOD 

Generation  
communities

• Honest and open communication  
and engagement

• Consequences of our role as  
a generator − environmental,  
commercial, social and cultural

• Ongoing participation in the  
community where appropriate

• Early engagement and consultation
• Compliance with resource  

consent conditions
• Community Funds
• Project websites

• Newsletters
• Community meetings
• Open days and drop-in hubs
• Community liaison groups
• Dedicated community liaison staff
• Participation in community events
• Community surveys
• Asset-based event sponsorship  

eg White Hill Classic

Iwi • Tangata whenua – guardians of the  
natural resources within their rohe 

• Consequences of the company’s role  
as a generator − environmental, 
commercial, social and cultural

• Honest and open communication
• Strategic engagement
• Commercial partnership opportunities

• Partnership approaches that  
recognise iwi aspirations

• Sponsorship opportunities
• Capability building
• Working groups for management  

of natural resources
• Memoranda of understanding
• Mitigation responses

• Iwi engagement
• Participation in iwi events
• Regular meetings/hui
• Event hosting

Customers • Affordable power
• Customer service
• Accurate billing
• Access to data to help understand  

energy use
• Security of supply
• Energy efficiency and sustainability

• Assistance to customers during  
state of emergency

• Unbundling of network and energy  
costs in billing 

• Improved disconnection process
• Smart meters and regular meter reads
• Energy efficiency advice and 

sustainability offerings

• Customer contact centre and  
account managers

• Newsletters 
• Website and customer portal 
• Customer satisfaction surveys 
• Direct mail and email
• Sponsorship

Employees • An employment experience that  
meets expectations 

• An employer who genuinely cares  
for the wellbeing of staff

• An employer who is well respected  
in the community

• Focus on leadership, capability 
development and performance

• Management development programme
• Graduate and apprenticeship 

programmes
• Health and safety at work focus, 

including wellness programme
• Recognition of staff requirements  

during uncertain times
• Credible approach to sustainability

• Employee engagement surveys.
• Intranet
• Senior management updates to staff
• Staff events
• Competency-based learning modules
• Leadership and capability  

development programmes
• Individual development plans  

for employees
• one-on-one performance reviews  

and feedback

Shareholders • Commercial performance
• Efficient delivery of services, transparency 

on drivers of performance and profit
• Responsible employer

• Sound business planning based on  
long-term financial objectives

• Improved reporting including  
quarterly operational reports and 
material disclosures

• Commitment to health and safety  
and corporate social responsibility

• Consistent communications that 
adhere to the principles of continuous 
disclosure and include:
− material market updates
− annual shareholder meetings
− annual and half-year reports
− earnings and dividend announcements
− monthly operating reports
− investor presentations
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STAKEHOLDER KEY INTERESTS AND CONCERNS MERIDIAN’S RESPONSE ENGAGEMENT METHOD 

Government and  
electricity sectors

• Contribution to economic growth  
through development

• Efficient use of resources
• Environmental responsibility
• Competitive market outcomes

• Engagement with the Government 
electricity regulator and electricity 
sector on key energy policy issues

• Development of cost-competitive 
renewable energy generation

• Commitment to sustainability and 
environmental stewardship

• Submissions supporting competitive 
and rational market outcomes

• Policy submissions
• Open engagement
• Participation in appropriate forums

Suppliers and 
contractors

• Insights into timing and certainty of  
future work programmes and initiatives 

• Accurate and timely service request data
• Fair and open procurement

• Promotion of early notification of  
significant work programmes

• Active application of supplier 
relationship management practices

• Fair, open, transparent and reasonable 
market engagement processes

• Development of clear and well  
defined requirements

• Encouragement of local business  
participation wherever possible

• Market engagement documentation
• Contract negotiations
• Supplier meetings to discuss  

ongoing relationships
• Supplier briefings
• Conferences/speaking engagements

General  
community

• Security of supply 
• Leader in sustainability and  

renewable generation 
• Contributor to communities  

from social, economic and  
environmental perspectives

• Management of water resources
• Development of cost-competitive 

renewable energy generation
• Commitment to renewable energy 

generation, sustainability and  
corporate social responsibility

• Sustainable procurement policy

• Brand advertising campaigns
• Website 
• Sponsorship
• Annual Report
• Media releases 
• Educational material 
• Public meetings

Local  
government

• Responsible developer of infrastructure
• Security of supply
• Contribution to the local economy
• Sustainably manage resources

• Participation in processes  
to support best practice

• Commitment to sustainability  
and environmental stewardship

• Meetings
• Submissions
• Hearing presentations
• Working group and  

committee participation

Non-governmental 
organisations

• Impacts on natural resources and local 
community initiatives

• Open and honest communication

• Engagement and consultation  
as appropriate

• Support for projects as appropriate
• Sustainability framework to reduce 

impacts of operations

• Meetings
• Correspondence
• Joint memberships of forums
• Presentations
• Membership of organisations
• Responses to information requests

Investors  
(lenders)

• Profitable, good employer
• Socially and fiscally responsible 
• Return on investment
• Ability to meet interest and principal 

obligations on debt 
• Open and honest communication

• Sound business planning based on  
long-term financial objectives

• Clear and regular operation reports  
and material disclosures

• Regular meetings and open engagement
• Asset tours
• Prospectus
• Investment statement
• Rating reports
• Investor briefings
• Clear and regular operation reports  

and material disclosures
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Global Reporting Initiative index

Mer id ia n con siders t hat t h i s rep or t ha s b een prepa red i n accorda nce w it h t he core opt ion of t he Globa l Rep or t i n g I n it iat ive (GR I ) i ndex  

G 4 g u idel i nes . T he pr i nciples of t he GR I G 4 Rep or t i n g Gu idel i nes a nd A A 10 0 0 have b een fol lowed i n deter m i n i n g t he content s of t h i s rep or t . 

Mer id ia n ha s not sou g ht ex ter na l a ssu ra nce for t h i s rep or t . 

G4 GENERAL STANDARD DISCLOSURE PAGE

Strategy and Analysis 

G4-1 CEO statement regarding sustainability 6

Organisational Profile

G4-3 Name of reporting organisation front cover

G4-4 Primary brands, products and/or services 2

G4-5 Location of the organisation’s headquarters 2

G4-6 Countries in which the organisation operates 2

G4-7 Nature of ownership and legal form 2

G4-8 Nature of markets served 2, 7

G4-9 Scale of the reporting organisation 2

G4-10 Employee statistics 31–32, 128

G4-11 Percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining agreements 128

G4-12 The organisation’s supply chain 131

G4-13 Significant changes in size, structure or ownership 2

G4-14 Precautionary approach or principle 23

G4-15 External charters, principles and initiatives 131

G4-16 Association or advocacy organisation memberships 131

Identified Material Aspects and Boundaries

G4-17 Entities included in financial statements and this report 126–127

G4-18 Defining report content and implementing reporting principles 132, 135–136

G4-19 Listing material aspects index

G4-20 Aspect boundaries within the organisation 135

G4-21 Aspect boundaries outside the organisation 135

G4-22 Report the effects of any restatements no restatements to report

G4-23 Report any significant changes in scope and aspect boundaries no significant changes to report

Stakeholder Engagement

G4-24 List stakeholder groups 132–133

G4-25 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders 132–133

G4-26 Organisation’s approach to stakeholder engagement 132–133

G4-27 Key stakeholder topics and concerns and the organisation’s responses 132–133

Report Profile

G4-28 Reporting period front cover, 136

G4-29 Date of most recent report 136

G4-30 Reporting cycle (annual, biennial etc) annual reporting, 136

G4-31 Contact point for questions regarding the report back cover

G4-32 GRI content index and ‘in accordance’ option 134–135

G4-33 External assurance policy and practice external assurance has not been sought 
for this report, 134

Governance

G4-34 Governance structure of the organisation 41–45

Ethics and Integrity

G4-56 Description of the organisation’s values, principles, standards and norms of behaviour 41–43
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G4 GENERAL STANDARD DISCLOSURE PAGE

Electric Utilities Sector Disclosures

EU1 Installed capacity 3

EU2 Net energy output 2, 20

EU3 Number of customer accounts 2

EU4 Length of transmission and distribution lines length insignificant

EU5 Allocation of CO₂ emission allowances 131

SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES

MATERIAL ASPECTS DMA AND INDICATORS INDICATOR DETAIL PAGE/LINK

Category: Economic

Economic performance G4-EC1 Direct economic value generated and distributed financial section

Category: Environmental Performance

Water G4-EN9 Water sources significantly affected  
by withdrawal of water 

23–25

Biodiversity G4-EN12 Significant impacts on biodiversity 23–25

EU13 Biodiversity of offset habitats 23–25

Emissions G4-EN15 Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) 129 – a more comprehensive  
emissions inventory can be found at  
www.meridian.co.nz/greenhousegas 

G4-EN16 Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) 129

G4-EN17 Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) 129

G4-EN19 Reduction of GHG emissions 129

Category: Social

Occupational  
health and safety 

G4-LA5 Percentage of total workforce represented  
in formal Health and Safety Committees 

32

Diversity and 
equal opportunity 

G4-LA12 Breakdown of governance bodies and employees  
by diversity indicators 

31, 128

Local communities G4-SO1 Operations with local community engagement,  
impact assessments and development programmes 

21, 28

EU22 People physically or economically displaced  
and compensation 

no displacement occurred

Pricing Key issues from customers, media and industry 7, 13–15

MERIDIAN MATERIAL ISSUE  G4 CATEGORY  
AND ASPECTS 

MATERIAL WITHIN  
THE ORGANISATION 

 MATERIAL EXTERNAL  
TO THE ORGANISATION 

RELEVANCE OUTSIDE THE ORGANISATION

Financial return Economic – economic 
performance 

√ √ stakeholders are interested  
in wealth creation

Water stewardship Environmental – water √ √ collaboration with stakeholders to 
manage water catchment effectively

Renewable energy Environmental – biodiversity √ habitat enhancement and restoration

Energy service –  
customers – pricing 

Meridian selected √ √ this is important to our customers  
and those seeking to understand  
pricing across the industry 

Engaged communities Society – local communities √ √ our community funding and support  
in the local communities where our 
assets are located is important to  
the communities and the staff who  
live in them 

Working sustainably Social – employment √

Social – occupational  
health & safety 

√

Environmental – emissions √ √ reducing GHGs is an important 
contribution to global climate  
change mitigation
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i n accorda nce w it h t he core opt ion of t he 

GR I G 4 g u idel i nes . T he pr i nciples of t he GR I 

G 4 Rep or t i n g Gu idel i nes a nd A A 10 0 0 have 

b een fol lowed i n deter m i n i n g t he content s of 

t h i s rep or t . Mer id ia n ha s not sou g ht ex ter na l 

a ssu ra nce for t h i s rep or t . 

T he i ssues d i scu ssed i n t h i s rep or t ref lect ou r 

most si g n i f ica nt i mpact s a nd t he key concer n s 

a nd ex p ectat ion s of ou r sta keholders . T hey 

i nclude econom ic , env i ron menta l a nd so cia l 

i ssues . T he i ssues have b een gat hered over 

t he yea r f rom sta keholders , t he Mer id ia n 

S a fet y a nd Su sta i nabi l it y Com m it tee, sen ior 

execut ives , employees , Ngā i Ta hu , med ia , 

i ndu st r y a nd sector com menta r y. T he i ssues 

have t hen b een a na lysed , pr ior it i sed a nd 

a l i g ned w it h ou r key st rateg ic t hemes a nd t he 

G 4 mater ia l a sp ect s a nd sta nda rd d i sclosu res . 

More i n for mat ion on key sta keholders , t hei r 

i nterest s a nd Mer id ia n’s resp on se ca n b e 

fou nd i n t he sta keholder a na lysi s table on 

pa ges 1 32 a nd 1 3 3 .

This report is a review  
of Meridian’s sustainability 
performance in the 
financial year 1 July 2013  
to 30 June 2014.

L a st yea r, Mer id ia n pro duced sepa rate rep or t s 

for f i na ncia l a nd non-f i na ncia l p er for ma nce. 

T h i s yea r we have ret u r ned to a combi ned 

A n nua l Rep or t , i nclud i n g a rev iew of f i na ncia l 

a nd su sta i nabi l it y p er for ma nce.

For t he f i na ncia l yea r, t he Mer id ia n Group 

i ncluded t he pa rent compa ny Mer id ia n E nerg y 

L i m ited a nd it s op erat iona l subsid ia r ies 

Da mwatch , Powershop, Mer id ia n Au st ra l ia 

a nd A rc I n novat ion s . Un less ot her w i se stated , 

statement s of non-f i na ncia l i n for mat ion 

refer to Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited , t he pa rent 

compa ny, on ly. C a re ha s b een ta ken to en su re 

t hat a l l data i n t h i s rep or t i s a s accu rate a s 

p ossible. W here a ssu mpt ion s have b een made, 

t hey a re clea rly stated a nd ex pla i ned .

I ncluded i n t h i s rep or t i s a su m ma r y of t he 

GHG i nventor y for Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited 

(t he pa rent compa ny – a more deta i led version 

of wh ich ha s b een aud ited by D eloit te) a nd 

a Globa l Rep or t i n g I n it iat ive (GR I ) i ndex of 

rep or t i n g comp onent s covered . Mer id ia n 

con siders t hat t h i s rep or t ha s b een prepa red 

About  
this report
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Registered office

Mer id ia n E nerg y L i m ited

3 3 C u stom hou se Q uay

Wel l i n g ton 601 1

New Zea la nd 

Offices

3 3 C u stom hou se Q uay

PO B ox 108 4 0

T he Ter race

Wel l i n g ton 614 3

New Zea la nd 

T: +6 4 4 3 81 1 2 0 0

F: +6 4 4 3 81 1 2 01

10 4 Moorhou se Avenue

PO B ox 2 14 6

C h r i stchu rch 814 0

New Zea la nd

T: +6 4 3 3 57 970 0

State H i g hway 8

P r ivate B a g 9 5 0

T w i zel 79 4 4

New Zea la nd

T: +6 4 3 4 3 5 0818

F: +6 4 3 4 3 5 0939

Australian registered office

Mer id ia n E nerg y Au st ra l ia P t y Ltd

L evel 1 5 , 3 57 Col l i n s St reet

Melb ou r ne V IC 3 0 0 0

T: +61 3 8 370 2 10 0

F: +61 3 9 62 0 52 3 5

Share Registrar – New Zealand

Computersha re I nvestor S er v ices Ltd

L evel 2 , 1 59 Hu rst mere Road

Ta kapu na , Auck la nd 0 62 2

P r ivate B a g 92 1 19

Auck la nd 1 14 2

T: +6 4 9 4 8 8 87 7 7

F: +6 4 9 4 8 8 8787

enqu i r y@ computersha re.co. n z

w w w. i nvestorcent re.com /n z

Share Registrar – Australia

Computersha re I nvestor S er v ices P t y Ltd

Ya r ra Fa l l s , 4 52 Joh n ston St reet

Abb ot sford , V IC 3 037

GPO B ox 3 32 9

Melb ou r ne, V IC 3 0 01

T: 180 0 5 01 3 66 (w it h i n Au st ra l ia )

T: +61 3 9 4 1 5 4 08 3 (out side Au st ra l ia )

F: +61 3 9 47 3 2 5 0 0

enqu i r y@ computersha re.co. n z

Auditor

M ichael Wi l kes

O n b eha l f of t he O f f ice  

of t he Aud itor- G enera l

D eloit te

PO B ox 24 8

C h r i stchu rch 814 0

New Zea la nd

Banker

West pac

Wel l i n g ton

New Zea la nd

Directors

C h r i s Mol ler, C ha i r

Peter Wi l son , D eput y C ha i r

Joh n B on ga rd

Ma rk C a i r n s

Ja n Dawson

Ma r y D ev i ne

S a l ly Fa r r ier

A na ke G oo da l l

Stephen Rei nd ler

Management team

Ma rk Bi n n s , C h ief E xecut ive

Nea l B a rclay

B en Bu rge

Pau l C ha mb ers

Jacqu i C lela nd

A la n McC au ley

Glen McL atch ie

Ja son Stei n

Guy Wa ipa ra

I f you wou ld l i ke to com ment on Mer id ia n’s 

A n nua l Rep or t , or i f you have quest ion s  

you wou ld l i ke a n swered , plea se ema i l  

i nvestors @mer id ia nenerg y.co. n z .
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Dear Investor

We are pleased to advise that Meridian Energy Limited’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014 is now available  
at www.meridianenergy.co.nz/investors/reports-and-presentations

We’re committed to creating a better energy future and reducing our environmental footprint, you can too – simply by choosing 
to receive Meridian’s investor communications electronically.

To receive Meridian’s investor communications electronically (including email notifications of when reports are available 
online): 

Enter your email here: 

Note: By providing your email address above you consent to receiving investor communications (this may include reports, payment advice,  
meeting documents and statements) and this replaces any prior selection you may have made. If you do not wish to receive investor 
communications electronically you do not need to take any action. This selection will continue to apply to Instalment Receipt holders who  
become Meridian shareholders.

Or

Visit www.investorcentre.com/nz and log in. Select ‘My profile’ and click on the ‘update’ button on the 
communication preferences tile. You will need your CSN or Holder Number and FIN to access Investor Centre  
and register your account. If you don’t have these you can email enquiry@computershare.co.nz

Alternatively, you can elect to receive a printed copy of the Annual Report, free of charge, on request by returning this 
form within 15 working days of receiving this notice.

This year Meridian has not prepared a concise Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Tick here if you wish to receive a printed copy of the Annual Report.

Note: If you make this request then we will continue to send you printed copies of each annual report and half-year report (prepared in accordance  
with the NZSX listing rules) each year in accordance with applicable laws. If you wish to change your selection in the future you will need to send  
written notice of that change to our Share Registry, using the contact details as set out below. 

Once you have completed this form, please: 

Return it to our Share Registry, Computershare Investor Services, Private Bag 92119, Auckland 1142, New Zealand  
in the reply paid envelope

Or 

Scan and email your form to ecomms@computershare.co.nz

Annual Report  
for the  year ended 30 June 2014

Please turn over



Substantial security holders 

The following information is provided in compliance with Section 35F of the Securities Markets Act 1988 and is stated as at  
15 August 2014.  The total number of voting securities of Meridian Energy Limited at that date was 2,563,000,000.

Name
Relevant Interest in 
number of shares

% of shares held at the 
date of notice

Date of Notice

SHARES

Her Majesty the Queen in the Right of New Zealand 1,307,586,374 51.02 31 October 2013

Her Majesty the Queen in the Right of New Zealand1, 2, 3 1,255,413,626 48.98 31 October 2013

INSTALMENT RECEIPTS

Relevant Interest in 
number of Instalment 
Receipts

% of Instalment 
Receipts held at the 
date of notice

Mellon Bank of New York 166,300,000 6.49 1 November 2013

1. This holding represents the number of Shares for which Instalment Receipts were issued (such Instalment Receipts are held by members of the public). 
The current registered holders of these Shares are NZGT (IR) Limited or The Trust Company (Nominees) Limited in their respective capacities as Instalment 
Receipt trustees under the Instalment Receipt Trust Deeds. The Crown, by virtue of its security interests under the Instalment Receipt Trust Deeds has a 
relevant interest in these Shares until such time as they are transferred or sold by the trustees in accordance with the terms of the Instalment Receipt Trust 
Deeds.

2. Of this holding, the New Zealand Superannuation Fund is the current beneficial owner of 20,784,887 or 0.81% of the Shares corresponding to Instalment 
Receipts (and New Zealand Superannuation Fund Nominees Limited or its duly authorised custodians is the registered owner of the corresponding 
Instalment Receipts). The Crown has a relevant interest in the Shares, by virtue of the fact that the New Zealand Superannuation Fund is the property of the 
Crown pursuant to the New Zealand Superannuation and Retirement Income Act 2001.

3. Of this holding, Judith MacDonald, Jeffrey Hynes and Richard Andrell, in their capacities as trustees of the Rangitāne O Wairau Settlement Trust, are the 
current beneficial owners of 427,666 or 0.02% of the Shares corresponding to Instalment Receipts (and Judith MacDonald, Jeffrey Hynes and Richard 
Andrell, in their capacities as trustees of the Rangitāne O Wairau Settlement Trust are the registered owners of the corresponding Instalment Receipts).  
The Crown has a relevant interest in the Shares, by virtue of a Deed of Embargo between Rangitāne O Wairau Settlement Trust and the Crown dated  
23 October 2013.

Table prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Markets Act (Meridian Energy Limited Substantial Security Holder) 
Exemption Notice 2013.

 
Yours sincerely 
The team at Meridian

If you have any questions about changing how you receive shareholder communications, 
please contact Computershare at 09 488 8777 or by email: ecomms@computershare.co.nz
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